

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 1 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  
   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the SCCCE for 2017-18 


2.4. Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
(Govt. Code Section 54956.8) 


Property: 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, CA              
Property Negotiator: Patrick Gaffney                                    
Negotiating Parties: SCCS/Burroughs                                        
Under Negotiation: Term of Lease 


2.5. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Title: Superintendent  Subject: 2018-19 Goals 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


1/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 2 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes 6-13-18 Reviewed  


7.2. Minutes 6-20-18 Reviewed  


7.3. Minutes 8-15-18 Reviewed  


   


8. General Public Business  
   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: 
These matters may be passed by one roll 
call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


2/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 3 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.3.1. Quote: Belson: benches for locker 
improvements project @ Harbor HS 


 


8.1.3.2. Quote: Larson Electronics: Stadium Lights @ 
Harbor HS 


 


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Disposition of Surplus Property  


8.1.7. Williams Quarterly Report  


8.1.8. Revised Classified Job Description: Lead Bus 
Driver  


 


8.1.9. Resolution 01-18-19 Authorization for 
Submittal of Application for School Bus Grant 


 


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Human Resources: CSA Scott Hamilton Continuation of Soquel HS Athletic Training 


8.2.2. Human Resources: CSA Mary Gaukel Forster Administrator Coaching 


8.2.3. Human Resources: CSA Bert Post Administrator Coaching 


8.2.4. Educational Services: SCCS/COE Science 
Camp Agreement for 2018-19 


 


8.2.5. Educational Services: Monarch ES-CSA 
Sarah Rapp 


ELL Teacher/Staff Professional Development 


8.2.6. Educational Services: Student Services: 
Service Agreement SCCS/UC Santa Barbara 


Social Emotional Health Survey 


8.2.7. Educational Services: CIA: AVID Contract 
2018-19 


 


8.2.8. Educational Services: CIA: CSA for GLAD Gault ES Teacher Professional Development 


8.2.9. Educational Services: SPED: Out of State 
Non Public School – Alpine Academy 


 


3/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 4 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.10. Educational Services: SPED: Agreement for 
Professional Services-Margaret Barker 


Assistive Technology 


8.2.11. Educational Services: SPED: Agreement for 
Professional Services-Deborah Bell 


Assistive Technology 


8.2.12. Educational Services: SPED: Non Public 
School – The Bay School 


 


8.2.13. Educational Services: SPED: Out of State 
Non Public School - Diamond Ranch 
Academy 


 


8.2.14. Educational Services: SPED: Out of State 
Non Public School – La Europa Academy 


 


8.2.15. Educational Services: SPED: Non Public 
School – RCS/Phoenix School 


 


8.2.16. Educational Services: SPED: Agreement with 
Non Public Agency – Trumpet Behavioral 
Health 


 


8.2.17. Business Services: Wenger & Associates: 
Contract Addendum-service to June 2019 


 


8.2.18. Business Services: SCCS/COE: Lease 
Agreement – renewal for 133 Swift St., SC 


 


8.2.19. Business Services: Encompass: MOU 
Addendum – renew lease for HeadStart for 
portable at Branciforte Small Schools 


 


8.2.20. Business Services: Encompass: FUA 
Addendum – renew lease for HeadStart 
portable and Kinderpod at Natural Bridges 


 


8.2.21. Business Services: Landscape Structures: 
Bay View ES PIP Playground C.O. #1 


 


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids & 
Change Orders 


 


8.3.1. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Mission Hill 
MS Front Landscape 


 


4/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 5 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.2. Proposal: Albion Environmental: On Call 
Services 


 


8.3.3. Proposal: Albion Environmental: DeLaveaga 
ES Archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.4. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Branciforte 
SS Archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.5. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Soquel HS 
Archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.6. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Branciforte 
MS archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.7. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Santa Cruz 
HS Archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.8. Proposal: Albion Environmental: Westlake ES 
Archaeological soil investigation 


 


8.3.9. Agreement Amendment: Belli: Harbor HS 
athletic field project and PG&E gas line 
relocation  


 


8.3.10. Change Order: Bowman & Williams: Harbor 
HS pool project 


 


8.3.11. Proposal: Butano: Harbor HS field project  


8.3.12. Proposal: Butano: Harbor HS field project  


8.3.13. Change Order #1: CRW Industries, Inc.: 
Mission Hill MS front landscape 


 


8.3.14 Contract: CWS Construction Group: Harbor 
HS locker improvements project 


 


8.3.15 Contract: D & T Painting: Santa Cruz HS gym 
vestibule & RR paint 


 


8.3.16. Proposal: Earth Systems: Gault ES 
Re-roofing project 


 


8.3.17. Proposal: Enviroplex: Bay View ES, 
Branciforte SS, DeLaveaga ES modular 
buildings 


 


5/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 6 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.18. Bid/Contract: First Serve Productions: Soquel 
HS & Harbor HS tennis courts 


 


8.3.19. Change Order #1: First Serve Productions: 
Soquel HS & Harbor HS tennis courts 


 


8.3.20. Change Order #1: Garland: Mission Hill MS 
re-roofing project 


 


8.3.21. Change Order #1: Garland: Harbor HS 
re-roofing project 


 


8.3.22. Change Order #1: Ifland Survey: DeLaveaga 
ES modernization 


 


8.3.23. Proposal: Joseph Renda: Soquel HS 
concession area 


 


8.3.24 Proposal: Kleinfelder: Branciforte SS campus 
classroom building 


 


8.3.25 Proposal: Kleinfelder: Branciforte SS lunch 
shelter and playground project 


 


8.3.26. Proposal: Kleinfelder: Soquel HS pool & 
concession area project 


 


8.3.27. Proposal: Kleinfelder: Natural Bridges gym 
modernization 


 


8.3.28. Proposal: Leach Group: Gault ES & Mission 
Hill MS re-roofing projects 


 


8.3.29. Proposal: M3 Environmental: Natural Bridges 
painting 


 


8.3.30. Proposal: MBS Engineering: Natural Bridges 
modernization project 


 


8.3.31. Proposal: MBS Engineering: Branciforte SS 
modernization project phase I 


 


8.3.32. Proposal: MBS Engineering: Gault ES 
modernization 


 


8.3.33. Change Order #1: Swinerton: Soquel HS 
modernization project 


 


6/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 7 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.34. Deductive Change Order #1: Flint Builders: 
modernization for Bay View and DeLaveaga - 
reduction of scope at DeLaveaga 


 


8.3.35 Bid & Contract: Zayco Performance Coatings: 
Natural Bridges Repainting 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  
   


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Suspension/Expulsion Process 
Update 


Staff will present information on the SCCS 
Suspension/Expulsion Process 


8.5.1.2. Educational Services: SPED: Non Public 
Agency ABRITE Organization 


 


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Bond Projects Update Belli Architects will present an update on bond projects 


8.5.2.2. New Business: Amendment: Belli Architects: 
Harbor HS pool project 


Recommendation: Approve the amendment to the Harbor 
HS pool project 


8.5.2.3. PUBLIC HEARING: SCCS/SCCCE Tentative 
Agreement 2017-18 


The Public Hearing provides the public an opportunity to 
comment prior to Board approval 


8.5.2.4. New Business: AB 1200 Fiscal Impact: 
SCCS/SCCCE Tentative Agreement 2017-18 


Recommendation: Approve the AB 1200 for the 
SCCS/SCCCE Tentative Agreement 2017-18 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. New Business: Approve the SCCS/SCCCE 
Tentative Agreement 2017-18 


Recommendation: Approve the agreement as submitted 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


7/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 8 of 9 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.4.1. New Business: Renaming the Harbor High 
School Theater 


Recommendation: Approve the renaming of the Harbor High 
School Theater. 


8.5.4.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda items. 


   


9. Adjournment  
   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  
   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on September 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on September 26, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on October 3, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018                                                                                        EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 9 of 9 


4. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


9/746







Minutes 6-13-18 Reviewed


Separator Page


10/746







 
 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


June 13, 2018 
 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
Newly elected SCCCE President Jeanie Brown introduced herself and the newly elected SCCCE 2nd Vice 
President Paula Morin.  Ms. Brown asked the Trustees to consider a larger raise for the bargaining unit than 
the previously offered 1.5%.  For some of the SCCCE members, a 1.5% increase will not amount to $1 per day.  
SCCCE 1st Vice President Mike Rodriguez offered his congratulations to Ms. Brown and Ms. Morin on their 
election victories and is eager to begin working with them on behalf of the unit members.  Mr. Rodriguez feels 
that the previously offered increase will not meet the needs of unit members.  Santa Cruz City Schools has 
always provided well for its employees.  While the SCCCE is grateful for the productive working relationship, 
members are struggling to make ends meet and many are working multiple jobs to get by.  Please consider 
continuing your tradition of taking excellent care of your employees. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:32 p.m. in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
Board Recording Secretary Lentz reported that Item 7.2. Minutes of May 30, 2018 has been revised to 
correctly reflect the vote on the Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing for Student #6.  Also, Item 8.1.5. 
Resolution 24-17-18 District Signature Authorizations has been revised and each Trustee and Cabinet Member 


11/746







 
 


has received a copy of the new item.  There is no change in the intent of the item; however, an updated 
resolution is now included.   
 
Recognition of Student Board Representatives for 2017-18 
Board President Vestal congratulated our student representatives Superintendent Munro presented each of 
the 2017-18 Student Board Representatives with a certificate of appreciation for their service to our school 
community.  Students Genesis Smith, Daniela Werlin-Martinez and Student Representative Alternate Allie 
Bare were excellent representatives of student viewpoints and outstanding board participants.  Their service 
was greatly appreciated by the Santa Cruz City Schools Trustees, Administration, and school community. 
   


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Harbor High School Teacher Ron Indra spoke on behalf of the Safe Schools Committee, the LGBQT Task Force 
and the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors to recognize outgoing Student Services Director Eileen Brown 
for her outstanding service on behalf of all students in Santa Cruz City Schools.  Mr. Indra presented Ms. 
Brown with a Certificate of Service.  Retired SCCS Classified employee Bill Philipps and retired SCCS 
Certificated employee Lizann Keys introduced themselves as the representatives of an AFT chartered local 
union of Retired School Employees.  This committee will work on behalf of retired employees.   
   


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro congratulated and thanked outgoing Student Services Director Eileen Brown for her 
work on behalf of the district, and introduced both incoming Student Services Director Greg O’Meara and 
incoming Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services Dorothy Coito.  Since our last Regular Meeting on 
May 9, Superintendent Munro has had the privilege of representing the district at the following events: the 
Rotary Scholarships event on May 11, where 19 Santa Cruz City Schools Grade 12 students received 
scholarships; the Queer Youth Leadership Awards on May 12; the Santa Cruz City Schools Retirement 
Reception on May 16; the Guelaguetza on May 20; the BaySci training on May 31 and June 1; meeting with 
Santa Cruz Education Foundation leadership on June 6; school promotion/graduation events on June 6, 7 and 
8; Next Generation Science Standards professional development workshops beginning June 11 and continuing 
through June 15.  Superintendent Munro was pleased to report that the Santa Cruz County College 
Commitment (S4C) received a $100,000 grant for counseling professional development from the Monterey 
Peninsula Foundation.  Congratulations to all of our students and families as we transition from this year into 
the future. 


 
BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 


Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx reported that she was honored to have worked with Student Board 
Representatives Bare, Smith and Werlin-Martinez and with outgoing Student Services Director Brown. 
 
Board Member Shonick reported having a great time at the graduation events.  Mr. Shonick is pleased to see 
the work going on to support professional development for Science at both the BaySci and the Next 
Generation Science Standards workshops.  Thank you Superintendent Munro for your role in these events; it 
was a great privilege to attend.  
 
Board Member Ranii enjoyed the promotion/graduation events and felt they really sent the message that our 
school communities are healthy and working well together.  Dr. Ranii was extremely honored to be part of a 
ceremony.  Dr. Ranii acknowledged Student Services Director Brown for her exceptional service to this 


12/746







 
 


community and welcomed incoming Student Services Director O’Meara and incoming Assistant 
Superintendent Coito.  Dr. Ranii thanked the Student Representatives for their fine work and noted that they 
set a high standard for future student representatives. 
 
Board Member Threet commented that student voices and perspectives are very important to this board and 
thanked the outgoing student representatives for providing such excellent feedback for the Trustees and 
Administrators.  Trustee Threet thanked Student Services Director Brown as a Board Member and as a parent 
– Director Brown taught Ms. Threet many things during her tenure at SCCS.  Board Member Threet 
congratulated Mr. Philipps and Ms. Keys for their work on behalf of retired employees.  Ms. Threet heard 
Santa Cruz COE Superintendent Michael Watkins and Santa Cruz Vice-Mayor Martine Watkins deliver an 
informative message about restorative justice.  Trustee Threet attended three high school graduations, two 
comprehensive schools and Alternative Family Education, and appreciates being part of a district that 
understands the diverse needs of students and families. 
 
Board Member Coonerty attended promotion/graduation events at Bay View Elementary, Westlake 
Elementary and Santa Cruz High Schools and enjoyed each one.  Dr. Coonerty attended a Career Tech Portfolio 
presentation event where students demonstrated their skills in career technical programs and it was 
informative, interesting and professional.  Dr. Coonerty shared her gratitude for Student Service Director 
Brown’s professionalism, knowledge and willingness to have community members contact her for information 
about student health and safety.  Eileen Brown represented this school district in the best possible way and 
Dr. Coonerty thanked her for her outstanding service.   
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Vestal thanked Student Services Director Brown for her service to our school community, and, 
in particular, for her vital work on the Wellness Committee.  The Board President attended graduation events 
for the Adult Education School, Delta Charter High School, DeLaveaga Elementary and Harbor High School.  
Each event offered excitement and inspiration.  Nearly 200 adult students received their GEDs, High School 
diplomas, health program certificates or citizenship papers.  The student speeches at Delta High School were 
moving and encouraging.  The DeLaveaga 5th Graders showed maturity and poise as they delivered their 
speeches in both English and Spanish, and the speeches by the nine valedictorians at Harbor High School made 
Board President Vestal feel proud of this district.  The Delta Board Meeting agenda included approval of the 
2018-19 Preliminary Budget and LCAP, as well as an Operations Report, a Parent Report and a discussion of 
plans for celebrating the 25th anniversary of Delta Charter High School.  The Schools Plus Board met to update 
the application process for the next grant cycle and plan next year’s Social.  It was great to see the district’s 
presence at community events and celebrations.  The Santa Cruz High School Marching Band played in the 
Pride Parade, our middle and high school students were recognized at the Queer Youth Leadership Awards 
event, and many community members were at the Guelaguetza. 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MSP (Coonerty/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved Minutes of May 23, 2018. 
 
MSP (Threet/Tracy-Proulx) 5-0-2, the Board of Education approved Minutes of May 30, 2018, including the 
corrected vote on the IDT Appeal for Student #6.  Mr. Shonick and Dr. Coonerty abstained from this vote as 
they were not present at the meeting. 
 


 
 


13/746







 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
Dr. Coonerty commented on Item 8.1.11. Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Annual Report: this is a great report 
from a new committee.  Board Members Shonick and Threet had questions about the following items: 8.3.5. 
Corrected Bid-Garland-Branciforte MS roof materials; 8.3.6. Corrected Bid – Garland – Harbor HS roof 
materials; 8.3.10. Proposal from Kleinfelder proposal for the DeLaveaga ES parking lot and shade structure; 
Item 8.3.12. Leach Group proposal and contract for DSA services for Soquel HS and Small Schools; Item 8.3.13. 
CRW Industries bid and contract for Natural Bridges gym minor repairs.  Mr. Gaffney and Mr. Miller provided 
the information necessary for the Trustees to vote on these matters.  Item 8.3.9. Garland proposal for the 
Santa Cruz HS roof materials was pulled from the agenda by Ms. Threet for a separate discussion and vote.  
Ms. Tracy-Proulx moved approval of the Consent Agenda, less Item 8.3.9. Garland proposal for the Santa Cruz 
HS roof materials, consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – 
Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. Resolution 
24-17-18 Authorizing District Signatures; Item 8.1.6. Resolution 25-17-18 Summer Contract Approvals; Item 
8.1.7. Resolution 26-17-18 Education Protection Act; Item 8.1.8. Resolution 27-17-18 Summer Personnel 
Actions; Item 8.1.9. SCCS Updates to the COE Plan for Expelled Students; Item 8.1.10. Out of State Travel 
Request for a Special Education assessment in Utah; Item 8.1.11. Parcel Tax Oversight Committee (PTOC) 
Annual Report; Item 8.1.12. Disposition of Surplus Property; Item 8.2.1. Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services 
from Lozano Smith; Item 8.2.2. Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services from Dannis Woliver Kelley; Item 8.2.3. 
Agreement for 2018-19 Legal Services from Fagen, Friedman & Fulfrost; Item 8.2.4. 2018-19 agreement for 
online board book and policy manual maintenance from CSBA; Item 8.2.5. 2018-19 Membership Agreement 
from CSBA; Item 8.2.6. 2018-19 Contract with Document Tracking Services; Item 8.2.7. 2018-19 CSA with 
Vision to Learn for mobile vision screening; Item 8.2.8. 2018-19 CSA with Hearing Conservation West; Item 
8.2.9. 2018-19 CSA with SEEDS Community Resolution; Item 8.2.10. 2018-19 CSA with Shahe Moutafian for 
hearing testing; Item 8.2.11. 2018-19 CSA with Margaret Lacey for hearing testing; Item 8.2.12. 2018-19 
Contract with NWEA for MAP; Item 8.2.13. 2018-19 CSA with Organized Binder for Harbor HS; Item 8.2.14. Out 
of State NPS Contract with Diamond Ranch Academy; Item 8.2.15. Out of State NPS Contract with La Europa 
Academy; Item 8.2.16. MOUs with Neighbor Districts; Item 8.2.17. 2018-19 NPA Master Contract with Easter 
Seals; Item 8.2.18. 2018-19 NPA Master Contract with Balance 4 Kids; Item 8.2.19. Contract with APS 
SpeechRighter Inc. for Special Education Extended School Year Services; Item 8.2.20. Contract with APS 
Sunbelt Staffing for Special Education Extended School Year Services; Item 8.2.21. Locatelli Moving Services 
proposal for moving the district office to 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz; Item 8.2.22. 2018-19 Agreement with 
School Services, Inc.; Item 8.2.23. BorderLAN contract for IT content filter for SCCS; Item 8.2.24. Contract with 
Bogard Construction for 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz; Item 8.3.1. Belli Architects – Agreement Amendment 
for Branciforte MS Music/MPR Improvement; Item 8.3.2. Belli Architects – Agreement Amendment for Harbor 
HS Athletic Fields; Item 8.3.3. Butano – Change Order #1 for Harbor HS Athletic Fields; Item 8.3.4. CEL 
Consulting proposal and contract terms for Small Schools modernization; Item 8.3.5. Garland corrected bid for 
Branciforte MS roof materials; Item 8.3.6. Garland corrected bid for Harbor HS roof materials; Item 8.3.8. XL 
Construction Change Orders 1 & 2 for the Harbor HS athletic fields; Item 8.3.10. Kleinfelder proposal for 
DeLaveaga ES parking lot and shade structure; Item 8.3.11. D and T Paint bid for Santa Cruz HS gym interior 
painting; Item 8.3.12. Leach Group proposal and contract for DSA services for Soquel HS and Small Schools; 
Item 8.3.13. CRW Industries bid and contract for Natural Bridges gym minor repairs; Item 8.3.14. CRW 
Industries bid and contract for Small Schools playground site work; Item 8.3.15. Landscape Structures proposal 
for materials and labor for the Small Schools playground surface; Item 8.3.16. Landscape Structures proposal 
for Bay View ES playground “drops”; Item 8.3.17. Artistic Coverings contract for the Santa Cruz HS gym wall 
padding; Item 8.3.18. Flint Builders proposal and revised base bid for fire line work at Bay View ES; Item 


14/746







 
 


8.3.19. Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGACBuy) cooperative purchasing agreement.  Dr. Ranii seconded 
the motion.  The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education heard information on Expulsion 12-17-18 and 13-17-18 to 
prepare for a vote later in Open Session. 


2. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


3. Ms. Parks did not have any information to report to the Board of Education regarding 
Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 


4. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Ms. Parks 
regarding negotiations with the SCCCE for 2017-18. 


5. The Board of Education received information regarding Special Education Settlement 
Agreement OAH #2018031273. 


6. The Board of Education did not discuss the Liability Claim filed by claimant Alexander 
Pebbles and will bring this item back to the Closed Session at the June 20, 2018 meeting. 


7. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Superintendent 
Munro regarding Employment Work Agreements for Assistant Superintendents. 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Harbor High School –Exploration of the International Baccalaureate Program 


Principal Runeare shared that Harbor High School is investigating the IB Programme for 
consideration as part of its academic program and offerings as an alternative to the College 
Board’s Advanced Placement (AP) courses. The primary reasons for considering IB are the 
benefits it offers students, teachers, and the school.  Some of the benefits for students are: 
preparation for college -- curriculum emphasizes critical thinking, analysis, self-reflection, and 
effective communication; IB program encourages students to be well-rounded and achieve 
mastery in multiple disciplines and it includes a community service element; IB subject tests 
and diploma program allows freedom, flexibility, and choice; students receive an increased GPA 
and college credit towards electives or major for IB courses and exams; all have access to IB 
classes.  Benefits for teachers include: the skills-based IB format fits seamlessly with Common 
Core; great flexibility, choice, and depth of skills within subject matter; professional 
development workshops and connection to a global community of IB teachers; rich resources 
support content and assessment; IB trained teachers can work in IB schools around the world.  
The program builds a culture of learning, global awareness, and community service that 
matches with Harbor’s goals and values, attracts students from within the district and outside 
the district and the school becomes an IB World School and is a draw for international exchange 
students.  Following comments, questions and discussion by the Trustees, Principal Runeare 
reported that she will return in October to report on the final conclusions of the examination of 
the program, including staff feedback and fiscal impact, and to seek approval from the Board of 
Education should the site decide to apply for the IB Programme.  This report was informational 
in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 


15/746







 
 


8.5.1.2. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Process and Recommendations 
Curriculum, Intervention and Assessment Co-Directors Hodges and Robb reported that SCCS is 
currently in the second year of a three year cycle regarding our Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP). Engaging all stakeholders in the LCAP process and recommendations is an essential 
annual component of updating our district LCAP.  This year, in our efforts to continue to improve 
our stakeholder engagement process regarding our areas of student need (specifically as they relate 
to English Learners, Foster Youth, and students from Low Income households), we held a leadership 
retreat for Teacher Leaders, RtI Coordinators, Instructional Coaches, Site and District Administrators 
and looked at subgroup data to help focus our efforts into 4 strategic focus areas. These strategic 
focus areas are: Academic Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School 
Connectedness. Stakeholders discussed the data, looked at current practices and initiatives, and 
recommended one Tier 1 and one Tier 2 program/practice to focus on at each grade span in each of 
the strategic areas. Stakeholders were then asked to outline the cost to implement each of these 
programs/practices. A smaller committee then reviewed the recommendations and looked at the 
district LCAP and other budgets to determine needed budget revisions to support the 
implementation of these Tier 1 & Tier 2 practices. Each of the Tier 1 and Tier 2 practices were 
shared with the Board during the April 18th MTSS presentation.  Santa Cruz City Schools gathered 
input from a variety of stakeholders to make updates to our 2017-2020 Local Control Accountability 
Plan (LCAP). A series of meetings were held over eight months from September 2017 – May 2018. A 
survey was administered to parents, students and all staff for input to inform our LCAP. SCCS 
community groups (Superintendent’s Parent Leader Advisory Group, District English Language 
Advisory Council (DELAC), Migrant Parent Advisory Council (PAC), District Advisory Committee 
(DAC), Student Focus Groups and Board Community Meetings) provided input on the LCAP through 
regularly scheduled meetings.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken 
by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.5.1.3.  PUBLIC HEARING: Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update provide details regarding 
Local Educational Agencies' (LEAs') actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and 
overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 
47606.5. A Public Hearing on the 2018-19 LCAP follows to allow public input prior to being 
submitted for adoption at the June 20th Board meeting. After Board adoption, the LCAP will be 
submitted to the County Office of Education for final approval. 
Open:  Board President Vestal opened this public hearing at 8:30 p.m. 


  Comments:  None 
  Closed:  Board President Vestal closed this public hearing at 8:31 p.m. 
 
Recess:  Board President Vestal called for a short recess at 8:31 p.m. 
Reconvene:  Board President Vestal reconvened this meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
 
8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Projects Budget Update 


Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture provided an update to the Trustees on bond projects 
expenditures through April 2018.  Mr. Bartos provided the total resource for the high school 
and the elementary bond measures, expenditures through April 2018 and the remaining 
resources.  The updates provided by site detailed the following information: Resource: funds 
available to site (including bond and state funds); Allocation: budgetary allocation based on 
latest cost estimate, and prioritizations with site teams; Expenditure to Date: expenditures for a 
given project from November 2016 thru April 2018; Projected FY 18|19: expenditures 


16/746







 
 


anticipated (predicted) from 01 July through 30 June; Percent Complete: proportion of amount 
actually expended divided by the total site resource; Multi Project Overhead: 5% of site 
resource for efforts not related to a specific project; Utility Infrastructure: site (outside of 
buildings) utilities. Drainage, Gas, Water, Electrical.  Trustees offered comments, questions and 
discussion.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.5.2.1. New Business: Contract: Roofing & Solar Bid and Contract for Santa Cruz HS Roof 


Mr. Gaffney and Mr. Miller recommended approval of the Roofing & Solar bid and contract for 
the Santa Cruz HS roof.  MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Perez-Granados) 6-1, the Board of Education 
approved the Roofing & Solar bid and contract for the Santa Cruz HS roof.  Ms. Threet voted no. 


 
8.5.2.3. Staff Report: 2018-19 Budget Overview 


Mr. Gaffney provided an overview of the Santa Cruz City Schools 2018-19 Budget assumptions 
and highlights that included information through the Governor’s May Revise of the State 
Budget.  The revenue and expenditure summary included Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), 
Federal, State and local revenue resources, as well as expenditure projections that included 
employee salaries and benefits, books and supplies, and services and other operating expenses.  
Multi-year projections were provided, along with Federal and State funding descriptions and 
other fund highlights.  The 2018-19 Budget will return to the Trustees for approval on June 20.  
This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education 
regarding this matter. 
 


8.5.2.4. PUBLIC HEARING: 2018-19 Budget 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to conduct a public hearing on the 2018-19 Adopted Budget to 
allow for public comment prior to the Board approving the budget. Approval of the Adopted Budget 
will take place in Open Session at the Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018. 
Open: Board President Vestal opened this Public Hearing at 9:20 p.m. 
Public Comments: GSCFT President Carlson shared that she appreciated the meeting yesterday 
to ask questions and receive additional budget information.   
Close: Board President Vestal closed this Public Hearing at 9:24 p.m. 


   
8.5.2.5. New Business: Proposal: Garland – Santa Cruz HS Roof Materials 


Board Member Threet had some questions regarding the CMAS process for selecting a vendor.  
Mr. Miller explained that when the district is soliciting work for the exact same materials for 
which another entity has already completed the bid process and selected the lowest priced 
qualified firm, SCCS is allowed to select the vendor that was chosen for the previously solicited 
job.  Ms.  Threet wondered if the district might select different materials and receive lower bids 
for the project.  Mr. Miller replied that the district is satisfied with choosing the very best 
materials for the assigned task and has considered the life and quality of the product, etc.  Ms. 
Threet moved approval of the Garland proposal and Dr. Coonerty seconded the motion.  The 
motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
 Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes


 Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
 
 


17/746







 
 


8.5.4.1. New Business: New/Revised Board Policies-First or Final Reading 
Following questions, comments and discussion by the Trustees regarding some of the policies, 
MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved the submitted policies for 
final reading and adoption.  Ms. Threet abstained from this vote.  


 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President 
Vestal adjourned this Regular Meeting at 9:30 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 


recording: 
 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


18/746







Minutes 6-20-18 Reviewed


Separator Page


19/746







 
 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


June 20, 2018 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items  
None  
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
Board Recording Secretary Lentz reported the following changes: the agenda for this meeting was revised to 
reflect the addition of one item to the Closed Session; Item 8.2.1. Attachment – the CSA was revised to correct 
the dates of service; Item 8.5.1.2. Attachment – page 1 of the LCAP Consolidated Application was revised to 
include the full name of the DELAC Representative and to add the web address where the minutes for the 
DELAC meeting at which the application was approved will be posted; Item 8.5.2.1. 2018-19 Adopted Budget –
revised page 3 of the Budget (page 355 of the Board Book).   
  


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Santa Cruz Education Foundation outgoing President Stephanie Pache thanked the Trustees for their support 
of the foundation over the last four years.  The SCEF will have a board meeting tomorrow to elect new board 
members, and the district will be notified of the outcomes.  Please continue to support our students. 
   


 


20/746







 
 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported on the following activities since the last Board Meeting on June 13: the final 
district Leadership meeting which included training on the new certificated evaluation tools; planning for the 
August 2018 Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership (SCIL) meeting/training; planning for August Leadership 
training; meeting with GSCFT President Carlson to plan for the 2018-19 school year; attending Integrated ELD 
training with all site administrators.  Superintendent Munro extended her sincere thanks to outgoing Assistant 
Superintendent Frank Wells.  Frank’s leadership and expertise was a great asset to the district, and is greatly 
appreciated. 


 
BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 


Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx thanked Mr. Wells for his service to our community. 
 
Board Member Shonick thanked Mr. Wells for his work on behalf of students. 
 
Board Member Ranii thanked Mr. Wells and commented that his student centered vision was appreciated and 
valuable.  Dr. Ranii also thanked outgoing SCEF President Pache for her service on behalf of an incredible 
organization. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados recognized Ms. Pache for her energy and enthusiasm on behalf of SCEF, and 
acknowledged Mr. Wells as one of her teachers.  Thank you both. 
 
Board Member Threet thanked Mr. Wells for his service and Ms. Pache for the funds she generated for 
students in our district. 
 
Board Member Coonerty acknowledged Mr. Wells for his ability to lead and teach by his kind example.  Dr. 
Coonerty appreciated the accomplishments of Ms. Pache during her term as President of the SCEF. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Vestal thanked Mr. Wells for his thoughtfulness and his willingness to help people, and noted 
that Ms. Pache’s energy and organizational skills were assets to the Santa Cruz Education Foundation. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
Following questions by Mr. Shonick regarding two items, Ms. Tracy-Proulx moved approval of the Consent 
Agenda, consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; 
Item 8.1.3. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.4. Budget Transfers; Item 8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property; Item 
8.2.1. Superintendent: 2018-10 CSA for Carolyn Post-coaching/consulting services; Item 8.2.2. Superintendent: 
2018-19 Contract-Boardvantage Electronic Board Book Program; Item 8.2.3. Business Services/Transportation: 
CSA for Drivers Edge-Bus driver training; Item 8.2.4. Educational Services/CIA: Contract for Rosetta Stone-
renewal and licensing for Title I students; Item 8.2.5. Business Services: Contract for Bay View ES/Mission 
Street Mural; Item 8.2.6. Contracts: SCCS Cabinet Members; Item 8.3.1. Bond Projects Contract: Kleinfelder-
geological & seismic investigation Small Schools classroom building project; Item 8.3.2. Bond Projects 
Contract: Cen-Con Change Order #1-Soquel HS Marquee sign.  Dr. Coonerty seconded the motion.  The motion 
was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 


21/746







 
 


Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx-Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Vote on Expulsions 


1. MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 
14-17-18 as submitted. 


2. MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 
15-17-18 as submitted. 


8.4.2.  Report of Closed Session Actions 
1. The Board of Education heard information on Expulsions 14-17-18 and 15-17-18 to 


prepare for a vote on these matters in Open Session. 
2. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 


Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 
3. The Board of Education did not receive any information for Public Employee 


Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 
4. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Ms. Parks 


regarding negotiations with the SCCCE for 2017-18. 
5. The Board of Education heard information regarding and rejected a liability claim. 
4. The Board of Education discussed a Public Employee Performance Evaluation: 


Superintendent.  
 


ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 
8.5.1.1. New Business: 2018-19 Santa Cruz City Schools Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) 


Approval 
 Mr. Wells reported that the LCAP was previewed to the Trustees on June 13, 2018 and a Public 


Hearing was held on June 13 to provide an opportunity for the public to comment on the LCAP 
prior to approval.  MSP (Perez-Granados/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 
2018-19 SCCS LCAP. 


 
8.5.1.2. New Business: LCAP Federal Addendum & Consolidated Application 
 Mr. Wells recommended approval of the newly required addendum and the annual 


consolidated application.  MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 
LCAP Federal Addendum and Consolidated Application. 


 
8.5.2.1. New Business: Approve/Adopt the 2018-19 Santa Cruz City Schools Budget 
 Mr. Gaffney presented the budget, which previewed to the Trustees on June 13, 2018, and a 


Public Hearing was held on June 13 to provide an opportunity for the public to comment on the 
proposed budget prior to approval.  Following questions, comments and discussion, MSP 
(Coonerty/Tracy-Proulx) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 2018-19 Santa Cruz City 
Schools budget. 


 
8.5.2.2. Information Item: 2018-19 Budget Update 


Mr. Gaffney reported that subsequent to the generation of the preliminary budget presented 
to the Board, final 2018-2019 Budget negotiations between the Governor and the Legislature 
were completed.  Changes and modifications that will be made to the SCCS budget are as 
follows: one time funding the Governor had proposed in May was reduced from $344 per ADA 


22/746







 
 


to $168 per ADA and a .7% increase in LCFF COLA from 3% to 3.7%; contribution projections 
from the Unrestricted General Fund to the Restricted General Fund have been reassessed and it 
has been determined that our projected contribution can be reduced. Special Ed expenditures 
were reduced $125K. Contributions to the Medi-Cal Billing Option resource were reduced 
$335K in recognition of movement of these expenditures to alternative resources. Finally, 
revenues from partner districts to pay for services provided through our SAIL program were 
increased $151K to reflect most recent estimates of anticipated participation levels, which will 
reduce the District’s contribution.  These changes will be incorporated into the SCCS 2018-19 
Budget for the 1st Interim Report.  This update was informational in nature and no actions were 
taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.5.3.1. New Business: Approve the SCCCE Tentative Agreement 
  Ms. Parks reported that SCCS reached a tentative agreement with the SCCCE on May 24, 2018.    


SCCS offers SCCCE the increases recommended by the Personnel Commission for the positions 
of Behavior Intervention Facilitator, Occupational Therapist, Mental Health Specialist, Central 
Kitchen Coordinator, Lead Food Service Worker, and Delivery Driver – Food Services. This will 
be implemented at the beginning of the 2018-19 school year.  Health and Welfare benefits 
remain status quo for the 2017-18 school year.  SCCS offers 9-month members of SCCCE an 
additional day before the beginning of the school year for Professional Development for the 
2018-19 school year.  MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 
SCCS/SCCCE Tentative Agreement as submitted.  


 
8.5.3.2. New Business: Final Reading/Approval of Classified Job Descriptions 


Ms. Parks reported that in the second round of the revision process, 34 job descriptions are 
completed and ready for adoption.  Ewing Consultants completed a Classification and 
Compensation Study that included revising 75 SCCS classified job descriptions. Throughout that 
process, employees and supervisors were given the opportunity to provide input through 
questionnaires and interviews. After Ewing Consultants finalized job descriptions, the Personnel 
Commission and Human Resources continued to accept feedback for employees and make 
appropriate revisions. 34 job descriptions are now ready for approval. These draft job 
descriptions have been posted on the Personnel Commission web site and employees have 
been given a link to this site. The Personnel Commission approved these job descriptions at 
their meeting on June 5, 2018. The remaining 4 job descriptions will be ready for approval at 
the earliest opportunity.  MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 
classified job descriptions as submitted. 


 
8.5.3.3. Staff Report: Partnership between Administration and Labor (PAL) 


Ms. Parks reported that SCCS is committed to creating a District that is a great place to work 
and learn. Further, we know that effective collaboration between all educators in our learning 
community is critical to meeting our collective mission of ensuring student success.  Classified 
Leaders, Certificated Leaders, Management and Board Members attended two CMLI (California 
Management Labor Initiative) meetings in 2014-15 and 2015-16, and Classified Leaders, 
Certificated Leaders, and Management attended a conference in the ABC School District in 
2017-18.  As a result of this professional development, the first SCCS Partnership between 
Administration and Labor (PAL) with our certificated union site representatives and site 
administrators was planned and held in the spring of 2018.  Collaborative structures include: 
monthly Cabinet and Eboard Meetings; site meetings monthly for Site Reps and Administrators; 


23/746







 
 


the inclusion of being a Site Reps to the adjunct duties requirements; yearly District Wide PAL 
Meeting.  Next steps include: extending collaboration with Classified leaders by building site 
teams; continue building structures and practices for site teams to work together; examining 
other structures for both the district and sites around curriculum and PD sessions.  This report 
was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this 
matter. 


 
8.5.3.4. New Business: Approve Tentative Agreement between GSCFT and SCCS 


Ms. Parks reported that the agreement consists of a new certificated evaluation tool that is 
eagerly anticipated by both employees and administrators.  The new language will replace the 
current language on July 1, 2018.  MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved 
the Agreement between GSCFT and SCCS. 


 
8.5.3.5. New Business: 2018-19 Declaration of Need 


Ms. Parks reported that these declarations come to the Trustees on an annual basis as a 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) requirement to allow for credentialing 
flexibility for both elementary and secondary schools. The estimated numbers needed listed 
here are not necessarily a determinant of current need but an educated guess to cover all areas 
of potential need.  MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the 2018-19 
Elementary District declaration of need and the 2018-19 Secondary District declaration of need. 


 
8.5.4.1. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Trustees agreed that each board meeting agenda 
would include an opportunity for the discussion of future agenda items.  Following comments, 
questions and discussion, the Board of Education submitted the following requests: 
1. An Executive Summary (written report only – not an agenda item) on Standardized Test 


Results for Santa Cruz City Schools students, including results from other similar districts. 
2. As part of the scheduled September 2018 California Assessment of Student Performance 


and Progress (CAASPP) Report, please include ideas/information on providing an incentive 
for students to give testing their serious effort/attention. 


3. In Fall 2018, the Board requests an agenda item for further examination of the Food 
Services Department. 


 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President 
Vestal adjourned this Regular Meeting at 7:58 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Board of Education will hear Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearings on August 15, 2018, in the 
Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 


recording: 
 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 


24/746







 
 


 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


25/746







Minutes 8-15-18 Reviewed


Separator Page


26/746







    MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
INTER DISTRICT TRANSFER APPEAL HEARINGS 


August 15, 2018 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting for Inter District Transfer Appeals 
Hearings to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa 
Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance for Inter-District Transfer Appeal Hearings 
Board President Vestal 
Board Vice President Perez-Granados 
Board Member Ranii 
Board Member Threet 
Board Member Tracy-Proulx 
 
Absent: Board Member Coonerty 
Absent: Board Member Shonick 
 
Superintendent Kris Munro 
Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services, Dorothy Coito 
Student Services Director O’Meara 
 
Family – Student #1 
Family – Student #2 
Family – Student #3 
Family – Student #4 
 
Inter-District Transfer Appeals Hearings – Presentations of Cases 
Format:  Trustees and Parties moved to the Library Quiet Room.  Parent/Guardian Advocate 
had five minutes to present the case for the appeal of the denial.  Mr. O’Meara had five 
minutes to present the case for the denial of the transfer.  The Trustees had 10 minutes to ask 
clarifying questions.  At the conclusion of the presentations, Parent/Guardian Advocates 
returned to the main library.  Trustees remained in the Quiet Room to deliberate and returned 
to the main library for the open session. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called the Open Session of the Special Meeting Interdistrict Transfer 
Appeal Hearings for the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education to order at 6:33 p.m. 
 


27/746







 
 
Vote on Inter-District Transfer Appeals 
Board President Vestal thanked each family for their presence at the hearing and for sharing 
their personal story.  The Board of Education reviews each hearing packet with respect and 
carefully considers each situation and family.  If the voting result does not allow your student 
enrollment in Santa Cruz City Schools, our staff is here to help you transition to your new 
district/school. 
 


1. MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Perez-Granados) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the    
transfer for Student #1. 


2. MSP (Perez-Granados/Ranii) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the 
transfer for Student #2. 


3. MSP (Ranii/Threet) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the transfer for 
Student #3. 


4. MSP (Threet/Tracy-Proulx) 5-0, the Board of Education upheld the denial of the transfer 
for Student #4. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
Adjournment 
As there was no further business to come before the Trustees for the Special Meeting, Board 
President Vestal adjourned the Special Meeting Inter District Transfer Appeal Hearings at 6:39 
p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on August 29, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on September 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on September 26, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on October 3, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the 
Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


28/746







9. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the 
Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office 
of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 
 
* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 


recording: 


 


 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  


 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


29/746







Personnel Actions - Certificated


Separator Page


30/746







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  
  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 
  
DATE:                                   August 29, 2018 
  
FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
  
  
Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 
submitted. 
  
Background: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 
California Education Code and the negotiated contract.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None 
  
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 
and career opportunities. 
  
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
  
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 


31/746







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


  
  
2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS: 
  
Certificated: 
  
Annie Barrett, .34 Physical Education Teacher at Santa Cruz High.  Annie’s educational 
background includes a BS in Kinesiology from San Jose State University.  Annie holds a 
Preliminary Single Subject Teaching Credential for Physical Education and an English 
Learners Authorization.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has one year of teaching 
experience. 
 
Colleen Duffy, 1.0 Social Studies Teacher at Soquel High.  Colleen’s educational background 
includes a BA and MA in History from UC Santa Barbara.  Colleen holds a Preliminary Single 
Subject Teaching Credential for Social Science and an English Learners Authorization.  Her 
status is Probationary 1 and she has one year of teaching experience. 
 
Lindsey Eldred, 1.0 Music Teacher at Mission Hill Middle and Santa Cruz High.  Lindsey’s 
educational background includes a BA in Music Education from CSU Long Beach.  Lindsey 
holds a Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential for Music and an English Learners 
Authorization.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has five years of teaching experience. 
 
Aaron Hsia-Coron, .20 Biology Teacher at Soquel High.  Aaron’s educational background 
includes a BS in Ecology and Evolution from UC Santa Cruz.  Aaron will hold a Short Term 
Staff Permit for Biological Sciences and an English Learners Authorization.  His status is 
Probationary 0.  Aaron has substitute taught for eighteen months. 
 
Scott Martini, 1.0 Resource Specialist at Mission Hill Middle.  Scott’s educational 
background includes a BS in Recreation Administration from CSU Chico and an MA in 
Education from Cal Poly San Luis Obispo.  Scott holds a Clear Education Specialist Instruction 
Credential for Moderate to Severe Disabilities and an English Learners Authorization.  His 
status is Probationary 1 and he has ten years of teaching experience. 
  
Joshua Orellana, 1.0 English Teacher at Santa Cruz High.  Joshua’s educational background 
includes a BA in Literature and an MA in Education from UC Santa Cruz.  Joshua holds a 
Preliminary Single Subject Credential for English and an English Learners Authorization.  His 
status is Probationary 1.  Joshua completed his student teaching at Pioneer High School (San 
Jose). 
 


32/746







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


Alma Partida, 1.0 Bilingual Speech Therapist.  Alma’s educational background includes a BA 
in Communicative Disorders and an MA in Speech Pathology from San Jose State University.  
Alma holds a Preliminary Speech-Language Pathology Services Credential.  Her status is 
Probationary 1.  Alma completed her internship at Horace Cureton Middle School (San 
Jose). 
2018-2019 APPOINTMENTS (continued): 
  
Certificated: 
  
Jennifer Sanchez, 1.0 Math Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Jennifer’s educational 
background includes a BA in Mathematics from UC Santa Cruz.  Jennifer holds a Preliminary 
Single Subject Teaching Credential for Mathematics and an English Learners Authorization.  
Her status is Probationary 1 and she has one year of teaching experience. 
 
Amber Vukasovich, .60 Core Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Amber’s educational 
background includes a BA in Communications from Cal Poly San Luis Obispo.  Amber holds a 
Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and a CLAD Authorization.  Her status is 
Probationary 1 and she has twenty years of teaching experience. 
 
Thira Wallwork, .60 Newcomer Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Thira’s educational 
background includes a BA in Psychology from Santa Clara University and an MA in Education 
from National University.  Thira holds a Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential and an 
English Learners Authorization.  Her status is Probationary 1 and she has three years of 
teaching experience. 
 
Nathan Woods, 1.0 Special Day Class-ED Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Nathan’s 
educational background includes a BA in Feminist Studies from UC Santa Cruz.  Nathan will 
hold a Short Term Staff Permit for Education Specialists.  He is starting his credential 
program Spring 2019 at San Jose State University.  His status is Probationary 0 and he has 
one year of teaching experience. 
 


33/746







Personnel Actions - Classified


Separator Page


34/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  
MEETING DATE:      Aug. 29,  2018    


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
    
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
  
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
  
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
  
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
  
  
 
  
  
  


35/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 
  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 8/22/2018 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Alexander, Mikaela, Behavior Technician/SPED,  BM, 26hrs/9mos, effective 8/22/18   


Arevalo Rivas, Delmy, Night Custodian - Various Sites, 40hrs/12mos, effective 7/11/18  


Blyston, Jason, Groundskeeper I - MO, 40hrs/12 mos, effective 7/6/18 


Buckley, Trevor, Associate Mental Health Intern - SQ, 15hrs/9 mos, effective 8/2/18 


Elizondo, Viviana, School Admin Asst III - SQ, 40hrs/11mos, effective 7/23/18 


Ferreira, Sarah, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - SMSC, effective, 8/21/18 


Forsyth, Geoffrey, Behavior Tech/SPED - BV, 26hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18   


Gonzales, Anna, Health Office Assistant - GA, 15hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


LeBlanc, Erica, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - 19.75hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Lesea, Renee, Mental Health Specialist - SE/ITIN, 40hrs/10mos, effective 8/9/18 


Mendonca, Leanne, Program Coord-After School Programs - MH, 18hrs/10mos, effective 
8/21/18 


Miller, Sarah, Executive Assistant I -ES, 40hrs/12mos, effective 7/18/18 


Morales, Analuisa, Paraeducator - Academic Intervention - DL, 15hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Schroeder, Erica, Instructional Specialist - Life Lab - GA, 15hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Promotion: 


Blum, Kelly, from  Instructional Technician/PBS, 26hrs/9mos - BV to Instructional Specialist - Life 
Lab, 25hrs/9mos - DL, effective 8/21/18 


Contreras, Eunice, from Food Service Worker I - FS, 30hrs/9mos, to Food Service Worker II - DL, 
30hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Gaona, Mireya, from IT/PBS 32.5hrs/9mos - BM, to Parent/Community Support Coordinator - 
SQ, 32hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Hawley, Laura, from Learning Asst. 15hrs/9mos and Yard Duty 3hrs/9mos - WL to 
Paraeducator/SPED, SQ, 25hrs/9mos 


Demotion:   


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


36/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


McLelland, Gabriela, Campus Safety Supervisor - HH,  from 15.5hrs/9mo to 40hrs/9mos, 
effective 8/21/18 


Ruiz, Alejandra, Paraeducator, Home Based Preschool - CA, from 40hrs/9mos to 24hrs/9mos, 
effective 7/1/18 


Shaver, Marliss, Speech Language Pathology Assistant - DO,  30hrs/9mos to Paraeducator SPED 
- BV, 28hrs/9mos, effective 8/21/18 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


Linsdale, Troy, Behavior Technician/SPED, 32.5hrs/9mos from BV to BM, effective 8/21/18 


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


Fitch, Marina, from L/O Primary Intervention Student Assistant position - WL - 15hrs/9mos, to 
Library Media Services - BM, 35hrs/9mos,  effective 8/21/18 


None 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Aceves, Anthony, Textbook/Media Assistant - SC, resignation, effective 8/8/18 


Barnes, Linda, Paraeducator-After School Programs - MH, resignation, effective 8/2/18 


Dyer, Lisa, Behavior Technician/PBIS - BV, resignation, effective 8/9/18 


Harris, Jessica, Paraeducator, SPED - SQ, resignation, effective 8/15/18 


Jarosz, Amanda, Playground Recess Coach - WL, resignation, effective 8/19/18 


Kryst, Carolyn, Food Service Worker I - FS, 17.5hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 7/11/18 


McCall, Bonny, Groundskeeper I - MO, 40hrs/12mos, resignation, effective 6/27/18  


McInerney, Teresa, Instructional Technician/PBS - BV, 15hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 7/7/18   


37/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Nisewaner, Amanda, Mental Health Specialist - SE/ITIN, 40hrs/10mos, resignation, effective 
8/08/18  


Robinson, Ashley, Primary Intervention Student Asst. - BV, 15hrs/9mos, resignation, effective 
6/6/18 


Shannon, Martee, Paraeducator -7.5hrs/9mos and Paraeducator Academic Intervention - 
7.5hrs/9mos  - GA resignation, effective 8/1/18 


Zektser Cruz, Nicole, Behavior Technician-PBIS - DL, resignation, effective 8/8/18 


Tyre, Tina, Behavior Technician - PBS - BM, resignation, effective 8/7/18  


Retirement: 


Duckett, Michael, Maintenance Specialist - MO, Retirement, Effective 8/10/18 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Flores, Elliot, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 40hrs, 6/19/18 to 6/30/18 


Gaffney, Kathleen, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 55hrs, 6/20/18 to 6/29/18 


Gonzales, Nickolas, Sub Custodian - MO, Site/Dept. Varies, effective 6/27/18 


Houser, Miles, Sub Custodian - MO, not to exceed 85hrs, 6/18/18 to 6/30/18 


Pickard, Benjamin, Computer Operator - IT, not to exceed 420hrs, effective 6/25/18 - 9/30/18 


 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Carranza, Helena, Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 54hrs, 8/22/18 - 6/7/19 


Casey, Patrick - School Bus Driver for ESY 2018 - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Flores, Elliot, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 50hrs, 6/18/18 to 6/30/18 


Flores, Elliot, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/10/18 to 6/30/18 


Gaffney, Mary K, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 480hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Gonzales, Nickolas, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/18 


Houser, Miles, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 - 6/30/18 


Johnson, Emily, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 80hrs, 6/20/18 - 7/31/18 


Johnson, Emily, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 480hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Johnson, Shannon, Office Assistant - MH, not to exceed 10hrs, 8/1/18 to 8/22/18 


Kale, Rasika, Learning Assistant - MH, not to exceed 30hrs, 10/2/17 - 6/6/18 


Mayo, Darrell, Substitute Custodian - MO, not to exceed 24hrs, 5/30/18 to 6/30/18 


Mayo, Darrell, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 300hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18  


38/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


McFadden, Valerie, Executive Assistant I - ES, not to exceed 40hrs, 7/18/18 to 7/26/18 


Navarro Linares, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 100hrs, 6/5/18 to 6/30/19 


Nunez Lara, Luis, Night Custodian - SS - CII,  not to exceed 172hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Nunez Lara, Luis, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Randazzo, Timothy, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Simi, Emily, Clerical Assistant - BV, not to exceed 15hrs, 5/14/18 to 6/7/18  


Waters, Sierra, Learning Assistant - BM, not to exceed 57hrs, 5/16/18 to 6/7/18   


 


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Alley, Mary, OT Senior Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 5.5hrs, 5/15/18 to 6/30/18 


Alley Mary, Food Service Worker 2 - FS, not to exceed 36hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Alvarez, Sandra, Food Service Worker 3 - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Baldwin, Christian, Maintenance Specialist - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/23/18 


Barrientos, Vickie, Parent/Community Support Coord- CP, not to exceed 32hrs, 8/1/18 to 
9/1/18 


Bennett, Sarah, Career Development Spec- HH, not to exceed 75hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/20/18 


Bernal, Guadalupe, Food Service Worker 2 - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Blanck, Adrian, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 200hrs, 6/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Blyston, Jason, Groundskeeper I - MO, not to exceed 35hrs, 6/25/18 to 7/5/18 


Brockmann, Leslie, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10 hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Carreno Contreras, Eunice, Food Service Worker 2 - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/19 to 6/30/19 


Carroll, Laura, Mental Health Specialist - SE, not to exceed 16hrs, 7/12/18 to 8/3/18 


Castaneda, Frances, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 5hrs, 5/22/18 to 5/30/18 


Cordero, Lisa, Clerical Assistant - WL, not to exceed 100hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/29/18 


Dalbesio, Allyson, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 25hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Diaz, Beatriz, Translator - SO, not to exceed 25hrs, 8/22/18 to 6/9/18 


DiMarzio, Ruth, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/19 to 6/30/19 


Durden, Avis, Food Service Worker 3 - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Dyer, Lisa, Instructional Technician-PBS - BV, not to exceed 3hrs, 6/11/18 


Elizondo, Viviana, School Admin Assistant III - SQ, not to exceed 30hrs, 7/23/18 to 7/27/18 


Elliott Perkins, Pamela, Secretary II - BM, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/29/18 


Ericksen, Cynthia, Food Service Worker 3 - FS, not to exceed 15hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Fennell-Tortoledo, Alex, Senior Custodian - MO, not to exceed 60hrs, 6/23/18 


39/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Fette, Leslie, Paraeducator-SPED - SE, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Fox, Darin, Campus Safety Supervisor - SO, not to exceed 50hrs, 8/7/18 to 6/30/19 


Gonzales, Elisa, School/Community Coordinator - BV, not to exceed 3hrs, 6/11/18 


Gonzales, Elisa, Parent/Community Support Coord - CP, not to exceed 45hrs, 8/1/18 to 9/1/18 


Gonzales, Laura, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Gould, Lyndsey, Theatre Technician, MO - not to exceed 10hrs, 6/8/18 to 6/30/18 


Guzman, Georgiana, Food Service Worker 2 - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Haldi, Jacob, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Hasbrouck, Alethea, Mental Health Specialist - SS, not to exceed 34hrs, 2017-18 


Hebert, Juliette, Food Service Worker 3 - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/18 


Hernandez, Madeline, Paraeducator, SPED - ESY, not to exceed 72hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Jimenez-Gonzalez, Fatima, Office Assistant - DL, not to exceed 65hrs, 8/8/18 to 6/7/18 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker/SS - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 7/1/18 to 7/30/18 


Jorgensen, Kimberly, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/03/19 


Kauss, Kimberly, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Kimbell, Acacia, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Kimpton, Reyena, Paraeducator-Afterschool Programs - BS, not to exceed 162hrs, 9/25/18 to 
3/14/19 


Lawson, Sandra, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 50hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Ledesma, Shane, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 100hrs, 6/1/18 to 7/31/18 


Ledesma, Shane, Office Assistant - HR, not to exceed 480hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Linneman, Devon, Career Development - HH, not to exceed 65hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/20/18 


Lopez, Teodoro, Day Custodian - BM, not to exceed 100hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Luna, Maria, Administrative Assistant - IT, not to exceed 20hrs, 6/25/18 to 7/10/18 


Medlen, Kristi, Paraeducator - SE, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Mitchell, Marjorie, Paraeducator - SE, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Moreno, Eduardo, Night Custodian - MO,  not to exceed 90hrs, 6/18/18 to 6/30/18 


Moreno, Eduardo, Night Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Navaroli, Gina, Food Service Worker 3 - SS, not to exceed 110hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/30/18 


Nijor, Amrik, Attendance Technician - MH, not to exceed 10hrs, 5/31/18 to 6/8/18  


Novak, Theresa, Para-Academic Intervention - SS - CIA, not to exceed 120hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Raynal, Vanessa, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Reinero, Eden Maintenance Specialist - MO, not to exceed 50hrs, 6/19/18 to 6/30/18 


40/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Reinero, Eden, Maintenance Specialist - MO, not to exceed 250hrs, 7/3/18 to 6/30/19 


Rodriguez, Michael, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 90hrs, 6/19/18 to 6/30/18 


Rodriguez, Michael, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 7/2/18 to 6/30/19 


Romo, Lissette, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 25hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Ruiz, Reyna, Program Assistant - CIA, not to exceed 40hrs, 5/1/18 to 6/10/18 


Ruiz, Reyna, Program Assistant - SS - CIA, not to exceed 133hrs, 7/5/18 to 8/4/18  


Salgado De Santos, Maria, Food Service Worker - SS, 6/1/18 to 6/30/18 


Salgado De Santos, Maria, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Serna Castaneda, Jessica, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - CIA, 8/1/18 to 9/1/18  


Shalheen, Patricia, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Silva-Robles, Fe, Translator - SO , not to exceed 50hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Smith, Jennifer, Payroll Technician - BS, not to exceed 40hrs, 7/16/18 to 7/27/18  


Smith, Jennifer, Registrar - SQ, not to exceed 72hrs, 7/20/18 to 7/31/18  


Soto, Marialouise, Custodian - MO, not to exceed 94hrs, 6/11/18 to 6/30/18 


Soto, Marialouise, Custodian OT - MO, not to exceed 40hrs, 6/11/18 to 6/30/18 


Souvey, Patricia, Program Support Asst. - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/9/18  - 7/13/18 


Stocker, Christina, Paraeducator, ESY, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Taylor, Keifer, Accompanist - SQ, not to exceed 17hrs, 5/17/18 to 6/7/18 


Tolentino, Angelica, Paraeducator - ESY, not to exceed 90hrs, 7/9/18 to 8/3/18 


Waier, Rose, Food Service Worker 2 - FS, not to exceed 10hrs, 7/1/18 to 6/30/19 


White, Christopher, Education Technology Specialist - CIA/SS, not to exceed 40hrs, 7/9/18 to 
8/9/18 


 


 Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


Peregrin, Sharon, Personnel Technician II, Substitute - HR, 6/22/18 to 6/29/18  


Routh, Patricia, Secretary II -BM, not to exceed 16hrs, 5/31/18 to 6/5/18 


Webber, Melissa, Payroll Technician - FI, not to exceed 24hrs, 7/1/18 to 7/20/18  


 


Out of Class: 


Luna, Maria, Executive Assistant I - ES, not to exceed 160hrs, 6/4/18 to 6/29/18 


Luna, Maria, Executive Assistant I/Overtime - ES, not to exceed 20hrs, 6/4/18 to 6/29/18 


Luna, Maria Executive Assistant I - ES, not to exceed 80hrs, 7/2/18 to 7/17/18 


Luna, Maria, Confidential-Executive Assistant I - ES, not to exceed 88hrs, 7/2/18 to 7/17/18 


41/746







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


Carmichael, Catherine, Yard Duty  - WL, not to exceed 12hrs, 6/1/18 to 6/7/18 


Gonzales, Anna, Yard Duty Supervisor - GA, not to exceed 23.5hrs, 5/21/18 to 6/30/18 


Kenagy, Janelle, Playground Coach - DL, not to exceed 539hrs, 8/22/18 to 6/7/19 


Kenagy, Janelle, Playground Coach - DL , not to exceed 18.75hrs, 5/17/18 to 5/24/18 


Markarian, Brittany, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 16hrs, 5/16/18 to 6/7/18 


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Associate Mental Health (Intern) 


Food Service Worker I 


Groundskeeper I 


Health Office Assistant 


Instructional Technician 


Instructional Technician-Elementary Intervention 


Instructional Technician-Life Lab 


Instructional Technician-PBS 


Library Media Assistant 


Paraeducator-After School Programs 


 


 


 


42/746







Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes


Separator Page


43/746







1DODD_ATJEUB-E34B1484D0A245AA8AD1FE257406CD1E8 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $90,200 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $90,200 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


44/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00136 Santa Cruz High $42,650.00 A&T Europe  Pool repairs – Damaged 
Membrane Lane Lines.  Building 
Fund. 


18-00244 133 Mission $2,850.00 ABA Building Services 17/18 Change Order – Custodial 
Services.  133 Mission. 


18-04563 Soquel High $14,117.50 AMI 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Dust Collector for the Wood 
Shop.  Insurance. 


18-03810 Soquel High $4,776.00 AP Exams 17/18 Change Order to cover 
invoices.  Advanced Placement, 
Student Payments, Donations. 


18-04861 Harbor High $7,530.00 Abacherli Fence Co. 17/18 Confirming for Payment - 
Fence Repair.  Building Fund. 


19-00268 Palm St $3,230.00 Abacherli Fence Co. Move fences due to office moves 
to portables at Bayview/Palm St. 
yard from District Office.  
Building Fund. 


19-00390 
19-00391 
19-00392 
19-00393 
19-00394 


Costanoa 
Harbor High 


SCHS 
SHS 


SCHS 


$1,020.00 
$1,020.00 
$1,020.00 
$1,020.00 
$900.00 


$4,980.00 


Accrediting Commission Annual Fees.  Unrestricted. 
 
 
 
Mid-Cycle Visit.  Unrestricted. 


19-00495 
 


Various 
 


$12,000.00 Albion Environmental On-Call Archeological services.  
Bond, Measure A and B. 


19-00514 
19-00515 
19-00516 
19-00539 
19-00540 


DeLaveaga 
B40SS 


SHS 
B40MS 


Westlake 


$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 
$1,800.00 
$9,000.00 


Albion Environmental Cultural Resource Assessment of 
Modernization Project.  Utility 
Infrastructure, Landscape, Site 
Utilities, Multi-Project Overhead. 
Bond, Measures A and B. 
 
 


19-00507 District Wide $31,170.00 Animal Damage Mgmt. Open Order for Rodent Control 
Services.  Ongoing Maint. 


45/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00251 Harbor High $57,731.94 Apple Computer Thirty-three (33) iMac 
computers and Protection Plans. 
 Career Tech Ed. 


19-00497 Special Ed $4,921.97 Apple Computer MacBooks and Protection Plans.  
Special Ed. 


19-00555 Santa Cruz High $57,447.45 Apple Computer iMacs, Accessories, Protection 
Plan.  Measure O. 


18-04376 Gault $3,220.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables and 
Architectural Design, 
Modernization Phase I.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04380 Gault $56,003.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables and 
Architectural Design, Multi-
Project Overhead.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04381 Gault $45,578.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables – Roofing, 
Design, Multi-Project Overhead.  
Bond, Measure B. 


18-04382 Westlake $65,262.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables, Design - 
Multi-Project Overhead.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04383 Westlake $65,000.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 New Upper Classroom.  
Bond, Measure B. 


18-04384 Santa Cruz High $106,431.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables, Design - 
Multi-Project Overhead.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


18-04385 Santa Cruz High $41,454.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Architectural Design, 
Phase I Gym.  Bond, Measure A. 


18-04386 Santa Cruz High $65,000.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Architectural Design, 
Phase II Café/CR/Toilets.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


18-04387 Mission Hill MS $57,433.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables and 
Architectural Design, Multi-
Project Overhead.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


46/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-04388 Mission Hill MS $62,038.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Reimbursables and 
Architectural Design, Roofing 
Phase I.  Bond, Measure A. 


18-04389 Mission Hill $95,467.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Design - Landscape, 
Shade/Monument Sign and 
Reimbursables.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


18-04390 Mission Hill $16,026.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Design – Gym Locker 
Rooms.  Bond, Measure A. 


18-04391 Mission Hill $12,205.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Design – Main Building 
Phase I. Bond, Measure A. 


18-04392 Mission Hill $6,500.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Design – New Classroom.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04398 Santa Cruz High $75,078.00 Bartos Architecture 17/18 Phase I – Water Intrusion 
& Piping 


19-00302 District $143,443.00 Bartos Architecture Bond Program Management.  
Bond, Measures A and B. 


18-01231 Harbor High $7,046.76 Belli Architectural 17/18 Change Order for 
additional Electrical services.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-03147 Soquel High $64,806.87 Belli Architectural 17/18 Change Order for Pool 
Facility Project.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


18-04490 Branciforte Middle $206,700.00 Belli Architectural Music/MPR Improvements.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04496 Harbor High $12,770.00 Belli Architectural 17/18 Gas Line Relocation.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04727 B40 Middle $34,500.00 Belli Architectural 17/18 Campus-Wide 
Modernization.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


19-00547 Harbor High $14,720.32 Belson Outdoors  Ribbed Steel Benches.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


47/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-00068 Transportation $12,873.00 Blue Water Sedan 17/18 Change Order to cover 
Transportation services through 
the end of June 2018.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


18-04532 133 Mission St. $30,000.00 Bogard Construction 17/18 Improvements.  Building 
Fund. 


19-00183 IT Dept. $62,000.00 Borderlan Security Confirming for Payment.  Web 
Content Filter.  One-Time, No 
Carryover. 


18-04557 C.A.I. $9,435.00 Boys & Girls Club 17/18 Confirming for Payment - 
Summer Program for thirty-
seven students (37).  Title II, III. 


18-03922 Harbor High $4,410.50 Butano 17/18 Change Order for 
additional Track/Field services.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04493 B40SS $6,648.00 CEL Consulting 17/18 Structural Investigation.  
Bond, Measure B. 


19-00508 Harbor, Santa 
Cruz, Soquel High 


$7,500.00 CODEHS Confirming for Payment - Site 
Licenses for Computer Science.  
Career Tech Ed.   


18-04497 Natural Bridges $399,562.00 CRW Industries 17/18 Gym Repairs.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04558 B40SS $257,779.00 CRW Industries 17/18 Site Work.  Bond, Measure 
B. 


19-00008 Mission Hill $15,000.00 CRW Industries Change Order for Restroom 
Conversion.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-00298 Superintendent $6,045.00 CSBA Manual Maint. – Gamut Online.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00300 Superintendent $14,342.00 CSBA Membership & Education Legal 
Alliance.  Unrestricted. 


19-00492 Harbor High $136,000.00 CWS Student Locker Improvements 
Project.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-00482 Adult Ed $14,723.02 California Premier 
Restoration 


Bathroom Repair.  Building Fund. 


48/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-01329 Soquel High $4,067.11 Cen-Con 17/18 Change Order – New 
Marquee Sign.  Building Fund. 


19-00282 Facilities $4,695.00 Civic Permits Confirming for Payment - Annual 
Subscription.  Ongoing Maint. 


18-04870 District Wide $351,432.00 Climatec 17/18 HVAC, Lighting and 
Thermostats. California Clean 
Energy.   


19-00171 Facilities $5,000.00 Coast Paper Open Order for Cleaning 
Supplies.  Total P.O. is 
$10,000.00.  $5,000.00 was 
Board Approved on 6/13/18.  
Ongoing Maint. 


18-04555 IT Dept. $2,631.78 Convergeone 18 Asus Laptops.  Unrestricted. 
19-00163 Mission Hill $4,188.81 Convergeone Charging Carts.  Student 


Payments.   
19-00198 Mission Hill $17,402.18 Convergeone Seventy-two (72) Chromebooks 


and Licenses.  Student Payments. 
19-00203 Facilities $6,520.49 Convergeone Four (4) Microsoft Surface Pro 


and Accessories.  Ongoing Maint. 
18-04461 Finance $26,000.00 Crowe LLP Progress Billings for Audit, 


Measure A, Measure B and 
Travel and Expenses for 17/18. 
Unrestricted. 


19-00234 Finance $41,000.00 Crowe LLP Audit services for 18/19.  
Unrestricted. 


18-04663 Santa Cruz High $70,000.00 D & T Painting 17/18 Gym Interior Painting. 
19-00518 Santa Cruz High $62,000.00 D & T Painting Gym Vestibule & Restroom 


Painting.  Bond, Measure A. 
19-00387 Finance $9,875.00 Decisioninsite Confirming for Payment -


Enrollment Projections.  Capital 
Facilities Fund. 


18-04442 Bay View $3,600.00 Department of 
Conservation 


17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Geological Survey.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


49/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-04443 DeLaveaga $3,600.00 Department of 
Conservation 


17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Geological Survey.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04498 Natural Bridges $12,304.92 Dilbeck & Sons 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Dryrot Repair.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-04871 Santa Cruz High $5,509.83 Dilbeck & Sons 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Demo and Build Cabinets.  
Building Fund. 


19-00566 Human Resources $5,000.00 Doctor’s on Duty Open Order for TB Testing.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00084 Transportation $3,500.00 The Driver’s Edge CSA for School Bus Instructor.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


18-04559 District Office $33,826.37 E-3 Systems Ethernet Cabling and Installation 
at 133 Mission.  Building Fund – 
133 Mission. 


18-04399 Westlake $16,950.00 Earth Systems 17-18 Geotechnical Engineering 
for New Classrooms.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


19-00493 Gault $8,660.00 Earth Systems Load Testing for Skylight on Re-
Roof Project.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-00184 Special Ed $43,651.00 EdFiles Inc. Agreement to Digitize files.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00283 Harbor High $36,738.40 Elite Interactive 
Solutions 


Security Cameras.  Unrestricted. 


19-00554 Bay View, 
DeLaveaga, B40SS 


$151,948.50 Enviroplex Design Development.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04397 Personnel 
Commission 


$8,000.00 Ewing Consulting 17-18 Confirming for Payment – 
Classification Study.  
Unrestricted, One-Time No Carry 
Over. 


19-00299 Superintendent $45,000.00 Fagen Friedmand & 
Fulfrost 


Legal services as needed.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00543 Facility Services $5,000.00 First Alarm Open Order for Security services 
as needed.  Unrestricted. 


50/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00378 Harbor, Soquel 
High 


$362,888.00 First Serve Productions New Tennis Courts.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00330 DeLaveaga $1,311,482.00 Flint Builders Parking Lot and Shade.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


19-00385 Facility Services $20,000.00 Flyers Open Order for Fuel.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00229 Harbor High $3,300.31 Follett Books.  Lottery. 
19-00517 Soquel High $5,174.10 Follett Textbooks.  Lottery. 
19-00232 Harbor High $3,750.00 Fresno COE Cyber High Exams.  LCFF. 
18-04006 Harbor High $281,197.24 Garland Co. 17-18 Re-Roofing Project.  Bond, 


Measure A. 
18-04008 B40 Middle $210,235.08 Garland Co. 17-18 Re-Roofing Project.  Bond, 


Measure A. 
18-04367 Mission Hill $249,738.25 Garland Co. 17-18 Re-Roofing Project.  Bond, 


Measure A. 
18-04492 Santa Cruz High $141,492.87 Garland Co. 17-18 Re-Roofing Project.  Bond, 


Measure A. 
18-04554 Santa Cruz High $776,886.74 Garland Co. 17-18 Re-Roofing Project.  Bond, 


Measure A. 
19-00304 
19-00305 
19-00308 
19-00309 
19-00310 
19-00327 


Gault $1,807.58 
$1,513.98 
$1,438.16 
$1,487.67 
$1,562.29 
$1,380.92 
$9,190.60 


Great Minds Eureka Math Books for Grades K 
– 5.  Lottery. 


19-00450 Bay View $12,086.35 Great Minds Eureka Math.  Lottery. 
19-00206 Various $7,800.00 Green Line Open Order – Hydro Sewer Lines. 


Ongoing Maint. 
19-00120 High Schools $12,980.00 Hart Floor Co. Refinish Gym Floors.  Facility Use 


Fees. 
19-00164 Student Services $6,950.00 Hearing Conservation CSA to cover Hearing Test 


services.  Unrestricted. 


51/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00328 Food Services $10,496.15 Heartland POS Computers, Pin Pads, 
Warranties.  Cafeteria Fund. 


18-01205 B40M $3,000.00 Ifland Engineers 17-18 Change Order.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00129 Various $6,539.35 Jet Mulch Open Order for Wood Chips at 
the Elementary Sites.  Ongoing 
Maint. 


19-00416 Santa Cruz High $7,681.36 Jist Publishing Textbooks.  College Readiness 
Block Grant. 


19-00132 District Office $12,500.00 Jive Communications Phone service for 18/19.  
Unrestricted.  


19-00464 Soquel High $2,800.00 Joseph Renda 
Construction 


In-Plant Inspection – Concession. 
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04499 DeLaveaga $60,700.00 Kleinfelder Inc. 17/18 Shade Structure – Testing 
and Inspection.  Bond, Measure 
B. 


18-04568 Soquel High $3,000.00 Kleinfelder Inc. 17/18 Pool/Shower/Restroom 
Facility – Geotechnical 
Investigation.  Bond, Measure A. 


19-00262 B40SS $39,900.00 Kleinfelder Inc. Classroom Buildings.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00417 B40SS $59,500.00 Kleinfelder Inc. Lunch Shelter, Playground 
Inspection and Testing.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


19-00494 Soquel High $156,000.00 Kleinfelder Inc. Pool and Concession Building – 
Soil/Materials Testing.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00552 B40SS $39,900.00 Kleinfelder Inc. AFE and CTE Classroom Buildings 
-  Geologic and Seismic Hazard 
Assessment.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-04345 B40SS $15,470.70 Kleinfelder Inc. 17/18 Change Order for 
Playground Equipment.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


19-00546 Harbor High $382,157.06 Larson Electronics 77” Hydraulic Megatower Light 
Plant, 33’ Trailer – 20 LED 
Fixtures.  Bond, Measure A. 


52/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-04564 Soquel High, B40SS $29,850.00 Leach Group 17/18 DSA Inspections.  Bond, 
Measure A and B. 


19-00535 Gault, Mission Hill $2,955.00 Leach Group DSA Inspections for Re-Roofing 
Project.  Bond, Measure A and B. 


19-00177 District Office $9,617.50 Locatelli Moving services for the D.O.  
Other Restricted Local – 133 
Mission. 


19-00301 Superintendent $40,000.00 Lozano Smith Legal services for 18/19.  
Unrestricted. 


18-04494 B40 Middle $10,910.00 M3 Environmental 17/18 Roof Replacement 
Oversight.  Bond, Measure A. 


18-04734 B40 Middle $2,500.00 M3 Environmental 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Technical Specs.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


18-00992 Natural Bridges $5,875.30 Madi Group 17/18 DSA Charges – Gym 
Renovation.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-04444 Bay View $8,804.00 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
DSA Checks – New WPENS 
Portable.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-04450 Bay View $27,627.50 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
DROPS Program.  Other 
Restricted Local – DROPS 
Program. 


18-04763 Natural Bridges $4,510.00 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
DSA Fees – Modular Restroom 
and Parking.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-04764 B40SS $4,100.00 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Playground and Lunch Shelter – 
DSA Reimbursements.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04838 DeLaveaga $9,336.01 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
DSA Fees – Landscape and 
Parking Lot projects.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


53/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-04839 Soquel High $16,180.00 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
DSA Fees – Site Infrastructure.  
Bond, Measure A. 


18-04840 DeLaveaga $339,500.00 Madi Group 17/18 Professional services – 
Modernization Phase II.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


18-04869 Soquel High $3,170.25 Madi Group 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services – New 
Marquee Sign.  Building Fund. 


19-00437 Various $9,700.00 Media Flex OPALS Library Automation 
Renewal.  Measure P, I, J. 


19-00182 Mission Hill $4,407.05 Meridian Student 
Planner 


Student Planners.  Unrestricted. 


19-00240 Finance $63,602.80 Mission Hill Bldg. Assoc. Quarterly Association Dues for 
18/19.  Other Restricted Local – 
133 Mission. 


19-00469 Santa Cruz High $31,791.00 Phil Allegri Electric Auditorium Retrofit LED Lighting. 
Deferred Maint. 


19-00384 Superintendent $13,750.00 NASDAQ Corporate 
Solutions 


Confirming for Payment - Set-up 
and License Fees.   


19-00179 Santa Cruz High $13,112.00 The Neff Co. Sports Banners.  Measure O, 
Donations. 


19-00200 Transportation $4,000.00 Norcal Kenworth Open Order for Bus Repairs.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


19-00200 Transportation $3,406.91 Norcal Kenworth Change Order to cover repairs. 
Transportation – Home to 
School.  


18-02234 Transportation $2,617.73 Pacific Truck Parts 17/18 – Change Order to cover 
the cost of Retrofit.  Other 
Restricted Local – MB Unified Air 
Pollution Control. 


19-00314 Human Resources $3,000.00 Palace Business Open Order for Office Supplies.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00318 DeLaveaga $2,500.00 Palace Business Open Order for Office Supplies.  
Unrestricted. 


54/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00324 DeLaveaga $3,000.00 Palace Business Open Order for Copy Paper.  
LCFF. 


19-00329 DeLaveaga $6,400.00 Palace Business Open Order for Instructional 
Supplies.  LCFF. 


19-00334 District Office $4,663.20 Palace Business Furniture for Student Services 
and additional File Cabinets for 
the rest of the D.O.  Building 
Fund. 


19-00382 B40SS $5,000.00 Sarah Rapp CSA for Professional Consult 
services for Monarch Teachers.  
Title I.   


19-00419 Soquel High $5,510.95 Riddell All American Football Helmets.  Measure O. 
18-04560 Santa Cruz High $1,295,000.00 Roofing & Solar 


Construction 
17/18 Re-Roofing.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


19-00225 Various $7,750.00 Rosetta Stone Licenses for 18/19.  Title I. 
19-00422 Santa Cruz High $5,589.80 SNA Sports Group Posts with Padding, Net with 


Cable Covers, Sideline Markers 
and Antennas.  Unrestricted 
Other Local – Facility Use Fees. 


19-00236 Various $13,000.00 City of SC District Share for Crossing 
Guards for 18/19.  Unrestricted. 


19-00237 Finance $70,000.00 City of SC Resource Officers Harbor High 
and Santa Cruz High for 18/19.  
Unrestricted. 


18-04553 DeLaveaga $24,882.00 Santa Cruz COE 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Science Camp.  Unrestricted, 
Donations. 


19-00256 Finance $10,000.00 Santa Cruz COE MOU – Foster Youth 
Contribution for 18/19.  LCFF. 


19-00476 Superintendent $68,919.18 Santa Cruz County 
Sheriff 


Confirming for Payment -
Resource Officer for Soquel High 
for 18/19.  Unrestricted. 


19-00477 CAI $9,800.00 Santa Cruz Metro Youth and Adult Bus Passes for 
18/19.  Title I. 


55/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-04552 Harbor High $5,292.07 Santa Cruz Municipal 
Utilities 


Confirming for Payment – Wood 
Chips.  Ongoing Maint. 


19-00383 Facilities $5,000.00 Santa Cruz Records Open Order for Shredding 
services.  Unrestricted. 


19-00128 Facilities $20,000.00 Santa Cruz Sentinel Open Order for Bond 
Advertising.  Bond, Measure A 
and B. 


18-04457 Mission Hill $2,928.87 Scholastic 17/18 Confirming for Payment – 
Book Fair.  Student Payments. 


19-00211 Finance $16,500.00 School Innovations Confirming for Payment – 
Annual Billing -  Program 
Advisory services for Fiscal year 
17/18.  Unrestricted. 


19-00178 Finance $3,330.00 School Services 18/19 Fiscal Budget services.  
Unrestricted. 


19-00582 Various $9,696.41 School Tech Supply Thirty (30) HP Elitebooks for 
Teachers.  Unrestricted. 


19-00165 Student Services $20,000.00 Seeds Community 
Resolution Center 


Restorative Justice 
Implementation Plans and 
Strategies for Harbor and B40SS. 
MAA. 


19-00235 Finance $581,026.00 So. Peninsula Region Confirming for Payment - 18/19 
Insurance Premium 
Contributions.  Unrestricted. 


19-00194 Santa Cruz High $52,734.85 Sports Venue Wall Padding for the Gym.  Bond, 
Measure A. 


18-04551 Special Ed $2,690.00 Spring Hill School 17/18 Agreement for SES for 
three Private School students.  
Special Ed. 


18-04441 Facilities $4,999.99 Staple Business 17/18 H5 Heated Canister 
Extractor.  Ongoing Maint. 


18-00677 Bay View $7,900.00 Stronger Building 17/18 Change Order to Re-Roof 
project.  Bond, Measure B. 


18-00223 Various $3,500.00 Surtec Change Order for Cleaning 
Supplies.  Ongoing Maint., 
Facility Use Fees. 


56/746







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


August 29, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-D77FA39B5E43461DAB01FC099C9BE965.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-00201 Warehouse $4,308.23 Surtec Replenish Inventory – Custodial 
Supplies. 


18-04039 Natural Bridges $13,444.00 Waterproofing Assoc. 17/18 Change Order – Remove 
and Replace Gutters.  Bond, 
Measure B. 


19-00267 Mission Hill $56,500.00 Watertight Restoration Resurfacing of Locker Room 
Floor.  Bond, Measure A. 


18-04400 IT Dept. $8,120.00 West Interactive Services 17/18 West ISC – Web Hosting 
Renewal. Unrestricted. 


19-00475 CAI $10,200.00 Wested Confirming for Payment – 
Workshops – Supporting English 
Learners and Intensive Summer 
Institute.  Title I, II. 


18-03402 Transportation $2,500.00 Yellow Cab 17/18 Change Order to cover 
June services.  Transportation – 
Home to School. 


 


57/746







Quote: Belson: benches for locker improvements


project @ Harbor HS


Separator Page


58/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Belson Outdoors Quote for Benches for Harbor High School 


Student Locker Improvements Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Belson Outdoor quote for benches for the Harbor High School student locker 
improvements project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The quote is for 13 six foot steel benches, as part of the Harbor High School student locker improvement 
project, to fill spaces left by the removal of lockers and curbs to provide spaces for students to sit.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$14,720.21, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.049% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


59/746







Quote #  
WQ 233023


Here is the Quote as per your request. The 'Shipping' total has been applied. 
To place an order, simply click 'Submit Order Confirmation' below. 
Please print this page for your records. 
Customer Order Confirmation is required to process order.


627 Amersale Drive 
Naperville, IL. 60563 
sales@belson.com


Toll Free: 
Phone: 
Fax:


1-800-323-5664 
1-630-897-8489 
1-630-897-0573


QUOTE # 
WQ 233023


Bill To: Ship To:


Visa MasterCard American Express Discover Check with Order On Account


Email Order Confirmation


Fax Order Confirmation


What is the best day and time to call?
Contact Name (If Different than 'Sold To') Phone


You have received this Quote per your request from Belson Outdoors (belson.com). 
If you are having trouble reading this email? View it in your browser or go to 


https://www.belson.com/Secure/Request.aspx?OrderID=233023&Key=4160.33394528014


Model # Description Lbs Quantity Unit Price Unit Total


PB6


Premier 6' Ribbed Steel Bench Without
Back 
Choose Frame Color 
DISCOUNT APPLIED 


155 13 $813.00 $10,569.00


 Subtotal 2,015 Subtotal $10,569.00


 (Illinois Only) Tax $0.00


Customer Order Confirmation is required to process order. Shipping $3,200.00


Your Order will not be shipped without your "Order Confirmation" Grand Total $13,769.00


First Name* Tricia First Name Tricia


Last Name* Hayes Last Name Hayes


Company Santa Cruz City Schools Company 


Address* 536 Palm St Address* 300 La Fonda Ave


Address Address 


City* Santa Cruz City* Santa Cruz


State* CA State* CA


Zip Code* 95060 Zip Code* 95062


Country Country 


Phone* 831 429 3906 Phone 831 429 3906


Fax Fax 


Email thayes@sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us Email thayes@sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us


Additional Delivery Services


Phone Call 24 Hours Prior to Delivery◊


Delivery to Residential or Non-Commercial Truck Route Addresses


Power Liftgate Service◊ - Driver will lower shipment from the truck to the ground (Only)


Order Power Liftgate Service if — You will be unable to unload the shipment from the truck.


◊ Does Not apply to UPS shipments


Special Instructions


et-email


Intended Payment Method


Order Confirmation Method — Customer Confirmation is Required to Complete Order


Customer Service Representative Call (M-F 8:00am - 4:30pm CST)


 


A
sk


 A
n


 E
xp


er
t





60/746







Quote: Larson Electronics: Stadium Lights @ Harbor HS


Separator Page


61/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Larson Electronics, LLC Quote for Stadium Lights for Harbor 


High School Athletic Field Project 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Larson Electronics, LLC quote for stadium lights for Harbor High school athletic field project.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The quote is for two 77 foot hydraulic megatower light poles consisting of 20 LED fixtures each, on 33’ 
trailers for the new athletic field at Harbor High school. These are required as a replacement for the two 
permanent light poles that DSA would not approve due to the soil conditions.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$382,157.06, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.28% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


62/746







63/746







64/746







65/746







Warrant Register


Separator Page


66/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
1DODD_ATJEUB-F1529D652FB44CBEBFC1E4293B9E9EF8 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 6/8/18 – 8/16/18. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


67/746







68/746







69/746







70/746







71/746







72/746







73/746







74/746







75/746







76/746







77/746







78/746







79/746







80/746







81/746







82/746







83/746







84/746







85/746







86/746







87/746







88/746







89/746







90/746







91/746







92/746







93/746







94/746







95/746







96/746







97/746







98/746







99/746







100/746







101/746







102/746







103/746







104/746







105/746







106/746







107/746







108/746







109/746







110/746







Budget Transfers


Separator Page


111/746







  
                        
                      
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   August 29, 2018 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2018-2019 budget transfers dated 
from 7/1/18 through 7/31/18, BE#167536– 174288.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


112/746







113/746







114/746







115/746







116/746







117/746







118/746







119/746







120/746







121/746







122/746







123/746







Disposition of Surplus Property


Separator Page


124/746







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.6 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-B43633B27E014D03AF27709D206FA333.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


125/746







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF AUGUST 29, 2018 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE: MISSION HILL MIDDLE SCHOOL 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Value 


 
1. Sharp TV N/A   Poor TBD 
2. Samsung TV N/A   Broken TBD 
3. TV cart 23840   Fair TBD 
4. Wood desk N/A   Broken TBD 
5. 42” round table N/A   Fair 0 
6. 4-drawer metal file cabinet 22662   Broken   0 
7. 4-drawer metal file cabinet 22725   Broken 0 
8. 4-drawer metal file cabinet 22559   Broken TBD 
9. 2 drawer metal file cabinet N/A   Broken TBD 
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


126/746







Williams Quarterly Report


Separator Page


127/746







 


AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Williams Uniform Complaint 4th Quarterly Report 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Williams Uniform Complaint 4th Quarterly Report for 2017-18. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Education Code and the District’s Administrative Regulation on the 
Williams Uniform Complaint Policy, school districts must submit quarterly reports to the 
County Office of Education of all complaints filed in the areas of insufficient instructional 
materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment, and inadequate facilities. 
 
As the accompanying report shows, the district received no complaints this quarter.   
 


128/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7. 
 


QUARTERLY DISTRICT STATUS REPORT OF UNIFORM COMPLAINTS 
TO THE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 


QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 


DISTRICT:  Santa Cruz City Schools Date Reported to District Governing Board:  August 29, 2018 
 
I. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 


A) Insufficient text books or instructional materials in classroom: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 


B)  Insufficient textbooks or instructional materials to take home: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 


C) Textbooks or instructional materials in poor or unusable condition: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 
II. TEACHER VACANCY OR MISASSIGNMENT 


A) No assigned certified teacher at beginning of semester: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 


B)  Teacher lacking credentials or training to teach English Language Learners (ELL) with  
      More than 20% ELL in class: 


 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 


C)  Teacher instructing class lacking subject matter competency: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:   
 
III. FACILITIES 


A) Conditions posing an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students/staff: 
 


# of Complaints 
0 


# of Complaints Resolved 
0 


# of Complaints Unresolved* 
0 


*Explanation:     
 


129/746







Revised Classified Job Description: Lead Bus Driver


Separator Page


130/746







                            
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver Job Description   
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approval of revised job description including increase in salary range. 
 
Background: 


 Districts in California train to fill school bus driver positions by hiring and having on staff 
California Certified School Bus Driver Trainers. 


 Driver Trainers are essential in maintaining school bus drivers’ licenses, as school bus 
drivers are required to have specific annual training available only through the services 
of a California Certified School Bus Driver Trainer. 


 There are no California Certified School Bus Driver Trainers on staff at either Live Oak 
Unified School District or Soquel Union Elementary School District. Having a Trainer on 
staff at SCCS will provide California State Certified School Bus Driver Training to the 
surrounding school districts.  


 Every facet of driver training, both in continuing professional development of a school 
bus driver and remedial training, is valid only through signature of a California Certified 
School Bus Driver Trainer. 


 The last Lead Driver for SCCS was a Calif. Certif. School Bus Driver Trainer for eleven 
years, without the duties being recognized in the Lead Driver Position. 


 SCCS has been without a School Bus Driver Trainer since April 2015. Since that 
time, SCCS has been unable to train individuals to become a school bus driver, and has 
had to contract out for the annual training required for drivers to maintain their special 
certificate. Filling vacant school bus driver positions has been difficult, as nearly all 
school bus driver training is done in-house for an existing need at school districts.  To 
train ONE individual to become a school bus driver currently cost $4,900.  


 The position has been vacant since December 2017, and no applicants have accepted 
the position at the current pay range.   


 
Fiscal Impact: 
Savings of at least $3,300. 
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
District Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
District Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management. 


131/746







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 


TRAINER / LEAD SCHOOL BUS DRIVER 


 


DEFINITION: 
Under the direction of the Supervisor-Transportation, serve as a lead school bus driver while performing               
assigned duties of a school bus driver; train and provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff;                 
plan, organize, conduct and schedule bus driver training programs; transport students over scheduled             
routes; ensure safety of students while being transported to an assigned location on a designated route;                
assist with coordinating, modifying and monitoring bus routing and scheduling activities to assure smooth              
and efficient bus operations; maintain order and discipline among passengers on the bus; perform regular               
safety inspections of the busses; operate the school bus in a safe manner at all times; act as a proxy for                     
the Supervisor-Transportation when assigned. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  


● Serve as a lead bus driver; provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff; plan, organize                
and schedule bus driver training programs. 


● Coordinate and monitor bus routing, scheduling activities to assure smooth and efficient bus             
operations for regular and special event transportation; assign bus drivers and equipment as             
appropriate; address last minute scheduling changes as needed. 


● Assist in developing and maintaining school bus safety, accident prevention and investigation 
programs; assist in investigating accidents and completing necessary documentation. 


● Attend meetings and in-service trainings; plan, organize and conduct Behind-the-Wheel Training           
for potential drivers and on-going training for school bus drivers as directed; assist in classroom               
driver training; monitor and report on school bus drivers’ knowledge and skills. 


● Maintain required school bus driver knowledge and skills; meet the certificate requirements of a              
school bus driver and school bus School Bus Driver trainer as directed. 


● Operate a computer and assigned software; input data; generate and utilize spreadsheets. 
● Prepare and maintain accurate records; prepare routine logs, route sheets and reports as 


required. 
● Drive a school bus or other transportation vehicle along a designated route, to field trips and                


special activities as assigned. 
● Escort and assist students on and off vehicles and across streets when required or necessary;               


meet scheduled departure and arrival times as assigned; observe legal and defensive driving             
practices; ensure compliance with applicable traffic and student transportation laws, codes and            
regulations.  


● Perform pre-trip and post-trip inspections to monitor fluid levels and vehicle condition; adjust tire              
pressure condition and mirrors; fuel, service and prepare vehicle for operation; ensure the safe              
operating condition of the vehicle; comply with mandated guidelines; clean assigned vehicles,            
both interior and exterior; ensure safety, appearance, and sanitation of vehicle; report mechanical             
malfunctions or other problems as required. 


● Maintain order and discipline among passengers on the bus; report observations and incidents             
including discipline, inappropriate social behavior; communicate effectively with school staff and           
parents regarding student behavior as needed. 


● Assess incidents, complaints, accidents and potential emergency situations including road          
hazards, medical emergencies, and accidents; resolve and recommend a resolution to the            
situation; determine appropriate action in emergency situations according to established          
guidelines; administer first aid/CPR to passengers as necessary. 


● Maintain buses in a clean and safe operating condition; wash, sweep and clean buses. 
● Assist students as needed in boarding, buckling, and loading, securing and unloading students in              


wheelchairs as assigned by the position. 


Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver Page 1 of 4 
 


132/746







 


● Conduct emergency evacuation drills; ensure efficiency of procedures and complying with           
mandated requirements; administer first aid as necessary. 


● Attend meetings, classroom and behind the wheel training, safety meetings, in-services,           
administrative conferences; maintain required skills; meet the certificate requirements of a school            
bus driver. 


● Utilize two-way radios for bus to bus and bus to base communications; notify appropriate              
personnel of delays or accidents as needed;  


● Communicates with students, parents, staff and the general public in a courteous manner;             
respond to inquiries regarding assigned activities. 


● Read and interpret maps to assure most efficient routing based on prevailing traffic patterns. 
 
 
OTHER DUTIES: 


● Perform related duties as assigned. 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  
 
Education and Experience: 


● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and three years of experience             
operating a bus or commercial vehicle. 
 


Licenses and other Requirements 
● Valid California Commercial Driver’s License Class A or B with appropriate passenger, school 


bus and air brake endorsements. 
● California School Bus Driver Trainer Certificate within 12 months of employment.  
● Valid First Aid and CPR Certificate issued by an authorized agency. 
● Valid California Special driver's certificate (DL45), unrestricted except for #1-Automatic          


Transmission only. 
● Valid Medical Examiner's Certificate.  
● Comply with District policy and US Department of Transportation’s drug and alcohol testing             


regulations including random, reasonable suspicion and post-accident testing. 
● Attend in-services and training required to maintain licenses and certificates.  
● A safe driving record in accordance with the requirements of the California Department of Motor               


Vehicles is required.  
● Incumbents must be a minimum of 21 years of age. 


 
Knowledge of:  


● Scheduling and coordination of bus driver training programs. 
● Curriculum requirements for behind-the-wheel and driver classroom bus training and refresher           


classes. 
● Principles and practices of training, guidance and providing work direction to assigned staff. 
● Transportation scheduling and routing methods and techniques. 
● Basic first aid procedures. 
● Safe and defensive driving practices. 
● Proper operation, inspection and maintenance of school buses. 
● Applicable Federal, State Local and District laws, codes, directives and regulations for the             


transportation of students. 
● Basic first aid procedures. 
● Basic record-keeping techniques. 
● Proper lifting techniques. 
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy. 
● Health and safety regulations.  


Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver Page 2 of 4 
 


133/746







 


● Oral and written communication skills. 
● Air brake systems. 
● Safe driving practices. 
● Child guidance practices related to students with special needs. 


 
Ability to: 


● Serve as a lead school bus driver while performing assigned duties of a school bus driver. 
● Train and provide work direction and guidance to assigned staff. 
● Plan, schedule and conduct behind-the-wheel classes for school bus driver trainees and licensed             


school bus drivers. 
● Operate all school bus and other transportation vehicles and equipment skillfully, safely and             


efficiently. 
● Make sound judgment in emergency situations.  
● Conduct safety inspections and perform routine preventive maintenance. 
● Learn and apply policies and procedures related to student discipline on buses. 
● Read and interpret maps. 
● Observe legal and defensive driving practices. 
● Learn and follow designated routes. 
● Maintain bus in clean and proper working condition. 
● Administer first aid/CPR as necessary. 
● Demonstrate an understanding, patient and receptive attitude toward students with special needs. 
● Learn proper lifting techniques. 
● Maintain routine logs and records. 
● Understand and follow oral and written directions. 
● Communicate effectively with others 
● Meet schedules and timelines.  
● Operate a two-way radio. 
● Meet the physical requirements necessary to perform the job. 
● Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.  
● Maintain regular attendance.  


 
WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  
● Indoor/Outdoor environment. 
● Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.  
● Evening or variable hours.  
● Exposure to fumes, dust, odors, oil/grease and gases.  
● Driving a vehicle to conduct work. 
● Frequent communication with Students, Parents, Teachers, District employees and the public. 


 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met               
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations              
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


● Sitting for extended periods of time while operating buses. 
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information. 
● Climb ladders and ramps. 
● Reaching, pulling and pushing to open bus doors, move and secure wheelchairs. 
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching to inspect and wash buses and secure wheelchairs. 
● Reaching overhead, above the shoulders or horizontally. 


Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver Page 3 of 4 
 


134/746







 


● Seeing to monitor passengers and operate a vehicle. 
● Lifting, carrying, pushing or pulling moderately heavy children or objects. 
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate school bus control panel and operate a two-way radio. 


Hazards: 


● Traffic hazards. 
● Potential contact with dissatisfied or abusive individuals. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act                
(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.  


Approved by Personnel Commission: 06/20/2018 


Approved by Governing Board:  


Salary Range: 32 


Revised: 06/20/2018 


 


Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver Page 4 of 4 
 


135/746







Resolution 01-18-19 Authorization for Submittal of


Application for School Bus Grant


Separator Page


136/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution # 01-18-19 Authorizing Submittal of GF-17-607 Application for 
School Bus Replacement Grant 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the submittal of application GFO-17-607 to the California Energy Commission for 
fiscal year 2018-19, for the School Bus Replacement Grant. 


BACKGROUND: 
California Senate Bill 110 charges the California Energy Commission (CEC) to replace older high 
pollutant diesel buses in California.  The CEC Grant Funding Opportunity GFO-17-607 Bus 
Replacement Program provides grant funding to public school districts to replace old diesel 
school buses with Zero Emissions school buses.  This resolution is required to submit an 
application in September 2018.   


FISCAL IMPACT: 
If awarded, Santa Cruz City Schools will receive new bus(es) without a matching fund 
requirement and necessary funding for infrastructure costs.  The overall cost to Santa Cruz City 
Schools is zero. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor 


 


  


137/746







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 01-18-19 


                 
Approval of Application Submission  


California Energy Commission School Bus Replacement Grant Program GFO-17-607 
 


WHEREAS, California Senate Bill 110 charges the California Energy Commission (CEC) to replace 
older high pollutant diesel buses in California, the CEC Grant Funding Opportunity GFO-17-607 
Bus Replacement Program provides grant funding to public school districts and county offices of 
education to replace old diesel school buses; and 
 
WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools, in cooperation with the California Energy Commission, is 
working to provide a clean environment for all the residents of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, This program allows school districts to replace older, high pollutant school buses with 
new Zero Emissions school buses; and 
 
WHEREAS, if awarded, the school district will receive new bus(es) without a matching fund 
requirement and necessary funding for infrastructure costs,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
hereby authorizes the submittal of application GFO-17-607 to the California Energy Commission 
for fiscal year 2018-19, for the School Bus Replacement Grant Program.  The Assistant 
Superintendent of Business Services of Santa Cruz City Schools, Patrick K. Gaffney, is hereby 
authorized to execute in the name of the Santa Cruz City Schools, all necessary applications, 
contracts, agreements, amendments, and payments request hereto for the purposes of securing 
grant funds and to implement and carry out the purposes specified in the grant application. 
 
APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City School 
District, this twenty-ninth day of August 2018, by the following vote: 
 MOTION:  
 SECOND:  
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT OR NOT VOTING:  
             
       ________________________________ 


President of the Governing Board  
of Santa Cruz City Schools 


 
           
Attested to: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 
of Santa Cruz City Schools 


138/746







Human Resources: CSA Scott Hamilton


Separator Page


139/746







                            
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  2018-19 Consultant Services Agreement: Human Resources  
    Soquel High School Certified Athletic Trainer Service Provider 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve this Coaching consultant service agreement for services through June 2019.  
 
Background: 
The Athletic Trainer, working in conjunction with the Team Physician, will be responsible for 
aiding in the prevention of athletic injuries, the maintenance of the health and well-being, 
immediate first aide and treatment; and the recuperation and rehabilitation following illness, 
injury, or surgery of all student athletes under the umbrella of Soquel High School. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$36,000 Measure O (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


 
 Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 


supporting effective teaching. 
 
 


140/746







Santa Cruz City Schools
405 Old San Jose Road


Soquel/CA 95073


REQUISmON //i.


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT


Submit to ttie responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meotbg and prior to the
Consultant beginnirtg work.
gj^Soquel High School _ Pf!nclp«1/Dii-cctor; Gail Atlansky __
Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported;
AlhSello Trainer services for student glhletss at Soquel Hlsh School for tlw ZOIO-ZO'IS school year. Sen/lcsswlll tncluda aiding ttie provenlton ofAthleHctnJurios,


Immediale first aide & (reatment, monitoring of reouperatfop & rehabilitation following Illness or eurgery, end other services a$ described !n (he proposal.


Qualifications of Consultant; c®rtiRedA(Walto Trainer & physical TlwrapyAssl, 14 y^


Name of ConsuUant: Qcott D. Hamlll ___ Tax I.D.# or SSN: ' -


Address:____..____r__-__.


Cfty/State/Zip;__


Date(s) of Service: 08/03/2018 - 06/11/2018


Numb6r ofHours:)''ft . _ .hours per day XJ


Telephone #:


Email: _


(Vendor Data (bmi to Purchmsint;)


Time: TBD


days =NA Jotal hours,


Hourly/DailyRate(specify):NA


Lodging: ^


Menis: NA


TOTAL FEE TO BE PAID: $36,000


Traospotlatlon:


_Aecount #:


NA


Write out meaning of account number: Measure 0 Athletics


Approval of Business Services verifying accoun


Authorized Signature of Consultant;
(NOTE; Coiisuttantnnist


Signature ofAdministiator RetItte&tiHg Seivlce


Date: 8 3^-ffS


Date:


Date:
8/22/18


completion of Work)


Approval ofAssistafnt jSupei'intendent


Date: ^/^fY^
AB 1610< 1612. and 2102 COMPLIANCE (wiistiJfmifs having more than United coniact w!t!i stn^enfs reqtnrej'mgerprtntins)
@ Consultants will be on campus on 9 regular basis (more than once) while students are present


D Consultant wHl not be on campus on g regular basis while stutols we present (fingerprints not requh'ed).


Fingerprint Clearance date: ?/// / /^ _ Approval of Human Reso-urces; fi^ ^5M<
?tt>ti^^?lt^»tti(tt{;^<^;^<^i ^t ^t ^! 4t^i H< 4; ^ ^ 4;?{;^^^^!^}(<^^?t;*^^^i{!»t<4S^t̂/i ^ ^ ^ S^t


PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
(Submit for pnyment nfnr Consultnnt completes 'fforlt)


1 hereby certify that tlie consultant has satisfactorily completed the services In accordfiuce with the nbovs Agreemetit and
that payment ts in order.


Signature of Administrator Requesting Payment Date


Approval of Assistant Supermiendent


Board ofEducalion Approval:.
(Required if over $2500)


Date


7/H/2016


141/746







Proposal for Soquel High School Certified Athletic Trainer Service Provider 


                       
                                      (Approx. Aug. 3, 2018-June 11, 2019) 


 
The Athletic Trainer, working in conjunction with the Team Physician, will be 
responsible for aiding in the prevention of athletic injuries, the maintenance of the health 
and well being, immediate first aide and treatment; and the recuperation and 
rehabilitation following illness, injury, or surgery of all student athletes under the 
umbrella of Soquel High School. 
 
The Athletic Trainer will be responsible for the athletic training facility while there, 
including opening and closing. The Athletic Trainer will also advise the school on 
inventory status, requisitioning of supplies (i.e. tape, pre-wrap, etc.), and or facility 
management.  
 
The Athletic Trainer will keep accurate records of athletic injuries reported by school 
students occurring during school athletic events and all rehabilitation procedures 
administered by Athletic Trainer. 
 
The Athletic Trainer will also prepare reports on injuries sustained by school students 
during school athletic events for the nursing and athletic offices as may be requested. 
  
In cooperation with the Athletic Director and staff, the Athletic Trainer will develop and 
distribute to Athletic Director and Coaches an Emergency Action Plan. 
 
Inspect and take inventory of all team medical kits prior to the beginning of each season. 
 
Provide coordination between injured athletes, coaching staff, and team or family 
physician. 
  
The Athletic Trainer shall report directly to the Athletic Director and in his or her 
absence to the Assistant A.D. or his/her designee.  
 
The Athletic Trainer may be requested to speak for educational programs in the School. 
 
Assist the School in the improvement of its athletic health care delivery system, the 
athletic training facilities and equipment and athletic training program. 
 
The Athletic Trainer will supervise and instruct Student Athletic Training Aides. 
 
The Athletic Trainer will carry malpractice and liability insurance. 
  
 


 


 


 


142/746







 


EVENT COVERAGE 


  
-Athletic Trainer coverage for sport practices officially sponsored by the Soquel High 
school Athletic Program with priority to the sports with the highest risk of injury.  
Schedule to be arranged with Athletics Director.  
 
-Athletic Trainer coverage of all varsity and junior varsity football home and away games.  
 
-Athletic Trainer coverage of Soquel High school home games as schedule allows. 
 
 
Athletic Trainer Duties: 
 
 -Athletic Trainer shall comply with SCCAL rules for student athlete participation, 
including, but not limited to, concussion testing, hydration testing, heat advisory 
requirements, etc. 
 
-Athletic Trainer shall comply with best practices for the Athletic training industry and 
shall not violate the guidelines set forth by the National Athletic Trainers Association 
(NATA) or California laws and regulations for Athletic Trainer services.  
 
Santa Cruz City School District will be asked to provide the following:  
        
1. Payment. For the above services, the District shall agree to compensate        


Scott Hamill upon invoicing in three equal installments of $12,000, on Sept. 
1, Dec.1 and April 1. ($36,000 total) Payment will be sent to: Scott Hamill 
141 Loma Linda Court, Scotts Valley, Ca. 95066 


        
2.Supplies/Equipment. Provide adequate space, supplies and 


equipment for an athletic training facility from which the AT can 
provide the agreed upon services.  


 
 


143/746







Human Resources: CSA Mary Gaukel Forster


Separator Page


144/746







                            
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  2018-19 Consultant Services Agreement: Human Resources  
    Dept: Mary Gaukel Forster – Coaching support for Administrator 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 


 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve this coaching consultant service agreement for services through June 2019.  
 
Background: 
As part of our commitment to support effective recruitment, induction and retention of 
employees, we offer coaching support to new teachers and school leaders. Mary Gaukel Forster 
has 30 years of educational leadership experience in Pajaro Valley, Santa Cruz City Schools and 
at Delta Charter School. Mary Gaukel Forster will provide support/coaching/feedback to 
Katheryn McElwee , new principal of Mission Hill Middle School, throughout the school year. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$3,000 Title II Secondary- Restricted Funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 
 Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 


demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


 Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 
supporting effective teaching. 


 


145/746







Santa Cruz City Schools REQUISITION ^
405 Old San Jose Road


Sequel, CA 95073


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT


Submit to the responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meeting and prior to the
Consultant beginning work.
Site: Human Resources _ Prindpal/Director: Desiree Dotnlnguez
Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported;
Administrative Coaching for KAT/./^^ f^c. ^/w^rer / <Ht^^^ y^. A^/A*-. ^//7/ /^P/<£. >5^?<!0/
In support of District Goals #3 and ff4


Qualifications of Consultant; Educational Leadership coachhs


Name of Consultant: Mary Gaukel ^o^re^. ___ Tax LD.# or SSN: __
/Vimrfnr Oata fonn to Purchasing)


Address:_ _ . Telephoned:
Chy/State/Zip:_ _ Email:
Date(s) of Service: August 2-018- June 2019 _ Time: _„


Number of Hours:._ . hours per day X_days s=^^^^^^^^^^ _^^^^^^^ total hours.


Hourly/Daily Rate (specify);_:_ Meals:


Lodging;_„„...___ 'H-ansportation:


TOTAL FEE TO BE PAID: $3.000 _Account #:


Write out meaniug of account number: Title n Professional Development1 ^.GC-W^^^


Approval of Business Services verifying account:_ Date:


Authorized Signature of Consultant; - Date:
(NOTE: Consultant must submit invoice for payment upon completion of work)


Signature of Administrator Requesting Service Approval of Assistant Superintendent .


Date:,._,_____.__.__._______....__ . Date: __


AB 1610,1612, and 2102 COMPLIANCE (consvhmis having more than fimiled contact with students require flngefpf^fing)


D,Consultants will be on campus on a regular basis (more than once) white students are present


kConsultant will not be on campus on a regular basis while students are present (fingerprints not required).


of Human Resources:,Fingerprint Clearance date: V \ t^/L— _ Approval of Human Resources:
4:^4:i(<4s*^i(:^^^^i|<^^^^**^**iE!4{*ii{*********st:si;*.s{<*s{{**^


PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
(Submit fi>r pnyment after Consultant completes wortQ


I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the serviced in accordance with the above Agreement and
that payment is in order.


0/^&^2,^^^—~^_^ /-
Signature of Administrator Requesting'T^ment Date


Approval of Assistant Superintendent Date


Board of Education Approval:.
(Required if over $2500) 7/14/2016


146/746







Must be Attached . Paee_Two


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT


Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements.


1. Statement of specific need and the goal of the Consultant's work (Refer to district/site goals and plans,
unique needs of school, program or office which necessitates the services of a consultant).
Mrs. Foreslerwlll support our administrative with educational leadership coaching.


2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested services.
_Staff have Identffled Mary Gaukel Forestsr as having (he knowledge and expertise to support our new administrators; Including 30 years of


educational leadership at PVUSD, SCCS and Delta charter schoot,


3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time semces, state the site's plan to reduce or eliminate
the need for this consultant's services in the future.
The District previously contraoted wtth the New Teacher Center for principal Inductions at a much greater cost.


Contracting Mrs, Forester directly fs a savings to fhe district,


4. Statement of expected outcomes (Include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district students
and/or staff).
Supporting new administrators In order to improve Instfuctional leadership, providing msaningful developmonl davelopment feedback to teachers,


promoting a culture that serves the nseds of alf students and district participants sllke to improve student achievement,


5. Evaluation Process - How will you know the goal/outcomes have been met?
At the bsgfnntng of Ihe school year, administrators Identify goats and metfics for tha year relative to the Caltfornia Profssslonal Standards


for Ihe Educational Leader. We expect significant growth towards these goals to be reported In their end of th year summaflve evaluation.


147/746







Human Resources: CSA Bert Post


Separator Page


148/746







                            
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  2018-19 Consultant Services Agreement: Human Resources  
    Dept: Lambertus Post – Coaching support for Administrator 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve this Coaching consultant service agreement for services through June 2019.  
 
Background: 
Lambertus Post has educational Leadership coaching with the New Teacher Center and school 
administrative experience. Mr Post will provide support/coaching/feedback to Greg O’Meara, 
new director of Student Services, throughout the school year.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$3,000  - 50% from Title II Secondary (Restricted) 50% from Title II Elementary (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


 
 Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 


supporting effective teaching. 
 
 
 


149/746







Santa G'uz City Schools
405 Old San Jose Road


Soquel/CA 95073


REQUISITION J¥y3S33ST


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT


Submit to the responsible Assistant Superintendent at least two weeks before the Board meeting and prior to the
Consultant beginning work.
Site: Human Resources _;_ Principal/Director: Desiree Domlnguez
Describe Work to be Performed and District and Site Goals Supported;
Administrative Coaching •^. &}i^6f~ 0^^-fa^A-/ ^Tuysj^y. A^TO^ALAS 'P/^-^'ywft^
In support of District Goals #3 and #4


QuatijRCatiOHS Of Consultant; Educational Leadership coachtng


Name of Consultant: Uarnbertus Post


Address: "


TaxLD.#orSSN:
fVendnrTtatfl fonn to Purchasing)


Telephone #:


City/State/Zip:_„_„_ Email: ______
Date(s) of Service: August 2018- June 2019 _ Time: •


Number of Hours:, hours per day X_days =_____ total hours.


HourIy/DaHy Rate (specify):, . Meals: • __


Lodging:..


TOTAL FEE TO BE PAn):i3>ooo_


Transportation:


Account #;


Write out meaning of account number: Title II Professional Developmerit Secondary <t. fJ^wswm^f/


Approval of Business Services verifying accounfe^^9 IOJ^MJU^ _ Date: £>^ ^^\ & •


J


Authorized Signature of Consultant: Date: /?/- /'£,


(NOTE: Consultajift must ^Klt [invoice fo/p^ym^nt upon completion of work)


.Signature of Administrator Requesting Service


Date:_


Approval' of Assistant Superintendent


Date: ...............................................__.


AB 1610.1612, aud 2102 COMPLIANCE (constants havingmof'e thm limifed confacf wifh students reqv'n-e fwgerpjinfing)


D Consultants will be on campus on a regular basis (more than once) while students are present


consultant will not be on campus on a regular basis white students are present (fingerprints not required).


Fingerpruit Clearance date: V l/f.^L^ Approval of Human Resources: ^6^^<^£-^-" •• -
}(;i(i^i{;<;4s4!^^^4ii(i^^!f;**^iit^*^^**^ii(^4;^*»t!sts^»tiS{i****?|{>|i**^


PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION
(Submit for payment nfler Consultnnt completes work)


I hereby certify that the consultant has satisfactorily completed the services hi accordance with the above Agreement and
that payment is in order.


^£^. ^2 <, -„„„ -„,.-, ^-. e/n//6
Signature of Administrator Requ^sty


^1n.,.^/t^
lyment Date


r//7//r
Approva/of A^fstantSuperint^ud^nt


Board of Education Approval:.
(Required ifover $2500)


Date


7/14/2016


150/746







Must he Attached Paee Two


BEQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT


Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreements.


1. Statement of specific need and the goal of the Consultant's work (Refer to distriot/site goals and plans,
unique needs of school, program or office which necessitates the services of a consultant).
Mr Post wit! support our admintstcatlve with educational leadership coaching.


2, State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested services.
Staff have idsntlfied Bert Post as having the knowledge and exparilss to support our new admlnlslrators; Includtng educational leadership


coaching with ths New Teacher Center, consulting for the California Academic Partnership Program, anrf school admtnlstrative exparience.


3, If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or eliminate
the need for this consultant's services in the future.
The District previously contracted with the New Teacher Center for principal inductions at a much greater cost.


Contracting Mr Post dlractty is a savings lo the district.


4, Statement of expected outcomes (Include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district students
and/or staff).
Supporting nsw administrators in order to Improve Instructional leadership, providing meaningful development deveiopmBnl feedback to teachers,


promoting a culture that serves ths needs of all students and dislrlot participants ailke to improve student aohievement.


5. Evaluation Process - How will you know the goai/outcomes have been met?
At the beginning of the school year, administrators Identify goals and metrics for the year retaUve to (he California Professional Standards


for the Educalionat Leader. We expect significant growth towards thsse goals to b@ reported in Itieir end of th year summatlve evaluation.


151/746







Educational Services: SCCS/COE Science Camp


Agreement for 2018-19


Separator Page


152/746







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Outdoor Science School Overnight Field Trips -- Bay View Elementary, 
DeLaveaga Elementary, Gault Elementary, Westlake Elementary 


 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip for fifth and sixth grade students of Bay View Elementary, DeLaveaga 
Elementary, Gault Elementary, and Westlake Elementary to the Santa Cruz County Outdoor Science 
School during the dates of March 12 – March 15, 2019, March 19 – March 22, 2019, May 7 – 10, 2019, 
and May 14 – 17, 2019. Students will experience a four-day residential, hands-on science program, 
which cannot be accessed in a classroom. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The District agrees to participate in the Santa Cruz County Outdoor Science School, with a minimum of 
335 students of its fifth and sixth grade classes during the fall or spring of 2018-19 academic year. Bay 
View will attend March 12-15, 2019; Gault will attend March 19 -22, 2019; DeLaveaga will attend May 
7 – 10, 2019; Westlake will attend May 14 – 17, 2019.  There will be one District-certified teacher per 
group of 30 students, for a total of three teachers per school group.  
 
As stated by the Residential Outdoor Science School Program, “students will develop valuable 
understanding of and appreciation for their environment and will begin to acquire informed attitudes 
concerning the conservation of natural and human resources.” Students can expect to learn ecological 
concepts through science inquiry, games, field study, and other activities. This will create “a richer 
understanding of their natural surroundings” which will in turn “help prepare them for the mature 
decisions they will make as adults.” 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$10,865.00 to be paid from Parcel Tax, Measure P – Unrestricted (must follow Parcel Tax language). 
Student costs will be covered by participating families, and through fundraising. No student will be 
omitted due to lack of funds. No public monies will be used to support students on this field trip.  


This work is in direct support of the following District Goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
  


153/746







154/746







155/746







156/746







157/746







158/746







159/746







Educational Services: Monarch ES-CSA Sarah Rapp


Separator Page


160/746







  
  
                        


                                  AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Request for Consultant Service Agreement – Sarah Rapp 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Service Agreement for Sarah Rapp to support Integrated English 
Language Development professional learning for Monarch Elementary teachers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Sarah Rapp is working in her fourth year of the UCSC Ph.D. program in Education, with study in 
language and literacy. This allows her to provide support to teachers by integrating ELD 
standards and practices with the writing components of the school-wide thematic curriculum 
that is unique to Monarch School. In 2017-18, Sarah guided teachers and administrators 
through a Massive Open Online Course from Stanford, coached teachers in ELD strategies, and 
laid the groundwork for deeper work in 2018-19. 
 
In an effort to learn to provide support for English Language Learners, Monarch Elementary will 
continue to receive guided support from Sarah Rapp in 2018-19. This agreement contains 100 
consultation hours, where teachers will learn to build the capacity to adequately teach English 
Language Learners on their own once the service has ended.  
 
As a result, English Language Learners will demonstrate that language and literacy gains are 
improved, and in addition, teachers will have strengthened their abilities to teach English 
Language Learners.  Students’ progress will be measured yearly. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,000  Site Title I Professional Development funds (Restricted)   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


161/746







162/746







163/746







Educational Services: Student Services: Service


Agreement SCCS/UC Santa Barbara


Separator Page


164/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Memorandum of Understanding – University of California, Santa Barbara 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Memorandum of Understanding Service Agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools District and 
University of California, Santa Barbara, for a Social Emotional Healthy Survey. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) outlines a collaborative, affective data collection effort between 
the University of California Santa Barbara (UCSB) and Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS).  During the fall of 2018, 
SCCS will directly support school sites to administer the 2018 Social Emotional Survey to all students enrolled 
in grades 10 and 11 at Santa Cruz High School, Harbor High School, Soquel High School, and Costanoa High 
School. Students will be able to utilize access via web-link the Social Emotional Health Survey developed by the 
UCSB IES Project Researchers. 
 
The purpose of the survey and its subsequent result analysis is to gauge multiple areas of social emotional 
health of the students of Santa Cruz City Schools. Using targeted and relevant data provided by our students, 
we will collaboratively develop and implement programs and services to support student’s social and 
emotional growth. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None: UCSB will be invoiced upon completion of the terms outlined in the MOU: i.e. Total amount paid by UC 
for the Services and Deliverables will not exceed $25,000 unless both parties subsequently amend this 
agreement. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive 
skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the 
SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 
 
 


Prepared by Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 


165/746







 
  Page 1of 5 
 


 
 
This Services Agreement services described herein and in the documents referenced herein (“Goods and/or Services”) is 
made by and between The Regents of the University of California, a California public corporation (“UC”) on behalf of the 
University of California (“UCSB”), and Santa Cruz City Schools (“Supplier”). This Agreement is binding only if it is negotiated 
and executed by an authorized representative with the proper delegation of authority. Capitalized terms not defined herein 
will have the meanings ascribed in the documents titled “University of California Terms and Conditions of Purchase” 
(“Terms and Conditions”) attached hereto as Attachment B and “University of California – Appendix Data Security and 
Privacy” attached hereto (“Appendix DS”). Both the Terms and Conditions and Appendix DS are incorporated by this 
reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 


1. Statement of Work 
 
Supplier agrees to perform the Services listed in the statement of work attached as Attachment A (“Statement of Work”) 
and any other documents referenced in the Incorporated Documents section herein, at the prices set forth in the 
Statement of Work and any other documents referenced in the Incorporated Documents section herein.  Unless otherwise 
provided in the Agreement, UC will not be obligated to purchase a minimum amount of Goods and/or Services from 
Supplier.   
 


2. Term of Agreement/Termination 
  


a) The term of the Agreement will be from July 1, 2018 and through June 30, 2019 and is subject to earlier 
termination as provided below.  It may be extended upon the agreement of the parties.   
 


b) UC may terminate the Agreement for convenience by giving Supplier at least thirty (30) calendar days' 
written notice.  


 
c) UC or Supplier may terminate the Agreement for cause by giving the other party at least fifteen (15) days' 


notice to cure a breach of the Agreement (Cure Period).  If the breaching party fails to cure the breach within 
the Cure Period, the non-breaching party may immediately terminate the Agreement. 


  
d) Upon the effective date of any termination or the expiration of this Agreement, Supplier will immediately 


discontinue all Services under this Agreement, unless UC provides express written consent to a continuation of 
Services.  Upon termination, Supplier will return all copies of UCSB data, records, equipment, supplies, or 
other materials or property belonging to UCSB, and Supplier will deliver to UCSB all work in progress, including 
incomplete work. 


 


3. Purchase Order; Advance Payments 
 
Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, Supplier may not begin providing Goods and/or Services until UC approves a 
Purchase Order for the Goods and/or Services.      
 


4. Pricing, Invoicing Method, and Settlement Method and Terms 
 
Invoicing Method 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Terms and Conditions of Purchase, Supplier will be required to use the 
following Invoicing Method:  


 
Services Agreement #103493349 


166/746







                     Service Agreement #103493349 
 


Page 2 of 5 
Template revised on 11/29/17 
 


 
a) UC will make payments upon the Supplier’s completion of the Services and presentation of the Deliverables 


described in Attachment A. All invoices must be itemized in accordance with this Agreement and must include 
this Agreement’s number and/or purchase order number and a description of the services performed.  
 


b) The total amount paid by UC for the Services and the Deliverables will not exceed twenty-five thousand US 
dollars and 00/100 US dollars ($25,000.00.USD) unless this Agreement is subsequently amended by the 
parties. UC will not make payments in advance of work being performed. UC payment terms are net (30). 


   


5. Notices 
 
As provided in the UC Terms and Conditions of Purchase, notices may be given by overnight delivery or by certified mail 
with return receipt requested, at the addresses specified below.  Additionally, notices by Email will be considered legal 
notice if such communications include the following text in the Subject field: FORMAL LEGAL NOTICE – SANTA CRUZ CITY 
SCHOOLS.  
 
To UC: 
 


Name Michael Furlong 
Phone (805) 893-3375    
Email mfurlong@education.ucsb.edu 
Address Dept. of Education 


2131 Education Bldg. 275 
Santa Barbara, CA  93106-9490 


 
With a copy to: 
 


Name Calli Price 
Title Purchasing & Contracts Manager 


Procurement Services 
Phone (805) 893-3723   
Email calli.price@bfs.ucsb.edu   
Address 3203 SAASB, Santa Barbara, CA 93106-1150 


 
To Supplier: 
 


Name Kris Munro 
SCCS Superintendent 


Phone (831) 429-3410   
Email kmunro@sccs.net 
Address Santa Cruz City Schools 


405 Old San Jose Rd. 
Soquel, CA 95073 


 
 
 


167/746







                     Service Agreement #103493349 
 


Page 3 of 5 
Template revised on 11/29/17 
 


1. Each Occurrence $ 1,000,000 
2. Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $ 2,000,000 
3. Personal and Advertising Injury $ 1,000,000 
4. General Aggregate $ 2,000,000 


 


6. Intellectual Property, Copyright and Patents  
 
/X/ The Goods and/or Services involve Work Made for Hire. 
 
/___/ The Goods and/or Services do not involve Work Made for Hire. 


 
7. Prevailing Wages  
 
/X/      Supplier is not required to pay prevailing wages when providing the Services. 
 


8.  Fair Wage/Fair Work 
 
/X/     Supplier is not required to pay the UC Fair Wage (defined as $13 per hour as of 10/1/15, $14 per hour as of 10/1/16, 
and $15 per hour as of 10/1/17) when providing the Services. 
 


9.  Federally Funded Contracts; Grants and Cooperative Agreements   
 


a)  For federally-funded contracts, the Contract Number is: N/A. 
 
b)  For contracts funded by a grant or cooperative agreement, the grant or cooperative                              


agreement number is: R305A160157-18.    
 


10.  Insurance  
 
The parties agree that Article 9 of the Terms and Conditions is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 
 
Supplier, at its sole cost and expense, will insure its activities in connection with providing the Goods and/or Services and 
obtain, keep in force, and maintain the following insurance with the minimum limits set forth below, unless UC specifies 
otherwise: 
 
A. Commercial Form General Liability Insurance (contractual liability included) with limits as follows: 


 
 
 
 


B. INTENTIONALLY DELETED.  
C. Professional Liability Insurance with a limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence with an aggregate of not 


less than two million dollars ($2,000,000). If this insurance is written on a claims-made form, it will continue for three 
years following termination of the Agreement. The insurance will have a retroactive date of placement prior to or 
coinciding with the effective date of the Agreement. 


D. Workers' Compensation as required by applicable state law and Employer’s Liability with limits of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) 
per occurrence. 


E. INTENTIONALLY DELETED.  


168/746







                     Service Agreement #103493349 
 


Page 4 of 5 
Template revised on 11/29/17 
 


F. Additional other insurance in such amounts as may be reasonably required by UC against other insurable risks relating 
to performance. If the above insurance is written on a claims-made form, it will continue for three years following 
termination of the Agreement. The insurance will have a retroactive date of placement prior to or coinciding with the 
effective date of the Agreement. If the above insurance coverage is modified, changed or cancelled, Supplier will 
provide UC with not less than fifteen (15) days’ advance written notice of such modification, change, or cancellation, 
and will promptly obtain replacement coverage that complies with this Article. 


G. The coverages referred to under A of this Article must include UC as an additional insured. It is understood that the 
coverage and limits referred to under A, and C of this Article will not in any way limit Supplier’s liability. Supplier will 
furnish UC with certificates of insurance (and the relevant endorsement pages) evidencing compliance with all 
requirements prior to commencing work under the Agreement. Such certificates will: 


1. Indicate that The Regents of the University of California has been endorsed as an additional insured for the coverage 
referred to under A of this Article. This provision will only apply in proportion to and to the extent of the negligent acts 
or omissions of Supplier, its officers, agents, or employees. 


2. Include a provision that the coverage will be primary and will not participate with or be excess over any valid and 
collectible insurance or program of self-insurance carried or maintained by UC. 


 


11.  Incorporated Documents 
 


The following documents are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by reference as if fully set forth herein, listed 
in the order of precedence following the Agreement: 


a) Attachment A – Supplier Statement of Work. 
 
b) Attachment B – University of California – Terms and Conditions of Purchase 
 
c)   University of California – Appendix Data Security and Privacy 
 


12.  Entire Agreement 
 
The Agreement and its Incorporated Documents contain the entire Agreement between the parties and supersede all prior 
written or oral agreements with respect to the subject matter herein.    
 
This Services Agreement #103493349 is signed below by the parties’ duly authorized representatives.   
 


 
 


[Signature page follows] 


169/746







                     Service Agreement #103493349 
 


Page 5 of 5 
Template revised on 11/29/17 
 


THE REGENTS OF THE      SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA 
  
 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
(Signature)      (Signature) 
 
Becky Steiger      Kris Munro 
Sr. Contracts Analyst     SCCS Superintendent 
 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
(Date)       (Date) 


 


 
 


170/746







IES Grant Service Agreement Attachment (R305A160157) 1 


Attachment to Service Agreement 
Santa Cruz City Schools 


Services 
Services to be provided are related to the implementation of Institute of Education Sciences (IES) grant (# 
R305A160157, UCSB Principal Investigator Michael Furlong) to the Regent of the University of California. The Santa 
Cruz City Schools (SCCS) will provide services related to (a) coordinating of, planning for, and administration of 
surveys designed by UCSB IES researchers, and (b) provide archival student records that will be used for the 
purposes of measure validation. The following services will be provided in support the IES grant activities: 


IES Grant Project Survey 
1. Maintain regular (at least monthly) communication with UCSB IES researchers to plan and coordinate 


survey administration to students.
2. Disseminate and collect project parental notification and informed consent forms provided by the UCSB IES


researchers.
3. Identify students with and without parental consent so that parental interests are respected.
4. During the fall 2018 school term (between September and November), coordinate survey administration at


Santa Cruz High School, Harbor High School, Soquel High School, and Costanoa High School to students
enrolled in Grades 10 and 11. Survey administration will use a link to an online survey developed by the UCSB
IES project researchers.


IES Grant Archival Information 
The district will provide student archival information that will be used for scale validation purposes. As described in 
the following section. 


Social Emotional Health Survey Project:  Archival Educational Data 
By September 15, 2018, the district will provide archival education information for the 2017-18 academic year for
the students enrolled in Grade 10 and 11 at the four SCCS high schools.  


By June 30, 2019, the district will provide archival education information for the 2018-2019 academic year for San
Marcos High students who were enrolled in Grades 10 and 11. 


The data file will be provided in an Excel file with student data in one row. Multiple files can be provided of they all 
have a common unique identifier. IC ID will be the student identifier, used to match all data files.  UCSB will then 
assign each student a placeholder ID once they receive the files from us in order to protect student identities.   
contact Mike Furlong mfurlong@ucsb.edu with any questions 


Educational Information Requested 


Gender Race/ethnicity Lang Proficiency status Primary language 
Demographic Information 
IC ID School Grade level 
Special education Program SPED-Primary Disability 


Social/Emotional/ Behavioral Information 
Attendance: year total days absent and total days tardy 
Number of discipline Referrals for physical and verbal infractions 


Academic Performance Information 
 Standardized Test Scores (CELDT, Fitness, CHSPE, CAASPP overall English Language Arts, CAASPP overall MATH), 
Achievement Test scores:   SAT, AP 
End of Year GPA End of Year Weighted GPA 
Total credits attempted and earned (High)  AP units earned  UC/CSU Units earned 


ATTACHMENT A


171/746







Page 1 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL 
The equipment, materials, or supplies (“Goods”) and/or services (“Services”) furnished by Supplier (together, the “Goods and Services”) 
and covered by the UC Purchase Order (“PO”) and/or other agreement (which, when combined with these Terms and Conditions and any 
other documents incorporated by reference, will constitute the “Agreement”) are governed by the terms and conditions set forth herein.  
As used herein, the term "Supplier" includes Supplier and its sub-suppliers at any tier. As used herein, “UC” refers to The Regents of the 
University of California, a corporation described in California Constitution Art. IX, Sec. 9, on behalf of the UC Location(s) identified in the 
Agreement and/or the PO. UC and Supplier individually will be referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” Any defined terms not 
defined in these Terms and Conditions of Purchase will have the meaning ascribed to such term in any of the other documents 
incorporated in and constituting the Agreement. No other terms or conditions will be binding upon the Parties unless accepted by them 
in writing.  Written acceptance or shipment of all or any portion of the Goods, or the performance of all or any portion of the Services, 
covered by the Agreement, will constitute Supplier’s unqualified acceptance of all of the Agreement’s terms and conditions.  The terms of 
any proposal referred to in the Agreement are included and made a part of the Agreement only to the extent the proposal specifies the 
Goods and/or Services ordered, the price therefor, and the delivery thereof, and then only to the extent that such terms are consistent 
with the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 


ARTICLE 2 – TERM AND TERMINATION 


A. As applicable, the term of the Agreement (“Initial Term”) will be stated in the Agreement.  Following the Initial Term, the Agreement 
may be extended by written mutual agreement. 


B. UC’s obligation to proceed is conditioned upon the appropriation of state, federal and other sources of funds not controlled by UC 
("Funding"). UC will have the right to terminate the Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or further obligation in the event that 
through no action or inaction on the part of UC, the Funding is withdrawn. 


C. UC may, by written notice stating the extent and effective date thereof, terminate the Agreement for convenience in whole or in 
part, at any time with not less than the number of days’ notice stated elsewhere in the Agreement.  As specified in the termination 
notice, UC will pay Supplier as full compensation the pro rata Agreement price for performance through the later of the date that( i) 
UC provided Supplier with notice of termination or (ii) Supplier’s provision of Goods and/or Services will terminate. 


D. UC may by written notice terminate the Agreement for Supplier’s breach of the Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, if 
Supplier refuses or fails to comply with the provisions of the Agreement, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance 
and does not cure such failure within a reasonable period of time, or fails to supply the Goods and/or Services within the time 
specified or any written extension thereof.  In such event, UC may purchase or otherwise secure Goods and/or Services and, except 
as otherwise provided herein, Supplier will be liable to UC for any excess costs UC incurs thereby. 


 
ARTICLE 3 – PRICING, INVOICING METHOD, AND SETTLEMENT METHOD AND TERMS. Pricing is set forth in the Agreement or Purchase 
Order Number. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by UC, Supplier will use the invoicing method and payment settlement method (and 
will extend the terms applicable to such settlement method) set forth in UC’s Supplier Invoicing, Terms & Settlement Matrix. UC will pay 
Supplier, upon submission of acceptable invoices, for Goods and/or Services provided and accepted. Invoices must be itemized and 
reference the Agreement or Purchase Order number. UC will not pay shipping, packaging or handling expenses, unless specified in the 
Agreement or Purchase Order. Unless otherwise provided, freight is to be FOB destination. Any of Supplier’s expenses that UC agrees to 
reimburse will be reimbursed under UC’s Travel Policy, which may be found at http://www.ucop.edu/central-travel-
management/resources/index.html. Where applicable, Supplier will pay all taxes imposed on Supplier. Notwithstanding any other 
provision to the contrary, UC will not be responsible for any fees, interest or surcharges Supplier wishes to impose.   
 
ARTICLE 4 – INSPECTION. The Goods and/or Services furnished will be exactly as specified in the Agreement, free from all defects in 
Supplier's performance, design, workmanship and materials, and, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, will be subject to 
inspection and test by UC at all times and places.  If, prior to final acceptance, any Goods and/or Services furnished are found to be 
incomplete, or not as specified, UC may reject them, require Supplier to correct them without charge, or require  provision of such Goods 
and/or Services at a reduction in price that is equitable under the circumstances.  If Supplier is unable or refuses to correct such 
deficiencies within a time UC deems reasonable, UC may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part.  Supplier will bear all risks as to 
rejected Goods and/or Services and, in addition to any costs for which Supplier may become liable to UC under other provisions of the 
Agreement, will reimburse UC for all transportation costs, other related costs incurred, or payments to Supplier in accordance with the 
terms of the Agreement for unaccepted Goods and/or Services and materials and supplies incidental thereto.  Notwithstanding final 
acceptance and payment, Supplier will be liable for latent defects, fraud or such gross mistakes as amount to fraud. 


 
  Terms and Conditions of Purchase  


 
 


ATTACHMENT B


172/746







Page 2 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


ARTICLE 5 – ASSIGNED PERSONNEL; CHARACTER OF SERVICES 


Supplier will provide the Services as an independent contractor and furnish all equipment, personnel and materiel sufficient to provide 
the Services expeditiously and efficiently, during as many hours per shift and shifts per week, and at such locations as UC may so require. 
Supplier will devote only its best-qualified personnel to work under the Agreement.  Should UC inform Supplier that anyone providing the 
Services is not working to this standard, Supplier will immediately remove such personnel from providing Services and he or she will not 
again, without UC’s written permission, be assigned to provide Services.  At no time will Supplier or Supplier’s employees, sub-suppliers, 
agents, or assigns be considered employees of UC for any purpose, including but not limited to workers’ compensation provisions. 


ARTICLE 6 – WARRANTIES 


In addition to the warranties set forth in Articles 11, 12, 17, 23, 24, 25 and 26 herein, Supplier makes the following warranties.  Supplier 
acknowledges that failure to comply with any of the warranties in the Agreement will constitute a material breach of the Agreement and 
UC will have the right to terminate the Agreement without damage, penalty, cost or further obligation. 
A. General Warranties.  Supplier agrees that the Goods and Services furnished under the Agreement will be covered by the most 


favorable warranties Supplier gives to any customer for the same or substantially similar goods or services, or such other more 
favorable warranties as specified in the Agreement.  The rights and remedies so provided are in addition to and do not limit any 
rights afforded to UC by any other article of the Agreement. 


B. Permits and Licenses.  Supplier agrees to procure all necessary permits or licenses and abide by all applicable laws, regulations and 
ordinances of the United States and of the state, territory and political subdivision or any other country in which the Goods and/or 
Services are provided. 


C. Federal and State Water and Air Pollution Laws.  Where applicable, Supplier warrants that it complies with the requirements in UC 
Business and Finance Bulletin BUS-56 (Materiel Management; Purchases from Entities Violating State or Federal Water or Air 
Pollution Laws).  Consistent with California Government Code 4477, these requirements do not permit UC to contract with entities in 
violation of Federal or State water or air pollution laws. 


D. Accessibility Requirements.  Supplier warrants that: 
1. It complies with California and federal disabilities laws and regulations; and 
2. The Goods and Services will conform to the accessibility requirements of WCAG 2.0AA. 
Supplier agrees to promptly respond to and resolve any complaint regarding accessibility of its Goods and/or Services. 


E. Warranty of Quiet Enjoyment.  Supplier warrants that Supplier has the right to use all intellectual property that will be needed to 
provide the Goods and/or Services. 


F. California Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act ("CANRA").  Where applicable, Supplier warrants that it complies with CANRA. 
G. Debarment and Suspension. Supplier warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared 


ineligible for award of federal contracts or participation in federal assistance programs or activities. 
H. UC Code of Conduct for Trademark Licensees. If the Goods will bear UC’s name (including UC campus names, abbreviations of these 


names, UC logos, UC mascots, or UC seals) or other trademarks owned by UC, Supplier warrants that it holds a valid license from UC 
and complies with the Trademark Licensing Code of Conduct policy, available 
at http://policy.ucop.edu/doc/3000130/TrademarkLicensing. 


I. Outsourcing (Public Contract Code section 12147) Compliance. Supplier warrants that if the Agreement will displace UC employees, 
no funds paid under the Agreement will be used to train workers who are located outside of the United States, or plan to relocate 
outside the United States as part of the Agreement. Additionally, Supplier warrants that no work will be performed under the 
Agreement with workers outside the United States, except as described in Supplier’s bid.  If Supplier or its subsupplier performs the 
Agreement with workers outside the United States during the life of the Agreement and Supplier did not describe such work in its 
bid, Supplier acknowledges and agrees that a) UC may terminate the Agreement without further obligation for noncompliance, and 
b) Supplier will forfeit to UC the amount UC paid for the percentage of work that was performed with workers outside the United 
States and not described in Supplier’s bid. 


 


ARTICLE 7 – INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, COPYRIGHT AND PATENTS 


A. Goods and/or Services Involving Work Made for Hire. 
1. Unless UC indicates that the Goods and/or Services do not involve work made for hire, Supplier acknowledges and agrees that 


any deliverables provided to UC by Supplier in the performance of the Agreement, and any intellectual property rights therein, 
(hereinafter the "Deliverables") will be owned by UC.  The Deliverables will be considered "work made for hire" under U.S. 
copyright law and all right, title, and interest to and in such Deliverables including, but not limited to, any and all copyrights or 
trademarks, will be owned by UC.  In the event that it is determined that UC is not the owner of such Deliverables under the 


173/746







Page 3 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


"work made for hire" doctrine of U.S. copyright law, Supplier hereby irrevocably assigns to UC all right, title, and interest to and 
in such Deliverables and any copyrights or trademarks thereto. 


2. The Deliverables must be new and original.  Supplier must not use any pre-existing copyrightable or trademarked images, 
writings, or other proprietary materials (hereinafter "Pre-Existing Materials") in the Deliverables without UC’s prior written 
permission.  In the event that Supplier uses any Pre-Existing Materials in the Deliverables in which Supplier has an ownership 
interest, UC is hereby granted, and will have, a non-exclusive, royalty-free, irrevocable, perpetual, paid-up, worldwide license 
(with the right to sublicense) to make, have made, copy, modify, make derivative works of, use, perform, display publicly, sell, 
and otherwise distribute such Pre-Existing Materials in connection with the Deliverables. 


3. Whenever any invention or discovery is made or conceived by Supplier in the course of or in connection with the Agreement, 
Supplier will promptly furnish UC with complete information with respect thereto and UC will have the sole power to determine 
whether and where a patent application will be filed and to determine the disposition of title to and all rights under any 
application or patent that may result. 


4. Supplier is specifically subject to an obligation to, and hereby does,  assign all right, title and interest in any such intellectual 
property rights to UC as well as all right, title and interest in tangible research products embodying any such inventions whether 
the inventions are patentable or not.  Supplier agrees to promptly execute any additional documents or forms that UC may 
require in order to effectuate such assignment. 


B. Goods and/or Services Not Involving Work Made for Hire. 
1. If the Goods and/or Services do not involve work made for hire, and in the event that Supplier uses any Pre-Existing Materials in 


the Deliverables in which Supplier has an ownership interest, UC is hereby granted, and will have, a non-exclusive, royalty-free, 
irrevocable, perpetual, paid-up, worldwide license (with the right to sublicense) to make, have made, copy, modify, make 
derivative works of, use, perform, display publicly, sell, and otherwise distribute such Pre-Existing Materials in connection with 
the Deliverables. 


2. The Deliverables must be new and original. Supplier must not use any Pre-Existing Materials in the Deliverables without UC’s 
prior written permission. 


3. Whenever any invention or discovery is made or conceived by Supplier in the course of or in connection with the Agreement, 
Supplier will promptly furnish UC complete information with respect thereto and UC will have the sole power to determine 
whether and where a patent application will be filed and to determine the disposition of title to and all rights under any 
application or patent that may result. 


4. Supplier is specifically subject to an obligation to, and hereby does,  assign all right, title and interest in any such intellectual 
property rights to UC as well as all right, title and interest in tangible research products embodying any such inventions whether 
the inventions are patentable or not.  Supplier agrees to promptly execute any additional documents or forms that UC may 
require in order to effectuate such assignment. 


C. General.  Should the Goods and/or Services become, or in Supplier’s opinion be likely to become, the subject of a claim of 
infringement of any patent, copyright, trademark, trade name, trade secret, or other proprietary or contractual right of any third 
party, Supplier will provide written notice to UC of the circumstances giving rise to such claim or likely claim.  In the event that UC 
receives notice of a claim of infringement or is made a party to or is threatened with being made a party to any claim of 
infringement related to the Goods and/or Services, UC will provide Supplier with notice of such claim or threat.  Following receipt of 
such notice, Supplier will either (at Supplier’s sole election) (i) procure for UC the right to continue to use the affected portion of the 
Goods and/or Services, or (ii) replace or otherwise modify the affected portion of the Goods and/or Services to make them non-
infringing, or obtain a reasonable substitute product for the affected portion of the Goods and/or Services, provided that any 
replacement, modification or substitution under this paragraph does not effect a material change in the Goods’ and/or Services’ 
functionality.  If none of the foregoing options is reasonably acceptable to UC, UC will have the right to terminate the Agreement 
without damage, penalty, cost or further obligation. 


ARTICLE 8 – INDEMNITY 


Supplier will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless UC, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against all losses, expenses 
(including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs), damages, and liabilities of any kind resulting from or arising out of 
the Agreement, including the performance hereunder of Supplier, its officers, employees, agents, sub-suppliers, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Supplier, or any person or persons under Supplier's direction and control, provided such losses, expenses, 
damages and liabilities are due or claimed to be due to the acts or omissions of Supplier, its officers, employees, agents, sub-suppliers, or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Supplier, or any person or persons under Supplier's direction and control.  UC agrees to provide 
Supplier with prompt notice of any such claim or action and to permit Supplier to defend any claim or action, and that UC will cooperate 
fully in such defense.  UC retains the right to participate in the defense against any such claim or action, and the right to consent to any 
settlement, which consent will not unreasonably be withheld. 


174/746







Page 4 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


 
ARTICLE 9 – INSURANCE  
Supplier, at its sole cost and expense, will insure its activities in connection with providing the Goods and/or Services and obtain, keep in 
force, and maintain the following insurance with the minimum limits set forth below, unless UC specifies otherwise:  
A.  Commercial Form General Liability Insurance (contractual liability included) with limits as follows:  


1.  Each Occurrence                                                $ 1,000,000  
2.  Products/Completed Operations Aggregate    $ 2,000,000  
3.  Personal and Advertising Injury                            $ 1,000,000  
4.  General Aggregate                                                 $ 2,000,000  


B.  Business Automobile Liability Insurance for owned, scheduled, non-owned, or hired automobiles with a combined single limit of not 
less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. (Required only if Supplier drives on UC premises or transports UC 
employees, officers, invitees, or agents in the course of supplying the Goods and/or Services to UC.)  


C.  If applicable, Professional Liability Insurance with a limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence with an aggregate of not 
less than two million dollars ($2,000,000). If this insurance is written on a claims-made form, it will continue for three years following 
termination of the Agreement. The insurance will have a retroactive date of placement prior to or coinciding with the effective date 
of the Agreement.  


D.  Workers' Compensation as required by applicable state law and Employer’s Liability with limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
per occurrence.  


E.  If applicable, Supplier Fidelity Bond or Crime coverage for the dishonest acts of its employees in a minimum amount of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000). Supplier will endorse such policy to include a “Regents of the University of California Coverage” or “Joint Payee 
Coverage” endorsement. UC and, if so requested, UC’s officers, employees, agents and sub-suppliers will be named as "Loss Payee, 
as Their Interest May Appear” in such Fidelity Bond.  


F.  Additional other insurance in such amounts as may be reasonably required by UC against other insurable risks relating to 
performance. If the above insurance is written on a claims-made form, it will continue for three years following termination of the 
Agreement. The insurance will have a retroactive date of placement prior to or coinciding with the effective date of the Agreement. 
If the above insurance coverage is modified, changed or cancelled, Supplier will provide UC with not less than fifteen (15) days’ 
advance written notice of such modification, change, or cancellation, and will promptly obtain replacement coverage that complies 
with this Article.  


G.  The coverages referred to under A and B of this Article must include UC as an additional insured. It is understood that the coverage 
and limits referred to under A, B and C of this Article will not in any way limit Supplier’s liability. Supplier will furnish UC with 
certificates of insurance (and the relevant endorsement pages) evidencing compliance with all requirements prior to commencing 
work under the Agreement. Such certificates will:  
1.  Indicate that The Regents of the University of California has been endorsed as an additional insured for the coverage referred to 


under A and B of this Article. This provision will only apply in proportion to and to the extent of the negligent acts or omissions 
of Supplier, its officers, agents, or employees.  


2.  Include a provision that the coverage will be primary and will not participate with or be excess over any valid and collectible 
insurance or program of self-insurance carried or maintained by UC. 


ARTICLE 10 – USE OF UC NAME AND TRADEMARKS 


Supplier will not use the UC name, a b b r e v i a t io n  o f  t h e  UC  n a m e,  trade names and/or trademarks (i.e., logos and seals) or any 
derivation thereof, in any form or manner in advertisements, reports, or other information released to the public, or place the UC name, 
abbreviations, trade names and/or trademarks or any derivation thereof on any consumer goods, products, or services for sale or 
distribution to the public, without U C ’ s  prior written approval.  Supplier agrees to comply at all times with California Education Code 
Section 92000. 


ARTICLE 11 – FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATIONS – COMMERCIAL GOODS AND SERVICES 


Supplier who supplies commercial Goods and/or Services certifies and represents its compliance with the following clauses, as applicable.  
Supplier shall promptly notify UC of any change of status with regard to these certifications and representations.  These certifications and 
representations are material statements upon which UC will rely: 
A. FAR 52.203-13, Contractor Code of Business Ethics and Conduct; 
B. FAR 52.219-8, Utilization of Small Business Concerns; 
C. FAR 52.222-4, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act; 
D. FAR 52.222-17, Nondisplacement of Qualified Workers; 


175/746







Page 5 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


E. FAR 52.222-21, Prohibition of Segregated Facilities; 
F. FAR 52.222-26, Equal Opportunity; 
G. FAR 52.222-35, Equal Opportunity for Veterans; 
H. FAR 52.222-36, Equal Opportunity for Workers with Disabilities; 
I. FAR 52.222-37, Employment Reports on Veterans; 
J. FAR 52.222-40, Notification of Employee Rights Under the National Labor Relations Act; 
K. FAR 52.222-41, Service Contract Labor Standards; 
L. FAR 52.222-50, Combating Trafficking in Persons; 
M. FAR 52.222-51, Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to Contracts for Maintenance, Calibration, or 


Repair of Certain Equipment - Requirements; 
N. FAR 52.222-53, Exemption from Application of the Service Contract Labor Standards to Contracts for Certain Services - 


Requirements; 
O. FAR 52.222-54, Employment Eligibility Verification; 
P. FAR 52.222-55, Minimum Wages Under Executive Order 13658; 
Q. FAR 52.226-6, Promoting Excess Food Donation to Nonprofit Organizations; and 
R. FAR 52.247-64, Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flag Commercial Vessels. 
In these provisions, the term "contractor" as used therein will refer to Supplier, and the terms “Government” or “Contracting Officer” as 
used therein will refer to UC.  Where a purchase of items is for fulfillment of a specific U.S. Government prime or subcontract, additional 
information and/or terms and conditions may be included in an attached supplement. By submitting an invoice to UC, Supplier is 
representing to UC that, at the time of submission: 


1. Neither Supplier nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment by the U.S. government (see          
FAR 52.209-6); 


2. Supplier has filed all compliance reports required by the Equal Opportunity clause (see FAR 52.222-22); and 
3. Any Supplier representations to UC about U.S. Small Business Administration or state and local classifications, including but not 


limited to size standards, ownership, and control, are accurate and complete. 


ARTICLE 12 – EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 


Supplier will abide by the requirements set forth in Executive Orders 11246 and 11375.  Where applicable, Supplier will abide by 41 CFR 
§§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a), incorporated by reference with this statement:  “This contractor and subcontractor shall abide 
by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified 
individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all 
individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations 
require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.”  
With respect to activities occurring in the State of California, Supplier agrees to adhere to the California Fair Employment and Housing 
Act.  Supplier will provide UC on request a breakdown of its labor force by groups as specified by UC, and will discuss with UC its policies 
and practices relating to its affirmative action programs. Supplier will not maintain or provide facilities for employees at any 
establishment under its control that are segregated on a basis prohibited by federal law. Separate or single-user restrooms and necessary 
dressing or sleeping areas must be provided, however, to ensure privacy. 


ARTICLE 13 – LIENS 


Supplier agrees that upon UC’s request, Supplier will submit a sworn statement setting forth the work performed or material furnished by 
sub-suppliers and material men, and the amount due and to become due to each, and that before the final payment called for under the 
Agreement, will upon UC’s request submit to UC a complete set of vouchers showing what payments have been made for such work 
performed or material furnished.  Supplier will promptly notify UC in writing, of any claims, demands, causes of action, liens or suits 
brought to its attention that arise out of the Agreement.  UC will not make final payment until Supplier, if required,  delivers to UC a 
complete release of all liens arising out of the Agreement, or receipts in full in lieu thereof, as UC may require, and if required in either 
case, an affidavit that as far as it has knowledge or information, the receipts include all the labor and materials for which a lien could be 
filed; but Supplier may, if any sub-supplier refuses to furnish a release or receipt in full, furnish a bond satisfactory to UC to indemnify it 
against any claim by lien or otherwise.  If any lien or claim remains unsatisfied after all payments are made, Supplier will refund to UC all 
monies that UC may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien or claim, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees. 


176/746







Page 6 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


ARTICLE 14 – PREMISES WHERE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED 


A. Cleaning Up.  Supplier will at all times keep UC premises where the Services are performed and adjoining premises free from 
accumulations of waste material or rubbish caused by its employees or work of any of its sub-suppliers, and, at the completion of 
the Services; will remove all rubbish from and about the premises and all its tools, scaffolding, and surplus materials, and will leave 
the premises "broom clean" or its equivalent, unless more exactly specified.  In case of dispute between Supplier and its sub-
suppliers as to responsibility for the removal of the rubbish, or if it is not promptly removed, UC may remove the rubbish and charge 
the cost to Supplier. 


B. Environmental, Safety, Health and Fire Protection.  Supplier will take all reasonable precautions in providing the Goods and Services 
to protect the health and safety of UC employees and members of the public and to minimize danger from all hazards to life and 
property, and will comply with all applicable environmental protection, health, safety, and fire protection regulations and 
requirements (including reporting requirements).  In the event that Supplier fails to comply with such regulations and requirements, 
UC may, without prejudice to any other legal or contractual rights of UC, issue an order stopping all or any part of the provision of 
the Goods and/or Services; thereafter a start order for resumption of providing the Goods and/or Services may be issued at UC’s 
discretion.  Supplier will not be entitled to make a claim for extension of time or for compensation or damages by reason of or in 
connection with such stoppage.  Supplier will have sole responsibility for the safety of all persons employed by Supplier and its sub-
suppliers on UC premises, or any other person who enters upon UC premises for reasons relating to the Agreement.  Supplier will at 
all times maintain good order among its employees and all other persons who come onto UC's premises at Supplier's request and 
will not engage any unfit or unskilled person to provide the Goods and/or Services.  Supplier will confine its employees and all other 
persons who come onto UC's premises at Supplier's request or for reasons relating to the Agreement and its equipment to that 
portion of UC's premises where the Services are to be provided or to roads leading to and from such work sites, and to any other 
area which UC may permit Supplier to use.  Supplier will take all reasonable measures and precautions at all times to prevent injuries 
to or the death of any of its employees or any other person who enters upon UC premises at Supplier’s request.  Such measures and 
precautions will include, but will not be limited to, all safeguards and warnings necessary to protect workers and others against any 
conditions on the premises that could be dangerous and to prevent accidents of any kind whenever the Goods and/or Services are 
being provided in proximity to any moving or operating machinery, equipment or facilities, whether such machinery, equipment or 
facilities are the property of or are being operated by, Supplier, its sub-suppliers, UC or other persons. To the extent compliance is 
required, Supplier will comply with all relevant UC safety rules and regulations when on UC premises. 


C. Tobacco-free Campus.  UC is a tobacco-free institution. Use of cigarettes, cigars, oral tobacco, electronic cigarettes and all other 
tobacco products is prohibited on all UC owned or leased sites. 


ARTICLE 15 – LIABILITY FOR UC - FURNISHED PROPERTY 


Supplier assumes complete liability for any materials UC furnishes to Supplier in connection with the Agreement and Supplier agrees to 
pay for any UC materials Supplier damages or otherwise is not able to account for to UC's satisfaction.  UC furnishing to Supplier any 
materials in connection with the Agreement will not, unless otherwise expressly provided in writing by UC, be construed to vest title 
thereto in Supplier. 


ARTICLE 16 – COOPERATION 


Supplier and its sub-suppliers, if any, will cooperate with UC and other suppliers and will so provide the Goods and/or Services that other 
cooperating suppliers will not be hindered, delayed or interfered with in the progress of their work, and so that all of such work will be a 
finished and complete job of its kind. 


ARTICLE 17 – ADDITIONAL TERMS APPLICABLE TO THE FURNISHING OF GOODS 


The terms in this Article have special application to the furnishing of Goods: 
A. Price Decreases.  Supplier agrees immediately to notify UC of any price decreases from its suppliers, and to pass through to UC any 


price decreases. 
B. Declared Valuation of Shipments.  Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, all shipments by Supplier under the Agreement 


for UC's account will be made at the maximum declared value applicable to the lowest transportation rate or classification and the 
bill of lading will so note. 


C. Title.  Title to the Goods purchased under the Agreement will pass directly from Supplier to UC at the f.o.b. point shown, or as 
otherwise specified in the Agreement, subject to UC’s right to reject upon inspection. 


D. Changes. Notwithstanding the terms in Article 34, Amendments, UC may make changes within the general scope of the Agreement 
in drawings and specifications for specially manufactured Goods, place of delivery, method of shipment or packing of the Goods by 


177/746







Page 7 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


giving notice to Supplier and subsequently confirming such changes in writing.  If such changes affect the cost of or the time 
required for performance of the Agreement, UC and Supplier will agree upon an equitable adjustment in the price and/or delivery 
terms.  Supplier may not make changes without UC’s written approval.  Any claim of Supplier for an adjustment under the 
Agreement must be made in writing within thirty (30) days from the date Supplier receives notice of such change unless UC waives 
this condition in writing.  Nothing in the Agreement will excuse Supplier from proceeding with performance of the Agreement as 
changed hereunder.  Supplier may not alter or misbrand, within the meaning of the applicable Federal and State laws, the Goods 
furnished. 


E. Forced, Convict and Indentured Labor. Supplier warrants that no foreign-made Goods furnished to UC pursuant to the Agreement 
will be produced in whole or in part by forced labor, convict labor, or indentured labor under penal sanction.  If UC determines that 
Supplier knew or should have known that it was breaching this warranty, UC may, in addition to terminating the Agreement, remove 
Supplier from consideration for UC contracts for a period not to exceed one year. This warranty is in addition to any applicable 
warranties in Articles 6 and 11. 


F. Export Control.  If any of the Goods is export-controlled under the International Traffic in Arms Regulations (22 CFR §§ 120-130), the 
United States Munitions List (22 CFR § 121.1), or Export Administration Regulations (15 CFR §§ 730-774) 500 or 600 series, or 
controlled on a military strategic goods list, Supplier agrees to provide UC (the contact listed on the Purchase Order) with written 
notification that identifies the export-controlled Goods and such Goods’ export classification. 


ARTICLE 18 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 


Supplier affirms that, to the best of Supplier’s knowledge, no UC employee who has participated in UC’s decision-making concerning the 
Agreement has an “economic interest” in the Agreement or Supplier.  A UC employee’s “economic interest” means: 
A. An investment worth $2,000 or more in Supplier or its affiliate; 
B. A position as director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or manager of Supplier or its affiliate; 
C. Receipt during the past 12 months of $500 in income or $440 in gifts from Supplier or its affiliate; or 
D. A personal financial benefit from the Agreement in the amount of $250 or more. 
 
In the event of a change in these economic interests, Supplier will provide written notice to UC within thirty (30) days after such change, 
noting such changes.  Supplier will not be in a reporting relationship to a UC employee who is a near relative, nor will a near relative be in 
a decision making position with respect to Supplier. 


ARTICLE 19 – AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 


The Agreement is subject to the examination and audit of the Auditor General of the State of California or Comptroller General of the 
United States or designated Federal authority for a period of up to five (5) years after final payment under the Agreement.  UC, and if the 
underlying grant or cooperative agreement so provides, the other contracting Party or grantor (and if that be the United States or an 
instrumentality thereof, then the Comptroller General of the United States) will have access to and the right to examine Supplier’s 
pertinent books, documents, papers, and records involving transactions and work related to the Agreement until the expiration of five (5) 
years after final payment under the Agreement.  The examination and audit will be confined to those matters connected with the 
performance of the Agreement, including the costs of administering the Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 20 – PROHIBITION ON UNAUTHORIZED USE OR DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 


Supplier agrees to hold UC’s Confidential Information, and any information derived therefrom, in strict confidence. Confidential 
Information shall be defined as any information disclosed by UC to Supplier for the purposes of providing the Good and/or Services which 
is (i) marked as “Confidential” at the time of disclosure; (ii) disclosed orally,  identified at the time of such oral disclosure as confidential, 
and reduced to writing as “Confidential” within thirty (30) days of such oral disclosure; and (iii) if not marked as “Confidential,” 
information that would be considered by a reasonable person in the relevant field to be confidential given its content and the 
circumstances of its disclosure. Confidential Information will not include information that:  (i) Supplier can demonstrate by written 
records was known to Supplier prior to the effective date of the Agreement; (ii) is currently in, or in the future enters, the public domain 
other than through a breach of the Agreement or through other acts or omissions of Supplier; (iii) is obtained lawfully from a third party; 
or (iv) is disclosed under the California Public Records Act or legal process. Supplier will not access, use or disclose Confidential 
Information other than to carry out the purposes for which UC disclosed the Confidential Information to Supplier, except as permitted or 
required by applicable law, or as otherwise authorized in writing by UC. For avoidance of doubt, this provision prohibits Supplier from 
using for its own benefit Confidential Information and any information derived therefrom. If required by a court of competent jurisdiction 
or an administrative body to disclose Confidential Information, Supplier will notify UC in writing immediately upon receiving notice of 
such requirement and prior to any such disclosure (unless Supplier is prohibited by law from doing so), to give UC an opportunity to 


178/746







Page 8 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


oppose or otherwise respond to such disclosure. Supplier’s transmission, transportation or storage of Confidential Information outside 
the United States, or access of Confidential Information from outside the United States, is prohibited except with prior written 
authorization by UC. UC’s Appendix – Data Security and Privacy and/or Appendix – HIPAA Business Associate will control in the event that 
one or both appendices is incorporated into the Agreement and conflicts with the provisions of this Article. 


ARTICLE 21 – UC WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 


UC is committed to conducting its affairs in compliance with the law, and has established a process for reporting and investigating 
suspected improper governmental activities.  Please visit http://www.ucop.edu/uc-whistleblower/ for more information. 


ARTICLE 22 – ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE PRODUCTS 


Supplier will use environmentally preferable products and services (i.e., products and services with a lesser or reduced effect on human 
health and the environment), to the maximum possible extent consistent with the Agreement. Information on environmentally 
preferable products and services is available at: http://www.epa.gov/opptintr/epp/. 


ARTICLE 23 – PATIENT PROTECTION AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT (PPACA) EMPLOYER SHARED RESPONSIBILITY   


If the Services involve Supplier furnishing UC with temporary or supplementary staffing, Supplier warrants that: 
A.   If Supplier is an Applicable Large Employer (as defined under Treasury Regulation Section 54.4980H-1(a)(4)): 


1. Supplier offers health coverage to its full-time employees who are performing Services for UC; 
2. Supplier’s cost of enrolling such employees in Supplier’s health plan is factored into the fees for the Services; and 
3. The fees for the Services are higher than what the Services would cost if Supplier did not offer health coverage to such full-time 


employees. 
B.   If Supplier is not an Applicable Large Employer (as defined above): 


1. Supplier offers group health coverage to its full-time employees who are performing Services for UC and such coverage is 
considered Minimum Essential Coverage (as defined under Treasury Regulation Section 1-5000A-2) and is Affordable (as 
defined under Treasury Regulation Section 54.4980H-5(e)); or  


2. Supplier’s full-time employees who are performing services for UC have individual coverage and such coverage satisfies the 
PPACA requirements for mandated individual coverage. 


 
Supplier acknowledges that UC is relying on these warranties to ensure UC’s compliance with the PPACA Employer Shared Responsibility 
provision. 


ARTICLE 24 - PREVAILING WAGES 


Unless UC notifies Supplier that the Services are not subject to prevailing wage requirements, Supplier will comply, and will ensure that 
all sub-suppliers comply, with California prevailing wage provisions, including but not limited to those set forth in Labor Code sections 
1770, 1771, 1771.1, 1772, 1773, 1773.1, 1774, 1775, 1776, 1777.5, and 1777.6.  For purposes of the Agreement, the term “sub-supplier” 
means a person or firm, of all tiers, that has a contract with Supplier or with a sub-supplier to provide a portion of the Services.  The term 
sub-supplier will not include suppliers, manufacturers, or distributors. Specifically, and not by way of limitation, if apprenticable 
occupations are involved in providing the Services, Supplier will be responsible for ensuring that Supplier and any sub-suppliers comply 
with Labor Code Section 1777.5.  Supplier and sub-supplier may not provide the Services unless currently registered and qualified to 
perform public work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 and 1771.1. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, Supplier will be solely 
responsible for tracking and ensuring proper payment of prevailing wages regardless if Services are partially or wholly subject to 
prevailing wage requirements. In every instance, Supplier will pay not less than the UC Fair Wage (defined as $13 per hour as of 10/1/15, 
$14 per hour as of 10/1/16, and $15 per hour as of 10/1/17) for Services being performed at a UC Location (defined as any location 
owned or leased by UC). 
 
The California Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) has ascertained the general prevailing per diem wage rates in the locality in which 
the Services are to be provided for each craft, classification, or type of worker required to provide the Services.  A copy of the general 
prevailing per diem wage rates will be on file at each UC Location’s procurement office, and will be made available to any interested party 
upon request.  Supplier will post at any job site: 
A. Notice of the general prevailing per diem wage rates, and 
B. Any other notices required by DIR rule or regulation. 
 


179/746







Page 9 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


By this reference, such notices are made part of the Agreement.  Supplier will pay not less than the prevailing wage rates, as specified in 
the schedule and any amendments thereto, to all workers employed by Supplier in providing the Services.  Supplier will cause all 
subcontracts to include the provision that all sub-suppliers will pay not less than the prevailing rates to all workers employed by such sub-
suppliers in providing the Services.  The Services are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  Supplier will forfeit, 
as a penalty, not more than $200 for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker that is paid less than the prevailing rates as 
determined by the DIR for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for any portion of the Services provided by Supplier or any 
sub-supplier. The amount of this penalty will be determined pursuant to applicable law.  Such forfeiture amounts may be deducted from 
the amounts due under the Agreement.  If there are insufficient funds remaining in the amounts due under the Agreement, Supplier will 
be liable for any outstanding amount remaining due. Supplier will also pay to any worker who was paid less than the prevailing wage rate 
for the work or craft for which the worker was employed for any portion of the Services, for each day, or portion thereof, for which the 
worker was paid less than the specified prevailing per diem wage rate, an amount equal to the difference between the specified 
prevailing per diem wage rate and the amount which was paid to the worker.  Review of any civil wage and penalty assessment will be 
made pursuant to California Labor Code section 1742. 


ARTICLE 25 – FAIR WAGE/FAIR WORK 


If the Services will be performed at one or more UC Locations, do not solely involve furnishing Goods, and are not subject to extramural 
awards containing sponsor-mandated terms and conditions, Supplier warrants that it is in compliance with applicable federal, state and 
local working conditions requirements, including but not limited to those set forth in Articles 11, 12 and 14 herein, and that Supplier pays 
its employees performing the Services no less than the UC Fair Wage.  Supplier agrees UC may conduct such UC Fair Wage/Fair Work 
interim compliance audits as UC reasonably requests, as determined in UC’s sole discretion. Supplier agrees to post UC Fair Wage/Fair 
Work notices, in the form supplied by UC, in public areas (such as break rooms and lunch rooms) frequented by Supplier employees who 
perform Services. 


For Services that exceed $100,000 annually and are not subject to prevailing wage requirements, Supplier will, a) at Supplier’s expense, 
provide an annual independent audit performed by Supplier’s independent auditor or independent internal audit department 
(http://na.theiia.org/standards-guidance/topics/Pages/Independence-and-Objectivity.aspx) in compliance with UC’s required audit 
standards and procedures (http://www.ucop.edu/procurement-services/_files/fw-fw-annual-audit-standards-procedures.pdf), concerning 
Supplier’s compliance with this provision, and b) ensure that in the case of a UC interim audit, its auditor makes available to UC its UC Fair 
Wage/Fair Work work papers for the most recently audited time period. Supplier agrees to provide UC with a UC Fair Wage/Fair Work 
certification annually, in a form acceptable to UC, no later than ninety days after each one year anniversary of the agreement’s effective 
date, for the twelve months immediately preceding the anniversary date. 


ARTICLE 26 – MEDICAL DEVICES 


This Article applies when the Goods and/or Services involve UC purchasing or leasing one or more medical devices from Supplier, or when 
Supplier uses one or more medical devices in providing Goods and/or Services to UC.  


Medical Device as used herein will have the meaning provided by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) and means an 
instrument, apparatus, implement, machine, contrivance, implant, in vitro reagent, or other similar or related article, including a 
component part, or accessory which is: (i) recognized in the official National Formulary, or the United States Pharmacopoeia, or any 
supplement to them; (ii) intended for use in the diagnosis of disease or other conditions, or in the cure, mitigation, treatment, or 
prevention of disease, in man or other animals, or (iii) intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or other 
animals, and which does not achieve any of its primary intended purposes through chemical action within or on the body of man or other 
animals and which is not dependent upon being metabolized for the achievement of any of its primary intended purposes.  


Supplier warrants that prior to UC’s purchase or lease of any Goods and/or Services or Supplier’s use of any product in providing Goods 
and/or Services hereunder, Supplier will: (i) perform security testing and validation for each such Goods and/or Services or product, as 
applicable; (ii) perform a security scan by an anti-virus scanner, with up-to-date signatures, on any software embedded within any Goods 
and/or Services or products, as applicable, in order to verify that the software does  not contain any known viruses or malware; (iii) 
conduct a vulnerability scan encompassing all ports and fuzz testing; and (iv) provide UC with reports for (i) – (iii). Supplier warrants that all 
security testing performed by Supplier covers all issues noted in the “SANS WE TOP 25” and/or “OWASP Top 10” documentation.  


Throughout Supplier’s performance of this Agreement, Supplier will provide UC with reasonably up-to-date patches, firmware and security 
updates for all Goods and/or Services provided to UC, and other products used in the course of providing Services, as applicable. All such 


180/746







Page 10 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


patches and other security updates will be made available to UC within thirty (30) days of its commercial release or as otherwise 
recommended by Supplier or Supplier’s sub-supplier, whichever is earlier.  


Supplier warrants that all software and installation media not specifically required for any products used by Supplier or Goods and/or 
Services delivered to UC under this Agreement as well as files, scripts, messaging services and data will be removed from all such Goods 
or products following installation, and that all hardware ports and drives not required for use or operation of such Goods and/or Services 
or products will be disabled at time of installation.  In addition, Medical Devices must be configured so that only Supplier-approved 
applications will run.  


Supplier agrees that UC may take any and all actions that it, in its sole discretion, deems necessary to address, mitigate and/or rectify any 
real or potential security threat, and that no such action, to the extent such action does not compromise device certification, will impact, 
limit, reduce or negate Supplier’s warranties or any of Supplier’s other obligations hereunder.   
 
Supplier warrants that all of the Goods and/or Services provided to UC, and other products used in the course of providing such Goods 
and/or Services, meet and comply with all cyber-security guidance and similar standards promulgated by the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration and any other applicable regulatory body.  


If the Goods and/or Services entail provision or use of medical devices, Supplier will provide UC with a completed Manufacturer Disclosure 
Statement for Medical Device Security (MDS2) form for each such medical device before UC is obligated to purchase or lease such medical 
device or prior to Supplier’s use of such device(s) in its performance of Services.  If Supplier provides MDS2 form(s) to UC concurrently with 
its provision of Goods and/or Services, UC will have a reasonable period of time to review such MDS2 form(s), and if the MDS2 form(s) is 
unacceptable to UC, then UC in its sole discretion may return the Goods or terminate the Agreement with no further obligation to Supplier.   


ARTICLE 27 – FORCE MAJEURE 


Neither Party will be liable for delays due to causes beyond the Party’s control (including, but not restricted to, war, civil disturbances, 
earthquakes, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather). 


ARTICLE 28 – ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 


Except as to any payment due hereunder, Supplier may not assign or subcontract the Agreement without UC’s written approval.  In case 
such consent is given, the assignee or subcontractor will be subject to all of the terms of the Agreement. 


ARTICLE 29 – NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS 


Nothing in the Agreement is intended to make any person or entity that is not a signer to the Agreement a third-party beneficiary of any 
right created by this Agreement or by operation of law. 
 
ARTICLE 30 – OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
Any provision required to be included in a contract of this type by any applicable and valid federal, state or local law, ordinance, rule or 
regulations will be deemed to be incorporated herein. 


ARTICLE 31 – NOTICES 


A Party must send any notice required to be given under the Agreement by overnight delivery or by certified mail with return receipt 
requested, to the other Party’s representative at the address specified by such Party. 


ARTICLE 32 – SEVERABILITY 


If a provision of the Agreement becomes, or is determined to be, illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, that will not affect the legality, validity 
or enforceability of any other provision of the Agreement or of any portion of the invalidated provision that remains legal, valid, or 
enforceable. 


ARTICLE 33 – WAIVER 


Waiver or non-enforcement by either Party of a provision of the Agreement will not constitute a waiver or non-enforcement of any other 
provision or of any subsequent breach of the same or similar provision. 


181/746







Page 11 of 11 
Revised 11/29/17 
 


ARTICLE 34 – AMENDMENTS 


The Parties may make changes in the Goods and/or Services or otherwise amend the Agreement, but only by a writing signed by both 
Parties’ authorized representatives. 


ARTICLE 35 – GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 


California law will control the Agreement and any document to which it is appended.  The exclusive jurisdiction and venue for any and all 
actions arising out of or brought under the Agreement is in a state court of competent jurisdiction, situated in the county in the State of 
California in which the UC Location is located or, where the procurement covers more than one UC Location, the exclusive venue is 
Alameda County, California. 


ARTICLE 36 – SUPPLIER TERMS 


Any additional terms that Supplier includes in an order form or similar document will be of no force and effect, unless UC expressly 
agrees in writing to such terms. 


ARTICLE 37 – SURVIVAL CLAUSE 


Upon expiration or termination of the Agreement, the following provisions will survive: WARRANTIES; INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, 
COPYRIGHT AND PATENTS; INDEMNITY; USE OF UC NAMES AND TRADEMARKS; LIABILITY FOR UC-FURNISHED PROPERTY; COOPERATION; 
TERMS APPLICABLE TO THE FURNISHING OF GOODS; AUDIT REQUIREMENTS; PROHIBITION ON UNAUTHORIZED USE OR DISCLOSURE OF 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION; GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE, and, to the extent incorporated into the Agreement, the terms of the 
APPENDIX–DATA SECURITY and/or APPENDIX–BUSINESS ASSOCIATES. 


 


182/746







Page 1 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 
 


ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF APPLICATION 


 
 
 
 
Appendix – Data Security and Privacy 


 
A.   This Data Security and Privacy Appendix is designed to protect the University of California’s (UC) Non- 


public Information and UC Information Resources (defined below).  This Appendix describes the data 
security and privacy obligations of Supplier and its sub-suppliers that connect to UC Information Resources 
and/or gain access to Non-public Information (defined below). 


 
B.   Supplier agrees to be bound by the obligations set forth in this Appendix.   To the extent applicable, 


Supplier also agrees to impose, by written contract, the terms and conditions contained in this Appendix 
on any third party retained by Supplier to provide services for or on behalf of the UC. 


 
ARTICLE 2 – DEFINED TERMS 


 
A.   Breach.  Breach means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of Non-public Information 


that compromises the security, confidentiality or integrity of such information. 
 


B.   Non-public Information.  Supplier’s provision of Services under this Agreement may involve access to 
certain information that UC wishes to be protected from further use or disclosure.   Non-public Information 
shall be defined as: (i) Protected Information (defined below); (ii) information UC discloses, in writing, 
orally, or visually, to Supplier, or to which Supplier obtains access to in connection with the negotiation 
and performance of the Agreement, and which relates to UC, its students or employees, its third-party 
vendors or licensors, or any other individuals or entities that have made confidential information available 
to UC or to Supplier acting on UC’s behalf (collectively, “UC Users”), marked or otherwise identified as 
proprietary and/or confidential, or that, given the nature of the information, ought reasonably to be 
treated as proprietary and/or confidential; (iii) trade secrets; and (iv) business information. 


 
C.   Protected Information.    Protected Information shall be  defined  as  information  that  identifies or  is 


capable  of  identifying  a  specific  individual,  including  but  not  limited  to  personally-identifiable 
information, medical information other than Protected Health Information as defined under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the HIPAA regulations (including, but 
not limited to 45 CFR § 160.103), Cardholder Data (as currently defined by the Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard and Payment Application Standard Glossary of Terms, Abbreviations, and Acronyms), 
student records, or individual financial information that is subject to laws restricting the use and disclosure 
of such information, including but not limited to Article 1, Section 1 of the California Constitution; the 
California Information Practices Act (Civil Code § 1798 et seq.); the federal Gramm- Leach-Bliley Act (15 
U.S.C. §§ 6801(b) and 6805(b)(2)); the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. § 
1232g); the federal Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (15 USC  § 1601 et seq.) and the Fair Credit 
Reporting Act (15 USC § 1681 et seq.). 


 
D.   UC Information Resources. UC Information Resources shall be defined as those devices, networks and 


related infrastructure that UC owns, operates or has obtained for use to conduct UC business.  Devices 
include but are not limited to, UC-owned or managed storage, processing, communications devices and 
related infrastructure on which UC data is accessed, processed, stored, or communicated, and may include 
personally owned devices. Data includes, but is not limited to, Non-public Information, other UC- 


183/746







Page 2 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


created or managed business and research data, metadata, and credentials created by or issued on 
behalf of UC. 


 
E.   Work Product.  Work Product shall be defined as works-in-progress, notes, data, reference materials, 


memoranda, documentation and records in any way incorporating or reflecting any Non-public 
Information and all proprietary rights therein, including copyrights.  Work Product is subject to the 
Agreement’s Intellectual Property, Copyright and Patents Article.  For the avoidance of doubt, Work 
Product  shall  belong  exclusively  to  UC  and  unless  expressly  provided,  this  Appendix  shall  not  be 
construed as conferring on Supplier any patent, copyright, trademark, license right or trade secret 
owned or obtained by UC. 


 
ARTICLE 3 – ACCESS TO UC INFORMATION RESOURCES 


 
A.   In any circumstance when Supplier is provided access to UC Information Resources, it is solely Supplier’s 


responsibility to ensure that its access does not result in any access by unauthorized individuals to UC 
Information Resources. This includes conformance with minimum security standards in effect at the UC 
location(s) where access is provided.   Any Supplier technology and/or systems that gain access to UC 
Information Resources must contain, at a minimum, the elements in the Computer System Security 
Requirements set forth in Attachment 1 to this Appendix. No less than annually, Supplier shall evaluate 
and document whether Supplier’s practices accessing UC Information Resources comply with the terms 
of this Appendix.  Documentation of such evaluation shall be made available to UC upon UC’s request. 
Regardless of whether UC requests a copy of such evaluation, Supplier shall immediately inform UC of 
any findings of noncompliance and certify when findings of non-compliance have been addressed. 


B.   Supplier shall limit the examination of UC information to the least invasive degree of inspection required 
to provide the Goods and/or Services. In the event Goods and/or Services include the inspection of a 
specific threat to or anomaly of UC’s Information Resources, Supplier shall limit such inspection in 
accordance with the principle of least perusal. Supplier will notify UC immediately upon such events. 


C.   W i t h U C ’ s p r i o r w r i t t e n c o n s e n t , S u p p l i e r may alter a UC Information Resource to the extent such 
alteration is specifically required for Supplier to provide Goods and/or Services to UC pursuant to the 
Agreement. 


 
 


ARTICLE 4 – SECURITY PATCHES AND UPDATES 
 


Supplier is required to perform patches and updates in connection with the Goods and/or Services provided to 
UC as follows: 


 
A.   Devices and Software Provided Directly to UC. Supplier will make available to UC any patches and other 


updates to system security software or firmware utilized by Supplier in its provision of Goods and/or 
Services no later than the earlier of thirty (30) days of its commercial release or as recommended by 
Supplier or Supplier’s sub-supplier. 


B.   Supplier’s Internal Systems and Services Necessary for Supplier to Fulfill its Obligations to UC. Supplier 
will  regularly  apply  security  patches  and  functional  updates  to  its  internal  systems  software  and 
firmware. 


184/746







Page 3 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


ARTICLE  5  –   COMPLIANCE  WITH  APPLICABLE  LAWS,  FAIR  INFORMATION  PRACTICE  PRINCIPLES  AND  UC 
POLICIES 


 
A. A.   Supplier agrees to comply with all applicable state, federal and international laws, as well as industry 


best practices, governing the collection, access, use, disclosure, safeguarding and destruction of Protected 
Information. For Internet facing websites, Supplier shall have a privacy policy, and a prominently-posted 
privacy statement. If collecting Protected Information electronically from individuals on behalf of UC, 
Supplier’s prominently-posted privacy statement will be similar to those used by UC (UC’s sample Privacy 
Statement for websites is available at http://www.ucop.edu/information-technology-services/policies/it-
policies-and-guidelines/records-mgmt-and-privacy/files/sampleprivacystatement.doc). Supplier also 
agrees, to the extent applicable, to comply with UC’s Business and Finance Bulletin IS-2, Inventory, 
Classification, and Release of UC Electronic Information (https://policy.ucop.edu/doc/7020447/BFB-IS-2), 
and IS-3, Electronic Information Security (https://policy.ucop.edu/doc/7000543/BFB-IS-3).  


B.   Supplier shall make available to UC all products, systems, and documents necessary to allow UC to audit 
Supplier’s compliance with the terms of this Article 5. UC shall have the right to audit Supplier’s compliance 
with its Information Security Plan and the obligations set forth in Attachment 1. 


C.   UC reserves the right to monitor Supplier’s connectivity to UC Information Resources while Supplier 
accesses Non-public Information. 


 
ARTICLE 6 – PROHIBITION ON UNAUTHORIZED USE OR DISCLOSURE OF NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION 


 
Supplier agrees to hold UC’s Non-public Information, and any information derived from such information, in 
strictest confidence. Supplier will not access, use or disclose Non-public Information other than to carry out the 
purposes for which UC disclosed the Non-public Information to Supplier, except as permitted or required by 
applicable law, or as otherwise authorized in writing by UC. For avoidance of doubt, this provision prohibits 
Supplier  from  using  for  its  own  benefit  Non-public  Information  or  any  information  derived  from  such 
information. If required by a court of competent jurisdiction or an administrative body to disclose Non-public 
Information, Supplier will notify UC in writing immediately upon receiving notice of such requirement and prior 
to any such disclosure, to give UC an opportunity to oppose or otherwise respond to such disclosure (unless 
prohibited by law from doing so). Supplier’s transmission, transportation or storage of Non-public Information 
outside the United States, or access of Non-public Information from outside the United States, is prohibited except 
on prior written authorization by UC. 


 
ARTICLE 7 – SAFEGUARD STANDARD 


 
Supplier agrees to protect the privacy and security of Non-public Information according to all applicable laws 
and  regulations,  by  commercially-acceptable  standards,  and  no  less  rigorously  than  it  protects  its  own 
confidential information, but in no case less than reasonable care. Supplier will implement, maintain and use 
appropriate administrative, technical and physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity 
and availability of the Non-public Information. All Protected Information stored on portable devices or media 
must be encrypted in accordance with the Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) Publication 140-2. 
Supplier will ensure that such security measures are regularly reviewed and revised to address evolving threats 
and vulnerabilities while Supplier has responsibility for the Non-public Information under the terms of this 


185/746







Page 4 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


Appendix. Prior to agreeing to the terms of this Appendix, and periodically thereafter (no more frequently than 
annually) at UC’s request, Supplier will provide assurance, in the form of a third-party audit report or other 
documentation acceptable to UC, such as SOC2 Type II, demonstrating that appropriate information security 
safeguards and controls are in place. 


 
ARTICLE 8 – INFORMATION SECURITY PLAN 


 
A.  Supplier acknowledges that UC is required to comply with information security standards for the protection 


of Protected Information as required by law, regulation and regulatory guidance, as well as UC’s internal 
security program for information and systems protection. 


 
B.   Supplier will establish, maintain and comply with an information security plan (“Information Security Plan”), 


which will contain, at a minimum, such elements as those set forth in Attachment 1 to this Appendix. 
 


C.   Supplier’s Information Security Plan will be designed to: 
i. Ensure the security, integrity and confidentiality of Non-public Information; 


ii. Protect  against  any  anticipated  threats  or  hazards  to  the  security  or  integrity  of  such 
information; 


iii. Protect against unauthorized access to or use of such information that could result in harm or 
inconvenience to the person that is the subject of such information; 


iv. Reduce risks associated with Supplier having access to UC Information Resources; and 
v. Comply with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements for data protection. 


 
D.   On at least an annual basis, Supplier will review its Information Security Plan, update and revise it as 


needed, and submit it to UC upon request.  At UC’s request, Supplier will make modifications to its 
Information Security Plan or to the procedures and practices thereunder to conform to UC’s security 
requirements as they exist from time to time.   If there are any significant modifications to Supplier’s 
Information Security Plan, Supplier will notify UC within 72 hours. 


 
ARTICLE 9 – RETURN OR DESTRUCTION OF NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION 


 
Within 30 days of the termination, cancellation, expiration or other conclusion of this Appendix, Supplier will 
return  the  Non-public  Information to  UC  unless UC  requests  in writing that such data  be  destroyed. This 
provision will also apply to all Non-public Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
Supplier. Such destruction will be accomplished by “purging” or “physical destruction,” in accordance with National 
Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication 800-88. Supplier will certify in writing to UC that 
such return or destruction has been completed. 


 
If Supplier believes that return or destruction of the Non-public Information is technically impossible or impractical, 
Supplier must provide UC with a written statement of the reason that return or destruction by Supplier is 
technically impossible or impractical.  If UC determines that return or destruction is technically impossible or 
impractical, Supplier will continue to protect the Non-public Information in accordance with the terms of this 
Appendix. 


 
ARTICLE 10 – NOTIFICATION OF CORRESPONDENCE CONCERNING NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION 


186/746







Page 5 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 
 
 


Supplier agrees to notify UC immediately, both orally and in writing, but in no event more than two (2) business 
days after Supplier receives correspondence or a complaint regarding Non-public Information, including but not 
limited to, correspondence or a complaint that originates from a regulatory agency or an individual. 


 
ARTICLE 11 – BREACHES OF NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION 


 
A.   Reporting of Breach: Supplier will report any confirmed or suspected Breach to UC immediately upon 


discovery, both orally and in writing, but in no event more than two (2) business days after Supplier 
reasonably believes a Breach has or may have occurred. Supplier’s report will identify: (i) the nature of the 
unauthorized access, use or disclosure, (ii) the Non-public Information accessed, used or disclosed, (iii) the 
person(s) who accessed, used, disclosed and/or received Non-public Information (if known), (iv) what 
Supplier has done or will do to mitigate any deleterious effect of the unauthorized access, use or disclosure, 
and (v) what corrective action Supplier has taken or will take to prevent future unauthorized access, use 
or disclosure. Supplier will provide such other information, including a written report, as reasonably  
requested  by  UC.  In  the  event  of  a  suspected Breach,  Supplier  will  keep  UC  informed regularly of 
the progress of its investigation until the uncertainty is resolved. 


 
B.   Coordination of Breach Response Activities: Supplier will fully cooperate with UC’s investigation of any 


Breach involving Supplier and/or the Services, including but not limited to making witnesses and 
documents available immediately upon Supplier’s reporting of the Breach.  Supplier’s full cooperation 
will include but not be limited to Supplier: 


i. Immediately preserving any potential forensic evidence relating to the Breach, and remedying 
the Breach as quickly as circumstances permit 


ii. Promptly (within 2 business days) designating a contact person to whom UC will direct inquiries, 
and who will communicate Supplier responses to UC inquiries; 


iii. As  rapidly  as  circumstances  permit,  applying  appropriate  resources  to  remedy  the  Breach 
condition, investigate, document, restore UC service(s) as directed by UC, and undertake 
appropriate response activities; 


iv. Providing  status  reports  to  UC  on  Breach  response  activities,  either  on  a  daily  basis  or  a 
frequency approved by UC; 


v. Coordinating all media, law enforcement, or other Breach notifications with UC in advance of 
such notification(s), unless expressly prohibited by law; and 


vi.       Ensuring that knowledgeable Supplier staff is available on short notice, if needed, to participate 
in UC-initiated meetings and/or conference calls regarding the Breach. 


 
C.   Grounds for Termination.  Any Breach may be grounds for immediate termination of the Agreement by 


UC. 
 


D.   Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings.   Supplier will make itself and any employees, 
subcontractors, or agents assisting Supplier in the performance of its obligations available to UC at no cost  
to  UC  to  testify  as  witnesses,  or  otherwise,  in  the  event  of  a  Breach  or  other  unauthorized 
disclosure of Non-public Information caused by Supplier that results in litigation, governmental 
investigations, or administrative proceedings against UC, its directors, officers, agents or employees based 
upon a claimed violation of laws relating to security and privacy or arising out of this Appendix. 


187/746







Page 6 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


ARTICLE 12 – ATTORNEY'S FEES 
 


In any action brought by a party to enforce the terms of this Appendix, the prevailing party will be entitled to 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs, including the reasonable value of any services provided by in-house 
counsel. The reasonable value of services provided by in-house counsel will be calculated by applying an hourly 
rate commensurate with prevailing market rates charged by attorneys in private practice for such services. 


 
ARTICLE 13 –  INDEMNITY 


 
The Agreement includes an Indemnity provision, but for the avoidance of doubt regarding a Breach involving 
Protected Information, Supplier’s indemnification obligations under the Agreement will include the following 
fees and costs which arise as a result of Supplier’s breach of this Appendix, negligent acts or omissions, or willful 
misconduct:   any and all costs associated with notification to individuals or remedial measures offered to 
individuals, whether or not required by law, including but not limited to costs of notification of individuals, 
establishment and operation of call center(s), credit monitoring and/or identity restoration services; time of UC 
personnel responding to Breach; fees and costs incurred in litigation; the cost of external investigations; civil or 
criminal penalties levied against UC; civil judgments entered against UC; attorney’s fees, and court costs. 


 
ARTICLE 14 – ADDITIONAL INSURANCE 


 
In addition to the insurance required under the Agreement, Supplier at its sole cost and expense will obtain, 
keep in force, and maintain an insurance policy (or policies) that provides coverage for privacy and data security 
breaches.   This specific type of insurance is typically referred to as Privacy, Technology and Data Security 
Liability, Cyber Liability, or Technology Professional Liability.  In some cases, Professional Liability policies may 
include some coverage for privacy and/or data breaches.  Regardless of the type of policy in place, it needs to 
include coverage for reasonable costs in investigating and responding to privacy and/or data breaches with the 
following minimum limits unless UC specifies otherwise: $1,000,000 Each Occurrence and $5,000,000 Aggregate. 


188/746







Page 7 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


FIRST AMENDMENT TO APPENDIX – DATA SECURITY AND PRIVACY 
SAFEGUARD STANDARD FOR PAYMENT CARD DATA (IF APPLICABLE) 


 
A.   Supplier agrees that it is responsible for the security of Cardholder Data (as currently defined by the 


Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard and Payment Application Standard Glossary of Terms, 
Abbreviations, and Acronyms) that it possesses (if any), including the functions relating to storing, 
processing and transmitting Cardholder Data.  In this regard, Supplier represents and warrants that it 
will implement and maintain certification of Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) compliance standards regarding 
data security, and that it will undergo independent third party quarterly system scans that audit for 
all known methods hackers use to access private information and vulnerabilities that would allow  
malicious  software  (e.g.,  viruses  and  worms)  to  gain  access  to  or  disrupt  UC  Information Resources. 
These requirements, which are incorporated herein, can be found at 
https://www.pcisecuritystandards.org/document_library. Supplier agrees to provide at least annually, and 
from time to time at the written request of UC, current evidence (in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to UC) of compliance with these data security standards, which has been properly certified 
by an authority recognized by the payment card industry for that purpose. 


 
B.   In connection with credit card transactions processed for UC, Supplier will provide reasonable care and 


efforts to detect fraudulent payment card activity.  In performing the Services, Supplier will comply with 
all applicable rules and requirements, including security rules and requirements, of UC’s financial 
institutions, including its acquiring bank, the major payment card associations and payment card 
companies.  If during the term of an Agreement with UC, Supplier undergoes, or has reason to believe 
that it will undergo, an adverse change in its certification or compliance status with the PCI standards 
and/or   other   material   payment   card   industry   standards,   it   will   promptly   notify   UC   of   such 
circumstances. 


 
C.   Supplier further represents and warrants that software applications it provides for the purpose of 


performing  Services  related  to  processing  payments,  particularly  credit  card  payments,  are 
developed in accordance with all applicable PCI standards, and are in compliance with all applicable 
PCI standards, including but not limited to Payment Application Data Security Standards (PA-DSS), 
Point to Point Encryption Solution Requirements (P2PE) including approved card readers or Point of 
Interaction (POI). As verification of this, Supplier agrees to provide at least annually, and from time 
to time upon written request of UC, current evidence (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory 
to UC) that any such application it provides is certified as complying with these standards and agrees 
to continue to maintain that certification as may be required. 


 
D.   Supplier will immediately notify UC if it learns that it is no longer PCI compliant under one of the 


standards identified above, or if any software applications or encryption solutions are no longer PCI 
compliant. 


189/746







Page 8 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


ATTACHMENT 1 
 


A.   Supplier  will  develop,  implement,  and maintain  a  comprehensive  Information  Security  Plan that  is 
written in one or more readily accessible parts and contains administrative, technical, and physical 
safeguards. The safeguards contained in such program must be consistent with the safeguards for 
protection of Protected Information and information of a similar character set forth in any state or federal 
regulations by which the person who owns or licenses such information may be regulated. 


 
B.   Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, every comprehensive Information Security Plan will 


include, but not be limited to: 
 


i. Designating one or more employees to maintain the comprehensive Information Security Plan; 
 


ii. Identifying  and  assessing  internal  and  external  risks  to  the  security,  confidentiality,  and/or 
integrity of any electronic, paper or other records containing Protected Information and of UC 
Information Resources, and evaluating and improving, where necessary, the effectiveness of the 
current safeguards for limiting such risks, including but not limited to: 


a. Ongoing employee (including temporary and contract employee) training; 
b. Employee compliance with policies and procedures; and 
c. Means for detecting and preventing security system failures. 


 
iii. Developing security policies for employees relating to the storage, access and transportation of 


records containing Protected Information outside of business premises. 
 


iv. Imposing disciplinary measures for violations of the comprehensive Information Security Plan 
rules. 


 
v. Preventing  terminated  employees  from  accessing  records  containing  Protected  Information 


and/or UC Information Resources. 
 


vi. Overseeing service providers, by: 
a. Taking  reasonable  steps  to  select  and  retain  third-party  service  providers  that  are 


capable of maintaining appropriate security measures to protect such Protected 
Information and UC Information Resources consistent with all applicable laws and 
regulations; and 


b. Requiring such third-party service providers by contract to implement and maintain 
such appropriate security measures for Protected Information. 


 
vii.       Placing reasonable restrictions upon physical access to records containing Protected Information 


and UC Information Resources and requiring storage of such records and data in locked facilities, 
storage areas or containers. 


 
viii. Restrict physical access to any network or data centers that may have access to Protected 


Information or UC Information Resources. 


190/746







Page 9 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 


ix. Requiring regular monitoring to ensure that the comprehensive Information Security Plan is 
operating in a manner reasonably calculated to prevent unauthorized access to or unauthorized 
use of Protected Information and UC Information Resources; and upgrading information 
safeguards as necessary to limit risks. 


 
x. Reviewing the scope of the security measures at least annually or whenever there is a material 


change in business practices that may reasonably implicate the security or integrity of records 
containing Protected Information and of UC Information Resources. 


 
xi. Documenting responsive actions taken in connection with any incident involving a Breach, and 


mandating post-incident review of events and actions taken, if any, to make changes in business 
practices relating to protection of Protected Information and UC Information Resources. 


 
Computer System Security Requirements 


 
To the extent that Supplier electronically stores or transmits Protected Information or has access to any UC 
Information Resources, it will include in its written, comprehensive Information Security Plan the establishment 
and  maintenance  of  a  security  system  covering  its  computers,  including  any  wireless  system,  that,  at  a 
minimum, and to the extent technically feasible, will have the following elements: 


 
A.   Secure user authentication protocols including: 


i. Control of user IDs and other identifiers; 
ii. A secure method of assigning and selecting passwords, or use of unique identifier technologies, 


such as biometrics or token devices; 
iii. Control of data security passwords to ensure that such passwords are kept in a location and/or 


format that does not compromise the security of the data they protect; 
iv. Restricting access to active users and active user accounts only; and 
v. Blocking access to user identification after multiple unsuccessful attempts to gain access or the 


limitation placed on access for the particular system. 
vi. Periodic review of user access, access rights and audit of user accounts. 


 
B.   Secure access control measures that: 


i. Restrict access to records and files containing Protected Information and systems that may have 
access to UC Information Resources to those who need such information to perform their job 
duties; and 


ii. Assign unique identifications plus passwords, which are not vendor supplied default passwords, 
to each person with computer access, which are reasonably designed to maintain the integrity of 
the security of the access controls. 


 
C.   Encryption of all transmitted records and files containing Protected Information. 


 
D.   Adequate  security  of  all  networks  that  connect  to  UC  Information  Resources  or  access  Protected 


Information, including wireless networks. 
 


E.   Reasonable monitoring of systems, for unauthorized use of or access to Protected Information and UC 
Information Resources. 


191/746







Page 10 of 10 
Revised 5/24/18 


 
 
 
 
 


F. Encryption of all Protected Information stored on Supplier devices, including laptops or other portable 
storage devices. 


 
G.   For files containing Protected Information on a system that is connected to the Internet or that may have 


access to UC Information Resources, reasonably up-to-date firewall, router and switch protection and 
operating system security patches, reasonably designed to maintain the integrity of the Protected 
Information. 


 
H.   Reasonably up-to-date versions of system security agent software, including intrusion detection systems, which 


must include malware protection and reasonably up-to-date patches and virus definitions, or a version of such 
software that can still be supported with up-to-date patches and virus definitions, and is set to receive the most 
current security updates on a regular basis. 


 
I. Education and  training  of employees on the  proper  use  of the computer security  system and the 


importance of Protected Information and network security. 
 


With reasonable notice to Supplier, UC may require additional security measures which may be identified in 
additional guidance, contracts, communications or requirements. 


192/746







Educational Services: CIA: AVID Contract 2018-19


Separator Page


193/746







                                         AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of 2018-19 AVID Contract  
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 2018-19 Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) contract. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Advancement Via Individual Determination, or AVID, is a college and career focused, internationally 
renowned program that focuses on closing the achievement gap. AVID aims to support students who 
are the first in their family to attend college, socioeconomically disadvantaged, from a minority 
subgroup, and/or face other obstacles in achieving a post-secondary opportunity. Using research-
based instructional strategies, AVID helps students gain the academic skills necessary to be successful 
in AP/advanced high school courses and ultimately in college.  
 
At SCCS, we have implemented the AVID program in all of our comprehensive secondary schools. 
Approximately 80 middle school students and 300 high school students are in the AVID program. High 
school AVID students are expected to participate in at least one AP class, and are encouraged to apply 
to four-year colleges/universities. As a result of having AVID in our district, our AVID students are 
accessing and receiving needed support to be successful in Advanced Placement classes as well as in 
attaining four-year college eligibility. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$19,495 ($3,899 AVID Membership Fee per school) 
$2,675    ($535 AVID Weekly subscription per school) 
$4,000 AVID District Leadership (District Director Training – 2 years required – 2018-19 is year two) 
$26,170 = Total Annual Contract Cost – Secondary Title I (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools’ students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


Prepared by Julia Hodges, Director of Secondary Curriculum, Intervention, and Assessments 


194/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


1 


AVID Center Quote 
 
 


Quote #: Q-01471   AVID Representative: Robyn Grand 


Santa Cruz City Sch District    Phone: 858.380.4717 


405 Old San Jose Rd 


Soquel, CA 95073 


 Email: rgrand@avid.org 


Quote Prepared For:     


Santa Cruz City High School District    


 


   
    
Branciforte Middle School     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID Membership Fees Secondary $3,899.00 $0.00 $3,899.00 
1 AVID Weekly Secondary $550.00 $0.00 $535.00 


Branciforte Middle School SUBTOTAL: $4,434.00 


 


    
Harbor High School     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID Membership Fees Secondary $3,899.00 $0.00 $3,899.00 
1 AVID Weekly Secondary $550.00 $0.00 $535.00 


Harbor High School SUBTOTAL: $4,434.00 


 


    
Mission Hill Middle School     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID Membership Fees Secondary $3,899.00 $0.00 $3,899.00 
1 AVID Weekly Secondary $550.00 $0.00 $535.00 


Mission Hill Middle School SUBTOTAL: $4,434.00 


 


    
Santa Cruz High School     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID Membership Fees Secondary $3,899.00 $0.00 $3,899.00 
1 AVID Weekly Secondary $550.00 $0.00 $535.00 


Santa Cruz High School SUBTOTAL: $4,434.00 


 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


195/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


2 


    
Soquel High School     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID Membership Fees Secondary $3,899.00 $0.00 $3,899.00 
1 AVID Weekly Secondary $550.00 $0.00 $535.00 


Soquel High School SUBTOTAL: $4,434.00 


 


    
District Products     


QTY PRODUCT NAME UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT EXTENDED PRICE 
     


1 AVID District Leadership Year 2 $6,000.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 
District Products SUBTOTAL: $4,000.00 


 


 TOTAL: $26,170.00 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
Additional Comments: 


N/A 


  


  


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


196/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


3 


 


AVID Standard Terms and Conditions 


This AVID College Readiness System Services and Products Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between AVID 


Center, a California non-profit corporation (“AVID Center”) and Santa Cruz City High School District (“Client”). 


Article I. Definitions 


1.1. AVID College Readiness System Services and 


Products Agreement (“Agreement”): The Agreement 


consisting of these AVID Standard Terms and Conditions, 


Quote(s), Exhibit(s), and any other applicable, incorporated 


addenda. 


1.2. AVID College Readiness System: The AVID College 


Readiness System consists of AVID Elementary, AVID 


Secondary, and AVID for Higher Education. Client may choose 


to implement (order) one or more of these components of the 


AVID College Readiness System as indicated on Quote(s). 


(a) AVID Elementary is a foundational component for 


elementary sites (grades K–8), designed as an embedded, 


sequential academic skills resource. It is intended for non-


elective, multi-subject, multi-ability level classrooms. 


(b) AVID Secondary consists of the AVID Elective class as the 


core and content area teachers using AVID strategies as 


school-wide implementation. 


(c) AVID for Higher Education works with postsecondary 


institutions to support students with the goal of increasing 


academic success, persistence and completion rates. 


1.3. AVID Materials: Any material, in any medium, 


printed or electronic, produced by AVID Center as a resource 


for Client’s implementation of AVID Elementary, AVID 


Secondary, or AVID for Higher Education.  


1.4. AVID Member Site: Any Client that implements 


(orders membership corresponding to) AVID Elementary 


and/or AVID Secondary, or AVID for Higher Education. 


1.5. AVID Methodologies: Those methodologies that, 


when combined, form the core of AVID Elementary, AVID 


Secondary, or AVID for Higher Education. 


1.6. AVID Programs: Other AVID offerings that are 


supplementary to AVID Elementary, AVID Secondary, or AVID 


for Higher Education (with the corresponding program 


indicated in parentheses in this Paragraph). Some of the 


specific AVID Programs are further defined in a corresponding 


Exhibit. This list is subject to change without notice: AVID Excel 


(AVID Secondary); AVID Summer Bridge (AVID Secondary); 


AVID Weekly (versions for each: AVID Elementary, AVID 


Secondary, AVID for Higher Education. AVID Elementary and 


AVID for Higher Education subscriptions are included as part 


of membership; AVID Secondary subscriptions are included in 


Middle School and High School Libraries, if so ordered by 


Client). 


1.7. Service and Product Exhibits: The language in this 


Agreement that relate specifically to a corresponding service 


or product ordered on the Quote(s). 


1.8. Payment Terms:  The terms of when payment is due, 


as listed in this Agreement.  


1.9. Quote:  The order document that is fully incorporated 


into this Agreement. 


Article II. Period of Agreement 


2.1. Term:  The Term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall be 


July 01, 2018 to June 30, 2019 unless earlier terminated as 


provided herein.   


Article III. Licenses and Proprietary Rights 


3.1. Copyright License: Subject to Client’s performance 


of all the provisions of this Agreement, AVID Center hereby 


grants to Client a non-transferable license, without the right to 


sublicense, to distribute, reproduce, and display the AVID 


Materials and AVID Methodologies solely to implement AVID 


Elementary and/or AVID Secondary, or AVID for Higher 


Education as ordered on Quote(s), during the period listed in 


the corresponding Exhibit, and for no other purpose.   


(a) Client may distribute, reproduce, and display the AVID 


Materials only to appropriate staff and students of the 


AVID Member Sites listed in Quote(s), for the sole purpose 


of implementing the specified AVID service or product at 


the AVID Member Sites and for no other purpose. Client 


will not permit any of the AVID Materials or AVID 


Methodologies to be used by anyone other than the AVID 


Member Sites.  


(b) Further, Client will only distribute, display, photocopy, 


reproduce or otherwise duplicate, those AVID Materials 


and AVID Methodologies corresponding to the specific 


AVID service or product listed for each AVID Member Site 


in Quote(s).  [For example, if Quote(s) specifies both AVID 


Elementary and AVID Secondary membership at ABC 


School Site, but only specifies AVID Elementary 


membership at XYZ School Site, Client will not distribute, 


display, photocopy, reproduce, duplicate, or otherwise 


make available the AVID Secondary Materials and 


Methodologies to XYZ School Site.]  


(c) Client and any AVID Member Sites will not distribute, 


display, photocopy, reproduce or otherwise duplicate, all 


or any part of the AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies 


to anyone other than the AVID Member Sites without AVID 


Center’s prior written consent.  


(d) Should Client wish to make any of the AVID Materials or 


AVID Methodologies accessible to its AVID Member Sites 


through the Internet, it will do so on a password-protected 


website, and it will ensure that only appropriate staff and 


students of the AVID Member Sites are allowed access to 


the website.   


(e) Should Client wish to make electronic versions of any of 


the AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies available for 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


197/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


4 


download by its AVID Member Sites, it will ensure that only 


appropriate staff and students of the AVID Member Sites 


are allowed access to those materials, and it will require 


that those staff and students agree not to distribute, 


reproduce, display, or transfer those materials to anyone 


other than appropriate staff and students of the AVID 


Member Sites before downloading those materials.   


(f) Client and any AVID Member Sites shall not modify or 


otherwise alter the AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies 


in any way, or create or distribute any derivative works of 


the AVID Methodologies or the AVID Materials in any way. 


Client also agrees not to use or adopt the AVID 


Methodologies or AVID Materials with respect to any 


educational or other program except solely to implement 


AVID under the provisions of this Agreement.   


(g) Client and any AVID Member Sites acknowledge that they 


do not have the right to sell, sublicense, transfer, or lease 


any of the AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies to any 


person or entity. 


3.2. Trademark License:  Subject to Client’s performance 


of all the provisions of this Agreement, AVID Center hereby 


grants to Client during the Term a non-exclusive, non-


transferable, indivisible license, without the right to 


sublicense, to use the AVID  trademarks (collectively “AVID 


Trademarks”), (a) only as they are incorporated in the AVID 


Materials, and (b) only on advertising flyers and written 


promotional materials created by Client or the AVID Member 


Sites listed in Quote(s) in order to promote and implement 


AVID at those AVID Member Sites. Client agrees that it will use 


its best efforts to use the AVID Trademarks in a professional 


manner in order to preserve and enhance AVID Center’s 


substantial goodwill associated with the AVID Trademarks.  


Client agrees that it or its AVID Member Sites will not use any 


of the AVID Trademarks as a corporate or business entity 


name, as a fictitious business name or as a trade name, and 


will not use any name in such capacity that is confusingly 


similar to the AVID Trademarks. Client further acknowledges 


and agrees that it and its AVID Member Sites cannot modify or 


otherwise alter any of the AVID Trademarks or use any other 


designs or logos in conjunction with its use of the AVID 


Trademarks. Client cannot use the AVID Trademarks for any 


educational or other program other than to implement AVID at 


the Member Sites listed in Quote(s) consistent with the above 


license. Client and its AVID Member Sites will always use the 


proprietary symbol ® immediately adjacent to the respective 


AVID Trademarks as noted above with respect to their use of 


the AVID Trademarks. If Client or its Member Sites desire to 


use or place the AVID Trademarks on any products, things, or 


other merchandising items in order to promote AVID, it must 


first seek and obtain permission from AVID Center by 


completing AVID Center’s Request to Use AVID Center 


Trademark Form and complying with any of AVID Center’s 


conditions for approval. Any such additional uses of the AVID 


Trademarks approved by AVID Center shall also be subject to 


the terms of this license and the other provisions of this Article 


III.   


3.3. Rights Reserved:  Notwithstanding anything to the 


contrary in this Agreement, all rights not specifically granted 


in this Agreement to Client shall be reserved and remain 


always with AVID Center. 


3.4. Proprietary Rights:  The parties agree that AVID 


Center shall solely own and have exclusive worldwide right, 


title and interest in and to the AVID Trademarks, AVID 


Materials and AVID Methodologies, to all modifications, 


enhancements and derivative works thereof, and to all United 


States and worldwide trademarks, service marks, trade 


names, trade dress, logos, copyrights, rights of authorship, 


moral rights, patents, know-how, trade secrets and all other 


intellectual and industrial property rights related thereto 


(“Intellectual Property Rights”). Client shall not challenge, 


contest or otherwise impair AVID Center’s ownership of the 


AVID Trademarks, AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies, or 


any of AVID Center’s applications or registrations thereof, or 


the validity or enforceability of AVID Center’s Intellectual 


Property Rights related thereto. Client also agrees not to 


submit any applications or otherwise attempt to register for 


itself or others any of the AVID Trademarks, AVID Materials or 


AVID Methodologies. 


3.5. Enforcement:  The parties agree that except to the 


limited extent expressly set forth in Paragraphs 3.1 and 3.2 


above, AVID Center will be irreparably harmed and money 


damages would be inadequate compensation to AVID Center 


in the event Client breaches any material provision of Article 


III. Accordingly, all of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 


specifically enforceable by injunctive and other relief against 


Client without the requirement to post a bond, in addition to 


any other remedies available to AVID Center, for Client’s 


breach of any provision of this Agreement. 


3.6. Proprietary Notices:  Client agrees not to remove, 


alter or otherwise render illegible any trademark, copyright or 


other proprietary right notices or other identifying marks from 


the AVID Materials or any permitted copies thereof. 


3.7. Infringement:  Client agrees to notify AVID Center of 


any conduct or actions on the part of third parties of which it 


becomes aware that might be deemed an infringement or 


other violation of AVID Center’s rights in the AVID Trademarks, 


AVID Materials or AVID Methodologies.  In such an event, AVID 


Center shall have the sole right to bring an action for 


infringement or other appropriate action with respect thereto. 


AVID Center shall exclusively control the prosecution and 


settlement of any such action.  Client agrees to fully cooperate 


with AVID Center in any such action and provide AVID Center 


with all information and assistance reasonably requested by 


AVID Center. 


3.8. Compliance with Laws:  Client agrees that the AVID 


Trademarks, AVID Materials and AVID Methodologies will be 


used in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations 


and in compliance with any regulatory or governmental 


agency that has jurisdiction over Client and its educational 


programs.  


3.9. Data Collection: On at least an annual basis, 


according to the timeline established by AVID Center, Client 


shall collect data pertaining to student demographics, course 


enrollment, site characteristics and related outcomes 


specified by AVID Center and provide that data to AVID Center 


via their secure web portal.  Client shall also submit such 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


198/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


5 


individual student academic and disciplinary data concerning 


AVID participants as AVID Center may specify. AVID Center’s 


data collection process conforms to the privacy protections 


specified in the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


Act (FERPA).  AVID Center will maintain as confidential any 


personally identifiable student information or information that 


is privileged or confidential under federal or state law and that 


is conspicuously marked by Client as “privileged” or 


“confidential” before Client delivers to AVID Center.  AVID 


Center will destroy all individual student data when it is no 


longer needed for reporting purposes. Client reserves the right 


to withhold, revise, and/or edit certain confidential data such 


as student names, Social Security numbers and any other 


information the disclosure of which would violate FERPA. AVID 


Center agrees not to use any of the data collected under this 


section in a manner that would violate, or cause Client to 


violate, any applicable provision of FERPA.   


3.10. Sole Source: AVID Center affirms that it is the sole 


source of the AVID College Readiness System to which 


competition may be precluded due to the existence of a 


patent, copyright, secret process, or monopoly. AVID Center’s 


sole source development includes intellectual property—


copyrights and trademarks—in the AVID Materials, licensing 


for reproduction of student activity sheets associated with the 


curriculum, technical assistance, training to teachers and 


administrators, and coordination of the AVID College 


Readiness System through consultation, data collection, and 


certification processes. 


Article IV. Compensation 


4.1. Quotes—Invoicing and Payment: AVID Center will 


invoice Client upon execution of this Agreement and payment 


is due net 30. Should Client issue Purchase Order(s), the terms 


and conditions of this Agreement shall control for all Purchase 


Orders; no terms and conditions on Purchase Orders will apply 


to any part of this Agreement. 


Article V. Status of Parties 


5.1. Independent Contractors:  AVID Center and Client 


are independent contractors and their relationship is that of a 


licensor and licensee.  This Agreement is not intended to 


create a relationship of employment, agency, partnership, 


joint venture, or similar arrangement between the parties. 


Neither party shall have any power or authority to bind or 


commit the other party in any respect, contractually or 


otherwise.  In no event shall either party, or any of its 


respective officers, agents, or employees, be considered the 


officers, agents, or employees of the other party.  


Article VI. Authority 


6.1. AVID Center Authority:  AVID Center represents that 


the person signing this Agreement is authorized to enter into 


this Agreement on behalf of the non-profit AVID Center and to 


bind AVID Center to perform all of its obligations under this 


Agreement.   


6.2. Client Authority:  Client represents that it has 


obtained all necessary approvals and taken all necessary 


steps to enter into this Agreement. The person signing on 


behalf of Client represents that he or she has the authority to 


enter into this Agreement on behalf of Client and to bind Client 


to perform all of its obligations under this Agreement. 


Article VII. Termination 


7.1. Termination for Cause:  Subject to the last sentence 


of this Paragraph 7.1, either party has the right to terminate 


this Agreement at any time if the other party is in material 


breach of any warranty, term, condition or covenant of this 


Agreement and (i) fails to cure that breach within thirty (30) 


days of receiving notice from the non-breaching party which 


specifies such material breach and demands cure thereof, or 


(ii) fails to provide the non-breaching party assurance that the 


breach will be cured within a longer period of time which is 


acceptable to the non-breaching party. In the case of a breach 


by Client that is not cured as described above, AVID Center 


shall have the right to terminate Client’s right to conduct all or 


part of an AVID product or service at one or more specific AVID 


Member Sites, by giving written notice to Client of the sites so 


terminated, without terminating this Agreement with respect 


to the other products or services at the particular AVID 


Member Site and/or other AVID Member Site(s) subject to this 


Agreement. Any termination under this Paragraph 7.1 will 


become effective automatically upon expiration of the cure 


period in the absence of a cure or mutually agreed-upon 


resolution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any material 


breach by Client, which is further defined as a breach of any of 


the provisions of Article III, shall be deemed non-curable and 


AVID Center shall have the right to immediately terminate this 


Agreement upon such material breach by Client. 


7.2. Termination Without Cause:  Notwithstanding 


Paragraph 7.1 above, either party may terminate this 


Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 


other party.   


7.3. Cessation of Use:  Upon termination or expiration of 


this Agreement: (a) the licenses in Article III shall 


automatically terminate and revert to AVID Center, (b) Client 


shall thereafter immediately discontinue AVID  in all of its 


school sites and cease using the AVID Materials, AVID 


Methodologies, or AVID Trademarks in any way, and (c) Client 


shall pay any unpaid balances to AVID Center and remain 


liable for its obligations or other actions that accrued or 


occurred prior to the termination date. 


7.4. Cumulative Remedies:  All rights and remedies 


conferred herein shall be cumulative and in addition to all of 


the rights and remedies available to each party at law, equity 


or otherwise. In addition, Paragraphs 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 4.1, 


and all of the provisions of Articles VII and VIII shall survive the 


termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


Article VIII. General Provisions 


8.1. Governing Law and Venue:  If any action at law or in 


equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this 


Agreement, then (i) if AVID is the party initiating the action 


(e.g., as plaintiff), this Agreement shall be interpreted under 


the law of the State in which Client is located, the action shall 


be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the applicable 


court in the city and State where Client is located and venue 


for the action shall be that city and State; and (ii)  if Client is 


the party initiating that action (e.g., as plaintiff), this 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


199/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


6 


Agreement shall be interpreted under California law, the 


action shall be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 


applicable court in San Diego, California, and venue for the 


action shall be San Diego, California. 


8.2. Entire Agreement:  All Quotes, Exhibits, and other 


addenda to this Agreement are fully incorporated herein. This 


Agreement, including all addenda, constitutes the entire 


agreement between the parties regarding this subject matter 


hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements or 


understandings regarding this subject matter. This Agreement 


can only be amended by a written document signed by both 


parties.  


8.3. Limitation of Liability:  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE 


LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, 


CONSEQUENTIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, WHETHER 


FORESEEABLE OR NOT, THAT ARE IN ANY WAY RELATED TO 


THIS AGREEMENT, THE BREACH THEREOF, THE USE OR THE 


INABILITY TO USE THE AVID COLLEGE READINESS SYSTEM 


SERVICES AND PRODUCTS, THE RESULTS GENERATED FROM 


THE USE OF THE AVID COLLEGE READINESS SYSTEM 


SERVICES AND PRODUCTS, LOSS OF GOODWILL OR PROFITS 


AND/OR FROM ANY OTHER CAUSE WHATSOEVER. 


8.4. Force Majeure: Neither party shall have any liability 


to the other hereunder by reason of any delay or failure to 


perform any obligation or covenant if the delay or failure to 


perform is occasioned by force majeure, meaning any act of 


God, storm, fire, casualty, unanticipated work stoppage, strike, 


lockout, labor dispute, civil disturbance, riot, war, national 


emergency, act of Government, act of public enemy, or other 


cause of similar or dissimilar nature beyond its control. 


8.5. Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is 


judicially determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the 


remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 


8.6. Attorney Fees: In the event a dispute arises 


regarding this Agreement and a legal proceeding is brought by 


either party, each party shall be responsible for paying their 


own attorney fees regardless of the outcome or resolution of 


the dispute. 


8.7. No Assignment, Delegation or Transfer:  Client 


acknowledges that the favorable terms of this Agreement 


were granted solely to Client, and that the substitution of any 


party by Client would destroy the intent of the parties. 


Accordingly, Client shall have no right to assign, delegate, 


transfer or otherwise encumber this Agreement or any portion 


thereof without AVID Center’s prior written consent, which can 


be withheld in its sole discretion. 


8.8. Notice:  All notices, requests or other 


communications under this Agreement shall be in writing, 


shall be sent to the designated representatives of the parties 


and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of 


service if sent by facsimile or electronic mail, or on the day 


following service if sent by overnight air courier service with 


next day delivery and with written confirmation of delivery, or 


five (5) days after mailing if sent by first class, registered or 


certified mail, return receipt requested.  


8.9. Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in 


several counterparts that together shall be originals and 


constitute one and the same instrument. 


8.10. Waiver:  The failure of a party to enforce any of its 


rights hereunder or at law or in equity shall not be deemed a 


waiver or a continuing waiver of any of its rights or remedies 


against the other party, unless such waiver is in writing and 


signed by the party to be charged. 


8.11. Facsimile and Electronic Signatures:   The parties 


hereto (i) each agree to permit the use, from time to time and 


where appropriate under the circumstances, of signatures 


sent via facsimile or electronically in a .pdf file or other digital 


format in order to expedite the transaction(s) contemplated by 


this Agreement; (ii) each intend to be bound by its respective 


signature sent by that party via facsimile or electronically in a 


.pdf file or other digital format; (iii) are each aware that the 


other, and the other’s agents and employees, will rely on 


signature pages sent via facsimile or electronically in a .pdf file 


or other digital format; and (iv) each acknowledge such 


reliance and waive any defenses to the enforcement of this 


Agreement or of other documents effecting the transactions 


contemplated by this Agreement based on the signature page 


being a facsimile, .pdf copy or other digital format. The parties 


covenant to each other that each time they send a signature 


page via facsimile or electronically in a .pdf file or other digital 


format; they will in a timely manner send the other party the 


countersigned signature page(s).  


Article IX. Services and Products Exhibits 


 


9.1 AVID District Leadership Training: ADL Training: AVID 


provides AVID District Leadership (ADL) Training as part of the 


ADL fee. ADL Training sessions are designed to prepare and 


support the AVID District Director. The five sessions are taken 


in sequential order over a two-year period at various facilities 


throughout the country (the Client should periodically check 


my.avid.org for listings). The District Director is to maintain a 


portfolio and additionally participate in online and web-hosted 


meetings coordinated by AVID Center. ADL Training is for 


district-level personnel responsible for start-up and quality 


assurance of the AVID College Readiness System as described 


above.  ADL includes small-group trainings which consist of 


AVID methodologies, understanding the role and 


responsibilities of the District Director; and learning about our 


online resources, data collection, certification, and continued 


professional learning.   


The ADL Training Schedule is split into two years as 


follows: 


 Training Level Time 


Year 1: Summer 


Institute/Session 1 


3 days, 


summer 


Session 2 3 days, fall 


Session 3 3 days, 


spring 


Year 2: Summer 


Institute/Session 4 


3 days, 


summer 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


200/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


7 


Session 5 3 days, fall 


 


(a) Summer Institute: The District Director leads the 


district’s AVID site team facilitation at the AVID 


Summer Institute.  The District Director may 


attend any additional Summer Institutes other 


than when they attend for Sessions 1 and 4 as 


part of their ongoing training; therefore, any such 


Summer Institute registration fee for the District 


Director is included in the total ADL price. 


(b) Materials: After attending ADL Session 1, the 


District Director will be provided with a sample 


set of all Elementary, Middle Level and High 


School curriculum, materials, and supplemental 


materials needed for district support. 


(c) AVID National Office & Divisional Support: AVID 


Center will provide support from our national 


office and divisional/state offices. This support 


will consist of phone calls, emails, and district 


visits at the discretion of AVID Center. 


9.2 AVID Secondary Membership/Curriculum: “AVID 


Members” or “AVID Member Sites” are those school sites 


listed on the Quote as implementing one or more AVID 


programs—Secondary, or Elementary/Secondary. Annual 


membership runs concurrently with the Term of AVID Standard 


Terms and Conditions.  


(a) AVID College Readiness System and Materials:  Client is 


entitled to implement the applicable AVID program(s) only 


at the AVID Member Sites listed on the Quote, and to use 


the licensed AVID trademarks, libraries, and student 


materials for the AVID Member Sites’ AVID College 


Readiness System pursuant to the provisions of this 


Exhibit and the AVID Standard Terms and Conditions.  


(b) AVID Center Support for Secondary:  AVID Center agrees 


to provide support to Client for its Secondary AVID 


Member Sites through the District Director and in 


conjunction with AVID Center’s national and/or divisional 


offices.  Membership for Client and AVID Member Sites 


implementing the Secondary Program includes support 


from AVID Center’s national and/or divisional offices in 


the following ways: 


 Access to training for the AVID site team(s) and AVID 


elective teacher(s) through AVID Summer Institute; 


 Access to training for the District Director through AVID 


District Leadership Training (ADL), divisional/state 


meetings and Summer Institute;  


 Access to other quality continuing professional learning 


trainings or services such as AVID Path to Schoolwide 


Trainings, AVID Weekly, AVID Roadtrip Nation Experience, 


and others; 


 Access to the resources available through the password-


protected MyAVID portal website; 


 Coordination with Client’s District Director to collect, 


report, and analyze data from Client and AVID Member 


Sites; 


 Review the quality of implementation through the 


certification processes;  


 Access to ongoing AVID College Readiness System 


development through various divisional workshops and 


online offerings;  


 Permission to use the AVID Trademarks as described in 


the AVID Standard Terms and Conditions;  


 Assistance in disseminating information about AVID to 


Client’s potential new AVID middle school and high school 


sites. 


(c) AVID Reports:  AVID Center agrees to provide Client with 


access to reports on AVID data collected by Client. 


(d) AVID Summer Institute: AVID Center agrees to provide 


Client and its listed AVID Member Sites access to AVID 


Summer Institute.  Client and its listed AVID Member Sites 


may attend strands at AVID Summer Institutes including 


the Implementation strands appropriate for their level of 


implementation (i.e. Secondary).  Planning districts and 


sites are restricted from attending any of the 


Implementation strands offered but can attend all other 


strands offered for their program level.  


(e) Licensing Benefits:  Membership includes a license to use 


the AVID Trademarks to promote the AVID Member Sites’ 


implementation of the AVID College Readiness System, to 


use and implement the AVID Methodologies, and to copy 


the student activity sheets from the AVID Materials for 


educational purposes relating to AVID, all pursuant to the 


provisions of this Exhibit.  Licensing runs concurrently with 


the Term of this Exhibit. 


(f) Annual Membership/License Fee:  Client agrees to pay 


AVID Center an annual membership/license fee based on 


the total number of AVID Member Sites in Client’s AVID 


program according to the pricing schedule set forth on the 


Quote.  


(g) AVID Secondary Methodology: Client agrees to implement 


AVID according to AVID guidelines and teaching 


methodologies (collectively “AVID Methodologies”) set 


forth in the AVID publications, guidebooks, and materials 


(collectively “AVID Materials”) or otherwise established by 


AVID Center, as the same may be modified and/or 


updated by AVID from time to time at AVID’s discretion. 


Client will implement the AVID Methodologies in the AVID 


elective class and in academic subject area classes.  


Client will not materially deviate from the AVID 


Methodologies without the prior written consent of the 


Chief Executive Officer of AVID Center. Client is 


responsible for each of its AVID Member Sites’ compliance 


with this Exhibit. 


(h) AVID Secondary Student Selection: Client agrees to select 


students for AVID in accordance with the selection criteria 


established in the AVID Methodologies. AVID 


Methodologies may be modified and/or updated by AVID 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


201/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


8 


from time to time at AVID’s sole discretion. Any 


modifications or updates will be made available to the 


Client and its AVID Member Sites via the MyAVID portal. 


(i) AVID Secondary Staff Training:  Client agrees to provide, 


at its expense, ongoing training for site coordinators and 


AVID site teams at AVID Member Sites. 


(j) AVID Summer Institute: Client agrees to ensure that each 


secondary site in their initial year of implementing AVID 


Secondary will send a minimum of eight (8) participants 


(unless AVID agrees to a lesser number on the Quote) to 


an AVID Summer Institute.  The AVID District Director 


attends at no additional cost and shall not be included in 


the minimum number of participants required per site 


team. AVID Center recommends sending a site team that 


includes the principal, counselor, AVID coordinator, and 


core subject area teachers. AVID Center recommends 


AVID Member Sites implementing the second year of the 


Secondary program send teams of at least five (5) 


members and encourages AVID Member Sites to continue 


to send teams to its Summer Institute in subsequent years 


to maintain and enhance the quality of AVID at their sites.  


The AVID Summer Institute registration pricing is listed on 


the Quote, if ordered. Client understands that travel, 


lodging, per diem costs and any other costs are not 


included in the price of the registration. 


(k) Professional Learning: Client agrees to conduct AVID 


professional learning for its AVID Member Sites based on 


AVID’s national model of providing site coordinator 


workshops and site team conferences.  Agenda for 


professional learning sessions will be based on school 


needs, on AVID’s national model for coordinator 


workshops, on topics and agendas provided in training 


materials, and on the content areas related to educational 


reform initiatives in public schools in Client's state.  


(l) AVID Curriculum Library: The AVID teachers and students 


benefit from the classroom strategies and activities 


provided in the AVID Curriculum Library.  Each type of 


Curriculum Library—Middle School or High School—


consists of a set of AVID publications and materials. 


(m) Curriculum Library:  To ensure proper implementation of 


AVID Secondary, Client agrees to purchase at least one (1) 


complete AVID Curriculum Library for each AVID Member 


Site newly implementing AVID Secondary. AVID 


Curriculum Library prices are set forth on the Quote, if 


ordered.  Client shall be entitled to use an AVID Secondary 


library only at the AVID Member Sites for which the 


materials were originally purchased.  AVID libraries are 


non-transferable. Client and its individual AVID Member 


Sites agree to ensure that each AVID classroom has 


adequate AVID curriculum materials. The use of the AVID 


Curriculum Libraries, which are part of the AVID Materials, 


will also be subject to the provisions of the AVID Standard 


Terms and Conditions.  


(n) Curriculum Shipment(s): If ordered on the Quote, AVID 


Center will ship curriculum libraries upon full execution of 


the AVID College Readiness System Services and 


Products Agreement, once materials are in stock, upon 


Client provision of purchase order or form of payment 


(unless indicated otherwise on the Quote) and in 


accordance with the delivery date requested by Client, if 


provided. Curriculum will be shipped to the addresses 


provided by Client. Client confirms that this date and 


location reflect the best time and location for receipt of 


shipment.  Client should allow a few weeks on either side 


of the Requested Delivery Date as unforeseen 


circumstances may occur in the supply chain. Please 


allow additional time if Requested Delivery Date is within 


three (3) weeks of AVID Center’s receipt of a fully executed 


copy of this Agreement and purchase order or form of 


payment.  The Requested Delivery Date is provided for 


Client’s convenience only.  AVID Center’s collection and 


Client’s provision of such date does not constitute an 


affirmation of fact or promise, nor does it create an 


obligation of law or in equity on behalf of AVID Center if 


materials do not arrive within the given timeframe. Client 


agrees that AVID Center makes no remedial promise and 


does not expressly intend to create a warranty or 


guarantee for any loss or damage, whether material or 


immaterial, arising from the late or early shipment of 


materials. AVID Center will send curriculum via standard 


ground delivery service. Any request by the Client to 


expedite shipping will be at the expense of the Client and 


subject to availability of the item(s) ordered. 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


202/746







2018 - 2019    Santa Cruz City High School District    Drafted: 06/05/2018 


9 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates below their signatures, but such dates shall 


not alter the Term of this Agreement as specified herein: 


 


 


AVID Center, 


a California Non-Profit Corporation 


501(c)(3) 


 


 


 Santa Cruz City High School District 


Signature:   \SignHere2\ 
  


Signature:   \SignHere1\ 


Print 


Name: 
\PrintedName2\ 


  Print 


Name: 
\PrintedName1\ 


Title: \TitleHere2\ 
  


Title: \TitleHere1\ 


Date: \Date2\ 
  


Date: \Date1\ 


 


 


AVID Center 


9797 Aero Drive, Suite 100 


San Diego, CA 92123 


Employer ID # 33-0522594 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


  


DocuSign Envelope ID: F5642003-AEAE-4A98-839F-3940CE5D0D65


8/1/2018 | 1:42 PM PDT


Assistant Superintendent Ed. Serv.


Dorothy Coito


8/2/2018 | 7:22 AM PDT


David Greulich


Controller


203/746







Educational Services: CIA: CSA for GLAD


Separator Page


204/746







                                                                                                                     AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement – Project GLAD 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consultant Services Agreement with Be GLAD LLC (or Project GLAD) at Gault 
Elementary. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Project GLAD is a professional development model in the area of language acquisition and 
literacy, whose strategies and model promote language acquisition, academic achievement, 
and cross-cultural skills.  
 
This agreement includes four follow-up training sessions that will guide teachers in specific 
instructional strategies to support English Learners to grow and be successful in their content 
area. This professional learning opportunity is in direct support of English Learner Progress, 
which is one of our agreed-upon district strategic focus areas. 
 
We will monitor the effectiveness of this training in the following ways: 


● Classroom demonstrations, peer observations, and administrator walkthroughs focused 
on engagement and accessibility of content area in classrooms for English Learners, and 
all students. 


● Teachers have lesson plans that include GLAD strategies for English language support in 
core content areas.  


● Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) are focused on planning GLAD lessons and 
PLCs are bringing and analyzing EL student work samples to determine next instructional 
steps.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total of $6,000.00 to be paid from Title 1 Professional Development funds (Restricted) at Gault. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #3:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


205/746







206/746







Must Be Attached  Page Two 


REQUEST FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 


Review guidelines of Board Policy - Consultant Services Agreement 
 
Site:    ___________   Principal/Director:    ______ 
 


1. Statement of specific need (Refer to district/site goals and plans, unique needs of school, program or 
office which necessitates the services of a consultant). 
 
 


 
 


 


2. State efforts made to identify qualified staff available within the district to carry out the requested 
services. 
 


 
 
 


 


3. If this agreement is for staff development or for one-time services, state the site's plan to reduce or 
eliminate the need for this consultant's services in the future. 
 


 
 
 


 


4. Statement of expected outcomes (Can include specific student outcomes desired, benefits to district 
students and/or staff, etc.). 
 
 


 
 


 


5. Evaluation Process (survey evaluation, specific student outcomes such as increased skills, product such 
as a publication, documentation of benefits to students and/or staff). 


 
 


 
 


 


Gault Elementary School Amariah Hernandez


Gault Elementary School uses GLAD for professional development in the area of language acquisition and literacy,


whose strategies and model promote language acquisition, academic achievement, and cross-cultural skills. GLAD


strategies and resources are the foundation of our integrated ELD program, and 95% of Gault staff are trained in


GLAD. We are working to close the achievement gap, while the student population is nearly 70% ELA.


Within Santa Cruz City Schools District, we currently do not have any GLAD trainers, which determines the need


for outsourcing with Project GLAD.


As we continue to train all staff in an English Language Arts curriculum that supports English Language Learners,


it is our goal to fully derive and utilize these skills, and eventually eliminate the need outsource these services.


By working with the GLAD Project, we expect staff to build their strengths in educating English Language Learners,


which will in turn aid in closing the achievement gap. We will collect and analyze student data, locally and state-


wide, in order to verify progress and measure success.


Once we reach our goal of every teacher demonstrating and using GLAD strategies in the classroom, students


within the ELL demographic will have increased and substantial skills in our ELA curriculum.


207/746







Educational Services: SPED: Out of State Non Public


School – Alpine Academy


Separator Page


208/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through 
the 2018-2019 summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Education ($38,615.00), Individual/Family Counseling 
($49,270.00)) and Residential Placement Services ($77,695.00) for a student in Special 
Education who requires these services that could not be provided in District programs. Services 
will be rendered by Alpine Academy and are mandated in the student’s IEP.  Service Period: July 
1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $165,580.00. Funded by Special Education - Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


209/746







210/746







211/746







212/746







213/746







Educational Services: SPED: Agreement for


Professional Services-Margaret Barker


Separator Page


214/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education – Agreement For Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services through the 2018-2019 summer and 
regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled 
pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for an: Assistive Technology Specialist for 4 students in Special Education 
that require these specialized services. They are provided through Margaret (Peggy) R. Barker, 
MS, ATP and are mandated in each student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 
2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $6,300.00.  Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 


 


 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


215/746







216/746







217/746







218/746







219/746







220/746







221/746







222/746







223/746







224/746







225/746







226/746







227/746







Educational Services: SPED: Agreement for


Professional Services-Deborah Bell


Separator Page


228/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education – Agreement For Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services through the 2018-2019 summer and 
regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled 
pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Augmentative / Alternative Communication Services for 2 students in 
Special Education that require these specialized services. They are provided through Deborah A. 
Bell, MA/CCC and are mandated in each student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 
30, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $2,000.00.   Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 


 


 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


229/746







230/746







231/746







232/746







233/746







234/746







235/746







236/746







237/746







238/746







239/746







240/746







241/746







Educational Services: SPED: Non Public School – The


Bay School


Separator Page


242/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.12. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through the 2018-2019 
summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 
of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.   
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Educational Programs and Specialized Support Services for three 
students in Special Education who require these services that could not be provided in District 
programs. Services will be rendered through The Bay School and are mandated in each 
student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $375,500.00. Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1: All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
                                                                                                                       


243/746







244/746







245/746







246/746







247/746







Educational Services: SPED: Out of State Non Public


School - Diamond Ranch Academy


Separator Page


248/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.13. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through 
the 2018-2019 summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Education ($28,281.42), Individual/Family Counseling 
($57,307.32) and Residential Placement Services ($76,411.26) for a student in Special 
Education who requires these services that could not be provided in District programs. Services 
will be rendered by Diamond Ranch Academy and are mandated in the student’s IEP. Service 
Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $162,000.00. Funded by Special Education - Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


                                                                                                                       


249/746







250/746







251/746







252/746







253/746







Educational Services: SPED: Out of State Non Public


School – La Europa Academy


Separator Page


254/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.14. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached out-of-state Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through 
the 2017-2018 summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that 
protect the identity of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Education ($56,000.00) and Residential Placement Services 
($109,500.00) for a student in Special Education who requires these services that could not be 
provided in District programs. Services will be rendered by La Europa Academy and are 
mandated in the student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $165,500.00. Funded by Special Education - Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1: All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education                                                                                                                       


255/746







256/746







257/746







258/746







259/746







Educational Services: SPED: Non Public School –


RCS/Phoenix School


Separator Page


260/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.15. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract  –  Nonpublic School 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic School contract for continuing services through the 2018-2019 
summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity 
of disabled pupils, the student’s name has been omitted.   
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: Basic Education Services for a student in Special Education who 
requires these services that could not be provided in District programs. Services will be 
rendered through Rebekah Children’s Services / Phoenix Nonpublic School and are mandated in 
the student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $49,820.00. Funded by Special Education - Restricted. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1: All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


  


261/746







262/746







263/746







264/746







265/746







Educational Services: SPED: Agreement with Non


Public Agency – Trumpet Behavioral Health


Separator Page


266/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.16. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for continuing services through the 2018-
2019 summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the 
identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision and 
Consultation Services for two students in Special Education that require these specialized 
services provided through Trumpet Behavioral Health and are mandated in each student’s IEP. 
Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $134,188.00.   Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 


 


 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


267/746







268/746







269/746







270/746







271/746







Business Services: Wenger & Associates: Contract


Addendum-service to June 2019


Separator Page


272/746







 
    


AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.17 
1DODD_ATJEUB-F27ECF9A9BF24AE2AA40A0E91B4F0D79.docx 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Amendment # 1 to Agreement with Wenger & 
Associates, LLC – ASB  


 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Addendum to Agreement with Wenger & Associates, LLC to provide training to 
school sites and auxiliary organizations on proper methods of fund-raising and ASB 
accounting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 27, 2017, The Board approved an agreement with Wenger & Associates 
to review and to suggest revisions to existing Board polices and administrative 
regulations and to site parent donation and fee request documents.  They were to 
develop semi-customized guidebooks and other materials to be presented in workshops 
for District staff.  However, the District did not move forward with this project, as staff 
attention was focused on the implementation of the Illuminate Student Information 
System.  Wenger & Associates assisted the District with the student information 
implementation project via a separate contract. 
 
The proposed amendment # 1 will extend the term of the agreement regarding ASB 
through June 30, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $6,500.00 LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
.  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community.  
 


273/746







274/746







Compliance Consulting
Professional Development


Attendance
ASBs


August 18, 2017


Patrick Gaffney
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
Santa Cruz City Schools
405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, CA 95073


Re: Proposal for Engagement of Services


Dear Patrick,


I am pleased to prepare this proposal to assist Santa Cruz City Schools. I have summarized our understanding of the scope of services 
below, with our work approach, our qualifications, and fees to perform the requested services.


Scope of Services
Our understanding is that you want us to help you deliver information to your schools about Associated Student Body and student fee 


regulations, compliant ways to raise funds to support programs, and required controls to minimize risks and audit findings.  We will help 


you achieve this through a top-down and bottom up approach; communicating policy and laws to facilitate compliance via customized 


training and other modalities designed specifically for parent groups, activity advisors, school and district administrators and accounting 


personnel.  A vital service to help Santa Cruz City Schools avoid repayment of illegal fees and potential lawsuits.  


 


Fees
The fee for our services will not exceed $6,500* without the prior approval of Santa Cruz City Schools. We will bill you on a monthly 
basis for services rendered on your behalf. Our hourly rates are: Jeri Wenger, CEO $185/hour and Technical Support Staff $85/hour. 


*In addition to our hourly rate, we will bill you for any incurred out-of-pocket travel expenses on behalf of the District (e.g. lodging, airfare, 
car rental). Monthly invoices will be due upon receipt.


We will strive to complete your work as efficiently as possible and at a fair and reasonable cost. You shall have the right, at all times, to 
terminate this service upon written notice to that effect. In that event, you will be responsible for all services and expenses up to that point.


Scheduling/Timing of Services
We can begin the engagement remotely the week  of September 15, 2017 and it is anticipated that the project can be completed by June 


30, 2018 or sooner. 


275/746







2


Work Approach
Our approach to your engagement will consist of the following key tasks:  


1. Identify ASB items for compliance review 
We begin the process by meeting with key Santa Cruz District administrators via WebEx to: (a) review the scope of the project; 
(b) discuss current practices and needs; (c) discuss potential compliance risk and opportunities for improvement thereof; (d) 
develop associated time-lines and expected deliverables.


2. Review and revise existing Board policies and administrative regulations
During this portion of the engagement, we will work directly with designated Business and Educational Services personnel, to 
obtain access to your existing policies and administrative regulations.  We will review and revise these policies and regulations 
specific to Associates Student Bodies, School-Connected Organizations, and allowable student fees.  Our objective is to align  
these with current law and practices to facilitate compliance and minimize risks.  A draft version of these will be submitted to 
you for review and discussion.  Once finalized, we will incorporate these into Santa Cruz City Schools’ personalized manuals. 


3. Review School Site Parent Donation and Fee Request Documents
We will review and modify donation request documents Santa Cruz City Schools Principals and School-Connected Organizations 
submit to us via email process, to facilitate compliance.  We will timely communicate to you any compliance concerns that might 
come to our attention.


4. Deliver Semi- Customized Professional Development Series
We have designed our semi-customized workshop series to deliver critical information in a bottom-up, top down approach.  
This allows us to communicate critical laws, practices, and Santa Cruz City Schools relevant policies to key Santa Cruz City 
Schools groups involved with fundraisers, student fees, and associated student bodies.   We can deliver one or more of our five 
workshop series at your facilities on mutually agreed upon dates and times:
 
1. Activity Coordinators/Coaches Guide to Compliance and Fundraising
2. Fundraising Guidelines
3. Associated Student Bodies: Compliance and Accounting Procedures
4. School-Connected Organizations
5. Student Fees
 
 Our process includes the following key steps:
 
A.  Develop Semi-Customized Guidebooks
We will incorporate into our publications and other resources, Santa Cruz City Schools’ relevant Board policies, regulations, and 
procedures.  We will grant Santa Cruz City Schools permission to use all parts of this publication for purposes of reproduction 
and transmittal to its employees and when applicable, parent organizations. 
 
B.  Provide Camera-Ready Copy of Materials
We will provide you with a camera-ready copy of your semi-customized publication, fact sheets about allowable and prohibited 
food sales and fund-raising activities, sample appropriate donation request language, and PowerPoint handouts for duplicating 
one week before the scheduled workshop date. 


276/746







3


C.  Conduct Staff Development
The final step of our top-down and bottom-up approach is to communicate the law and Santa Cruz City Schools specific policies 
pertaining to ASBs, parent organizations, student fees and fundraisers via your semi-customized staff development program.  
We will schedule and conduct the workshop(s) at Santa Cruz City Schools facilities, on mutually agreed upon dates and times.  
Our goal is to make it interactive with adequate Q&A time.  


5. Project Deliverables
The deliverables will include the procedure manuals, PowerPoint presentations, handouts, ongoing progress reports, and other 
agreed upon documents.


6. Quality Control Review and Progress Meetings
Quality control review procedures, designed to assure quality control and to identify issues as they arise, will occur throughout 
the engagement process. Each of the services outlined above includes periodic status meetings and related communications 
to keep you informed of project progress and related matters.


Staffing
I will manage and conduct the entire engagement. Other qualified personnel may provide support and services as deemed appropriate. 


Qualifications
• I have been committed to the education industry for over 30 years.


• Education clients are the single segment of Wenger & Associates, LLC.


• Wenger & Associates, LLC is a leader and active participant in CASBO, ACSA, and CSBA. 


• I bring a strategic perspective to an engagement rather than focusing exclusively on the task at hand.  


• I know the language, issues, and culture of the education market, so you won’t need to spend time familiarizing me with your 
business. You’ll also have the confidence and assurance that comes from knowing your work is being performed by a highly 
qualified and experienced subject matter expert and industry specialists.


I have developed and conducted local and state wide Associated Student Body, Budget, Categorical, Business Services, Curriculum and 
Instruction , and Attendance, compliance workshops, including our comprehensive publications, and have provided similar services to 
other California schools, county offices of education, and community college districts. My thirty plus years of industry experience, gained 
in district and county offices, includes Business Services, Curriculum and Instruction management of and staff development activities on 
attendance accounting, compliance rules, and audit. 


Recent ASB consulting clients have included Dublin Unified School District, Lake Elsinore Unified District, El Monte City Schools, and 
Hayward Unified School District.  Additional information about my qualifications can be found in my resume attached to this proposal.


277/746







4


Closing Remarks
I believe that my background and experience provides the expertise you need to complete your objectives. If you have any questions or 
need further information, please feel free to contact me directly. I would be delighted to discuss this proposal with you. 


If these terms and conditions accurately summarize your understanding of our engagement, please indicate your approval and acceptance 
by signing, dating, and returning a copy of this letter to me. 


Thank you very much for your consideration. I look forward to having the opportunity of working with you.


  


        
Jeri A Wenger   


Chief Executive Officer, Wenger & Associates, LLC  


Signature:             Date:     


Printed Name:                


Title:               Santa Cruz City Schools


278/746







5


Resume
Jeri Wenger, Founder and Chief Executive Officer


Practice Areas:
• Audit Resolution Assistance


• Compliance Consulting 


• LCFF and Categorical Program Compliance, Accounting, & Optimization


• Attendance & Revenue Improvement Strategies


• Attendance Accounting & State Certification of Attendance   


• Alternative Educational and Intervention Programs 


• ASB Compliance, Monitoring, Accounting & Training 


• Customized Professional Development Programs & Workshops


• Revenue & Efficiency Improvement Strategies 


Industry Expertise:
• K-12 School Districts


• Community Colleges


• County Offices of Education


• Charter Schools


Professional Background:
• Wenger & Associates, Chief Executive Officer, 2011 - current


• School Innovations & Advocacy, Vice President, 2007 - 2011


• Vicenti, Lloyd & Stutzman, Principal, School Business Services, 1999-2007


• Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP, Principal, School Business, 1992-1999


• Chino Unified School District, Chief Business Official, 1990-1992


• San Bernardino County Office of Education, Management Information Systems Manager, 1984-1990


• Chaffey Joint Union High School District, Director, Fiscal Services, 1978-1984


• Pacific Federal Savings, Operations Officer, 1973-1978 


Professional and Community Activities:
• California Association of School Business Officials


• Association of School Business Officials


• Association of California School Administrators


• California School Boards Association


• Coalition for Adequate School Housing


Education: 
• Bachelor of Science in Business Administration and Management, University of Redlands, California


• Master of Organizational Leadership, Chapman University, California


• School Business Management Certificate, CSU, San Bernardino


Personal Interests:
• Jeri’s hobbies include portrait painting, wall murals, sculpturing, music, biking, hiking, snorkelling, and kayaking.


279/746







6


© 2016 Wenger & Associates, LLC www.wengerandassociates.com2376 N. Euclid Avenue, Upland, CA 91784


Tailor-fit solutions to meet your specific needs 
and provide positive results! 
Our objective is to help public schools increase their bottom line through improved 
operational efficiencies, professional development, improved attendance and 
educational opportunities, cost containment measures, and compliance knowledge. 
Our personalized services include: Consulting and Advisory Services, Professional 
Development, Revenue Enhancement Opportunities, Compliance and Pre-Audit 
Assistance, Budget Development, and Fiscal Assistance.


Student Attendance
We offer three services around student attendance:


Professional Development to educate Districts, County Office of Education, and Charter Schools on effective ways to pro-
actively manage their attendance operations, which increases student attendance and learning time, facilitates compliance and 
minimizes risk. Affordable on-site workshops designed to meet you organization’s unique needs.


Attendance Assessments and Procedures to help public education agencies improve internal controls over their attendance 
system, avoid or resolve significant apportionment audit findings, implement state required procedures and controls, and obtain 
state certification of attendance.


Increase Student Attendance and Learning aligned with the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) pupil engagement 
priority to reduce absences, suspensions, and expulsion rates, resulting in improved student outcomes and increased funding 
for the District’s educational programs. 


Associated Student Bodies and Parent Organizations
Our objective is to help schools and their communities understand how funds can be raised through lawful means to support school programs. 
We communicate policies and laws to better facilitate compliance through personalized training and other methods designed specifically for 
parent groups, activity advisors, school and district administrators, and accounting personnel. Our customized training courses and manuals 
are created with the end user in mind, communicating complex laws and processes in an easy to understand format.


Local Control Funding Formula and Categorical Programs
We work directly with cabinet, categorical, and fiscal personnel to identify opportunities to increase revenues and minimize audit risks. 
We help districts create a defensible definition of their “core program” and implement processes to facilitate compliance and resource 
maximization. 


For more information, please contact: 


Jeri Wenger
Founder and Chief Executive Officer


909.292.8612 


jeri@wengerandassociates.com


280/746







Business Services: SCCS/COE: Lease Agreement –


renewal for 133 Swift St., SC


Separator Page


281/746







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.18 
 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-6926F102CB574CE7863EBFCCFA88AE3D.DOC 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Renewal of Lease Agreement Between Santa Cruz City 


Schools and The Santa Cruz County Office of Education (SCCOE) 
To Lease Space at 313 Swift Street. 


 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve renewal of lease agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools and the Santa Cruz 
County Office of Education (SCCOE) to lease space at 313 Swift Street. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
313 Swift Street is the former site of the United States Army Reserve Center.  The deed 
restrictions and federal regulations under the property were transferred to Santa Cruz City 
Schools in 1998 prohibit the use or leasing of the property to third parties without prior, 
written approval from the U.S. Department of Education (Department).  The Department 
previously reviewed and approved all terms and conditions of this lease agreement.  
 
Included in this agenda item are the lease agreement, a breakdown of the lease rates for the 
property, and a map of the space leased by the County Office of Education. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The annual lease revenue is $65,082.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


282/746







 


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-B776298A776741F580B722A99B16FDE0.doc 1 


 LEASE AGREEMENT 
 By and between 


The Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
and 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
313 Swift Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  


 
THIS LEASE is made and entered into as of the 1st day of August 2018, by and between the Santa 
Cruz County Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as "Lessee" and the Santa Cruz City 
Schools, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor". 
 
 RECITALS 
 
Lessor is the owner of the real property and improvements located at 313 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, 
CA (hereafter “the Leased Property”).    
 
Lessor wishes to lease to Lessee and Lessee wishes to lease from Lessor, portions of the Leased 
Property for a combination of ROP and Alternative Education services, including a Green Careers 
Basic Construction Program and Hi Tech Computer Lab.  
 
AGREEMENT 
 
1. The Leased Property:  
 


In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, the Lessor does 
hereby lease to the Lessee and the Lessee does hereby lease from the Lessor the following 
described property in accordance with the specific terms and conditions of this Lease 
Agreement: 


 
(a) "Lessor and Lessee agree that this lease agreement shall be subject and 


subordinate at all times to the terms and conditions of the September 16, 1988 


Quitclaim Deed, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Lessor and 


Lessee agree to abide by all terms and conditions contained in said Quitclaim 


Deed and further agree to surrender the estate hereby created upon thirty (30) 


days notice from the U.S. Department of Education. The parties further 


acknowledge that this lease is subject to approval of the U.S. Department of 


Education." 
 


(b) For Lessee’s exclusive use, two offices located in the Administration Building, 
comprising roughly 500 square feet +/-, and 808 sq. ft. in the Education Building for a 
computer lab (hereafter “Property 1”) all as designated more particularly in Exhibits A 
and B to this Lease Agreement.  


 
(c) For the shared use and occupancy of Lessor and Lessee, common area office space 


in the Administration, comprising roughly 500 square feet +/-, together with the 
restrooms, kitchen and classroom located in the Education Building comprising 
2,471 square feet +/- (hereafter, together, “Property 2”) all as described in Exhibits 
A and B to this Lease Agreement. 


283/746







 


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-B776298A776741F580B722A99B16FDE0.doc 2 


 
 (d)   For Lessee’s exclusive use, three portable buildings with use of adjacent grounds, 


all within a fenced enclosure, comprising roughly 4,160 square feet +/- (hereafter 
“Property 3”) all as described in Exhibits A and B to this Lease Agreement. 


   
 
2. Lease Term  
 


Upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease Agreement, the term of this lease shall 
be for a period of three (3) years commencing as follows: 


  
 (a) For Property 1, on the first day of August, 2018 
   
 (b) For Property 2, on the first day of August, 2018 
 


(d) For Property 3, on the first day of August, 2018 
.   


 Upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease Agreement, the term of this 
lease may be extended for no more than two additional one year terms for any or all of 
Properties 1, 2 and 3 upon agreement by lessee and lessor.  The effective date of each and 
every extension for each and every of Properties 1, 2 and 3 shall be the anniversary of the 
date on which the lease term effectively commenced for that Property. 


 
3. Rent 
 


The monthly rent for the first twelve months of the three-year lease term shall be as follows: 
 
 (a) For Property 1, One Thousand Seventeen Dollars and thirty cents ($1,017.30) based 


on a value of $0.75 per square foot per month. (1308 sq ft x .75 exclusive) x 1.037% 
(2018-19 COLA adjustment, per item (e) below) 


 
 (b) For Property 2, One Thousand One Hundred Seventy Dollars and seventy-five cents 


($1,170. 75) based on a value of $0.38 per square foot per month. (2971 sq ft x .38) 
x 1.037% (2018-19 COLA adjustment, per item (e) below) 


 
(c) For Property 3, Three Thousand Two Hundred Thirty –Five Dollars and forty-four 


cents ($3,235.44)  based on a value of $0.75 per square foot per month. (4160 x .75 
= $3,120) x 1.037% (2018-19 COLA adjustment, per item (e) below) 


 
  (d) All rental amounts shall be paid monthly in advance on the first of each calendar 


month. Where rent is due and payable for a fraction of a month, it shall be prorated 
accordingly.  


 
 (e) Monthly rents shall be subject to increase each and every calendar year of the initial 


term of this Lease and any and all extensions thereto.  No single increase shall 
exceed the statutory Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) provided for in applicable 
school district revenue limits, regardless of whether any such annual increase is 
funded.  Regardless of when any such annual adjustment is known or determined it 
shall become effective (if at all) no earlier than the anniversary date of effective 


284/746







 


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-B776298A776741F580B722A99B16FDE0.doc 3 


commencement of the Lease Agreement for the particular Property. (1, 2 or 3)  
  
4. Improvements to Property  
 


Lessee and Lessor shall confer as necessary to reach a mutually acceptable list of 
improvements and a reasonable accurate estimate of all costs of such improvements.  The 
cost of all improvements that the parties mutually agree are mutually beneficial to both 
parties, will be shared equally by the parties.  The cost of any improvements that benefit 
only one part or the other, will be the responsibility of the benefiting party. 
 
During the course of this agreement, the parties may meet to discuss the District’s options 
for future utilization of the property, which may require the moving of relocatable 
classrooms to another location on the property. 


 
5. Use of the Leased Property 
 


Lessee shall use the Leased Property during the term hereof exclusively for the operation of 
a combination of ROP and Alternative Education services, including a Green Careers Basic 
Construction Program, Bike Repair and Hi Tech Computer Lab, all in accordance with 
applicable law.  Except as to Property 2, Lessee shall have the full right of occupancy and 
enjoyment to the Leased Property and personal property located thereon during the term of 
this Lease Agreement, except that the Lessor shall have the right to enter on the Leased 
Property at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting same and for the purpose of 
carrying out is obligations under this lease and agreement. 


 
6. Utilities - Maintenance of the Leased Property 
 
 (a) Lessee shall pay for a proportionate share of all utility costs based on the square 


footage that they use on the site to total site square footage.  The Lessee shall pay 
half the proportional share of utilities per square foot for shared use space (Property 
2).  Utilities include electricity, gas, water, sewer, trash, and data.  Lessee shall 
provide their own telephone service. 


   
 (b) Lessor shall provide all maintenance services to the Properties 1, 2 and 3. Lessor 


shall provide custodial services to all shared space and common areas.  Lessee shall 
provide custodial services to all of their exclusive use areas. 


   


7. Hold Harmless and Indemnification 
 
 (a) Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessor, its Board of 


Education, its officers, agents, deputies and employees, from and against any loss, 
damage, cause of action, claims or suits for damages, caused by, or arising out of, or 
in any way connected with the use of the Leased Property by Lessee except where 
any of the foregoing is the proximate result of Lessor's negligence. 


 
 (b) Lessor agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessee, its Board of 


Education, Superintendent of Schools, their respective officers, agents, deputies and 
employees from and against any loss, damage, cause of action, claims or suits for 
damages, caused by, or arising out of, or in any way connected with the maintenance 


285/746







 


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-B776298A776741F580B722A99B16FDE0.doc 4 


and operation of the Leased Property, except where any of the foregoing is the 
proximate result of Lessee’s negligence. 


 
8. For the entire duration of the Lease and any and all extensions thereto, Lessee shall maintain 


the following insurance coverages or shall self-insure in the following amounts.  
 
(a)  Replacement fire insurance on the Property  $1,000,000 per occurrence  
 


 (b) Commercial General Liability    $1,000,000 per occurrence  
 Premises Liability; Products and Completed  Bodily Injury and Property Damage   
 Operations; Contractual Liability; Personal 
 Injury and Advertising Liability, Abuse, 
 Molestation, Sexual Actions, and Assault 
 and Battery 
 
(c) Commercial or Business Automobile Liability $50,000 per occurrence  
 All owned vehicles, hired or leased vehicles,  Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
 non-owned, borrowed and permissive uses. 
 


(d) Each policy of insurance shall be endorsed to name as additional insured:  Santa Cruz City 
Schools, its Board of Education, the individual members thereof, and all District officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers. 


 
9. Lessor recognizes and agrees that its use of the remainder of its adjacent property, if any, 


will be compatible with other uses to which the Lessee may put the Property.   
 
10. All notices to be given under this lease shall be deemed to have been duly given when 


mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the party to be notified, as 
follows: 


 


To Lessee: Associate Superintendent, Business Services 
  Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
  400 Encinal Street 
  Santa Cruz, CA 95060  
 


To Lessor: Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  Santa Cruz City Schools 
  133 Mission Street, Ste. 100 
  Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
  
11. Lessor may terminate this Lease Agreement for cause at any time should Lessee fail to 


perform any part of the Lease Agreement. In addition, either party may terminate this Lease 
Agreement at any time, for any reason, upon 180 days advance written notice to the other 
party.  In the event either party terminates without cause, Lessor shall refund to Lessee all 
rent paid in advance by Lessee for the period beginning seven calendar days after the Lessee 
has fully vacated the Leased Property through the end of that calendar year of the Lease.   


 
12. Lessee shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in the employment of persons because of 


race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status or physical handicap.  
Lessee expressly agrees and warrants that it shall comply with all applicable state and 


286/746







 


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-B776298A776741F580B722A99B16FDE0.doc 5 


federal laws. 
 
13. This Lease Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties hereto   


and no change shall be made except upon a writing mutually agreed upon and properly 
executed by Lessor and Lessee. 


 
Dated as of the date first set forth above: 
 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
By: Mary Hart 
 Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 
 
 
 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
  
 
__________________________________________ 
By: Patrick K. Gaffney 
 Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
 
 
 
 


287/746







EXHIBIT A


Exclusive Use Space
2018-19 COLA


Property 1
Computer Lab (current weight room) 808          sq. ft.
Office Space 500          sq. ft.


Property 3
Enclosed Adjacent Grounds 960          sq. ft.
Portable Classrooms 3,200       sq. ft.


Subtotal 5,468       sq. ft. @ $.75/sq. ft. x 1.037 = 4,253$         


Shared Use Space


Property 2
Classroom, Kitchen, Restrooms 2,471       sq. ft.
Office 500          sq. ft.


Subtotal 2,971       sq. ft. @ $.38/sq. ft. x 1.037 = 1,171$         


Total 8,439       5,423$         


Total Annual 65,082$       


Natural Bridges Green Careers Center
at 313 Swift Street


Monthly Lease Rates


C:\utilities\distiller\temp\1DODD_ATJEUB-C922F3FB1B974890BCCBAE267402F60F
Rev. 7/1/15


288/746







E
X


H
IB


IT
 B


289/746







Business Services: Encompass: MOU Addendum –


renew lease for HeadStart for portable at Branciforte


Small Schools


Separator Page


290/746







 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-02D6A2659A7C49AA906163EFE9A98A06.DOC 


AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.19 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve 1st Addendum to Memorandum of Understanding with 


Encompass Community Services to Renew Lease for Head Start 
Facility at Branciforte Small Schools 


 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 1st Addendum to Memorandum of Understanding with Encompass Community 
Services to renew lease for Head Start Facility at Branciforte Small Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District’s agreement with Encompass Community Services (formerly the Santa Cruz 
Community Counseling Center) to operate a Head Start facility at Branciforte Small Schools will 
expire on 9/30/18.  Encompass installed and owns the portable classroom housing the facility.  
The District leases the land under the classroom to Encompass.  Encompass has had three 
renewals of their five year leases at this location, starting in 2003.  The rate of this lease is 
$1.00/year, with utilities billed directly to Head Start.  The attached Addendum to the MOU 
would execute a five year extension, from September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2023. All other 
terms of the original MOU remain the same. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1.00/year lease revenue. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


291/746







                    1st Addendum to the Memorandum of Understanding  


   For 175 Benito Ave, Santa Cruz, CA  


This is an addendum to the memorandum of understanding that covers the term September 1, 2013 to 
August 31, 2018 between Santa Cruz City School District “Lessor” and Encompass Community Services 
(formerly Santa Cruz Community Counseling Center) “Lessee”, for Area A as referred to in Attachment 1.  


The undersigned hereby agree to the following terms and changes to the Memorandum of 
Understanding: 


1.  The term of the MOU shall be for a period of five years, commencing on September 1, 2018 and 
ending on August 31, 2023 plus one option to renew for five years.  The option is exercised by 
Head Start giving notice to District in writing of its intention to renew prior to the expiration of 
the five year term.  Following such notice Head start and District shall make reasonable efforts 
to meet to discuss the advisability of changing portions of this MOU to reflect their experience 
in the previous term. 
 


2. Address change of the Santa Cruz City School District in section 14 special duties and section 19 
Notice from 405 Old San Jose Rd., Soquel CA 95073 to 133 Mission St., Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060. 
   


3. Address change of Encompass Community Services in section 19 Notice from 195 Harvey West 
Blvd., Santa Cruz, CA 95060 to 380 Encinal St., Suite 200, Santa Cruz, CA 95060. 


 


READ AND APPROVED BY:  


LESSEE:  Encompass Community Services 


 


By      _______________________________  Date  _________________ 


           Monica Martinez, Executive Director 


 


LESSOR:  Santa Cruz City School District 


 


By      ________________________________                     Date  _________________ 


          Gary Bloom, Superintendent  


 


Approved by the Board of Education 


For Santa Cruz City Schools on: _____________ 


292/746







Business Services: Encompass: FUA Addendum –


renew lease for HeadStart portable and Kinderpod at


Natural Bridges


Separator Page


293/746







 
C:\UTILITIES\DISTILLER\TEMP\1DODD_ATJEUB-EE67D9AE48624891A504AFCD355DE210.DOC 


AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.20 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve 1st Addendum to Facilities Use Agreement between 


Santa Cruz City Schools and Encompass to Renew Lease for Head 
Start Facilities at Natural Bridges Elementary School 


 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 1st Addendum to Facilities Use Agreement (FUA) between Santa Cruz City Schools and 
Encompass to renew lease for Head Start Facilities at Natural Bridges Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The District’s agreement with Encompass Community Services (formerly the Santa Cruz 
Community Counseling Center) to operate a Head Start facility at Natural Bridges School will 
expire on 8/31/18.  Encompass installed and owns the portable classroom housing the facility.  
The District leases the land under the classroom to Encompass.  Encompass has had three 
renewals of their five year leases at this location, starting in 1997.  On 3/8/17, the District 
entered into an updated FUA with Encompass to use and occupy the Kinderpod at Natural 
Bridges as well as the aforementioned relocatable.  The rate of the lease is $1.00/year, with a 
proportionate share of the site’s utilities billed directly to Head Start.  The attached Addendum 
to the FUA would execute a five year extension, from September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2023. 
All other terms of the updated FUA remain the same. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1.00/year lease revenue. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


294/746







1st Addendum to the Facilities Use Agreement Between 


Santa Cruz City Schools and Head Start 


For 255 Swift St and Kinder POD, Santa Cruz, CA 


This is an addendum to the Facilities Use Agreement that was made and entered into on March 8, 2017 
that covers the term March 8, 2017 to August 31, 2018 between Santa Cruz City School District “Lessor” 
and Encompass Community Services (formerly Santa Cruz Community Counseling Center) “Lessee”, for 
Area A as referred to in Attachment 1.  This agreement amends, restates and supersedes the MOU 
entered in September 1, 2013 between both parties.   


The undersigned hereby agree to the following terms and changes to the Memorandum of 
Understanding: 


1. The term of the MOU shall be for a period of five years, commencing on September 1, 2018 and 
ending on August 31, 2023 unless such Term is earlier terminated as provided in this Agreement.  
Head Start shall have the option to renew the Agreement for one (1) five year period, however 
the District reserves the right to require changes to the Agreement prior to renewal.  Such 
option shall be exercised by giving written notice to the District of Head Start’s intention to 
renew prior to the expiration of the Term.   
 


2. Address change for notices referred to in section 23 of the agreement of the Santa Cruz City 
School district from 405 Old San Jose Rd., Soquel CA 95073 to 133 Mission St., Suite 100, Santa 
Cruz, CA 95060. 
   


READ AND APPROVED BY:  


LESSEE:  Encompass Community Services 


 


By      _______________________________  Date  _________________ 


           Monica Martinez, Executive Director 


 


LESSOR:  Santa Cruz City School District 


 


By      ________________________________                     Date  _________________ 


          Kris Munro, Superintendent  


 


Approved by the Board of Education 


For Santa Cruz City Schools on: _____________ 


295/746







Business Services: Landscape Structures: Bay View ES


PIP Playground C.O. #1


Separator Page


296/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.21. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Deductive Change Order # 1 for Landscape Structures for 


Removal of ADA Ramp and the Addition of Temporary Fencing for 
the Bay View Elementary School PIP Rubber Surfacing Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve deductive change order # 1 for Landscape Structures for removal of the need for an ADA 
ramp and the addition of temporary fencing for the Bay View Elementary School PIP rubber 
surfacing project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The deductive change order for removing the ADA ramp, which is no longer needed because the 
PIP surface is to be installed flush with the surrounding curb providing ADA access for the entire 
play area and the addition of temporary fencing to secure the site during cure time at Bay View 
Elementary.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $237,134.03  
Change Order #1   -$3,123.00 (1.3% decrease of the original contract amount) 
Total    $234,011.03  
LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


297/746







1231 Bay Street
Santa Cruz, California 95060-4708
United States


Ship To


Bay View ElementaryShip To Name


Check with Sales RepEst Lead Time


Change order Date


00026501 


8/09/2018 
Change Order Nbr


405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, California 95073
United States


Bill To


Santa Cruz City SchoolsBill To Name


Bay View ADA Ramp Removal & Temporary
Fencing Addition


Quote Name


Bay View ADA Ramp/Temp FenceOpportunity Name


601 7th Street So, Delano, MN  55328
www.playlsi.com, 763-972-3391


Signature _________________________________


Name ____________________________________ 


Title _____________________________________


Date _____________________________________


PLEASE NOTE: the change order does not include installation, offload, payment and performance bonds, engineering 
calculations, security, storage, permits, inspection, or safety surfacing unless otherwise noted.


($3,123.00)


$0.00


($3,123.00)


$0.00


$0.00Materials Amount 


Tax Amount 


Labor Total 


Freight Amount 


Change OrderTotal


Net 30 On Materials ShipmentCredit Terms


9.0000%Tax Rate


Santa Cruz County/ Santa CruzCounty/ City Tax


Quantity Product Product Description Sales Price Total Price


1.00
Site
Work


Credit for ADA Ramp that will no longer be installed at Bay View Elementary as originally
specified. 


PIP rubber surfacing to be installed flush with surrounding curb providing ADA access for entire
play area.


($5,223.00) ($5,223.00)


1.00 Security


480 feet of temporary security fencing to be installed around perimeter of play area and removed
upon completion of PIP surfacing installation project. 


* Fencing to stay up for minimum 24 hours after PIP surfacing installation to allow urethane
binder to cure.


$2,100.00 $2,100.00


Total Quote Amounts


Notes to Customer


Change Order 1


298/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Mission Hill MS Front


Landscape


Separator Page


299/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1 
1DODD_ATJEUB-8D3F20ADE3DF46F8AB80D1962D564AEE 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Resource Assessment of 


Ground Disturbance at Mission Hill Middle School for the Front 
Landscape Project  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for resource assessment of ground disturbance at Mission Hill 
Middle School for the front landscape project in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan 
(2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California 
Environmental Quality Act guidelines.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of GIS database and archeological and historical records 
for the project area and assessment of ground disturbance at the site of proposed signage, bus stop shelter 
and ADA ramps are to be installed for the Mission Hill Middle School front landscape project. The City of 
Santa Cruz has a high concentration of cultural and physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and 
we deemed it prudent to engage these services to determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil 
in the areas of construction to inform our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,500.00, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.008% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


300/746







301/746







302/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: On Call Services


Separator Page


303/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2 
1DODD_ATJEUB-8092A041544C47C68BCF26CDA56D637B 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for On-Call Archeological 


Services As Needed for Bond Related Projects 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for on-call archeological services as needed for bond related 
projects in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa 
Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality Act guidelines.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for on-call archeological services including construction crew 
sensitivity training, construction monitoring, assessment of inadvertent discoveries, general consultation 
and monitoring reports on a time and materials basis. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of 
cultural and physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these 
services to determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform 
our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $12,000.00, Measure A and B Bond Funds, (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


304/746







305/746







306/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: DeLaveaga ES


Archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


307/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3 
1DODD_ATJEUB-DB329207EE4C4037B24357B81AA1A844 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Cultural Resource 


Assessment at Delaveaga Elementary School for the Modernization 
Project  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at Delaveaga Elementary 
School for the modernization project in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; 
Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California 
Environmental Quality Act guidelines. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for the Delaveaga 
Elementary School modernization project. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of cultural and 
physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these services to 
determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform our project 
planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,800.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.008% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


308/746







 


 


July 30, 2018 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Chris Garcia  
536 Palm St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


RE: Cultural Resources Assessment for deLaveaga Elementary, 1145 Morrissey Blvd., Santa Cruz, California   


Dear Mr. Garcia: 


Albion Environmental, Inc. is pleased to respond to your request for a proposal to conduct a cultural resource 
assessment at deLaveaga Elementary, 1145 Morrissey Blvd., Santa Cruz, California. Albion will provide the services 
of a qualified archaeologist(s) to complete an evaluati n that will include: 
 


 An expedited review of existing archaeological records located at the Northwest Informa� on Center 
at Sonoma State University  


 Pedestrian survey of the Project Area 
 Excavati n of one or two shovel tests approximately 50 cm wide and 60 cm deep in the area of 


potential � ect to examine buried soils 
 Recording of any historic or prehistoric resources found during the survey 
 A report of � ndings and recommendati ns 


 
Cost for the assessment and report is $1,800 .00. In the event cultural resources are located, Albion can, for a 
renegotia ed fee, work with the property owner (or agent) to determine an appropriate course of actio  under 
guidelines outlined by the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic 
Preservatio  Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality Act guidelines.  


If our proposal is acceptable to you, please sign the noti e to proceed below, email this le� er back to me at 
speelo@albionenvironmental.com. Please contact me at (831) 469-1774 if you have any questio s. 


Sincerely, 


 


Sarah Peelo, President 


 


 


309/746







310/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Branciforte SS


Archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


311/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4 
1DODD_ATJEUB-B3E097767AE349509B1B620C6F1EB0BB 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Resource Assessment of 


Ground Disturbance at Branciforte Small Schools for the 
Modernization Projects 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at Branciforte Small Schools 
for the modernization projects. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for the 
Branciforte Small Schools modernization projects. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of 
cultural and physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these 
services to determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform 
our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,500.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.008% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


312/746







 


 


July 30, 2018 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Chris Garcia  
536 Palm St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


RE: Cultural Resources Assessment for Branciforte Small Schools, 840 N. Branciforte, Santa Cruz, California   


Dear Mr. Garcia: 


Albion Environmental, Inc. is pleased to respond to your request for a proposal to conduct a cultural resource 
assessment at Branciforte Small Schools, 840 N. Branciforte, Santa Cruz, California. Albion will provide the services 
of a qualified archaeologist(s) to complete an evaluati n that will include: 
 


 An expedited review of existing archaeological records located at the Northwest Informa� on Center 
at Sonoma State University  


 Pedestrian survey of the Project Area 
 Excavati n of one or two shovel tests approximately 50 cm wide and 60 cm deep in the area of 


potential � ect to examine buried soils 
 Recording of any historic or prehistoric resources found during the survey 
 A report of � ndings and recommendati ns 


 
Cost for the assessment and report is $1,800 .00. In the event cultural resources are located, Albion can, for a 
renegotia ed fee, work with the property owner (or agent) to determine an appropriate course of actio  under 
guidelines outlined by the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic 
Preservatio  Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality Act guidelines.  


If our proposal is acceptable to you, please sign the noti e to proceed below, email this le� er back to me at 
speelo@albionenvironmental.com. Please contact me at (831) 469-1774 if you have any questio s. 


Sincerely, 


 


Sarah Peelo, President 


 


 


313/746







314/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Soquel HS


Archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


315/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5 
1DODD_ATJEUB-6F6D7BA7CE894201ACD2FE8B9A8CF4E9.docx 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Cultural Resource 


Assessment at Soquel High School for the Site Infrastructure Project  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at Soquel High School for 
the site infrastructure project in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, 
HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality 
Act guidelines. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for Soquel High 
School site infrastructure project. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of cultural and physical 
artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these services to determine 
the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,500.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


316/746







 


 


July 30, 2018 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
Chris Garcia  
536 Palm St. 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


RE: Cultural Resources Assessment for Soquel High School, 401 Soquel San Jose Road, Santa Cruz, California   


Dear Mr. Garcia: 


Albion Environmental, Inc. is pleased to respond to your request for a proposal to conduct a cultural resource 
assessment at Soquel High School, 401 Soquel San Jose Road, Santa Cruz, California. Albion will provide the 
services of a qualified archaeologist(s) to complete an evaluati n that will include: 
 


 An expedited review of existing archaeological records located at the Northwest Informa� on Center 
at Sonoma State University  


 Pedestrian survey of the Project Area 
 Excavati n of one or two shovel tests approximately 50 cm wide and 60 cm deep in the area of 


potential � ect to examine buried soils 
 Recording of any historic or prehistoric resources found during the survey 
 A report of � ndings and recommendati ns 


 
Cost for the assessment and report is $1,800 .00. In the event cultural resources are located, Albion can, for a 
renegotia ed fee, work with the property owner (or agent) to determine an appropriate course of actio  under 
guidelines outlined by the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic 
Preservatio  Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality Act guidelines.  


If our proposal is acceptable to you, please sign the noti e to proceed below, email this le� er back to me at 
speelo@albionenvironmental.com. Please contact me at (831) 469-1774 if you have any questio s. 


Sincerely, 


 


Sarah Peelo, President 


 


 


317/746







318/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Branciforte MS


archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


319/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6 
1DODD_ATJEUB-1EFCD51D21254614B3B9710A0E60AF82 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Cultural Resource 


Assessment at Branciforte Middle School for the Utility 
Infrastructure Project  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at Branciforte Middle School 
for the utility infrastructure project in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; 
Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California 
Environmental Quality Act guidelines. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for Branciforte 
Middle School utility infrastructure project. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of cultural and 
physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these services to 
determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform our project 
planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,800.00, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


320/746







321/746







322/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Santa Cruz HS


Archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


323/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7 
1DODD_ATJEUB-2ED0EC0D82C5405DB7BE5A32293EDA80 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Cultural Resource 


Assessment at Santa Cruz High School for the Landscape & Site 
Utility Projects 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at Santa Cruz High school 
for the landscape & Site utility projects in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan 
(2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California 
Environmental Quality Act guidelines. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for Santa Cruz 
High school for the landscape & site utility projects. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of 
cultural and physical artifacts. Some public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these 
services to determine the probability of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform 
our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,800.00, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


324/746







325/746







326/746







Proposal: Albion Environmental: Westlake ES


Archaeological soil investigation


Separator Page


327/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8 
1DODD_ATJEUB-C395F3A20D2549828BCE9BA439799DA2.docx 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Albion Environmental Proposal for Cultural Resource 


Assessment at West Lake Elementary School  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Albion Environmental proposal for cultural resource assessment at West Lake Elementary 
School project in order to comply with the City of Santa Cruz General Plan (2030; Chapter 2, HA1.2), City of 
Santa Cruz Historic Preservation Ordinance 2003-14, and California Environmental Quality Act guidelines. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services for review of archeological records, pedestrian survey of the 
project area, excavation tests, recording and reporting of findings and recommendations for West Lake 
Elementary School. The City of Santa Cruz has a high concentration of cultural and physical artifacts. Some 
public concern was raised and we deemed it prudent to engage these services to determine the probability 
of finding artifacts in the soil in the areas of construction to inform our project planning. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $1,800.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.009% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


328/746







329/746







330/746







Agreement Amendment: Belli: Harbor HS athletic field


project and PG&E gas line relocation


Separator Page


331/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Belli Architectural Group Agreement Amendment for the 


Athletic Field Project and Addition of PG&E Gas Line Relocation at Harbor 
High School  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Belli Architectural Group agreement amendment for the athletic field project and 
addition of PG&E gas line relocation at Harbor High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a Master Agreement for Architectural Services with Belli Architectural 
Group on 1/17/18. An initial Agreement Amendment approving percentages went to the Board on 6/14/17. 
The revised Agreement Amendment for the Harbor High School Athletic Field project reflects the current 
estimated construction costs of the project and incorporates the PG&E gas line relocation.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$853,349.00, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 2.86% of the overall site budget 


 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


332/746







333/746







334/746







335/746







336/746







337/746







338/746







339/746







340/746







341/746







Change Order: Bowman & Williams: Harbor HS pool


project


Separator Page


342/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order #1 for Bowman & Williams for Additional 


Engineering Details for the Harbor High School Pool Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for Bowman & Williams for additional engineering detail services for the 
Harbor High School pool project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes preparation of additional engineering details of culverts and crossings. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $12,720.00  
Change Order #1   $462.50 (3.6% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $13,182.50  
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


343/746







344/746







Proposal: Butano: Harbor HS field project


Separator Page


345/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.11. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. Proposal and Standard 


Contract Terms for Testing and Inspection Services of the Modular and 
Restroom Building for the Harbor High School Athletic Field Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. proposal and standard contract terms for testing and 
inspection services of the modular and restroom building for the Harbor High school athletic field 
project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The preliminary plans for the Harbor High school athletic field project have been completed. The 
purpose of the observation, testing and inspections is to verify the construction of the modular and 
restroom building meets the standards of the DSA as outlined in DSA form 103 Increment 2. The District 
contacted multiple companies for testing and inspection services. The best value company was selected. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$36,147.89, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.12% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


346/746







                                                                                                                   


B U T A N O  G E O T E C H N I C A L  E N G I N E E R I N G ,  I N C .  
231 GREEN VALLEY ROAD, SUITE E, FREEDOM, CALIFORNIA 95019    


PHONE: 831.724.2612   


WWW.BUTANOGEOTECH.COM  


 


 
August 9, 2018 


 Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Rd.  
Soquel, CA 95073 
 
ATTENTION:  Trevor Miller  
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSAL FOR TESTING AND OBSERVATION 
 DSA Form 103 Increment #2 
 Construction Phase – Modular and Restroom Building 
   Proposed High School Track and Field with Accessory Elements  
   Harbor High School 
   300 La Fonda Avenue 
   Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California  
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
 


1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 


We are pleased to submit the following proposal to provide testing and inspection 
services in connection with the subject site.  


Our firm is certified by the DSA to conduct construction material testing and inspection 
services, Laboratory Evaluation and Acceptance #: LEA 317. As part of this proposal we 
have included inspection and testing services from an outside laboratory for steel and 
welding inspections. 


Butano Geotechnical Engineering Inc. has conducted the geotechnical and geologic 
investigations for this project. Our firm is uniquely qualified to perform the observations, 
testing and inspections of this project due to our familiarity with the site and our 
investment to the see the project move forward efficiently and effectively during the 
construction phase.  


2.0 PURPOSE 


The purpose of our observations, testing and inspection will be to verify the construction 
of the modular and restroom building to meet the standards of the DSA as outlined in in 
DSA form 103 Increment 2; List of Required Structural Tests & Special Inspections – 
2016 CBC. 


  


347/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 2 
 
 


3.0 SCOPE OF WORK 


We propose the following scope of work based on the DSA Listing of Structural Tests & 
Special Inspections (DSA-103): 


 Soil: 


• Verify that the site has been prepared properly prior to placement of 
controlled fill and/or excavations for foundations.  


• Verify that foundation excavations are extended to proper depths and 
have reached proper material. 


• Verify the material below footings are adequate to achieve the design 
bearing capacity. 


• Confirm adequate end strata bearing capacity.  
• Observe placement of soil reinforcement, drainage devices, and backfill. 
• Compaction testing of fill.  


  


 Concrete: 


• Test reinforcing steel 
• Test concrete air, slump, compression.  


 
Steel, Aluminum – Performed by Subcontractor: 


• Verify and identify all materials at the mill/yard. 
• Test unidentified materials. 
• Examine seam welds of HSS shapes. 
• Verify and document steel fabricator in the field. 
• Verify weld filler material identification and markings. 
• Verify weld filler material manufacturers certificate of compliance. 
• Verify WPS, welder qualifications and equipment. 


 • Shop welding inspection of single-pass fillet welds less than 5/16”, floor 
and roof deck welds.   


 
  


348/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 3 
 
 


4.0 FEE ESTIMATE 


Our fee estimate is based on time and expenses in accordance with the attached 
Schedule of Fees.  The time allotted for each task is based on the provided construction 
schedule and our experience with this size of project. The time spent on-site is 
extremely dependent on the contractors means and methods. All updates of the 
construction schedule should be provided for us to adjust our fee estimate accordingly.  


The actual amount breakdown, subject to variation among items, is as follows:  


  


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
SOIL
Subgrade Verify proper site preparation - subgrade 4 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 460.00


Site Demo and Grading - Clear and Grub Site Verify proper site preparation - subgrade 4 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 460.00


Site Demo and Grading Verify proper fill placement (Compaction 
testing) 58 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 6,670.00


Underground Utilities - All Verify proper fill placement (Compaction 
testing)


40 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 4,600.00


Site Concrete - All Verify material below footing, footing 
depths, and fill placement


40 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 4,600.00


Electrical - Trenches Verify proper fill placement (Compaction 
testing) 24 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 2,760.00


Foundations Verify proper excavation depth, material 
adequacy, and fill compaction 8 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 920.00


Mileage Cost for  trips 68 trips 38 miles/trip $0.535 per mile $ 1,382.44
TOTAL COST ESTIMATE SOIL 174 $ 21,392.44


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
CONCRETE


Verify use of proper mix design 4 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 460.00
Perform field tests (slump, temperature, etc.) 3 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 345.00
Test concrete (compression) 4 breaks at $ 50.00 per cylinder $ 200.00


Mileage Cost for 19 trips 45 miles/trip $0.535 per mile $ 457.43
$ 1,462.43


TOTAL COST ESTIMATE CONCRETE (Based on 4 Pours) $5,849.70


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
STEEL, ALUMINUM 


WPS - Review 1 hours at $ 125.00 per hour $ 125.00
Verify and indentify material 6 hours at $ 105.00 per hour $ 630.00
Shop welding inspections 19 hours at $ 105.00 per hour $ 1,995.00
Field welding inspections 6 hours at $ 105.00 per hour $ 630.00
Reports, mileage, and project coordination 5 hours at $ 125.00 per hour $ 625.00


TOTAL COST ESTIMATE STEEL, ALUMINUM (Cost + 15%) 36 $ 4,605.75


ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL


Project Coordination Letters, RFI Responses, and Submittals 20 hours at $ 150.00 per hour $ 3,000.00
Data Entry Compaction testing data and DSA uploads 20 hours at $ 65.00 per hour $ 1,300.00
TOTAL COST ESTIMATE ADMINISTRATIVE 40 $ 4,300.00


Total


Site Concrete - All (hours are per concrete pour)


Cost Esitmate for 1 Concrete Pour


$36,147.89


(Outside Laboratory)


349/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 4 
 
 
 
Our fees for observation, testing, and inspection are estimated at $36,147.89. We will 
not incur expenditure above $36,147.89 without your authorization.  Our charges will be 
billed at our standard hourly rates, and will reflect actual work and costs incurred, as 
dictated by the project requirements. Outside laboratory and subcontractor fees will be 
billed at cost plus 15%.  
 


5.0 SCHEDULE 


We are prepared to begin work on this project immediately upon your authorization.   
    


6.0 PRIOR TO THE START OUR FIELD EXPLORATION 


All available construction schedules, data, maps, drawings, and reports pertinent to the 
referenced site should be provided to us, when available.  The location of any 
underground utilities should be indicated to us at the site.  Site access should be made 
available.   


7.0  MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 


This Master Services Agreement (Agreement) is made by and between Butano 
Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. (BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.) with 
an address at 231 Green Valley Road, Suite E, Freedom, California 95019, and Santa 
Cruz City Schools (hereinafter referred to as CLIENT) with an address at 405 Old San 
Jose Road, Soquel, CA 95073. 
 
This Agreement consists of the following documents, which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 
 


• BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Proposal No. P18-
64.1 to CLIENT dated August 9, 2018.  


 • Any and all subsequent Proposals; and 


• CLIENT’s Agreement with OWNER dated (Prime Agreement) if applicable 
and any Amendments to the Prime Agreement.  


  


350/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 5 
 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings set forth below, 
the Parties agree as follows: 


7.1 PROPOSALS AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 


This Agreement anticipates the execution of the services (Services) as outlined in the 
Proposal and sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will provide CLIENT the services (Services) 
specified in BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Proposal.  Each 
Proposal shall define the scope of Services to be performed, the location of CLIENT’s 
project for providing such Services, the agreed-upon fees, and additional provisions, if 
any, applicable to such Services. 


7.2   STANDARD OF CARE  


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will perform its Services in a manner 
consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other members of 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s profession practicing in the same 
locality, under similar conditions and at the date the Services are provided.  Due to 
limitations in current technology, no level of assessment can conclusively determine 
whether a property or its structures are completely free of geotechnical hazards or 
hazardous substances (including mold).  CLIENT is advised to carefully review any 
other pertinent limitations described in the Proposal or in the scope of Services.  If 
included in the Services, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Services 
during construction will be limited to observation and testing of construction operations.  
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive inspection of the work, the means and methods of construction or the safety 
procedures employed by others.    


Performance of construction observation services does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee of any type, since even with diligent observation, some construction defects, 
deficiencies, or omissions may occur.  Parties agree that, before exercising any other 
remedy for any alleged breach by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. of 
the standard of care hereunder, CLIENT will direct BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. in writing to re-perform any defective Services.  BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will only sign certifications if approved by 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. in writing prior to start of Services.  
CLIENT understands that any such certifications are statements of professional opinion 
only.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. makes no other representation, 
guarantee, or warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral 
or written), report, opinion, or instrument of service provided under this Agreement. 


 


  


351/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 6 
 
 
7.3 BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will perform the Services as an 
independent contractor and shall not act as an agent or employee of CLIENT.  
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be solely responsible for the 
conduct of its own employees and for any of its employees’ compensation, benefits, 
contributions, and payroll taxes.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will, 
as directed by CLIENT or its agent, (i) provide qualified staff to perform the Services 
specified in the Proposal; (ii) maintain records of Project site activities and costs for a 
period of three (3) years from completion of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s services; (iii) work, to the extent reasonably possible, in 
coordination with CLIENT’s employees, contractors, consultants and other site staff so 
as not to impede the progress of the Project; and (iv) require its personnel to maintain a 
safe, clean and orderly work environment.  


7.4 TERM AND TERMINATION 


The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of execution of this Agreement, 
except as to Services authorized by CLIENT and performed by BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. prior to execution of this Agreement, and shall 
continue in effect for a period of two (2) years or until terminated by either party as 
provided herein.  Either party may terminate this Agreement or any Proposal at any 
time, with or without cause, by providing not less than ten (10) days advance written 
notice to the other party.  Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this 
Agreement will survive as to any and all Proposals signed by both Parties prior to the 
Agreement’s effective termination date, and until all of the rights and obligations of both 
Parties hereunder have been fulfilled.  CLIENT shall compensate BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. for all Services performed hereunder through 
the date of any termination and for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. in effecting the termination including, 
without limitation, non-cancelable commitments, fixed cost components, and other 
demobilization costs.   


7.5 COMPENSATION 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. may be compensated for its Services 
either on a time-and-materials or fixed-price basis or any other method as mutually 
agreed upon and as specified in each Proposal.  CLIENT agrees to provide any invoice 
format and contents requirements to BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
in advance of signing this Agreement.  Additional charges may apply to any contracting 
or invoicing specifications outside of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC.’s standard procedures.  CLIENT understands that time-and-materials pricing 
should be construed as an estimate only and that true costs may be higher or lower, 
depending on actual circumstances.  If a Proposal is to be performed on a time-and-
materials basis, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be reimbursed 
for all hours worked and other costs incurred at the rates and terms set forth in its then 


352/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 7 
 
 
current fee schedule.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall submit its 
invoices for Services rendered to CLIENT monthly.  The terms of payment are net thirty 
(30) days from date of invoice, with a one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month 
service charge on balances past due.  Interest on amounts that are past due shall be 
computed from the initial date of invoice.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC. may suspend performance of Services under this Agreement until BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. has been paid in full for all balances past due, 
including applicable service charges.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC. shall be entitled to recover all its attorneys’ fees and costs resulting from its efforts 
to secure payment from Client. 


7.6 INSURANCE 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. currently carries Worker's 
Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and Automobile Liability Insurance for 
bodily injury and property damage.  In addition, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. carries Professional Liability coverage.  


7.7 CHANGES 


CLIENT or BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. may request changes to 
the scope of Services by altering, adding to, or deleting from the Services to be 
performed by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.  Both Parties agree to 
negotiate in good faith to determine changes in scope, any needed equitable 
adjustment to the price and time for performance of the affected Proposal, and to 
execute an amended Proposal.  Should the total cost of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s performance under a Proposal be greater than the estimated 
amount, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will notify CLIENT.  Failure 
by both parties to renegotiate in good faith the terms and conditions of any Proposal 
may result in suspension of work without penalties, and termination of this Agreement 
by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.  


7.8 FORCE MAJEURE  


If the performance of Services by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. is 
affected by causes beyond its reasonable control, Force Majeure shall result.  Force 
Majeure includes acts of God; acts of a legislative, administrative, or judicial entity; acts 
of CLIENT’s separate contractors and consultants; war; fires; floods; labor disturbances; 
and unusually severe or unanticipated weather.   


7.9 CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


CLIENT agrees to (i) convey and discuss with BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. all available material, data, and information pertaining to the 
Services, including, without limitation, the composition, quantity, toxicity, or potentially 
hazardous properties of any material known or believed to be present at any site, any 


353/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 8 
 
 
hazards that may be present, the nature and location of underground or otherwise not 
readily apparent utilities, summaries and assessments of the site's past and present 
compliance status, and the status of any filed or pending judicial or administrative action 
concerning the site or Project; (ii) ensure the cooperation of CLIENT’s employees and 
separate contractors and consultants; and (iii) be solely responsible for determining 
whether the Project is subject to prevailing wage regulations and to notify BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. of such determination in advance of its 
proposal. 


7.10 ALLOCATION OF RISK 


Neither party shall be responsible to the other for any special, incidental, indirect, penal 
or consequential damages (including lost profits) incurred by either BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or CLIENT or for which either party may be 
liable to any third party. The indemnity obligations and the limitation of liability 
established below shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.   


• Indemnification of CLIENT.  Subject to the provisions and Limitation of 
Liability of this Agreement, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT, its shareholders, officers, 
directors, employees, and agents from and against any claims, suits, damages, 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, or other losses (collectively 
“Losses”) to the extent caused by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC.’s negligent performance of Services under this Agreement. 


• Indemnification of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
CLIENT will indemnify and hold harmless BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC., its shareholders, officers, directors, employees, and 
agents from and against Losses to the extent caused by the negligence of 
CLIENT, its employees, agents, and contractors.    


• CLIENT’s obligation to indemnify shall include any Losses, resulting from 
(1) a subsequent determination that the Project is subject to prevailing wage 
regulations, and (2) Losses arising from the existence, disposal, release, 
discharge, treatment or transportation of Hazardous Materials, the exposure of 
any person to, or any degradation of the environment due to Hazardous 
Materials.  


• Limitation of Liability: The total liability of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether based 
in contract or tort, shall be limited to the greater of the compensation actually 
paid to BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. for the Services under 
all Proposals or $50,000.  This limitation of liability shall include any Losses 
payable to Client under 7.10, Indemnification of CLIENT.  All claims by CLIENT 
against BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be deemed 
waived unless written notice of the claim has been provided to BUTANO 


354/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 9 
 
 


GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. within one (1) year after substantial 
completion of the Services performed under a particular Proposal.  CLIENT 
agrees that any claim or suit for damages made or filed against BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. by CLIENT will be made or filed solely 
against BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or its successors or 
assigns and that no shareholder or employee of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. shall be personally liable to CLIENT for damages under 
any circumstances.  This Limitation of Liability applies to any and all claims, no 
matter how pleaded, including claims for errors and omissions, breach of 
contract, negligence, or breach of fiduciary duty, and applies to all phases of 
Services performed under this Agreement.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s total liability to CLIENT and anyone claiming by, through, 
or under CLIENT for damages shall not exceed the percentage share that 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s negligence bears to the total 
negligence of all negligent entities and individuals. 


7.11 NO CONTROL OF MEANS AND METHODS OF OTHER 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will not have control over or charge 
of, nor be responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs of CLIENT’s separate 
contractors and consultants in connection with the Project.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s services do not include any job site safety obligations required 
by the project or any applicable code or regulation. 


7.12 SITE ACCESS 


CLIENT shall, as may be required by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
for the successful and timely completion of Services: (i) provide unimpeded and timely 
access to the site.; (ii) obtain Project-specific permits and licenses necessary for the 
performance of the Services. 


7.13 WARRANTY OF TITLE, WASTE OWNERSHIP 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. does not take title to any hazardous 
materials found at the project site.  Any risk of loss with respect to all materials shall 
remain with the project site owner, who shall be considered the generator of such 
materials, execute all manifests as the generator of such materials, and be liable for the 
arrangement, transportation, treatment, and/or disposal of all material.  All samples shall 
remain the property of the CLIENT.  CLIENT shall promptly, at its cost, remove and 
lawfully dispose of samples, cuttings, and hazardous materials.   


 


 


 


355/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.1 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 10 
 
 
7.14 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 


This Agreement does not create any right or benefit to anyone other than CLIENT and 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. and shall not be assigned by either 
party without the prior written approval of the other party.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC., however, may elect to subcontract portions of the Services to a 
qualified subcontractor. 


7.15 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


If a claim or dispute arises out of or relates to the interpretation, application, 
enforcement, or performance of Services under this Agreement, both Parties agree to 
attempt to resolve the claim or dispute  (1) at a meeting between the principals within 
fifteen (15) days of receipt by either party of a notice and description of the dispute and, 
failing resolution, (2) mediation in accordance with the AAA Construction Industry 
Mediation Rules then in effect within forty-five (45) days from service of written notice.  If 
the claim or dispute cannot be resolved through mediation and unless otherwise 
mutually agreed, either party may file suit in an appropriate court in the state of the 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. office entering into this Agreement.   


7.16  WAIVER OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS   


The failure of either Party in any one or more instances to enforce one or more of the 
terms or conditions of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or privilege in this 
Agreement, or the waiver by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or 
CLIENT of any breach of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as thereafter waiving any such terms, conditions, rights, or privileges, and the 
same shall continue and remain in force and effect as if no such waiver had occurred. 


7.17 SEVERABILITY 


Every term or condition of this Agreement is severable from the others.  Notwithstanding 
any possible future finding by a duly constituted authority that a particular term or 
provision is invalid, void, or unenforceable, this Agreement has been made with the 
clear intention that the validity and enforceability of the remaining parts, terms, and 
provisions shall not be affected thereby.    


7.18 GOVERNING LAWS 


This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be Santa Cruz County, California. 


 
  


356/746







357/746







358/746







359/746







360/746







361/746







362/746







363/746







Proposal: Butano: Harbor HS field project


Separator Page


364/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.12. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. Proposal and Standard 


Contract Terms for Testing and Inspection Services of Stadium Lighting 
for the Harbor High School Athletic Field Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. proposal and standard contract terms for testing and 
inspection services of stadium lighting for the Harbor High school athletic field project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The preliminary plans for the Harbor High school athletic field project have been completed. The 
purpose of the observation, testing and inspections is to verify the construction of the field stadium 
lighting is meeting the standards of the DSA as outlined in DSA form 103 Increment 3. The District 
contacted multiple companies for testing and inspection services. The best value company was selected. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$15,645.79, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.05% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


365/746







                                                                                                                   


B U T A N O  G E O T E C H N I C A L  E N G I N E E R I N G ,  I N C .  
231 GREEN VALLEY ROAD, SUITE E, FREEDOM, CALIFORNIA 95019    


PHONE: 831.724.2612   


WWW.BUTANOGEOTECH.COM  


 


 
August 9, 2018 


 Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Rd.  
Soquel, CA 95073 
 
ATTENTION:  Trevor Miller  
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSAL FOR TESTING AND OBSERVATION 
 DSA Form 103 Increment #3 
 Construction Phase – Musco Stadium Lighting 
   Proposed High School Track and Field with Accessory Elements  
   Harbor High School 
   300 La Fonda Avenue 
   Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz County, California  
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
 


1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 


We are pleased to submit the following proposal to provide testing and inspection 
services in connection with the subject site.  


Our firm is certified by the DSA to conduct construction material testing and inspection 
services, Laboratory Evaluation and Acceptance #: LEA 317. As part of this proposal we 
have included inspection and testing services from an outside laboratory for steel and 
welding inspections. 


Butano Geotechnical Engineering Inc. has conducted the geotechnical and geologic 
investigations for this project. Our firm is uniquely qualified to perform the observations, 
testing and inspections of this project due to our familiarity with the site and our 
investment to the see the project move forward efficiently and effectively during the 
construction phase.  


2.0 PURPOSE 


The purpose of our observations, testing and inspection will be to verify the construction 
of the stadium lighting to meet the standards of the DSA as outlined in in DSA form 103 
Increment 3; List of Required Structural Tests & Special Inspections – 2016 CBC. 


  


366/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 2 
 
 


3.0 SCOPE OF WORK 


We propose the following scope of work based on the DSA Listing of Structural Tests & 
Special Inspections (DSA-103): 


 Soil: 


• Verify that the site has been prepared properly prior to placement of 
controlled fill and/or excavations for foundations.  


• Compaction testing for underground utilities.  
• Inspect drilling operations, confirm pier locations, diameters, etc.  
• Confirm adequate end strata bearing capacity.  


  


 Concrete: 


• Test reinforcing steel. 
• Test concrete air, slump, compression.  
 
• Prestressed and Precast Concrete by Outside Laboratory (River City 


Testing All Sections). 
 
Steel, Aluminum – Performed by Subcontractor: 


• Steel and Aluminum by Outside Laboratory (River City Testing All Sections). 
 


  


367/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 3 
 
 


4.0 FEE ESTIMATE 


Our fee estimate is based on time and expenses in accordance with the attached 
Schedule of Fees.  The time allotted for each task is based on the provided construction 
schedule and our experience with this size of project. The time spent on-site is 
extremely dependent on the contractors means and methods. All updates of the 
construction schedule should be provided for us to adjust our fee estimate accordingly.  


The actual amount breakdown, subject to variation among items, is as follows:  


  


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
SOIL


Site Demo and Grading - Clear and Grub Site Verify proper site preparation - subgrade 2 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 230.00


Underground Utilities - All Verify proper fill placement (Compaction testing) 8 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 920.00


Inspect Drilling Operations Continuous observation of drilling 24 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 2,760.00


Confirm Adequacy of End Bearing Strata Verify proper excavation depth, material 
adequacy, and fill compaction 2 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 230.00


Mileage Cost for  trips 68 trips 38 miles/trip $0.535 per mile $ 1,382.44
TOTAL COST ESTIMATE SOIL $ 5,522.44


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
CONCRETE


Verify use of proper mix design 4 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 460.00
Perform field tests (slump, temperature, etc.) 3 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 345.00
Test concrete (compression) 4 breaks at $ 50.00 per cylinder $ 200.00


Mileage Cost for 19 trips 45 miles/trip $0.535 per mile $ 457.43
$ 1,462.43


TOTAL COST ESTIMATE CONCRETE (Based on 2 Pours) $2,924.85


PER DSA 103 AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL
PRESTRESSED CONCRETE, STEEL, ALUMINUM 
Lighting Verification Verify Musco Poles and Bases in Field 6 hours at $ 115.00 per hour $ 690.00
Outside Laboratory River City Testing Musco Pole Testing $ 3,700.00
TOTAL COST ESTIMATE STEEL, ALUMINUM (Cost + 15% on River City) $ 5,048.50


ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS TIME RATE SUBTOTAL


Project Coordination Letters, RFI Responses, and Submittals 10 hours at $ 150.00 per hour $ 1,500.00
Data Entry Compaction testing data and DSA uploads 10 hours at $ 65.00 per hour $ 650.00
TOTAL COST ESTIMATE ADMINISTRATIVE $ 2,150.00


Total


Site Concrete - All (hours are per concrete pour)


Cost Esitmate for 1 Concrete Pour


$15,645.79


Lump Sum


368/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 4 
 
 
 
Our fees for observation, testing, and inspection are estimated at $15,645.79. We will 
not incur expenditure above $15,645.79 without your authorization.  Our charges will be 
billed at our standard hourly rates, and will reflect actual work and costs incurred, as 
dictated by the project requirements. Outside laboratory and subcontractor fees will be 
billed at cost plus 15%.  
 


5.0 SCHEDULE 


We are prepared to begin work on this project immediately upon your authorization.   
    


6.0 PRIOR TO THE START OUR FIELD EXPLORATION 


All available construction schedules, data, maps, drawings, and reports pertinent to the 
referenced site should be provided to us, when available.  The location of any 
underground utilities should be indicated to us at the site.  Site access should be made 
available.   


7.0  MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 


This Master Services Agreement (Agreement) is made by and between Butano 
Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. (BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.) with 
an address at 231 Green Valley Road, Suite E, Freedom, California 95019, and Santa 
Cruz City Schools (hereinafter referred to as CLIENT) with an address at 405 Old San 
Jose Road, Soquel, CA 95073. 
 
This Agreement consists of the following documents, which are incorporated herein by 
reference: 
 


• BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Proposal No. P18-
64.2 to CLIENT dated August 9, 2018.  


 • Any and all subsequent Proposals; and 


• CLIENT’s Agreement with OWNER dated (Prime Agreement) if applicable 
and any Amendments to the Prime Agreement.  


  


369/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 5 
 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings set forth below, 
the Parties agree as follows: 


7.1 PROPOSALS AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 


This Agreement anticipates the execution of the services (Services) as outlined in the 
Proposal and sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will provide CLIENT the services (Services) 
specified in BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Proposal.  Each 
Proposal shall define the scope of Services to be performed, the location of CLIENT’s 
project for providing such Services, the agreed-upon fees, and additional provisions, if 
any, applicable to such Services. 


7.2   STANDARD OF CARE  


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will perform its Services in a manner 
consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other members of 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s profession practicing in the same 
locality, under similar conditions and at the date the Services are provided.  Due to 
limitations in current technology, no level of assessment can conclusively determine 
whether a property or its structures are completely free of geotechnical hazards or 
hazardous substances (including mold).  CLIENT is advised to carefully review any 
other pertinent limitations described in the Proposal or in the scope of Services.  If 
included in the Services, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s Services 
during construction will be limited to observation and testing of construction operations.  
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive inspection of the work, the means and methods of construction or the safety 
procedures employed by others.    


Performance of construction observation services does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee of any type, since even with diligent observation, some construction defects, 
deficiencies, or omissions may occur.  Parties agree that, before exercising any other 
remedy for any alleged breach by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. of 
the standard of care hereunder, CLIENT will direct BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. in writing to re-perform any defective Services.  BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will only sign certifications if approved by 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. in writing prior to start of Services.  
CLIENT understands that any such certifications are statements of professional opinion 
only.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. makes no other representation, 
guarantee, or warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral 
or written), report, opinion, or instrument of service provided under this Agreement. 


 


  


370/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 6 
 
 
7.3 BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will perform the Services as an 
independent contractor and shall not act as an agent or employee of CLIENT.  
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be solely responsible for the 
conduct of its own employees and for any of its employees’ compensation, benefits, 
contributions, and payroll taxes.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will, 
as directed by CLIENT or its agent, (i) provide qualified staff to perform the Services 
specified in the Proposal; (ii) maintain records of Project site activities and costs for a 
period of three (3) years from completion of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s services; (iii) work, to the extent reasonably possible, in 
coordination with CLIENT’s employees, contractors, consultants and other site staff so 
as not to impede the progress of the Project; and (iv) require its personnel to maintain a 
safe, clean and orderly work environment.  


7.4 TERM AND TERMINATION 


The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of execution of this Agreement, 
except as to Services authorized by CLIENT and performed by BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. prior to execution of this Agreement, and shall 
continue in effect for a period of two (2) years or until terminated by either party as 
provided herein.  Either party may terminate this Agreement or any Proposal at any 
time, with or without cause, by providing not less than ten (10) days advance written 
notice to the other party.  Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this 
Agreement will survive as to any and all Proposals signed by both Parties prior to the 
Agreement’s effective termination date, and until all of the rights and obligations of both 
Parties hereunder have been fulfilled.  CLIENT shall compensate BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. for all Services performed hereunder through 
the date of any termination and for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. in effecting the termination including, 
without limitation, non-cancelable commitments, fixed cost components, and other 
demobilization costs.   


7.5 COMPENSATION 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. may be compensated for its Services 
either on a time-and-materials or fixed-price basis or any other method as mutually 
agreed upon and as specified in each Proposal.  CLIENT agrees to provide any invoice 
format and contents requirements to BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
in advance of signing this Agreement.  Additional charges may apply to any contracting 
or invoicing specifications outside of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC.’s standard procedures.  CLIENT understands that time-and-materials pricing 
should be construed as an estimate only and that true costs may be higher or lower, 
depending on actual circumstances.  If a Proposal is to be performed on a time-and-
materials basis, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be reimbursed 
for all hours worked and other costs incurred at the rates and terms set forth in its then 


371/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 7 
 
 
current fee schedule.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall submit its 
invoices for Services rendered to CLIENT monthly.  The terms of payment are net thirty 
(30) days from date of invoice, with a one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month 
service charge on balances past due.  Interest on amounts that are past due shall be 
computed from the initial date of invoice.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC. may suspend performance of Services under this Agreement until BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. has been paid in full for all balances past due, 
including applicable service charges.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC. shall be entitled to recover all its attorneys’ fees and costs resulting from its efforts 
to secure payment from Client. 


7.6 INSURANCE 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. currently carries Worker's 
Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and Automobile Liability Insurance for 
bodily injury and property damage.  In addition, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. carries Professional Liability coverage.  


7.7 CHANGES 


CLIENT or BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. may request changes to 
the scope of Services by altering, adding to, or deleting from the Services to be 
performed by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.  Both Parties agree to 
negotiate in good faith to determine changes in scope, any needed equitable 
adjustment to the price and time for performance of the affected Proposal, and to 
execute an amended Proposal.  Should the total cost of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s performance under a Proposal be greater than the estimated 
amount, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will notify CLIENT.  Failure 
by both parties to renegotiate in good faith the terms and conditions of any Proposal 
may result in suspension of work without penalties, and termination of this Agreement 
by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.  


7.8 FORCE MAJEURE  


If the performance of Services by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. is 
affected by causes beyond its reasonable control, Force Majeure shall result.  Force 
Majeure includes acts of God; acts of a legislative, administrative, or judicial entity; acts 
of CLIENT’s separate contractors and consultants; war; fires; floods; labor disturbances; 
and unusually severe or unanticipated weather.   


7.9 CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


CLIENT agrees to (i) convey and discuss with BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. all available material, data, and information pertaining to the 
Services, including, without limitation, the composition, quantity, toxicity, or potentially 
hazardous properties of any material known or believed to be present at any site, any 


372/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 8 
 
 
hazards that may be present, the nature and location of underground or otherwise not 
readily apparent utilities, summaries and assessments of the site's past and present 
compliance status, and the status of any filed or pending judicial or administrative action 
concerning the site or Project; (ii) ensure the cooperation of CLIENT’s employees and 
separate contractors and consultants; and (iii) be solely responsible for determining 
whether the Project is subject to prevailing wage regulations and to notify BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. of such determination in advance of its 
proposal. 


7.10 ALLOCATION OF RISK 


Neither party shall be responsible to the other for any special, incidental, indirect, penal 
or consequential damages (including lost profits) incurred by either BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or CLIENT or for which either party may be 
liable to any third party. The indemnity obligations and the limitation of liability 
established below shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.   


• Indemnification of CLIENT.  Subject to the provisions and Limitation of 
Liability of this Agreement, BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CLIENT, its shareholders, officers, 
directors, employees, and agents from and against any claims, suits, damages, 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, or other losses (collectively 
“Losses”) to the extent caused by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, 
INC.’s negligent performance of Services under this Agreement. 


• Indemnification of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
CLIENT will indemnify and hold harmless BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC., its shareholders, officers, directors, employees, and 
agents from and against Losses to the extent caused by the negligence of 
CLIENT, its employees, agents, and contractors.    


• CLIENT’s obligation to indemnify shall include any Losses, resulting from 
(1) a subsequent determination that the Project is subject to prevailing wage 
regulations, and (2) Losses arising from the existence, disposal, release, 
discharge, treatment or transportation of Hazardous Materials, the exposure of 
any person to, or any degradation of the environment due to Hazardous 
Materials.  


• Limitation of Liability: The total liability of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether based 
in contract or tort, shall be limited to the greater of the compensation actually 
paid to BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. for the Services under 
all Proposals or $50,000.  This limitation of liability shall include any Losses 
payable to Client under 7.10, Indemnification of CLIENT.  All claims by CLIENT 
against BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. shall be deemed 
waived unless written notice of the claim has been provided to BUTANO 


373/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 9 
 
 


GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. within one (1) year after substantial 
completion of the Services performed under a particular Proposal.  CLIENT 
agrees that any claim or suit for damages made or filed against BUTANO 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. by CLIENT will be made or filed solely 
against BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or its successors or 
assigns and that no shareholder or employee of BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC. shall be personally liable to CLIENT for damages under 
any circumstances.  This Limitation of Liability applies to any and all claims, no 
matter how pleaded, including claims for errors and omissions, breach of 
contract, negligence, or breach of fiduciary duty, and applies to all phases of 
Services performed under this Agreement.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s total liability to CLIENT and anyone claiming by, through, 
or under CLIENT for damages shall not exceed the percentage share that 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC.’s negligence bears to the total 
negligence of all negligent entities and individuals. 


7.11 NO CONTROL OF MEANS AND METHODS OF OTHER 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. will not have control over or charge 
of, nor be responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs of CLIENT’s separate 
contractors and consultants in connection with the Project.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC.’s services do not include any job site safety obligations required 
by the project or any applicable code or regulation. 


7.12 SITE ACCESS 


CLIENT shall, as may be required by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. 
for the successful and timely completion of Services: (i) provide unimpeded and timely 
access to the site.; (ii) obtain Project-specific permits and licenses necessary for the 
performance of the Services. 


7.13 WARRANTY OF TITLE, WASTE OWNERSHIP 


BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. does not take title to any hazardous 
materials found at the project site.  Any risk of loss with respect to all materials shall 
remain with the project site owner, who shall be considered the generator of such 
materials, execute all manifests as the generator of such materials, and be liable for the 
arrangement, transportation, treatment, and/or disposal of all material.  All samples shall 
remain the property of the CLIENT.  CLIENT shall promptly, at its cost, remove and 
lawfully dispose of samples, cuttings, and hazardous materials.   


 


 


 


374/746







Proposal for Inspection and Testing  August 9, 2018 
Harbor Field House  Proposal No. P18-64.2 
Santa Cruz, California  Page 10 
 
 
7.14 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 


This Agreement does not create any right or benefit to anyone other than CLIENT and 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. and shall not be assigned by either 
party without the prior written approval of the other party.  BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING, INC., however, may elect to subcontract portions of the Services to a 
qualified subcontractor. 


7.15 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


If a claim or dispute arises out of or relates to the interpretation, application, 
enforcement, or performance of Services under this Agreement, both Parties agree to 
attempt to resolve the claim or dispute  (1) at a meeting between the principals within 
fifteen (15) days of receipt by either party of a notice and description of the dispute and, 
failing resolution, (2) mediation in accordance with the AAA Construction Industry 
Mediation Rules then in effect within forty-five (45) days from service of written notice.  If 
the claim or dispute cannot be resolved through mediation and unless otherwise 
mutually agreed, either party may file suit in an appropriate court in the state of the 
BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. office entering into this Agreement.   


7.16  WAIVER OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS   


The failure of either Party in any one or more instances to enforce one or more of the 
terms or conditions of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or privilege in this 
Agreement, or the waiver by BUTANO GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING, INC. or 
CLIENT of any breach of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as thereafter waiving any such terms, conditions, rights, or privileges, and the 
same shall continue and remain in force and effect as if no such waiver had occurred. 


7.17 SEVERABILITY 


Every term or condition of this Agreement is severable from the others.  Notwithstanding 
any possible future finding by a duly constituted authority that a particular term or 
provision is invalid, void, or unenforceable, this Agreement has been made with the 
clear intention that the validity and enforceability of the remaining parts, terms, and 
provisions shall not be affected thereby.    


7.18 GOVERNING LAWS 


This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California.  Venue shall be Santa Cruz County, California. 


 
  


375/746







376/746







377/746







378/746







379/746







380/746







381/746







382/746







Change Order #1: CRW Industries, Inc.: Mission Hill MS


front landscape


Separator Page


383/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.13 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for CRW Industries, Inc. for Initial Alcove 


and Storage Room Demolition for the Mission Hill Middle School 
Front Landscape Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for CRW Industries, Inc. for initial alcove and storage room demolition 
for the Mission Hill Middle School front landscape project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes additional charges for the initial demo and disposal of items necessary 
for the upcoming conversion of the existing alcove and storage room into an accessible toilet 
room to accommodate the needs of a disabled student that will attend the school in the upcoming 
school year.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $454,060.00  
Change Order #1   $15,000.00 (3.1% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $469,060.00  
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


384/746







385/746







 


P R O P O S A L


R E Q U E S T
 


01


 
PROJECT MHMS-Front Landscape Improvements DATE ISSUED July 18, 2018
OWNER Santa Cruz City Schools PROJECT NUMBER 17-008.3
   


   
TO Bill Burr   
 CRW Industries, Inc.   


 
Please provide a single and complete Proposal for Changes in the Contract Sum for the following scope of 
work. Please list each item with price separately as appropriate. 


ITEM DESCRIPTION  


 
1 Demolition of Interiors in Alcove and Storage Room 


Demolish and dispose of all items necessary in order to convert “restroom” in to a new accessible toilet room.  
 


Reference 


• We will email you a link to download the original documentation. 
 


Demolish 


• Remove existing flooring materials to expose existing concrete subfloor. Clean floor to prep for new 
flooring materials 


• Remove existing partitions as indicated on attached diagram. Properly shore all existing construction 
as necessary. Prep construction for installation of new door and frame. 


• Remove all existing ceiling tiles. Retain existing ceiling grid. (Protect in place). Prep for installation of 
replacement tiles. (NOTE: ceiling grid will have to be modified where adjacent to new furred chase)\ 


• Remove existing brick construction (“step”) at north-west corner. Note this configuration is part of a 
former incinerator compartment.  


• Protect and retain, existing HVAC registers, and Lighting fixtures.  
• Protect and retain existing soffit (created with existing ceiling grid/SAT) assumed to hold ducting for 


registers. 
• New concrete cores will be required for new toilet and floor drain.  Verify to the extent possible 


location of existing slab rebar.  This is a suspended concrete slab, supported by concrete beams. 
ENSURE that cores are NOT placed at location of beams. 


• As part of demolition process.  verify optimal location for new plumbing vent through existing roof. 
This roof is also concrete. 


 
Schedule 


• Provide proposal for this demolition on Monday 23 July 2018 
• Anticipated Change Order Approval Monday 23 July 2018 
• Demolition July 22 – 27 


 
 END OF REQUEST


  
 ISSUED BY Laszlo Petrik


lp@bartosarchitecture.com


 


386/746







387/746







388/746







Contract: CWS Construction Group: Harbor HS locker


improvements project


Separator Page


389/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.14 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the CWS Construction Group, Inc. Bid and Contract for Removal 


of Existing Benches, Lockers and Platforms and Install of New at 
Harbor High School for the Student Locker Improvements Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the CWS Construction Group, Inc. bid and contract for removal of existing benches, lockers 
and platforms and install of new at Harbor High School for the student locker improvements project. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of demo of existing benches, lockers and locker platforms and the installation of 
new lockers, security grilles and benches for the Harbor student locker improvements project.  
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised 
in the local newspapers. Five bids were received. CWs Construction Group, Inc. was the successful 
low bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
CWS Construction Group Novato $136,000.00 
OTTO Construction Santa Cruz $224,000.00 
Knowlton Construction Freedom $174,564.00 
RK & Associates Union City $245,000.00 
California Premier Restoration Monterey $172,808.44 
LOW BID CWS Construction Group, Inc. $136,000.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to CWS Construction Group, Inc. the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$136,000.00, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.45% of the site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


390/746







391/746







392/746







Contract: D & T Painting: Santa Cruz HS gym vestibule


& RR paint


Separator Page


393/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.15 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the D and T Painting Bid and Contract for Painting the 


Vestibule and Restrooms Interior at Santa Cruz High School for 
the Gymnasium Painting Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the D and T Painting bid and contract for painting the vestibule and restroom 
interior at Santa Cruz High school for the gymnasium painting project. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
This is a Maintenance Project that consists of materials and labor to paint the gymnasium 
vestibule and restroom interiors at Santa Cruz High School.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$62,000.00, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.19% of the Santa Cruz High 
School site budget  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse 
community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


394/746







AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR


This Agreement effective July 18, 2018, by and between Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz County,
California, hereinafter called the "Owner" and D and T Painting, hereinafter called the "Contractor."


WTNESSETH: That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter named agree as


follows:


ARTICLE l. SCOPE OF WORK. The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials,
including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the work in a good and
workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers,
subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for:


Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium Vestibule and Toilet Rooms lnterior Painting Project,


The extent of work includes but is not limited to the Proposal Request issued on july 03, 2018 by Bartos
Architecture, which describes the following information;


. Lead containing paint removal/stabilization as described in lead abatement technical
specifications. See document dated March 19, 2018 and Addendum dated June 25,20!8.


. Labor, materials, and equipment to paint all interior surfaces at the Gymnasium Vestibule and
Toilet Rooms, per drawing issued with proposal request dated July 03,2018 and paint technical
specifications issued in the Gymnasium lnterior Painting Project Manual, dated May 17,2018.


. ln the Gymnasium, re-paint resonators trim.


' Cleaning.


all in strict compliance with the coordination therefore provided by:


Bartos Architecture
1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225


San Mateo, CA94402


and other contract documents relating thereto.


Article ll, Contract Documents
The Contractor and the Owner agree that all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General
Conditions forrn the Contract Documents which form the Contract.


Article lll, Time to Complete and Llquidated Damages
Time is of the essence in this contract, and the time of completion for this Project shall be by
06 August, 2018. Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the
Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages of 5250.00 for each calendar day
by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date. The actual occurrence of
damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the Project were not
completed within the specified times set forth are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions
which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and
extremely difficult to fix the actual damages. Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of
delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of
administration, supervision and the loss suffered by the public. Accordingly, the parties agree that the
amount set forth above shall be presumed to be the amount of damages which the Owner shall directly
incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within the time specified, during or as a result
of each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date. lf the


395/746







Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a default by reason of delays,


the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification of any Agreement
provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated damages.
lf the Contractor becomes liable under this section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies provided


by law, shall have the right to withhold any and all retained percentages of payments and/or progress


payments, and to collect the interest thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor
until the liability of the Contrastor under this section has been finally determined. lf the retained
percentages and withheld progress payments appear insufficient to discharge all liabilities of the
Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to
the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are satisfied in full.


Article lV, Payments
The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor's
performance of the Contract and to make payments on account thereof as provided in the General


Conditions. The Contract Sum shall be Sixty Two Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($62,000.00).


The Contract Sum is based upon the following Alternates, which are described in the Contract Documents
and are hereby accepted by the Owner:
Not Applicable.


Article v, changes
Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement shall be made as provided in


the General Conditions.


Article Vl, Termination
The Agreement may be terminated as provided in the General Conditions.


Article Vll, Prevailing Wages


Pursuanttotheprovisionsof Section LTTOelseq.of theLaborCodeof theStateof California,whichare
hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, the Director of lndustrial Relations has


determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and


overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of
worker needed to execute this Contract. Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments


for health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar
purposes. Copies of the rates are on file at the Owner's principal office and are available upon request.
The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this
Project is the rate established by the applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is


hereby adopted by reference and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of
the Department of lndustrial Relations determines that another rate be adopted. lt shall be mandatory
upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers
employed in the execution of this Agreement.


The Contractor and any subcontraclor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not
more than Fifty Dollars (5SO.OO1 for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid less than
the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed. The difference
between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day


or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be
paid to each worker by the Contractor or Subcontractor.


The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work on this
Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight time and


overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by them in
connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the


396/746







actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to
inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor Law


Enforcement of the State Department of Industrial Relations. Contractor and Subcontractor shall comply
with Labor Code section 1776.


Article Vlll, Working Hours
ln accordance with the provisions of Sections 1810 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of
California, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereot the time of service of any worker
employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work
contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one calendar day and


forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by such employee in


excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation for all hours
worked in excess ofeight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and


one-half (1%) times the basic rate of pay. The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate


record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by


each worker employed by them in connection with the Work. The records shall be kept open at all


reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Law


Enforcement. The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-five Dollars (S25.00) for each


worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each


calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one


calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided.


Article lX, Apprentices
The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, Sections 1777 .5 and 1777.6 of lhe
California Labor Code, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof. These sections require


that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not


less than one hour of apprentice's work for each five hours of work performed by a journeyman (unless


an exemption is granted in accordance with Section 1777.51and that contractors and subcontractors shall


not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works


solely on the ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color. Only apprentices as


defined in Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have


signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.
The responsibility for compliance with these provisions and Labor Code section !777 .5 is fixed with the
Contraclor for all apprenticeable occupations.
Article X, lndemnification and lnsurance
The Contractor will defend, indemnifo and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents,


trustees, and employees as provided in the Contract Documents.


By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers' Compensation in
compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and during the performance of
the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of said Code. The


Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers' Compensation
lnsurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation.


Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.


Artlcle Xl, Entire Agreement
The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the Project, and


supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or written, including the
Owner's award of the Project to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly incorporated herein. The


Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract. The


Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the parties' agreement pursuant to Code


of Civil Procedure section 1856.


397/746







Article Xll, Execution of Other Documents
The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in


the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect


to the terms and intent of the contract.


ARTICLE XIII. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS


This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate


signature pages. A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully


executed Agreement.


Article xlv, Binding Effect
Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and


the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.


The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Owner and


their respective successors and assigns.


Article XV, Severability
lf any provision of the Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction,


such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. The Contract shall


be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or


with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for


the County of Santa Clara, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law.


Article XVl, Amendments
The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any


manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the


Governing Board.


Article XVll, Assignment of Contract
The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights,


burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the


surety on the performance bond and the Owner.


398/746







399/746







General Conditions


for


Contract of Construction


For


Gymnasium Vestibule and Toilet Rooms lnterior Painting
Santa Cruz High School


Santa Cruz City Schools


18 July 2018


400/746







Table of Contents


ARTICLE 1: General Condltions...


ARTICLE 4: Administratlon of the Contract.......


ARTICIE 7: Changes in the Work.


ARTICIE 9: Payments and Comp|etion.................


ARTrcE 10: Protection of Persons and Property


Article 11: lnsurance and Bonds....


ARilCIE t2: Uncovering and Correction of Work........


ARTICIE 13: Mlscellaneous Provisions...................


ARTICIE 14: Termination or Suspension of the Contract.......


Note: Strikethrough sectlons in this documents shall not be considered part of the contract.


Page 1


Page2


Page 3


Page 6


Page 9


Page 10


Page 10


Page 12


Page 14


Page 16


Page 17


Page 18


Page 19


Page 20


401/746







ARflCLE 1: General Conditions


1.1 Basic Definitions


t.t.! The Contract Documents
The Contract Documents consist of the Agreement between Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the
Agreement), Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings,
Specifications, addenda issued prior to bid, instructions to bidders, notice to bidders, the Proposal,
Payment Bond, Performance Bond, required insurance certificates, additional insured endorsement and
declarations page, Designation of Subcontractors, Noncollusion Declaration, and the Fingerprinting Notice
and Acknowledgment and lndependent Contractor Student Contact Form, other documents referred to in
the Agreement, and written modifications issued after execution of the Agreement.


L.1.2 The Contract
The Contrad Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create any kind of
contractual relationship other than between the Owner and Contractor.


1.1.3 The Work
The Work shall include all labor, materials, services, manuals, training as-builts, and equipment necessary
for the Contractor to fulfill all of its obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents.


!.L.4 The Proiect
The Project is the total construction of the Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents
in whole or in part and which may include construction by the Owner or by separate contractors.


1.1.5 The Drawings
The Drawings are graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents prepared for the Project and
approved changes thereto, wherever located and whenever issued, showing the design, location, and
scope of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams as


drawn or approved by the Architect.


t.L.6 TheSpecifications
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for
material, equipment, construction systems, instructions, quality assurance standards, workmanship, and
performance of related services.


1.t.7 The Project Manual
The Project Manual is the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include, without limitation,
the bidding requirements, sample forms, Agreement, Conditions of the Contract, and Specifications.


t.2 Execution, Correlation and lntent
The Contract Documents are complementary and are intended to include all items required for the proper
execution and completion of the Work. Any item of work mentioned in the Specifications and not shown
on the Drawings, or shown on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be provided by
Contractor as if shown or mentioned in both. ln the event there is a discrepancy between the various
Contrad Documents, the Agreement shall control unless there is not an applicable provision in the
Agreement, in which case the Conditions (General, Supplementary or other Conditions) shall control.
Without limiting Contractor's obligation to identifo conflicts for resolution by the Architect, it is intended
that the more stringent, higher quality, and greater quantity of Work shall apply. Each and every
provision of law required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and
the Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or
otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon application of either
party the Contract shall be amended in writing to make such insertion or correction.


1.3 Ownerchip and Use of Architect's Drawings, Specifications and Other Documents
The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared on behalf of the Owner are instruments of
the services of the Architect and its consultants and are the property of the Owner. The Contractor may


retain one contract record set.


402/746







ARTICIE 2 Owner


2.L Definitlon
The term "Owner" means the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to
throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the
Owner's authorized representative.


2.2 Existing Utility Lines, Site Suruey; Contractor Reliance
Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, the Owner assumes the responsibility for removal, relocation,
and protection of utilities located on the Site at the time of commencernent of construction under this
Contract with respect to any such utility facilities which are not identified in the drawings and specifications
made part of the invitation to bid. The Contractor shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in
completion of the Project caused by failure of the Owner to provide for removal or relocation of such utility
facilities. Owner shall compensate the Contractor for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to
the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care, removing or relocating such utility facilities, and
for equipment necessarily idle during such work.


When required by the scope of the Project, the Owner will furnish, at its expense, a legal description or a
land survey of the site, giving, as applicablg grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, adjoining
property, rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning deed restrictions, boundaries, and
contours of the site. Surveys to determine locations of construction, grading, and site work shall be
provided by the Contractor.


Any test borings and soils reports for the Project have been made for the Owner to indicate the subsurface
materials that might be encountered at particular locations on the Project. The Owner has made these
documents available to the Contractor and the Contractor has studied the results of such test borings and
information that it has as to the subsurface conditions and Site geology as set forth in the test borings and
soils reports. The Owner does not assume any responsibility whatsoever with respect to the sufficiency or
accuracy of the borings made, or of the logs of the test borings, or of other investigations, or of the soils
reports furnished pursuant hereto, or of the interpretations to be made beyond the location or depth of
the borings. There is no warranty or guarantee, either express or implied that the conditions indicated by
such investigations, borings, logs, soil reports or other information are representative of those existing
throughout the site of the Project, or any part thereof, or that unforeseen developments may not occur. At
the Owner's request, the Contractor shall make available to the Owner the results of any Site investigation,
test borings, analyses, studies or other tests conducted by or in the possession of the Contractor of any of
its agents. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a waiver by the Contractor to pursue any available
legal right or remedy it may have at any time against any third party who may have prepared any report
and/or test relied upon by the Contractor.


The Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of any utility services or site survey information that the District
may provide, except that the Contractor may not rely upon and must question in writing to the Owner and
the Architect any information which appears incorrect based upon Contractor's Site inspection, knowledge
of the Project, and prior experience with similar projects, unless specifically stated in writing that the
Contractor may rely upon the designated information.


2.3 Owne/s Right to Stop the Work
lf the Contractor fails to correct Work, which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents as required by paragraph t2.2, or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents, the Owner, by written order signed personally or by an agent specifically so


empowered by the Owner in writing, may order the Contractor to stop the Work or any portion thereof,
until the cause for such order has been eliminated.


2.4 o,rrne/s Right to Carry out the Work
lf the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and
fails (within a seven-day period after receipt of written notice or the time period expressly stated in the
written notice from the Owner) to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with
diligence and promptness, the Owner may correct such deficiencies by whatever reasonable method the


403/746







Owner may deem expedient without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, and may withhold
for the cost of such correction.


ARTICIE 3 The Contractor


3.1 Definition
The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The term "Contractor" means the Contractor or the
Contractor's authorized representatives. To the extent that any portion of the Work is provided with the
Contractor's own forces, any reference to Subcontractors shall be equally applicable to the Contractor. lf
any of the Work is performed by contractors retained directly by the Owner, Contractor shall be responsible
for the coordination and sequencing of the Work of those other contractors so as to avoid any impact on


the Project Schedule.


3.2 Supervision and Construction Procedures


3.2.1 Contractor
The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor's best skill and attention. The


Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences, procedures, and coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless Contract
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.


3.2.2 ContractorResponsibillty
The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor's employees,


Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, and their agents, employees, invitees, and other
persons performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor or any of its


Subcontractors.


3.2.3 Obligations not Changed by Architect's Actions
The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract


Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect's administration of the Contract,


or by activities or duties of the lnspector of Record, or by tests, inspections, or approvals required or
performed by persons other than the Contractor.


3.2.4 Contractor Responsibility for Readiness for Work
The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of Work already performed under the Contract
Documents to determine that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent work.


Superintendent
The Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent and assistants as necessary, all of whom shall be


reasonably proficient in speaking reading and writing English and, who shall be in attendance at the Project


site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and


communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. The


Contractor and each Subcontractor shall: furnish a competent and adequate staff as necessary for the
proper administration, coordination, supervision, and superintendence of its portion of the Work; organize


the procurement of all materials and equipment so that the materials and equipment will be available at
the time they are needed for the Work; and keep an adequate force of skilled workers on the job to
complete the Work in accordance with all requirements of the Contract Documents. Owner shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to require the removal from the Project of any superintendent, staff member,


agent, or employee of any Contractor, Subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, etc., for cause.


3.3


404/746







3.3 Labor and Materials
Unless othennise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
material, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation,
and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work whether
temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. The
Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make
its parts fit together properly.


Warranty
The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that material and equipment furnished under the
Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract
Documents, that the Work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and
that the Work will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents, per Section 12.2.


Taxes


Contractor will pay all applicable Federal, State, and local taxes on all materials, labor, or services furnished
by it, and all taxes arising out of its operations under the Contract Documents. Owner is exempt from
Federal Excise Tax, and a Certificate of Exemption shall be provided upon request.


Permits, Fees and l{otices
The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and governmental fees, licenses, and inspections
necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work which are customarily secured after execution
of the Contract and are legally required by any authority having jurisdiction over the Project, except those
required by the Division of the State Architect (DSA).


Allowances
The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. ltems
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner
may direct, but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities against whom the
Contractor makes reasonable and timely objection.


Contractor's Construction Schedules
The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's and
the Architect's information the construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time
limits current under the Contract Documents and shall comply with all of the scheduling as required by
Division 1 of the Specifications. Failure of the Contractor to provide proper schedules as required by this
paragraph may, at the sole discretion of Owner, constitute either grounds to withhold, in whole or in part,
progress payments to the Contractor, or a breach of contract allowing Owner to terminate the Agreement
between Owner and Contractor.


3.7


3.4


3.6


3.8


3.9


3.10 Documents and Samples atthe Slte
The Contractor shall maintain at the Site for the Owner one applicable copy of Titles 19 and 24 and record
copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, and other Modifications, in good order and
marked currently to record changes and selections made during construction. ln addition, the Contractor
shall maintain at the Site approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals.


405/746







3.LL


3.12


Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples


3.11.1.1 Shop Drawings
The term "shop drawings" as used herein means drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data, which are
prepared by Contractor, Subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors illustrating some portion
of the Work. The Contractor shall obtain and submit with the shop drawings all seismic and other
calculations and all product data from equipment manufacturers. Shop drawings shall: establish the actual
detail of all manufactured or fabricated items, indicate proper relation to adjoining work, amplifu design


details of mechanical and electrical systems and equipment in proper relation to physical spaces in the
structure, and incorporate minor changes of design or construction to suit actual conditions.


3.LL.7.2 Samples.
The term "samples" as used herein are physical examples furnished by Contractor to illustrate materials,
equipment or quality. All Work shall be in accordance with the approved samples.


3.Lt.L.3 Controdor's Responsibility.
Contractor shall obtain and shall submit to Architect all required shop drawings and samples in accordance


with Contractor's "schedule for Submission of Shop Drawings and Samples" as required in the Specifications


with such promptness as to cause no delay in its own Work or in that of any other contractor, Owner or
subcontractor but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the execution of the Agreement. Review by


Owner and Architect shall not relieve the Contractor or any Subcontractor from its responsibility in
preparing and submitting proper shop drawingq product data and samples in accordance with the Contract
Documents, Any submission, which in Architect's opinion is incomplete, contains numerous errors, or has


been checked only superficially by Contractor will be returned unreviewed by the Architect for resubmission


by the Contractor. Contractor shall not commence any portion of the Work requiring a shop drawing or
sample submission until the Architect has approved the submission.


3.11.1.4 Extent of Review.
ln reviewing shop drawings, the Architect will not verify dimensions and field conditions. The Architect will
review and approve shop drawings, product data, and samples for aesthetics and for conformance with the
design concept of the Work and the information given in the Contract Documents. The Architect's review
shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for any deviations from the requirements of the Contract
Documents unless the Architect has given specific written approval. Contractor and Subcontractors shall


be solely responsible for determining any quantities, whether or not shown on the shop drawings.


13. 11.1.5 Substitution.
Unless the Specifications state that no substitution is permitted, whenever in the Contract Documents any


specific brand or trade name is specified such specification shall be deemed to be followed by the words


"or equal." The Owner may consider an untimely substitution request if the product specified is no longer
commercially available.


Cleaning Up
The Contractor shall keep the Site and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste material or
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. The Site shall be maintained in a safe, neat and orderly
condition. lf the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so,


without prior notice to the Contractor and the cost thereof shall be invoiced to the Contractor and withheld
from progress payments and/or retention. When directed by the Owner or the Architect, Contractor and


Subcontractor shall dismantle temporary structures, if any, and remove from the Site all construction and


installation equipment, fences, scaffolding, surplus materials, rubbish, and supplies belonging to Contractor


or Subcontractor.


406/746







Access to the Work
The Contractor shall provide the Owner, the Architect, and the lnspector, access to the Work in preparation
and progress wherever located.


Royalties from Patents
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims of
infringement of patent rights and shall hold the Owner and the Architect harmless and indemnify them
from loss on account thereof but shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design,
process, or product of a particular manufacturer is required by the Contract Documents, unless Contractor
has reason to believe it is an infringement of a patent and does not inform Architect.


lndemnification
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the
Owner, the construction manager, Architect, Architect's consultants, the lnspector of Record, the State of
California, and their respective agents, employees, officers, volunteers, Boards of Trustees, members of the
Boards of Trustees, and directors, from and against claims, liability, damages, losses, and expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or
resulting from performance of the Work by Contractor; or any act, omission, negligence, or willful
misconduct of the Contractor or its Subcontractors or their respective agents, employees, material or
equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees but only to the extent caused in whole or in part by the acts or
omissions of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense


is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate,


abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist as to a partlr,
person, or entity described in this paragraph.


ARTICIE 4: Administration of the Contract


3.13


3.14


3.15


4.2


4.I Architect
The term "Architect" means the Architect or the Architect's authorized representative, shall also refer to
all consultants under the Architect's direction and control, and is referred to as if singular in number. The


Architect is one of potentially several agents and representatives on the Project.


Archltect's Administration of the Contract


4.2.1 Status
The Architect may provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and


may be one of several Owner's representatives during construction.


4.2.2 LimitatlonsofConstructionResponsibility
The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect, or by tests, inspections, or approvals required or
performed by persons other than the Contractor.


4.2.3 CommunlcationsFacilftatlngContractAdmlnistratlon
Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications are warranted by
special circumstances, the Owner and the Contractor shall communicate through the Architect, unless there
is a construction manager for the Project or the Owner directs otherwise.


4.2.4 Reiection of Work-
the Architect may


recommend to the Owner that the Owner reject Work which does not conform to the Contract
Documents.


407/746







4.3 P+giectJncp€€ter
lf determined neeessary by the ewner and Arehite€t ene er mere preje€t inspeeter+empleyed by the
ewner andappreved by the 9ivisien ef the State Arehiteet will be assigneC te the Werk in aeeerdan€e with
the reqirem€nts ef Titleal ef the €alifsrni+ €sde ef Regulatiens, The lnspe€ter(e) duties will b€ as


regarding pregress and menner ef werkand eharaeter ef materials, Ss€h ebseryatiens shall ret; in any wayi
relieve the €entraeter frem resBensibility fer full eemplianee with ell terrns and eenditiens ef the €entract;


orfr€p+


Responsibilltyfor Additional Charges lncurred by the Owner for Professional Service
lf at any time prior to the completion of the requirements under the Contract Documents, through no fault
of its own, the Owner is required to provide or secure additional professional services for any reason by any
act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for any actual costs
incurred for any such additional services, which costs may, among other remedies, be withheld from the
progress payments and/or retention.


Claims


4.5.! General
A Claim is a demand or assertion by Contractor seeking as a matter of right, adjustment or interpretation
of Contract terms, payment of money, eKension of time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the
Contract. Claims must be made by written notice. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with
the Contractor. Contractor may only submit a Claim after having complied with the requirements in Article
7, as applicable, for the same matters.


Claims, including those alleging an error or omission by the Architect, shall be submitted to the Architect
and Owner. A timely decision by the Owner shall be provided. Claims must be made by written notice prior
to the final progress payment. An additional Claim made after the initial Claim has been implemented by
Change Order will not be considered. The failure of the Contractor to make a Claim within the specified
time shall constitute an express waiver of any right to assert such Claim, whether affirmatively or
defensively. Despite submission or rejection of a Claim, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with
performance of the Contract, and the Owner shall continue to make any undisputed payments in


accordance with the Contract. When any excavation or trenching extends greater than four feet below the
surface, Public Contract Code section 7104 shall control.


The Contractor shall certify, at the time of submission of a Claim, as follows:


|,-beingthe-(Mustbeanofficer)of-(Contractor),
declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, and do
personally certiry and attest that: I have thoroughly reviewed the anached Claim for
additional cost and/or extension of time, and know its contents, and said Claim is made in
good faith; the supporting data is truthful, accurate and complete; that the amount
requested accurately reflects the adjustment for which the Contractor believes the Owner
is liable; and further, that I am familiar with California Penal Code section 72 pertaining to
false claims, and further know and understand that submission or certification of a false
claim may lead to fines, imprisonment and/or other severe legal consequences.


By: 


-


4.4


4.5


408/746







Contractor understands and agrees that any Claim submitted without this certification does not meet the terms of
the Contract Documents, that Owner, or Owner's representatives, may reject the Claim on that basis and that
unless Contractor properly and timely files the Claim with the certification, Contractor cannot further pursue the
Claim in any forum. A condition precedent will not have been satisfied.


4.5.2 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions


4.5.2.1 Trenches or Excavations Less Thon Four Feet Belour the Surfoce.
lf Contractor encounters conditions at the Site which are subsurface or otherwise concealed physical


conditions, which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or unknown physical


conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally
recognized as inherent in construciion activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents,


then notice by the Contractor shall be given to the Owner promptly before conditions are disturbed and in
no event later than ten (10) days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly
investigate such conditions, and if they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the
Contractor's cost of, time required for, or performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an


equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum, Contract Time, or both. lf the Architect determines that the
conditions at the Site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that
no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall so notify the Owner and the Contractor
in writing, stating the reasons. Claims by either party in opposition to such determination must be made
within ten (10) days after the Architect has given notice of the decision. lf the Owner and the Contractor
cannot agree on an adjustment in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the adjustment shall be referred
to the Architect for initial determination, subject to other proceedings pursuant to paragraph 4.5.


4.5.2.2 Trenches or Excovotions GreaterThan Four Feet Below the Surfoce.


Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7tO4, when any excavation or trenching extends greater than four
feet below the surface:


4.5.2.2.1The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify
the public entity, in writing, of any:


(1) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste,
as defined in Section 25!!7 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a
Class l, Class ll, or Class lll disposal site in accordance with the provisions of existing law.


(2) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those
indicated by information about the site made available to bidders prior to the deadline for
submitting bids.


(3) Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different
materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the
character provided for in the Contract.


4.5.2.2.2 The public entity shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the
conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or
increase in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the
work shall issue a change order under the procedures described in the Contract.


4.5.2.2.3 ln the event that a dispute arises between the public entity and the Contractor whether
the conditions rnaterially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's
cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any
scheduled completion date provided for by the Contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under
the Contract. The Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by Contract or by law which pertain to


409/746







the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties.


4.6 Clalms of 5375,000 or less


Notwithstanding any other provision herein, claims of SSZS,OO0 or less shall be handled pursuant to the
procedures set forth in Public Contract Code sections 20704.2, including claim, responsg informal meet
and confer conference, and Government Code claim. As a precedent to initiation of any litigation against
the Owner, Contractor must observe and comply with the Government Code claim procedures in
Government Code sections 901 et seq. after completion of the contractual claim procedures above,
including but not limited to timely presentation of a Government Code claim. The claim procedures
described herein do not supercede or replace the requirement of a Government Code claim, and the two
claim procedures shall be sequential.


4.7 Claims in excess of S375,fi)0
Claims over 5375,000 shall be handled by Contractor and Owner pursuant to Section 4.6, above, except as


follows: (a) Procedures in Public Contract Code section 2A!04.2(b) shall not be applicable; (b) Owner shall
respond in writing to all written Claims within 90 days of receipt of the Claim, or may request, in writing,
within 45 days of receipt of the Claim, any additional documentation supporting the Claim or relating to
defenses to the Claim the Owner may have against the Contractor; (c) Owner shall respond within 45 days
after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the
Contractor in producing the additional information or documentation, whichever is greater; and {d)
following any meet and confer conference pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104.2(d), if the Claim
or any portion of it remains in dispute and Contractor wishes to pursue it, Contractor must demand in


writing within fifteen (15) days that the parties mediate, and such requirement for mediation shall not toll
or supercede the requirement for submission of a Government Code claim, as specifically required in
Section 4.6 above. lf Contractor fails to timely notiry the Owner that it wishes to mediate pursuant to this
paragraph, then Contractor will have waived all rights to further pursue the Claim. The parties shall
reasonably cooperate to schedule and attend a mediation as soon as reasonably possible.


ARflCE 5: Subcontractors


5.1 t efinitions


5.1.1 Subcontractor
A Subcontractor is a person or entity, who has a contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the
Work at the Site. The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular
in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term
"Subcontractor" does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors ofa separate contractor. To the
extent that the term Trade Contractor is utilized in the Contract Documents, it shall have the same meaning
as the term "Subcontractor."


5.1.2 Sub-Subcontractor
A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to
perform a portion of the Work at the Site. The term "Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized
representative of the Sub-su bcontractor.


5.2 Award of Subcontacts and other contrads for Portlons of the Work
Subcontractors shall be listed by Contractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4104. Subcontractor
substitution shall be handled in accordance with Public Contract Code sections 4107 and 4107.5. Any
substitutions of Subcontractors shall not result in any increase in the Contract Sum or the granting of any
extension of time for the completion of the Project.


410/746







s.3 Sub contractual Relations
By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each
Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the
Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all obligations and
responsibilities, which the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and the
Architect


Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts


Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner provided
that:


Assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract with the Contractor by the Owner
for cause pursuant to Article 14 and only for those subcontract agreements which the Owner
accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; and


Assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond relating
to the Contract.


ARTICLE 5[reservdl
ARTICIE 7: Changes in the Work


7.L Changes


7.t.L No Changes Wthout Authorization
The Owner reserves the right to make such alterations, deviations, additions to, or deletions from the
plans and specifications, as may be deemed by the Owner to be necessary or advisable for the proper
completion or construction of the Work contemplated, and the right to reguire Contractor to perform
such work. There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings, specifications, or in the Work without
an executed Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or order by the Architect for a minor change in


the Work as herein provided. Owner shall not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions,
changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless the same shall


have been authorized by and the cost thereof approved in writing by Change Order or executed
Construction Change Directive. No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed
hereunder unless claim for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such
time duly adjusted in writing in the Change Order.


7.t.2 ArchitectAuthoriW
The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any adjustment in the
Contract Sum, an extension of the Contract Time, or a change which is inconsistent with the intent of the
Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written Change Order and shall be binding on the
Owner and the Contractor. The Contractor shall carry out such written orders promptly.


7.2 Change Orders ("CO")


A CO is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, the Contractor, the
Architect, an*thegSn, stating their agreement upon all of the following: (A) A change in the Work; (B) the
amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and (C) the extent of the adjustment in the Contract
Time, if any.


Construction Change Directives ('CCD')
A CCD is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and the Architect, directing a


change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. The Owner may by CCD, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within


5.4


B.


7.3


l0


411/746







7.4


the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions the Contract Sum


and Contract fime being adjusted accordingly. A CCD shall be used in the absence of agreement on the
terms of a CO.


Request For lnformation ("RFl"|


An RFI is a written request prepared by the Contractor asking the Architect to provide additional
information necessary to clarifo an item which the Contractor feels is not clearly shown or called for in the
drawings or specifications, or to address problems which have arisen under field conditions. The RFI shall


reference all the applicable Contract Documents including specification section, detail, page numbers,


drawing numbers, and sheet numbers, etc. The Contractor shall make suggestions and/or interpretations
of the issue raised by the RFl. An RFI cannot modify the Contract Cost, Contract Time, or the Contract


Documents. The Owner and Contractor agree that an adequate time period for the Architect to respond to
an RFI is generally fourteen (14) calendar days after the Architect's receipt of an RFl, unless the Owner and


Contractor agree otherwise in writing. However, in all cases, the Architect shall take such time, whether
more or less than 14 days, as is necessary in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate
review and evaluation of the RFl. The Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for any costs incurred for
professional services, which shall be withheld from progress payments and/or retention, if an RFI requests


an interpretation or decision of a matter where the information sought is equally available to the party
making such request.


Request for Proposal ('RFP")


An RFP is a written request prepared by the Architect asking the contractor to submit to the owner and the
Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time. An


RFP shall contain adequate information, including any necessary drawings and specifications, to enable


Contractor to provide the cost breakdowns required by paragraph 7.7. The Contractor shall not be entitled
to any Additional Compensation for preparing a response to an RFP, whether ultimately accepted or not.


Change Order Request ('COR"}


A COR is a written request prepared by the Contractor asking the Owner and the Architect to incorporate a


proposed change called for in an RFP or a notice of claim into a CO. A COR shall include breakdowns to
validate any change in Contract Sum due to proposed change or claim. {See attached COR form for
breakdowns.) A COR shall also include any additionaltime required to complete the Project. Any additional
time requested shall not be the number of days to make the proposed change, but must be based upon the
impact to the Project Schedule as defined in paragraph 3.9 and Division 1 of the Specifications.


Cost of Change Orders


7.7.1 Scope
Within ten (10) days or such lesser period of time as may be required by Owner after a request is made for
a change that impacts the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the Contractor shall provide to the Owner
and the Architect in writing an estimate of the effect of the proposed CO upon the Contract Sum and the
actual cost of construction, which shall include a complete itemized cost breakdown of all labor and material


showing actual quantities, hours, unit prices, wage rates, required for the change, and the effect upon the
Contract Time of such CO. Changes may be made by Owner by an appropriate written CO, or, at the Owner's


option, such changes shall be implemented immediately upon the Contractor's receipt of an appropriate
written CCD.


7.7.2 Determination of Cost


The amount of the increase or decrease in the Contract Sum resulting from a CO, if any, shall be determined
in one or more of the following ways as applicable to a specific situation: (A) Mutual acceptance of a lump


sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit evaluation; {B) unit prices


stated in the Contractor's original bid, the Contract Documents, or subsequently agreed upon between the


7.5


7.6


7.7


ll


412/746







Owner and the Contractor; (C) cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually
acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or (D) by cost of material and labor and percentage of overhead and
profit. Contractor and Subcontractors may mark up their own work by t5Yo for overhead, bond and
insurance premiums, and profit. Contractor may mark up a Subcontractol's total costs by L5%.


7.7.3 AccountingRecords
With respect to portions of the Work performed by COs and CCDS on a time-and-materials, unit-cost, or
similar basis, the Contractor shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records satisfactory to the Owner,
which shall be available to the Owner on the same terms as any other books and records the Contractor is


required to maintain under the Contract Documents.


7.7.4 Notice Required
lf the Contractor desires an increase in the Contract Sum, or any extension in the Contract Time for
completion, it shall give the Owner and the Architect written notice thereof within ten {10) days after the
occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim, together with detailed estimates of the impact on the
Contract Sum and/or the Contract Time. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to
execute the Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property, in which case the Contractor shall
proceed in accordance with paragraph 10.4 hereof. No notice shall be considered unless made in


accordance with this Subparagraph; however, the mere presentation of such claim shall not establish the
validity of the cause giving rise to such claim, or of the extension of the Contract Time, andlor the increase


in the Contract Sum. Contractor shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment has not
been agreed upon. Any change in the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time resulting from such


claim shall be authorized by a CO.


ARTICIE 8: Time


8.1 Definitions


8.1.1 Contract Time
Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted
in the Contract Documents for Completion of the Work.


8.L.2 Notice to Proceed
The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Notice to Proceed. The date shall


not be postponed by the failure to act of the Contractor or of persons or entities for whom the Contractor
is responsible.


8.1.3 Days


The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
defined.


8.2 Hours of Work


8.2.L Sufficient Forces


Contractors and Subcontractors shall furnish sufficient forces to ensure the prosecution of the Work in
accordance with the Construction Schedule.


8.2.2 Performance During Working Hours
Work shall be performed during regular working hours except that in the event of an emergency or when
required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, work may be performed outside of regular
working hours with the advance written consent of the Owner.


t2


413/746







8.2.3 Labor Code Applicatlon
As provided in Article 3 (commencing at 5 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code, eight (8)


hours of labor shall constitute a legal day's work. The time of service of any worker employed at any time
by the Contractor or by any Subcontraclor on any subcontract under this Contract, upon the work or upon
any part of the work contemplated by this Contract, is limited and restricted to eight (8) hours during any
one calendar day and forty (40) hours during any one calendar week, except as hereinafter provided.
Notwithstanding the provision hereinabove set forth, work performed by employees of Contractors in
excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during any one week shall be permitted upon this
public work with compensation provided for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at not less


than one and one-half (1-U2l times the basic rate of pay.


Contractor or subcontractor shall pay to the Owner a penalty of Twenty-five Dollars (525.00) for each
worker employed in the execution of this Contract by the Contractor, or by any Subcontractor, for each


calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any
calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one (1) calendar week, in violation of the provisions of Article 3
(commencing at 5 1810), Chapter 7, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code, unless compensation for the
workers so employed by Contractor is not less than one and one-half (1-1/2) times the basic rate of pay for
all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day.


8.3 Progress and Completion
Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the
Agreement the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.
The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner, in writing, commence
operations on the Site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be
furnished by the Contractor. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective
date of such insurance. The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve


Completion within the Contract Time.


8.4 Extensions of Time - Liquidated Damages


8.4.L Excusable Delay
The Contractor shall not be charged for liquidated damages, as set forth in the Agreement, because of any
delays in completion of the Work due to acts of God, acts of public enemy, acts of Government, acts of the
Owner or anyone employed by it, acts of another contractor in performance of a contract (other than this
Contract) with the Owner, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, unusually severe
weather, or delays of subcontractors due to such causes.


8.4.2 Notice by Contractor Required
The Contractor shall within ten (10) calendar days of beginning of any such delay tunless Owner grants in


writing a further period of time to file such notice prior to the date of final payment under the Contract)
notifo the Owner in writing of causes of delay. Owner will then ascertain the facts and extent of the delay
and grant an extension of time for completing the Work when, in its judgment, the findings of fact justify
such an extension. The Owner's findings of fact thereon shall be final and conclusive on the parties.


Extensions of time shall apply only to that portion of the Work affected by the delay and shall not apply to
other portions of the Work not so affected. The sole remedy of Contractor for extensions of time under
paragraph 8.4.1 shall be an extension of the Contract Time at no cost to the Owner.


8.4.3 Conditions for Extension of Time
lf the Contractor is delayed at any time in progress of the Work by an act or neglect of the Owner, the
Architect, an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner, by changes ordered
in the Work, by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, or unavoidable casualties, by delay
authorized by the Owner pending arbitration, or by other causes which the Architect determines may justify


delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for such reasonable time as the Architect


t3


414/746







9.1


may determine. Claims relating to time extensions shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions
of Article 7.


8.4.4 Early Completlon
Regardless of the cause therefore, the Contractor may not maintain any Claim or cause of action against
the Owner for damages incurred as a result of its failure or inability to complete its work on the Project in
a shorter period than established in the Contract Documents.


8.4.5 LiquidatedDamages
Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the Contract Documents
shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages, as described in the Agreement.


8.5 Government Approvals
Owner shall not be liable for any delays or damages related to the time required to obtain government
approvals.


ARTICIE 9: Payments and Completion


9.2


Contract Sum
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.


Cost Breakdown
On forms approved by the Owner within ten (L0) days of the mailing, faxing or delivery of the Notice of
Award of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a schedule of values and a list of all subcontractors and
suppliers. The Owner shall review all submissions received in a timely manner. All submissions must be
approved by the Owner before becoming the basis of any payment.


Applications for Payment
On or before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during the progress of the portion of the Work for
which payment is being requested, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner an itemized Application for
Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values. As the Contractor is required
to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in advance of its Work at no additional cost
or advance payment from Owner, to assure that there will be no delays, payment by the Owner for stored
material shall be made only in unusual circumstances where the Owner specifically approves the payment
in writing. The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass


to the Owner no later than the time of payment.


Review of Progress Payment
The Owner will, within seven (7) days after receipt of the Contractor's Application for Payment, either
approve such payment or notify the Contractor in writing of the Owner's reasons for withholding approval
in whole or in part. The review of the Contractor's Application for Payment by the Owner is based on the
Owner's observations at the Site and the data comprising the Application for Payment whether the Work
has progressed to the point indicated and whether, to the best of the Owner's knowledge, information, and
beliel the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents.


Decision to Withhold Payment
The Owner may decide to withhold payment in whole, or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to
protect the Owner. ln addition, the Owner may withhold payment, in wholg or in part, to such extent as


may be necessary to protect the Owner frorn loss because of any acts or omissions by Contractor, including
any rights to withhold mentioned in the Contract Documents.


9.3


9.4


9.5


t4


415/746







9.6


9.7


Progress Payments
Progress payments shall be made in accordance with Public Contract Code section 20104.50.


Completlon of the Work
Upon receipt of the Contractor's request for final inspection, the Owner will make an inspection to
determine whether the Work, or designated portion thereof, is complete. lf the Owner's inspection
discloses any item which is not completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents,
the Contractor shall, before Owner's issuance of the Notice of Completion, diligently complete or correct
such item.


9.8 Partial Occupancy or Use


Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage without
accepting that work and without waiving rights to claim damages as to that work. The Owner and the
Contractor shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, security,
maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the
commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents.


9.9 Acceptanc€, Notice of Completion and Final Payment
lf the Owne/s representatives find the Work fully performed under the Contract Documents, they shall so
notify Contractor, who shall then submit to the Owner its final application for progress payment. After the
Owne/s representatives find the Work fully performed, the Owner's governing body should accept the
Work as fully complete. After completion, the Owner may record a Notice of Completion with the County
Recorder in accordance with Civil Code section 3093. Contractor shall, upon receipt of final progress
payment from Owner, pay the amounts due Subcontractors. Owner shall pay the retainage pursuant to
Public Contract Code section 7!a7. Any application for final progress payment shall be accompanied by the
same details required for monthly progress payments. Acceptance of final progress payment shall
constitute a waiver of Claims except for those previously identified in writing and identified by that payee
as unsettled at the time of final payment.


9.10 Substitution of Securities
ln accordance with section 22300 of the Public Contract Code, the Owner will permit the substitution of
securities for any monies withheld by the Owner to ensure performance under the Contract. At the request
and expense of the Contractor, securities equivalent to the amount withheld shall be deposited with the
Owner, or with a state or federally chartered bank as the escrow agent, who shall then pay such monies to
the Contractor. Upon completion of the Contract, the securities shall be returned to the Contractor.
Securities eligible for investment under this section shall include those listed in Government Code section
L643O, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing, demanddeposit accounts, standby
letters of credit, or any other security mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the Owner. The Contractor
shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for monies withheld and shall receive any interest
thereon. Any escrow agreement used shall be substantially similar to the form set forth in Public Contract
Code section 223OO.


l5


416/746







ARTICIE 10: Protectlon of Persons and Property


10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs
The Contractor shall have responsibility for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with the performance of the Contract. Subcontraclors have the responsibility
for participating in, and enforcing, the safety and loss prevention programs established by the Contractor
for the Project, which will cover all Work performed by the Contractor and its Subcontractors.
Subcontractors shall promptly report in writing and by phone to the Contractor all accidents whatsoever
arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the Work, whether on or off the Site, which caused
death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements of witnesses. The Contractor
will provide and maintain at the Site first-aid supplies for minor injuries.


Safety of Persons and Property
The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection
to prevent damage, injury, or loss to: (A) Employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected
thereby; (B) the Work, material, and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off
the Site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or the Contractor's Subcontractors or
Sub-subcontractors; and (C) other property at the Site or adjacent thereto such as trees, shrubs, lawns,


walks, pavement, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement
in the course of construction. The Contractor shall give notices and comply with applicable laws,


ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on the safety of persons or
property or their protection from damage, injury, or loss.


The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the
Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other
warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of adjacent Sites


and utilities.
When use or storage of explosives, other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are


necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities
under supervision of properly qualified personnel. The Contractor shall notify the Owner any time that
explosives or hazardous materials are expected to be stored on Site. Location of storage shall be


coordinated with the owner and localfire authorities.


Protestion of Work and Property
The Contractor and Subcontractors shall continuously protect the Work, the Owner's property, and the
property of others, from damage, injury, or loss arising in connection with operations under the Contract
Documents. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall make good any such damage, injury, or loss, except
such as may be solely due to, or caused by, agents or employees of the Owner.


The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall use only those ingress and egress routes designated by the
Owner, observe the boundaries of the Site designated by the Owner, park only in those areas designated
by the Owner, which areas may be on or off the Site, and comply with any parking control program


established by the Owner such as furnishing license plate information and placing identifoing stickers on
vehicles.


Emergencies


ln an emergenry affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shalltake any action necessary,


at the Contractor's discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or
extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of an emergency shall be determined as provided


in Article 7. The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner all accidents arising out of or in
connection with the Work, which caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and


statements of any witnesses. ln addition, if death, serious personal injuries, or serious property damages


are caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger to the Owner.


ro.2


10.3


70.4


l6


417/746







10.5 Hazardous Materlals
ln the event the Contractor encounters or suspects the presence on the Site material reasonably believed
to be asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any other materialdefined as being hazardous by section
252495 of the California Health and Safety Code, which has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor
shall immediately stop Work in the area affected and report the condition to the Owner and the Architect
in writing whether or not such material was generated by the Contractor or the Owner.


ARTICLE 11: lnsurance and Bonds


11,1. Contractoy's Liability Insurance


11.1.1 Uabilitylnsurance Requlrements
Before the commencement of the Work and within limits acceptable to the Owner, the Contractor shall
purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in California as


admitted carriers with a financial rating of at least A+, Class Xllstatus as rated in the most recent edition of
Best's lnsurance Reports commercial general liability insurance per occurrence for bodily injury, personal


injury and property damage in the amount of 51,000,000 and automobile liability insurance per accident
for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit in the amount of $1,000,000, as will protect


the Contractor, which may arise out of or result from the Contractor's operations under the Contract and


for which the Contraclor may be legally liable, whether such operations are by the Contractor, by a


Subcontractor, by Sub-subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by


anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. This insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner,
and Owne/s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors
and any Sub-subcontractors to take out and maintain similar public liability insurance and propefi damage
insurance in like amounts.


Owner may partially or fully occupy andlor use the Project before acceptance of the entire Project by the
Owner. All of contractor's required insurance must allow such occupan cl and/or use without prior consent


from insurer.


Ll.L.2 Mditlonal lnsured EndorsementRequirements
The Contractor shall name, on any policy of insurance, the Owner and the Architect as additional insureds.


11.1.3 WorkerC Compensation lnsurance
During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide workers' compensation insurance for all of
the Contractor's employees engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the site of the Project and, in case


any of the Contractor's work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the Subcontractor to provide workers'


compensation insurance for all the Subcontractor's employees engaged in Work under the subcontract.


11,1.4 Builde/s Risk/"All RislC' lnsurance
Contractor, during the progress of the Work and until final acceptance of the Work by Owner upon
completion of the entire Contract, shall maintain Builder's RisklCourse-of-Construction insurance, issued


on a completed value basis on all insurable Work included under the Contract Documents. This insurance


shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and Owne/s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. This


insurance shall insure against all risks, including but not limited to the following perils: vandalism, theft,
malicious mischief, fire, sprinkler leakage, civil authority, sonic boom, explosion, collapse, flood, earthquake
(for projects not solely funded through revenue bonds, limited to earthquakes equivalent to or under 3.5


on the Richter Scale in magnitude), wind, hail, lightning, smoke, riot or civil commotion, debris removal
(including demolition) and reasonable compensation for the Architect's services and expenses required as


a result of such insured loss. This insurance shall provide coverage in an amount not less than the full cost


to repair, replace or reconstruct the Work. Such insurance shall include the Owner, the Architect, and any


other person or entity with an insurable interest in the Work as an additional named insured.


t7


418/746







11.1.5 Fire lnsurance
Before the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall procure, maintain, and cause to be maintained
at the Contractor's expense, fire insurance on all Work included under the Contract Documents, insuring
the full replacement value of such Work as well as the cost of any removal and demolition necessary to
replace or repair all Work damaged by fire. This insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and
Owner's approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The amount of fire insurance shall be 51,000,000


11.L.6 Other lnsurance
The Contractor shall provide all other insurance required to be maintained under applicable laws,
ordinances, rules, and regulations. Such insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and Owne/s
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.


tt.L.7 Proof of Carriage of lnsurance
The Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any Subcontractor to commence Work under
this Contract until all required insurance, certificates, and an Additional lnsured Endorsement and
Declarations Page have been obtained and delivered in duplicate to the Owner for approval, and such
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,


11.1.8 Compliance
ln the event of the failure of any contractor to furnish and maintain any insurance required by this Article,
the Contractor shall be in default under the Contract.


!1.2 Performance and Payment Bonds
Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, prior to commencing any portion of the Work, the
Contractor shall apply for and furnish Owner separate payment and performance bonds for its portion of
the Work which shall cover 100% faithful performance of and payment of all obligations arising under the
Contract Documents and/or guaranteeing the payment in full of all claims for labor performed and materials
supplied for the Work. Only bonds executed by admitted Surety insurers as defined in Code of Civil


Procedure section995.120 shall be accepted. The surety insurers must, unless otherwise agreed to by
Owner in writing, at the time of issuance of the bonds, have a rating not lower than "A-" as rated by A.M.
Best Company, lnc. or other independent rating companies. Owner reserves the right to approve or reject
the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to require Contractor to obtain bonds from surety insurers
satisfactory to the Owner.


ARTICIE 12: Uncovering and Correction of Work
t2.! Uncovering of Work


lf a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the lnspector's request, the Architect's request, or to
requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the
lnspector or the Archited, be uncovered for the lnspector's or the Architect's observation and be replaced
at the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Sum or Time.


t2.2 Correction of Work; Warranty
The Contractor shall promptly correct the Work rejected by the lnspector or the Owner upon
recommendation of the Architect for failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents,
whether observed before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed. The


Contractor shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, including additional testing, inspections, and


compensation for the lnspector's or the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby.


lf, within one (1) year after the date of acceptance by the Owner's governing body of the Work (see Section
9.9) or a designated portion thereof, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract
Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract
Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do


18


419/746







so unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a written specific acceptance of such non-
conforming condition. lf the Owner's governing body does not accept the Work as complete within ninety
(90) days of full performance of the Work by Contractor, then the time periods for the above warranties
shall be deemed to have started to run from the date of Contracto/s full performance of the Work.


The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work which are not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and are not corrected by the Contractor or accepted by the
Owner. lf the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time, the Owner may
correct it in accordance with paragraph 2.4. The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or
damaged construction of the Owner or separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed,
caused by the Contractor's correction or removal of the nonconforming Work. Nothing in this Section 12.2
shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations which the Contractor
might have under the Contract Documents.


ARTICLE 13: Miscellaneous Provisions


13.1 Governing law
The Contract shall be governed by the law ofthe place where the Project is located.


73,2 Successors and Assigns


Owner shall, at Contractol's cost, timely notify Contractor of Owne/s receipt of any third party claims
relating to the Contract.


13.3 Rights and Remedies; No Waiver
Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed
or available by law. No action or failure to act by the lnspector, the Owner, or the Architect shall constitute
a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract Documents, nor shall such action or failure to
act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in
writing.


13.5


Tests and lnspections
Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents will comply
with Title 24, and with all other laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of public authorities having
jurisdiction.


Trench Excavation
Pursuant to Labor Code section 5705, ifthe Contract Sum exceeds S25,000 and involves the excavation of
any trench or trenches five {5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall, in advance of excavation, submit
to the Owner or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the Owner a detailed plan showing
the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench
or trenches. lfsuch plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Construction Safety
Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in no case shall such plan
be less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders. Pursuant to Labor Code section
6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability upon the Owner or any of its employees.


Debarment
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 6109, no contractor or subcontractor may perform work on a


public works project if ineligible to perform work on the project pursuant to sections 1777.L or 1777.7 of
the Labor Code.


L3.4


13.6


l9


420/746







L3.7 Assignment of Antitrust Clalms
Pursuant to Government Code section 4552, in entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to
supply goods, servicet or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor
offers and agrees to assign to the Owner all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may
have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act, (15 U.S.C. S 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2


[commencing with 5 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Bus. & Prof. Code), arising from the purchase of
goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment
shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding bodytenders final payment to the Contractor,
without further acknowledgment by the parties.


Audit
Contracto/s Contract books, records and files shall be subject to audit and examination under Government
Code section 8546.7 and any amendments thereto.


Storm Water Discharge Permit
lf applicable, the Contractor shall file a Notice of lntent to comply with the terms of the general permit to
discharge storm water associated with construction activity (WQ Order No. 92048-DWQ) prior to the start
of any construction activity.


13.8


13.9


ARTICIE 14: Termination or Suspension of the Contract


L4.t Termination by Owner for Cause


The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor: (A) refuses or fails to supply enough properly
skilled workers or proper materials; (B) fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in


accordance with Public Contract Code section LO262 or Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, as


applicable; (C) disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of a public authority having
jurisdiction; or (D) otherwise is in substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.


When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of
the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor's surety, if any, written notice of seven (7)


days, terminate the Contract and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety, (A) take possession of the
site and of all material, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by
the Contractor, (B) accept assignment of subcontracts, and (C) complete the Work by whatever reasonable
rnethod the Owner may deem expedient.


lf the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of completing the Work, including compensation
for professional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor.
lf such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. This payment


obligation shall survive completion of the Contract.


Suspension or Termination by the Owner for Convenience
The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the Work in


whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. An adjustment shall be made for
increases in the cost of performance of the Contract, including profit on the increased cost of performance


caused by suspension, delay, or interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent (A)that
performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by another cause for which
the Contractor is responsible; or {B) that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another
provision of this Contract. Adjustments made in the cost of performance may have a mutually agreed fixed
or percentage fee.


14.2


20


421/746







The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owne/s convenience and without cause. Upon
receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owne/s convenience, the Contractor
shall (1) cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; {2) take actions necessary, or that the
Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and (3) except for Work directed to be
performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts
and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. ln case of such
termination for the Owne/s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for Work
executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on
the Work not executed.


L4.3 Termination by Contractor
Contractor may not terminate for convenience. Contractor may only terminate for cause if the Work is


stopped by others for a period of one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days through no ad or fault of the
Contractor, a Subcontractor of any tier, their agents or employees, or any other persons performing
portions of the Work for whom the Contractor is contractually responsible, and the Worked was stopped
by others for one of the following reasons: {A) lssuance of an order of a court or other public authority
having jurisdiction which requires Owner to stop all Work; or {B) an act of government, such as a declaration
of national emergency, making material unavailable which requires Owner to stop all Work. lf such grounds
exist, the Contractor may serve written notice of such belief on Owner and demand a meet-and-confer
conference to negotiate a resolution in good faith within twenty (20) days of receipt of such notice. lf such
conference does not lead to resolution and Contractor believes the grounds for termination still exist,
Contractor may terminate the contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed and for
reasonable verified costs with respect to materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment, and
machinery, including reasonable overhead, profi1 and damages for the Work executed, but excluding
overhead (field and home office) and profit for (i) Work not performed and (ii) the period of time that the
Work was stopped.


L4.4 Not a Waiver
Any suspension or termination by Owner for convenience or cause under this Article 14 shall not act as a


waiver of any claims by Owner against Contractor or others for damages based on breach of contract,
negligence or other grounds.


2t


422/746







423/746







424/746







Proposal: Earth Systems: Gault ES Re-roofing project


Separator Page


425/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.16 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Earth Systems Proposal and Contract for Skylight Load 


Testing at Gault Elementary School for the Re-Roof Project  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Earth Systems proposal and contract for skylight load testing at Gault Elementary school for 
the re-roof project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal and contract are for field dead load testing of four skylights at Gault Elementary school for 
the re-roof project. DSA requires the skylight lens be tested to meet minimum load bearing capacity for fall 
protection.  


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         $8,660.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


426/746







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT    


  
  


This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective August 7, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (“District”) and     Earth Systems____________                          (“Contractor”).  
  


1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: __Three days 
of field dead load testing of four skylights for the re-roof project at Gault Elementary 
School. ____________________  


  
2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 


assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all 
licenses, credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this 
Agreement.   


  
3. Term.  This Agreement shall begin on August 13th, 2018, and shall terminate upon 


completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 
Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.   


  
4. Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 


giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the 
end of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 
performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property 
or records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 
proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper.  


  
5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed  


$_8,6600.00____.  District agrees to pay Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of a 
detailed invoice.   


  
6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend (as respects only claims for bodily injury, 


personal injury and/or property damage to the extent covered by commercial general 
liability insurance), indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its agents, employees, 
Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and against claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to reasonable attorney’s fees 
and costs including fees of consultants)  to the extent caused by the negligent 
performance of this Agreement including,  the Contractor’s negligent use of the site; the 
Contractor’s negligent completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death 
of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, 
employees, Board of Education, members of the Board of Education caused by 
Contractor’s negligence, for any negligent act, or omission, negligence, or willful 
misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 


427/746







2  


or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would 
otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.     


1  
  


  
7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 


Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 
and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 
insurance:  


  
a. A comprehensive general liability policy and automobile policy using an 


occurrence policy form, with combined single limits of $3,000,000.00, or 
$1,000,000.00 per person and $1,000,000.00 per accident, with no 
aggregate limit. Property damage limits shall be $1,000,000.00 per loss. 


 
b. A professional liability with a policy limit of no less than $1,000,000.00 


per claim and in the aggregate.   
  
  The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 


endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 
the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 
Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.   
  


8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 
employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.   


  
9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 


compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 
own cost and expense.  


  
10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 


background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 
Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 
Contractor and District agree to the following:  


  
    A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to 


provide services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with 
District students at all times during the Term of this Agreement.  


  
11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the  


District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 


428/746







3  


authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 
to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 
federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 
State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 
related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 
applicable taxes.  
  


12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 
any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the District.  


  
13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 


the Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns.  
  


14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement.   


  
15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 


supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 
by both parties.  


  
16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 


the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under 
or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the 
State of California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue.  


  
17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 


person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the 
last business address known to the person who sends the notice.  


  
 District:  Contractor:  
        Earth Systems  
 Santa Cruz City Schools  48511 Warm Springs Boulevard, Suite 210  
 405 Soquel-San Jose Road       Fremont, CA 94539  
 Soquel, CA 95073    


Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,   
Business Services  
  


18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 
inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 
including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of 
records, Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply 


429/746







4  


with all legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that 
failure to do so shall constitute material breach.  


  
19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 


their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 
exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior  


agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 
evidence of consistent additional terms.  
  


20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in 
the execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional 
actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and 
intent of this Agreement.  


  
21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that 


the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, 
with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement.  


  
22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 


approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board.  
  
23. Standard of Care.  The Contractor’s services shall be performed in a manner consistent 


with that degree of skill and care exercised by practicing professionals performing similar 
services under the same or similar circumstances and conditions.  District recognizes that 
environmental, geologic, and geotechnical conditions can vary from those encountered at 
the times when and locations where data are obtained, and that such limitation on 
available data results in some level of uncertainty with respect to the interpretation of 
these conditions, despite meeting the required standard of care. 


 
24. Site Access & Utilities.  The District has sole responsibility for obtaining site access for 


Contractor to perform its services. With respect to any boring/excavation services by 
Contractor, the District agrees that Contractor’s only obligation, to the extent practicable 
under the circumstances, is to mark the proposed boring/excavation areas and to contact the 
local utility clearance agency prior to any such boring/excavation services. When the local 
utility clearance agency is unable to provide clearance, the District will be responsible for 
clearing the site for utilities or obstructions. The District agrees that Contractor is not 
responsible, and shall not be liable, for any damage or loss due to any unmarked, 
mismarked, undisclosed or unknown surface or subsurface utilities or obstructions owned by 
the District or third parties. 


 
 


25. RISK ALLOCATION. The District agrees that the liability of Contractor and its 
employees and its subcontractor for any claims, damages, liabilities, causes of action, and 
costs based in contract, in tort or otherwise arising out of or in connection with 
Contractor’s services or breach of this Agreement shall be limited to the aggregate sum of 
$100,000 (one hundred thousand dollars) or the total fees paid to Contractor, whichever is 
greater.   


430/746







By:By


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


Name:


Title:


Date:


CONTRACTOR


Name:


Title Vtu- t


Date: t40 2o 18


tS
0


5


431/746







 


W O R K    O R D E R 
EARTH SYSTEMS PACIFIC (“CONSULTANT”) AND CLIENT AGREE TO A WORK ASSIGNMENT FOR EARTH SYSTEMS PACIFIC AS FOLLOWS: 


Date:  July 27, 2018    Proposal No.: FRE‐18‐07‐029 
  Doc. No.: 1807‐063.WO 
Name of Project:  Gault Elementary School – Skylight Load Testing  


Order Received by:  Girmay Weldegiorgis 


Client Name:    Santa Cruz City Elementary School District, 
Attn.: Director of Facilities, Mr. Trevor Miller  


Client Address:    536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  


Location of Project:  1320 Seabright Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


Scope of Services:  Field dead load testing of four skylights per the architect’s instructions  


Fees to be Charged:   *Time & Materials per the attached fee schedule,  


Note:       Client / Contractor will supply sand and lift equipment for the testing 
Skylight Load Test Prep   $1,440.00 
Skylight Load Test (Three Days)  $4320.00 
Project Management   $1440.00 
Equipment Charge   $600.00 
Mileage  $360.00 
DSA Box Upload  $500.00 
Estimate (Not‐To Exceed without Notice)  $8,660.00 


I have read and agree to all terms of this document, including the attached terms for services (7/2017). 


  AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED: 
Earth Systems Pacific 
     
  Client (Party responsible for payment) 


   
Girmay Weldegiorgis, GE 3099     
Vice President  by Authorized Representative (please print) 


July 27, 2018       
Date    Signature and Title 


     
  Date 


PLEASE RETURN A SIGNED COPY     
TO EARTH SYSTEMS PACIFIC  Telephone Number 


     
  Email Address 
IF THE CLIENT DOES NOT OWN THE PROPERTY, PLEASE FILL IN THE PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME AND ADDRESS: 


Name:   
 


Address:   


*The fees quoted are predicated upon our understanding that none of our services are subject to California or Federal Prevailing 
Wage Law.  In the event that it is determined or alleged that Prevailing Wage Law applies to any aspect of the project, the client 
agrees to pay Earth Systems Pacific (Consultant) any and all additional compensation necessary to adjust Consultant's wage, to 
pay any penalties that may be levied against Consultant due to alleged noncompliance with the Prevailing Wage Law, and to pay 
for apprentices, supervision, certified payrolls, and other administrative costs as necessary to comply with Prevailing Wage Law.  
In the event that work thought to be subject to prevailing wage is determined not to be subject to prevailing wage, no refund of 
fees will be given.  January 2018 Fee Schedule 


432/746







_ 


TERMS FOR SERVICES 


1. INVESTIGATION, MONITORING & INSPECTION  If the services include monitoring or inspection of soil, construction and/or materials, 
Client shall authorize and pay for Consultant to provide sufficient observation and professional inspection to permit Consultant to form 
opinions  according  to  accepted  statistical  sampling  methods  as  to  whether  the  work  has  been  performed  in  accordance  with 
recommendations.   Such opinions, while  statistically valid,  do not  guaranty uniformity  of conditions or materials.   Similarly,  soils and 
geology investigations do not guaranty uniformity of subsurface conditions.  Client hereby represents and warrants that it has provided 
and shall provide to Consultant all information and sufficient advance notice necessary in order for Consultant to perform the appropriate 
level of services. No statement or action of Consultant can relieve Client’s contractors of their obligation to perform their work properly.  
Consultant has no authority to stop the work of others. 
 
2.  SITE ACCESS & UTILITIES  Client has sole responsibility for securing site access and locating utilities. 
 
3. BILLING AND PAYMENT  Client will pay Consultant the proposal amount or, if none is stated, according to the fee schedule attached to 
the proposal.  Payment is due on presentation of invoices, and is delinquent if Consultant has not received payment within thirty (30) days 
from date of an invoice.  Client will pay an additional charge of 1 1/2 (1.5) percent per month (or the maximum percentage allowed by law, 
whichever is lower) on any delinquent amount, excepting any portion of the invoiced amount that is disputed in good faith.  Each payment 
will first be applied to accrued interest, costs and fees and then to the principal unpaid amount.  All time spent and expenses incurred 
(including any in‐house or outside attorney's fees) in connection with collection of any delinquent amount will be paid by the Client to 
Consultant per Consultant's current  fee  schedule.    Services  to be  performed  by Consultant hereunder which are  not  set  forth  in  this 
proposal and/or Work order are additional services.  Any additional services provided by Consultant shall be subject to the terms of this 
contract and charged per Consultant’s current fee schedule. 
 
4.  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS  Consultant owns all documents it creates and grants Client limited license to use the documents for the 
purposes stated in the documents. Consultant reserves the right to withhold delivery of documents to Client until payment in full of current 
invoices has been received. 
 
5.   TERMINATION   This agreement may be terminated by either party effective 7 days  from the date of written notice, or  if the client 
suspends the work for three (3) months.  In the event of termination, Consultant will be paid for services performed prior to the date of 
termination plus reasonable termination expenses.  If Consultant has not received payment for any invoice within 30 days from the date 
of the invoice, or in the event of anticipatory breach by Client, Consultant may suspend performance of its services immediately and may 
terminate this contract. 
 
6.  RISK ALLOCATION  In order for Client to obtain the benefit of a fee which includes a lesser allowance for compensating Consultant for 
its litigation risk, Client agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend Consultant, its agents, employees, or officers, from and against any 
and all loss, claim, expenses, including attorney’s fees, injury, damages, liability or costs arising out of non‐design services (i.e., services 
other than as defined by Civil Code Section 2784) performed by Consultant on this project, except where such loss injury, damage, liability, 
cost, expenses or claims are the result of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Consultant.  Regarding any loss due to the negligence 
or willful misconduct of Consultant, or any loss due to design defects, Client agrees to limit the total aggregate liability of Consultant, its 
agents, employees, and officers to Client, and to all construction contractors and subcontractors on the entire project, to the greater of 
$25,000.00 or total  fees charged by Consultant.   Client  further agrees to require of the contractor and his subcontractors an  identical 
limitation of Consultant's liability for damage suffered by the contractor or the subcontractor arising from any alleged breach or negligence 
of Consultant.  You should consult with an attorney experienced in construction contracts and litigation regarding this provision. 
 
7.  HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  Consultant is responsible only for hazardous materials brought by Consultant onto the site.  Client retains 
ownership and responsibility in all respects for other hazardous materials and associated damage. 
 
8.  THIRD PARTIES AND ASSIGNMENT  This Contract is intended only to benefit the parties hereto. No person who is not a signatory to this 
Contract shall have any rights hereunder to rely on this Contract or on any of Consultant’s services or reports without the express written 
authorization of Consultant. This Contract shall not be assigned by Client without the Consultant’s written consent. This Contract is binding 
on any successor companies to Client or Consultant, and on the surviving corporation in the event of a merger or acquisition. 
 
9.  GOVERNING LAW, SURVIVAL AND FORUM SELECTION  The contract shall be governed by laws of the Federal Government.  If any of the 
provisions contained in this agreement are held invalid, the enforceability of the remaining provisions will not be impaired.  Limitations of 
liability, indemnities, representations and warranties by Client will survive termination of this agreement. The signatories represent and 
warrant that they are authorized by the entities on whose behalf they sign to enter into this contract and that their principals have filed 
fictitious business name statements, if required.  All disputes between Consultant and client related to this agreement will be submitted to 
the court of the county where Consultant's principal place of business is located and client waives the right to remove the action to any 
other county or judicial jurisdiction. 


7/2017  HANDWRITTEN CHANGES NOT VALID  Page 2 
433/746







  


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 


 
FEE SCHEDULE – DSA/OSHPD 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


This schedule presents rates for professional and technical services in the fields of geotechnical engineering, engineering 
geology, environmental consulting, construction observation and testing, and special inspection. Listed are charges for 
services most frequently performed by Earth Systems. Additional services not listed are available and can be discussed 
upon request; fixed-fee quotes for some services can also be provided upon request. To discuss a scope of work and fees 
for a specific project, please contact our office. 


PERSONNEL Hourly Rate 
Principal Professional ............................................................................................................................................. $215.00 
Associate Professional ........................................................................................................................................... $195.00 
Senior Professional ................................................................................................................................................ $180.00 
Project Professional ............................................................................................................................................... $155.00 
Staff Professional ................................................................................................................................................... $140.00 
Special Inspector, Prevailing Wage* ...................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Technician, Prevailing Wage* ................................................................................................................................ $115.00 
Special Services/Caltrans Technician, Prevailing Wage* ....................................................................................... $115.00 
Special Services Technician .................................................................................................................................... $115.00 
Special Inspector .................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Technical Assistant................................................................................................................................................... $90.00 
Technician ................................................................................................................................................................ $95.00 
Clerical/Administrative ............................................................................................................................................ $70.00 


* Technician/Inspector Classifications as defined by the State of California Department of Industrial Relations. 


BASIS OF CHARGES 
1. The prevailing wage (PW) rates presented herein are based on current rates established by the Department of 


Industrial Relations (DIR). If, during the course of the project, prevailing wage rates are increased by DIR, rates are 
subject to adjustment.  


2. Field services for regular work days are subject to a 4-hour minimum charge, and billed in 4-hour increments.   
3. Work performed on Saturdays, night work, and for premium hours (before 7 a.m., after 5 p.m. or more than 8 hours 


in one day) for personnel are at time and one-half; Sundays and holidays are at double time. Also, please note 
requirements concerning overtime, shift work, travel time, holidays, and other factors can vary for different 
classifications of work under prevailing wage regulations. 


4. A 2-hour cancellation charge applies if scheduled inspection or testing is cancelled after 4 p.m. the day prior to the 
scheduled work.  


5. Mileage is invoiced at a rate of $0.80/mile (portal-to-portal). 
6. Nuclear density gauge charge: $15.00/hour. 
7. Weekly special inspection report charge: $120.00. 
8. Subcontracted services, materials, rental equipment, out of town travel, and expenses are charged at cost plus 20 


percent. Fixed per diem rates for specific projects can be provided upon request. 
9. Report copies: $30.00 each (minimum).  Posting of electronic documents to project websites will be charged at 


clerical/administrative services rate. 
10. Projects where State regulations require electronic submittal of Certified Payroll to DIR for prevailing wage will be 


assessed a fee of $70.00/week. Additional time required to address specific requests related to DIR/Labor 
Compliance will be charged at the clerical/administrative services rates. 


11. Invoices are payable upon presentation. Invoices thirty days past due are subject to a service charge of one and one-
half percent per month.  Payments using a credit card will be assigned a 3% surcharge. 


12. Rates are effective through June 30, 2018. 


  


434/746







 


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 
 


FEE SCHEDULE - MATERIALS TESTING 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


BASIS OF CHARGES 
Rates for field work such as materials sampling, construction inspection, and field evaluation will be in accordance with the 
Personnel Rates listed in the basic Fee Schedule.  The below listed rates apply to standard ASTM test methods.  An 
additional hourly charge ($80.00/hr.) will be applied for cutting, capping, or other preparation of non-standard samples 
and, where noted, for steel samples.  
 
SOILS 
All prices are based on California and Modified California sample sizes (2” – 2.5” diameter) unless noted otherwise.  
Preparation of 3” diameter samples add $20.00.  Testing of contaminated soil will be per quote.  Samples will be returned 
to sender for proper disposal. 


 
Atterberg Limits: Liquid Limit or Plastic Limit................................................................................................................ $115.00 
Atterberg Limits: Plasticity Index .................................................................................................................................. $200.00 
California Bearing Ratio, 3 points; incl. ref maximum density ...................................................................................... $575.00 
California Bearing Ratio, 9 points; incl. ref maximum density ...................................................................................... $945.00 
Consolidation, one dimensional .................................................................................................................................... $205.00 
Consolidation, timed, per point .................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Basic Corrosivity w/out Rpt (pH, Sulfate, Chl., Resistivity) ........................................................................................ Per Quote 
Direct Shear, per point, 3 points minimum  .................................................................................................................. $300.00 
Expansion Index Test ..................................................................................................................................................... $200.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: 4” Mold ................................................................................................... $255.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: 6” Mold ................................................................................................... $295.00 
Maximum Density and Optimum Moisture: California Impact ..................................................................................... $295.00 
Moisture and Unit Weight Determination, from ring samples ....................................................................................... $30.00 
Moisture Only .................................................................................................................................................................. $25.00 
Permeability Tests, constant head or falling head .................................................................................................... Per Quote 
R-Value .......................................................................................................................................................................... $300.00 
R-Value, CA State Hwy/set of 3, Cement, Lime, Other addts ........................................................................................ $370.00 
Hydro Collapse Potential ............................................................................................................................................... $175.00 
Hydrometer Analysis, assumed specific gravity, with 200 wash ................................................................................... $235.00 
Sieve/Hydrometer Anlys, assumed specific grvty, w/200 wash .................................................................................... $235.00 
Sieve Analysis, Aggregate Base/Subbase ...................................................................................................................... $145.00 
Sieve Analysis 200 wash only .......................................................................................................................................... $85.00 
Sieve Analysis with wash ............................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Sieve Analysis, Oversize Material .................................................................................................................................. $210.00 
Specific Gravity .............................................................................................................................................................. $140.00 
Swell Test, undisturbed ................................................................................................................................................. $200.00 
Swell Test, remolded ..................................................................................................................................................... $225.00 
Unconfined Compressive Strength, untreated .............................................................................................................. $100.00 
Unconfined Compressive Strength, lime or cement treated mtrl ................................................................................. $480.00 


THERMAL RESISTIVITY TESTS 
Concrete, 1 pt w/moisture content (req spcl collection proc) .................................................................................. Per Quote 
Field Testing using Thermal Resistivity Meter ........................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Soil, per moisture point, per sample ......................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Soil, 3 moisture points with dry-out curve, per sample ............................................................................................ Per Quote 


CONCRETE AGGREGATE 
Abrasion, L.A. Rattler, 100 and 500 revolutions ............................................................................................................ $270.00 
Absorption, Coarse Aggregate ........................................................................................................................................ $80.00 
Absorption, Fine Aggregate ........................................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Clay Lumps and Friable Particles in Aggregate .............................................................................................................. $120.00 
Cleanness Value of Coarse Aggregate ........................................................................................................................... $140.00 
Crushed Particles, each size .......................................................................................................................................... $120.00 


  
435/746







 


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 
FEE SCHEDULE - MATERIALS TESTING 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


CONCRETE AGGREGATE (Cont.) 
Durability Index, Coarse or Fine Aggregate ................................................................................................................... $150.00 
Flat and Elongated Particles in Aggregate ..................................................................................................................... $120.00 
Organic Impurities in Fine Aggregate .............................................................................................................................. $90.00 
Potential Reactivity of Aggr by Chemical Method, ea size ....................................................................................... ̀ Per Quote 
Sand Equivalent ............................................................................................................................................................. $130.00 
Sieve Analysis, washed .................................................................................................................................................. $155.00 
Soundness, Sodium Sulfate, 5 cycles ............................................................................................................................. $350.00 
Specific Gravity, Coarse Aggregate ................................................................................................................................ $100.00 
Specific Gravity, Fine Aggregate .................................................................................................................................... $130.00 
Uncompacted Void Cntnt of Fine Agg Angularity, w/fine Agg SG ................................................................................. $240.00 
Unit Weight of Aggregate ................................................................................................................................................ $90.00 
 
CONCRETE CYLINDERS, BEAMS AND CORES 
Compression Test of Cast Cylinders ................................................................................................................................ $38.00* 
Compression Test of Cored Samples, cored at laboratory ............................................................................................ $100.00 
Compression Test of cores delivered by others .............................................................................................................. $75.00 
Compression Test of Lightweight Concrete .................................................................................................................... $50.00* 
Density of Concrete Cylinders ......................................................................................................................................... $80.00 
Density of Hardened Concrete ........................................................................................................................................ $90.00 
Flexural Strength, Simple Beam with Third Point Loading ............................................................................................ $110.00 
Grading of Shotcrete Cores ............................................................................................................................................. $65.00 
Sample Storage, monthly per sample ............................................................................................................................. $30.00 
Shrinkage, set of 3 ......................................................................................................................................................... $420.00 
Unit Weight of Lightweight Concrete .............................................................................................................................. $65.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per cylinder, core or beam ............................................................................................................ $1.50 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per flex beam ................................................................................................................................. $3.00 
Enviro. Recycle Fee/Form Stripping, per shotcrete panel/beam .................................................................................... $50.00 


MASONRY 
Absorption of Block, set of 3 ......................................................................................................................................... $125.00 
Compression Test, 2” x 4” Mortar Cylinders ................................................................................................................... $38.00* 
Compression Test, 3” x 3” x 6” Grout Samples ............................................................................................................... $65.00* 
Compression Test on Block, set of 3.............................................................................................................................. $155.00 
Compression Test on Grouted Prisms, includes cutting ................................................................................................ $160.00* 
Compression Test on Masonry Cores .............................................................................................................................. $65.00 
Coring of Grouted Masonry by Subcontractor ..........................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Masonry Shrinkage, set of 3 .......................................................................................................................................... $255.00 
Moisture Content of Block as received, set of 3 ............................................................................................................. $80.00 
Shear Test on Masonry Cores, 2 faces .......................................................................................................................... $105.00 
Specific Gravity and Unit Weight of Block, set of 3 ......................................................................................................... $95.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per masonry prism ......................................................................................................................... $3.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per mortar or grout sample ........................................................................................................... $1.50 
 
* Includes formal report of test results following 28-Day tests. 


FIREPROOFING 
Fireproof Bond Test ................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Fireproofing Density Test .......................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 


ASPHALT CONCRETE 
Bulk Specific Gravity of Compacted Specimens and Core Samples ................................................................................. $60.00 
Compaction of Lab Samples, CA Kneading Compactor, set of 3.................................................................................... $245.00 
Compaction of Lab Samples, CA Kneading Compactor, set of 5.................................................................................... $400.00 


 
 436/746







 


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 
FEE SCHEDULE - MATERIALS TESTING 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


ASPHALT CONCRETE (Cont.) 
Compaction of Lab Spls, Mrshl Mthd set of 3 –(50 blows/side) .................................................................................... $245.00 
Compaction of Lab Spls, Mrshl Mthd set of 3 –(75 blows/side) .................................................................................... $260.00 
Extraction of Oil from A.C. Mixtures .............................................................................................................................. $280.00 
Extraction of Oil from Rubberized Mixtures .................................................................................................................. $370.00 
Gyratory Compactor, per set of field mixed asphalt ..................................................................................................... $480.00 
Hamburg Wheel Tracker Test, per set of field mixed asphalt ....................................................................................... $780.00 
Ignition Oven Binder Cntnt, after initial corr value is det .............................................................................................. $280.00 
Ignition Oven Binder Cntnt Corr Value /mix design, ave of 3 ........................................................................................ $805.00 
Ignition Oven Gradation Correction Value, per mix design ....................................................................................... Per Quote 
Moisture Content ............................................................................................................................................................ $55.00 
Sieve Analysis of Extracted Aggregate ........................................................................................................................... $280.00 
Sieve Analysis of Ignition Oven Residue ........................................................................................................................ $170.00 
Specific Gravity, Theoretical Maximum, Rice Method .................................................................................................. $130.00 
Stability and Flow, Marshall Apparatus, set of 3 ........................................................................................................... $230.00 
Stabilometer, Hveem S-Value, set of 3 .......................................................................................................................... $330.00 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per sample ..................................................................................................................................... $1.50 
Enviro. Recycling Fee for Extracted Oils .......................................................................................................................... $30.00 
 
REINFORCING AND STRUCTURAL STEEL 
Bend Test of Welded Specimen, sample preparation not incl ........................................................................................ $85.00 
Pipe Flattening Test, sample preparation not included .................................................................................................. $70.00 
Reinforcing Steel Coupler Tensile and Slip Tests ........................................................................................................... $255.00 
Structural Steel Bend Test, sample preparation not included ........................................................................................ $85.00 
Structural Steel Machining/Sample Preparation .......................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Structural Steel Tensile Test, sample prep not included ................................................................................................. $85.00 
Tensile and Bend Tests of Reinforcing Bar, #2 through #9............................................................................................ $115.00 
Tensile and Bend Tests of Reinforcing Bar, #10 through #18 ................................................................................... Per Quote 
Enviro. Recycling Fee, per sample ..................................................................................................................................... $1.50 


BOLT TESTS 
Bolt Tests, chemical or mechanical ...........................................................................................................................cost + 20% 


WELDER QUALIFICATION 
AWS D1.1: 3/8” Plate, per position ........................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.1: 1” Plate, per position ............................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.3: Sheet Steel ............................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
AWS D1.4: Reinforcing Bar ........................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 
ASME/API Pipe Sections ............................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 


EQUIPMENT/CHARGES (Does Not Include Personnel) 
110-volt Portable Electric Generator .................................................................................................................... $105.00/day 
Anchor Pull Test Equipment ...................................................................................................................................... $40.00/hr. 
Bailer (disposable) w/dedicated rope ...................................................................................................................... $25.00/ea. 
Concrete and Asphalt Concrete Coring Equipment...................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Concrete Slab Moisture Transition Kit...................................................................................................................... $35.00/ea. 
Conductivity Meter....................................................................................................................................................cost + 20% 
Cut-Off Saw ............................................................................................................................................................. $80.00/day 
Double Ring Infiltrometer (per set) ....................................................................................................................... $155.00/day 
Drum Dolly............................................................................................................................................................... $25.00/day 
Drums  ....................................................................................................................................................................... $75.00/ea. 
Dynamometer, In-line Scale ...................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 


 
 


437/746







 


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 
FEE SCHEDULE - MATERIALS TESTING 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


EQUIPMENT/CHARGES (Cont.) (Does Not Include Personnel) 
Hammer Drill ........................................................................................................................................................... $55.00/day 
Hand Auger/Sampler Equipment ............................................................................................................................ $50.00/day 
Lock n, Load VOC Sample Pres. Sys. ......................................................................................................................... $20.00/ea. 
Magnetic Particle Equipment .................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Manometer ........................................................................................................................................................... $100.00/day 
Mini-Troll Groundwater Level Transducer ............................................................................................................ $100.00/day 
Mobile Laboratory ..................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Nuclear Density Equipment ....................................................................................................................................... $15.00/hr. 
Paint Thickness Meter ............................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Vehicle with Percolation Tank System .................................................................................................................. $250.00/day 
Personal Protective Equipment Level C..................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Pile Driving Equipment (for pile load testing) ........................................................................................................... Per Quote  
Pile Load Testing Equipment ..................................................................................................................................... Per Quote  
Pulse Velocity Meter ................................................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Rebound Hammer (Schmidt Hammer) .................................................................................................................... $50.00/day 
Reinforcing Steel Locating Equipment (DR-Meter) ............................................................................................... $100.00/day 
Relative Humidity Meter ....................................................................................................................................... $100.00/day 
Off Road Vehicle ........................................................................................................................................................ Per Quote  
Safety and Specialty Equipment ................................................................................................................................ Per Quote 
Sampling Consumables ............................................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Skidmore Bolting Calibration Equipment ................................................................................................................ $75.00/day 
Slope Inclinometer Equipment, per hole .................................................................................................................. Per Quote 
Soil Sampling Containers (metal) ............................................................................................................................. $15.00/ea. 
Soil Sampling Containers (glass) ................................................................................................................................. $5.00/ea. 
Tape Extensometer ................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
Tension Equipment ............................................................................................................................................... $200.00/day 
Torque/Tension Equipment .................................................................................................................................. $200.00/day 
Water Level Indicator .............................................................................................................................................. $45.00/day 
Windsor Probe, set of 3 ............................................................................................................................................. Per Quote  
Per Diem .................................................................................................................................................................... Per Quote 
DIR Compliance/eCPR, per week ..................................................................................................................................... $70.00 
DSA Box Posting, ea. ........................................................................................................................................................ $70.00 
DSA Lab Compliance, per week ....................................................................................................................................... $50.00 
Vehicle Mileage Charge ..................................................................................................................................................... $0.80 


  


438/746







 


JANUARY 1, 2018 FEE SCHEDULE  NC-1801-103.FEE 


 
 


EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES 


(Effective January 1, 2018) 


 


The following rates apply to deposition testimony, arbitration testimony, hearings and court appearances.  
 
 


HOURLY CHARGES FOR PERSONNEL 
 


Principal Professional ........................................ $400.00 
Associate Professional ....................................... $300.00 
Senior Professional ............................................ $250.00 
Clerical/Admin Services ....................................... $90.00 


 
 


SPECIAL SERVICES 
 


Deposition ................................................. $400.00/hr.2 
Arbitration ................................................... $400.00/hr. 
Court Appearance/Hearings ........... $1,500.00/half day3 
Standby to Appear .................................... $750.00/day4 


 
 
 
BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
1. Hourly rates are charged during investigation, analysis, consultation, and preparation services. 
 
2. Estimated deposition fee payable in advance by party requesting deposition.  The difference between advance 


payment and final fee to be billed or refunded in accordance with the fee and billing information in this schedule.  
Fee for reviewing deposition transcript will be billed at hourly rates to the party requesting the review. 


 
3. Minimum half day charge will apply to court appearances and hearings.  Time extending through the noon hour 


will be subject to the full day charge of $3,000.00. 
 
4. Days, or portions thereof, reserved for appearances at hearings, court, or arbitrations, during which we are not 


required to be away from our offices will be subject to a standby charge of $750.00.  Standby at other locations 
will be charged at the general hourly rates. 


 


439/746







Proposal: Enviroplex: Bay View ES, Branciforte SS,


DeLaveaga ES modular buildings


Separator Page


440/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.17 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Enviroplex Proposal for CAD Drawings and Engineering 


Calculations of Pre-Manufactured Buildings for DSA at Branciforte 
Small Schools, Bay View and Delaveaga Elementary Schools 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Enviroplex proposal to furnish all CAD drawings and engineering calculations 
necessary to obtain DSA approved building plans for pre-manufactured buildings at Branciforte 
Small Schools, Bay View and Delaveaga Elementary schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Project consists of CAD drawings and engineering calculations of pre-manufactured buildings for 
DSA at Branciforte Small Schools, Bay View and Delaveaga Elementary Schools. This is being done 
to prepare for the construction of new pre-manufactured classroom buildings at these sites.  


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 
         Total project cost $151,948.50: 
         $72,963.00, representing 0.52% of Bay View Elementary overall site budget 
         $25,676.83, representing 0.17% of Delaveaga Elementary overall site budget 
         $53,308.67, representing 0.39% of Branciforte Small Schools overall site budget 
         Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted) 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


441/746







442/746







443/746







Bid/Contract: First Serve Productions: Soquel HS &


Harbor HS tennis courts


Separator Page


444/746







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.18 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the First Serve Productions, Inc. Bid and Contract for 


Resurfacing of the Tennis Courts at Soquel and Harbor High Schools 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the First Serve Productions, Inc. bid and contract for resurfacing of the tennis courts at 
Soquel and Harbor High schools. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of removal of the existing tennis court surfaces and equipment at Soquel and 
Harbor High schools. Resurface and replace posts, nets and windscreens at both sites.  
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised 
in the local newspapers.  Two bids were received. First Serve Productions, Inc. was the successful low 
bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
First Serve Productions Inc. Danville $362,888.00 
Saviano Co, Inc. San Jose  $408,650.00 
LOW BID First Serve Productions, Inc. $362,888.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to First Serve Productions, Inc. the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$362,888.00($181,444.00 per site), Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 0.61% of the 
Harbor High site budget and 0.52% of the Soquel High site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


445/746







446/746







447/746







448/746







449/746







450/746







451/746







Change Order #1: First Serve Productions: Soquel HS &


Harbor HS tennis courts


Separator Page


452/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.19. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve No Cost Change Order # 1 for First Serve Productions, Inc. 


for Resurfacing of the Tennis Courts at Soquel and Harbor High 
Schools 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve No Cost Change Order #1 for First Serve Productions, Inc. for additional time to complete 
the resurfacing of tennis courts at Soquel and Harbor High schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes additional time for the resurfacing of tennis courts at Soquel and 
Harbor High schools due to delays in scheduling of paving machines and asphalt delivery. The 
contractor has requested an additional 30 days to complete this project at no additional cost, 
extending the project end date from  August 10th to  September 9th. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no change to the fiscal impact of this contract. 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


453/746







454/746







Change Order #1: Garland: Mission Hill MS re-roofing


project


Separator Page


455/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.20 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for The Garland Company, Inc. for 


Additional Freight Charges for the Mission Hill Middle School Re-Roof 
Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for The Garland Company, Inc. for additional freight charges for the 
Mission Hill Middle School re-roof project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes additional freight charges due to price inflation within the 
transportation industry regarding the material for the new Mission Hill Middle School re-roof 
project.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $9,819.79  
Change Order #1   $502.31 (0.2% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $10,322.10  
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


456/746







 


 


 


The Garland Company, Inc 


3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105 


Phone: 216‐641‐7500 Toll Free: 800‐321‐9336 Fax: 216‐641‐0633 


 
 
 


July 10, 2018 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
Re:  Change Order- Freight for Invoices # CI-GUS0145316 and CI-GUS0145071 
 
Dear Tricia: 
 
This letter is to serve as an update on a $502.31 additional freight charge being assessed to Santa Cruz City 
Schools.   This being higher than initially quoted. Main reason is there are serious price inflations w/n the 
transportation industry Also, there are several macroeconomic and regulative issues affecting transportation 
costs. Here are a few issues:  


-Labor and driver shortages 
-Rebuilding efforts due to natural disasters  
-Fuel prices and increased oil and natural gas activity  
-Steel tariffs and domestic sourcing of raw materials  
-Regulations requiring electronic logging for drivers – This is a major one -- this has restricted driver hours  
 
Thank you for your understanding and please let us know if you need anything further to fulfill this change 
order request. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Dave Bilic 
Credit Manager 
The Garland Company, Inc. 
 
 
Cc:  Adam Faville 
       Customer Service 
       Credit 


457/746







Change Order #1: Garland: Harbor HS re-roofing project


Separator Page


458/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.21 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for The Garland Company, Inc. for 


Additional Freight Charges for the Harbor High School Re-Roof 
Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for The Garland Company, Inc. for additional freight charges for the 
Harbor High School re-roof project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes additional freight charges due to price inflation within the 
transportation industry regarding the material for the new Harbor High School re-roof project.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $667,121.53  
Change Order #1   $2,449.37 (0.3% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $669,570.09  
Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


459/746







 


 


 


The Garland Company, Inc 


3800 East 91st Street, Cleveland, OH 44105 


Phone: 216-641-7500 Toll Free: 800-321-9336 Fax: 216-641-0633 


 
 
 


August 3, 2018 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
Re:  Change Order- Freight for PO# 18-04006 


 
Dear Tricia: 
 
This letter is to serve as an update on a $2,449.37in additional freight charge being assessed to Santa Cruz City 
Schools for PO # 18-04006.   This being higher than initially quoted. There are a few reasons for the uptick in 
freight costs. Some are from regulative changes and some due to macroeconomic issues.  Lately there have been 
serious price inflations within the transportation industry. Here are the main issues:  


-Labor and driver shortages 
-Rebuilding efforts due to natural disasters  
-Fuel prices and increased oil and natural gas activity  
-Steel tariffs and domestic sourcing of raw materials  
-Regulations requiring electronic logging for drivers – This is a major one -- this has restricted driver hours  
 
Thank you for your understanding and please let us know if you need anything further to fulfill this change order 
request. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Dave Bilic 
Credit Manager 
The Garland Company, Inc. 
 
 
Cc:  Adam Faville 
       Customer Service 
       Credit 


460/746







Change Order #1: Ifland Survey: DeLaveaga ES


modernization


Separator Page


461/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.22 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order #1 for Ifland Survey for Additional Survey 


Locating Work for the Delaveaga Elementary School Modernization 
Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for Ifland Survey for additional survey locating work for the Delaveaga 
Elementary School modernization project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of surveying and mapping services. This change order is for additional 
subsurface utility location and marking services to be performed on a time and materials basis.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $11,100.00  
Change Order #1   $2,000.00 (18.1% increase of the original contract amount) 
Total    $13,100.00  
Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted) 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


462/746







463/746







Proposal: Joseph Renda: Soquel HS concession area


Separator Page


464/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.23. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Joseph R. Renda Construction Services, Inc. Proposal and 


Contract for In-Plant DSA Inspector of Record Services for the Soquel 
High School Concession Building project 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Joseph R. Renda Construction Services, Inc. proposal and contract for in-plant DSA inspector of 
record services for the Soquel High School concession building project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services and is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Inspector of Record perform the required and described in-plant special inspection services. 
This is the most effective inspector due to the fact that he is in the immediate area of the plant.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,800.00, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.008% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


465/746







466/746







467/746







468/746







469/746







470/746







471/746







472/746







473/746







Proposal: Kleinfelder: Branciforte SS campus classroom


building


Separator Page


474/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.24 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal for Geologic and Seismic Hazards 


Assessment and Geotechnical Engineering Investigation for the 
Branciforte Small Schools Campus Classroom Building 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for geologic and seismic hazards assessment and geotechnical engineering 
investigation for the Branciforte Small Schools campus classroom building 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record perform described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
purpose of this is to identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to impact the planned 
development and explore the subsurface conditions to present recommendations for grading, 
foundations, retaining walls and drainage and construction considerations. The District contacted 
multiple companies for soils and geotechnical surveys and reporting. The best value company was 
selected, and performs testing on a time and materials basis per DSA requirements and as directed by a 
DSA field inspector.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$39,900.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.29% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


475/746







476/746







477/746







478/746







479/746







480/746







481/746







482/746







483/746







484/746







485/746







Proposal: Kleinfelder: Branciforte SS lunch shelter and


playground project


Separator Page


486/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.25 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal Soils/Materials Special Inspection and 


Testing Services for the Branciforte Small Schools New Lunch Shelter 
and Playground Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for soils/materials special inspection and testing services for the 
Branciforte Small Schools new lunch shelter and playground project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record perform described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
purpose of this is to identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to impact the planned 
development and explore the subsurface conditions to present recommendations for grading, 
foundations, retaining walls and drainage and construction considerations. The District contacted 
multiple companies for soils and geotechnical surveys and reporting. The best value company was 
selected, and performs testing on a time and materials basis per DSA requirements and as directed by a 
DSA field inspector. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$59,500.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.44% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


487/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80309 Page 1 of 4 June 22, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
 
June 22, 2018 
Proposal No. LOCALMKT.WEOH 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 
 
c/o: Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services, treveormiller@sccs.net 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal for Soils/Materials Special Inspection and Testing Services 
  Branciforte Small Schools New Lunch Shelter and Playground 
  840 N Branciforte Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 95062 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Pursuant to your recent request, Kleinfelder is pleased to submit the enclosed budgetary 
estimate to perform the soils and materials special inspection and testing services required by 
the specifications, DSA, and local building codes for the subject project. This proposal is based 
on review of the project plans and assumptions regarding the schedule. It should be noted that 
this estimate is based on assumed quantities, our experience on similar projects, and 
communications with you.  
 
Kleinfelder’s key qualifications include: 
 


Strong Project Manager and Technical Staff - We have assembled a group of experienced 
professionals with a depth of relevant background, led by Mrs. Andrea Traum, P.E. 


 
Familiarity with DSA Requirements - Because of our long history of working on various 


school projects, and more specifically on school projects requiring materials 
testing/special inspection services, we have developed a deep understanding of the 
criteria specified by the California Education Code (CEC), the California Building Code 
(CBC) and Title 24 for approval by the California Division of the State Architect, and 
required formats for deliverables. 


 
Experience with Similar Projects - Our team includes individuals with a vast amount of local 


special inspection and materials testing experience. This experience will ensure that 
there will be no learning curve in working with the code enforcement agency on this 
project. 


 
Cost-Effective Services - We offer cost-effective services with labor rates based on 1-hour 


minimums.  
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
We understand that the proposed project includes demolition of the existing playground 
structure and surrounding areas, construction of a new metal shade structure, installation of 


488/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80309 Page 2 of 4 June 22, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


new play equipment and playground, and associated site work.  Based on review of the DSA 
103 form, our services are anticipated to include geotechnical inspection and testing for 
compacted fills, cast-in-place deep foundations, cast-in-place concrete, batch plant inspection, 
post-installed anchors, structural steel material ID, and asphalt pavement inspection  
 
BUDGETARY ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
The estimated man-hour breakdown and costs associated with the scope of work anticipated for 
this project are estimated below. These costs are based on schedules and quantities furnished 
by others, and assumptions where this information was not available. The testing agency must 
conform to the contractor’s schedules, and these could vary according to job conditions.  The 
detailed estimate provided totals $59,500. 
 
Estimated Inspection Costs 
 


Soils/Asphalt Inspections (labor & labs)............................................................ $ 35,000 
Foundation Inspections (labor & labs) .............................................................. $   6,000 
Concrete/Rebar Inspections (labor & labs) ....................................................... $   8,500 
Structural Steel & Anchor Bolts (labor & usages) ............................................. $   4,600 
Dispatch, Project Management ........................................................................ $   3,400 
DSA Reporting ................................................................................................. $   2,000 


TOTAL:  ................. $ 59,500 
 
 
Please note that our services do not include (1) review of project plans and specifications with 
respect to local codes, (2) supervision, direction, or acceptance of the contractor’s work, (3) 
interpretation or modification of the project plans and specifications, or (4) job site safety. 
 
Kleinfelder’s charges will be made on a time and expense basis for testing and inspection 
services actually performed at the rates noted in the attached budgetary estimate. The estimate 
includes provisions for normal quality control and review of acceptance testing by the Project 
Manager. Any required overtime, re-inspection, conflict resolution, evaluation of alternative 
construction methods or materials, or items not included in this proposal will be charged at the 
rates current at the time the work is performed. Travel time for our technicians, engineers, and 
project managers will be billed on a portal to portal basis from our Salinas office.  When 
specialized equipment is necessary the time for our technicians will be billed on a portal to 
portal basis from our Hayward office. 
 
In the event conditions arise which are beyond our control, unknown at the time this proposal 
was prepared, unanticipated based on the available information, or differ significantly from the 
assumptions outlined in this proposal, it may be necessary to revise our scope and estimated 
fee in order to complete the project. Should this occur, we would contact you for authorization 
prior to proceeding with any additional work. 
 
If a portion of this proposal does not meet your needs, or if those needs have changed, 
Kleinfelder stands ready to consider appropriate modifications, subject to the standards of care 
to which we adhere as professionals. Modifications such as changes in scope, methodology, 
scheduling, and contract terms and conditions may result in changes to the risks assumed by 
you and may require adjustments to our fees. 
 


489/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80309 Page 3 of 4 June 22, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT 
 
The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects. This includes projects “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” 
and has been expanded to include various types of payments, credits and monetary equivalents 
provided by the State or public entity. The Prevailing Wage Law extends to geotechnical 
engineering consultants, their soils/material testing and building inspection personnel. Services 
subject to prevailing wage are typically non-professional field services and are applicable during 
design as well as construction. This law significantly increases employee wages for qualified 
activities on publicly funded projects. It is our understanding that this project falls under the 
definition of a prevailing wage project. We need to be notified if certified payroll is required. 
Certified payroll will incur administrative processing fees in addition to those listed in this 
proposal. 
 
DISPATCH COORDINATION 
 
Kleinfelder’s dispatcher Amy James can be reached at 925.225.4575 or at 
ajames@kleinfelder.com between the hours of 7:00 AM and 3:00 PM. Please provide 24 hours’ 
notice for us to coordinate requested site visits. For weekend and/or night work, please provide 
as much notice as possible so that we may accommodate your project scheduling needs.  
 
REPORTING 
 
Daily field reports (DFRs) will be prepared during each site visit, and a copy left with the 
superintendent. Additionally, the DFRs will be uploaded to the Division of State Architect Box 
site. Laboratory test results will also be uploaded to the Box. 
 
WORK SAFETY 
 
The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder. Our employees actively 
participate in onsite safety, and attend safety, tailgate, and preconstruction meetings. You will 
be notified if the site conditions on your project represent a potential safety concern to our 
employees. Unsafe conditions for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of 
work and associated fees. We will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate these 
unanticipated conditions, if applicable.  
 
LIMITATIONS 
 
Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the same locality, under 
similar conditions and at the date the services are provided. Our conclusions, opinions and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data. It is possible that 
conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated. Kleinfelder makes no guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or written), report, 
opinion, or instrument of service provided. Even with diligent monitoring, construction defects 
may occur. In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction and quality of the 
work, adherence to plans and specifications, and repair of defects. 
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal, unless a longer 
period is specifically required by the RFP in which case that time frame will apply. This proposal 


490/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80309 Page 4 of 4 June 22, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


was prepared specifically for the client and its designated representatives and may not be 
provided to others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
The current Master Services Agreement between Kleinfelder and Santa Cruz City Schools 
dated September 14, 2016, is on file. If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and 
date the enclosed Work Order; then return it to us as our authorization to proceed with the 
services outlined. A fully executed copy will be returned for your files. 
 
CLOSURE 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and trust that we may be of service on 
this project. If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us at 
408.595.3275. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Stephanie Sanchez Andrea M. Traum, PE, LEED AP 
Project Controls Professional Senior Project Manager 
 
 
Attachments: Work Order 
   


491/746







 


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18W80310  __________Kleinfelder 
© 2018 Kleinfelder  __________Client 
June 22, 2018 


EXHIBIT 1 
WORK ORDER NO: SAL18W80310 


 
Issued Pursuant to Master Services Agreement SAL16C46701 by and between Kleinfelder, Inc. (KLEINFELDER) 
and Santa Cruz City Schools (CLIENT) dated September 14, 2016. 
 
CLIENT Office: (Location) 536 Palm Street         KLEINFELDER Project No:  
    Santa Cruz, CA 
    Mr. Trevor Miller 
 
 Work Order Type:  Time and Material 
    Fixed Price 
   Other (describe): 
   
CLIENT Reference No:   
 
KLEINFELDER Office: San Jose 
 
KLEINFELDER Contact:  Andrea Traum (Project Manager) atraum@kleinfelder.com – 408.595.3275  
                       Amy James (Dispatch) ajames@kleinfelder.com – 925.225.4575  
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK: Provide Soils/Materials Special Inspection and Testing Services for the 
Branciforte Small Schools New Lunch Shelter and Playground Project per the attached proposal 
LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80309, dated June 22, 2018 
 
 
2.  LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: Branciforte Small Schools New Lunch Shelter and 
Playground, 840 N Branciforte Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 95062 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE:  FROM: TO:  
 
4.   AUTHORIZED FEES: $59,500.00 
 
5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS: 
 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):  
 
 
CLIENT:   SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS   CONSULTANT:   KLEINFELDER, INC. 
     
By:     By:  


 (Signature)   (Signature) 
       


Name:   Name: Eric J. Hinzel 


 (Please Print)   (Please Print) 
Title:     Title:   Vice President 


        
Date Signed:     Date Signed:  6/22/18 
 


492/746







Proposal: Kleinfelder: Soquel HS pool & concession


area project


Separator Page


493/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.26 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal for Soils/Materials Special Inspection and 


Testing Services for the Soquel High School Pool and Concession 
Building Projects 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for soils/materials special inspection and testing services for the Soquel 
High School pool and concession building projects. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record perform described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
purpose of this is to identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to impact the planned 
development and explore the subsurface conditions to present recommendations for grading, 
foundations, retaining walls and drainage and construction considerations. The District contacted 
multiple companies for soils and geotechnical surveys and reporting. The best value company was 
selected, and performs testing on a time and materials basis per DSA requirements and as directed by a 
DSA field inspector. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$156,000.00, Measure A Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.45% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


494/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 1 of 4 June 18, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
 
June 18, 2018 
Proposal No. LOCALMKT.WEOH 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 
 
c/o: Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services, treveormiller@sccs.net 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal for Soils/Materials Special Inspection and Testing Services 
  Soquel High School Pool and Concession Building Project 
  401 Soquel-San Jose Road, Soquel, CA 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Pursuant to your recent request, Kleinfelder is pleased to submit the enclosed budgetary 
estimate to perform the soils and materials special inspection and testing services required by 
the specifications, DSA, and local building codes for the subject project. This proposal is based 
on review of the project plans and the schedule provided by XL Construction, dated 
April 11, 2018. It should be noted that this estimate is based on assumed quantities, our 
experience on similar projects, and communications with you.  
 
Kleinfelder’s key qualifications include: 
 


Strong Project Manager and Technical Staff - We have assembled a group of experienced 
professionals with a depth of relevant background, led by Mrs. Andrea Traum, P.E. 


 
Familiarity with DSA Requirements - Because of our long history of working on various 


school projects, and more specifically on school projects requiring materials 
testing/special inspection services, we have developed a deep understanding of the 
criteria specified by the California Education Code (CEC), the California Building Code 
(CBC) and Title 24 for approval by the California Division of the State Architect, and 
required formats for deliverables. 


 
Experience with Similar Projects - Our team includes individuals with a vast amount of local 


special inspection and materials testing experience. This experience will ensure that 
there will be no learning curve in working with the code enforcement agency on this 
project. 


 
Cost-Effective Services - We offer cost-effective services with labor rates based on 1-hour 


minimums.  
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
We understand that the proposed project includes demolition of the existing pool area, and 
construction of a new pool facility, including a concessions building and renovations to the 


495/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 2 of 4 June 18, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


shower facilities.  Our services are anticipated to include geotechnical inspection and testing for 
the pool excavation, foundations and trench backfill.  The materials testing and inspection is 
anticipated to include rebar, concrete and grout, masonry, post installed anchors, and asphalt.  
 
BUDGETARY ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
The estimated man-hour breakdown and costs associated with the scope of work anticipated for 
this project are attached. These costs are based on schedules and quantities furnished by 
others, and assumptions where this information was not available. This estimate is based off the 
schedule provided by XL Construction in an email dated April 11, 2018.  The testing agency 
must conform to the contractor’s schedules, and these could vary according to job conditions.  
The detailed estimate provided totals $156,000.00. 
 
Please note that our services do not include (1) review of project plans and specifications with 
respect to local codes, (2) supervision, direction, or acceptance of the contractor’s work, (3) 
interpretation or modification of the project plans and specifications, or (4) job site safety. 
 
Kleinfelder’s charges will be made on a time and expense basis for testing and inspection 
services actually performed at the rates noted in the attached budgetary estimate. The estimate 
includes provisions for normal quality control and review of acceptance testing by the Project 
Manager. Any required overtime, re-inspection, conflict resolution, evaluation of alternative 
construction methods or materials, or items not included in this proposal will be charged at the 
rates current at the time the work is performed. Travel time for our technicians, engineers, and 
project managers will be billed on a portal to portal basis from our Salinas office.  When 
specialized equipment is necessary the time for our technicians will be billed on a portal to 
portal basis from our Hayward office. 
 
In the event conditions arise which are beyond our control, unknown at the time this proposal 
was prepared, unanticipated based on the available information, or differ significantly from the 
assumptions outlined in this proposal, it may be necessary to revise our scope and estimated 
fee in order to complete the project. Should this occur, we would contact you for authorization 
prior to proceeding with any additional work. 
 
If a portion of this proposal does not meet your needs, or if those needs have changed, 
Kleinfelder stands ready to consider appropriate modifications, subject to the standards of care 
to which we adhere as professionals. Modifications such as changes in scope, methodology, 
scheduling, and contract terms and conditions may result in changes to the risks assumed by 
you and may require adjustments to our fees. 
 
PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT 
 
The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects. This includes projects “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” 
and has been expanded to include various types of payments, credits and monetary equivalents 
provided by the State or public entity. The Prevailing Wage Law extends to geotechnical 
engineering consultants, their soils/material testing and building inspection personnel. Services 
subject to prevailing wage are typically non-professional field services and are applicable during 
design as well as construction. This law significantly increases employee wages for qualified 
activities on publicly funded projects. It is our understanding that this project falls under the 
definition of a prevailing wage project. We need to be notified if certified payroll is required. 


496/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 3 of 4 June 18, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


Certified payroll will incur administrative processing fees in addition to those listed in this 
proposal. 
 
DISPATCH COORDINATION 
 
Kleinfelder’s dispatcher Amy James can be reached at 925.225.4575 or at 
ajames@kleinfelder.com between the hours of 7:00 AM and 3:00 PM. Please provide 24 hours’ 
notice for us to coordinate requested site visits. For weekend and/or night work, please provide 
as much notice as possible so that we may accommodate your project scheduling needs.  
 
REPORTING 
 
Daily field reports (DFRs) will be prepared during each site visit, and a copy left with the 
superintendent. Additionally, the DFRs will be uploaded to the Division of State Architect Box 
site. Laboratory test results will also be uploaded to the Box. 
 
WORK SAFETY 
 
The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder. Our employees actively 
participate in onsite safety, and attend safety, tailgate, and preconstruction meetings. You will 
be notified if the site conditions on your project represent a potential safety concern to our 
employees. Unsafe conditions for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of 
work and associated fees. We will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate these 
unanticipated conditions, if applicable.  
 
LIMITATIONS 
 
Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the same locality, under 
similar conditions and at the date the services are provided. Our conclusions, opinions and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data. It is possible that 
conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated. Kleinfelder makes no guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or written), report, 
opinion, or instrument of service provided. Even with diligent monitoring, construction defects 
may occur. In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction and quality of the 
work, adherence to plans and specifications, and repair of defects. 
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal, unless a longer 
period is specifically required by the RFP in which case that time frame will apply. This proposal 
was prepared specifically for the client and its designated representatives and may not be 
provided to others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
The current Master Services Agreement between Kleinfelder and Santa Cruz City Schools 
dated September 14, 2016, is on file. If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and 
date the enclosed Work Order; then return it to us as our authorization to proceed with the 
services outlined. A fully executed copy will be returned for your files. 
 
  


497/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 4 of 4 June 18, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


CLOSURE 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and trust that we may be of service on 
this project. If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us at 
831.755.7900. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Stephanie Sanchez Andrea M. Traum, PE, LEED AP 
Project Controls Professional Senior Project Manager 
 
 
Attachments: Budgetary Estimate (11 pages) 
  Work Order (1 page) 
  Project Schedule 


498/746







Proposal Date: June 18, 2018


REVISED ESTIMATE OF COSTS


Earthwork $21,596.00
Trench Backfill $15,509.00
Foundation $4,591.00
Asphalt $3,542.00
Cast-In-Place Concrete $57,574.00
Shotcrete (Not including nozzleman qualification) $8,560.00
Masonry $28,110.00
Post-installed Anchors $3,892.50
Project Management, Dispatch & Reporting $12,625.50


$156,000.00


The work to be performed as indicated in the attached forecast is based on assumed quantities and schedules where no contractor


schedules were available. The testing agency must conform to the contractor's schedules, and these could vary according to job


conditions. Kleinfelder's charges will be made on a time and expense basis for work performed at the rates shown, in accordance with


the standard minimums as outlined in our current Schedule of Fees. The rates quoted herein shall remain in effect through the term of


the project or twelve months from the date of this budgetary estimate, whichever is less.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at the time the work is


performed.


Final affidavits and/or verified reports for submittal to the appropriate code enforcement agency will be prepared upon request and


charged at the current rates.  All fees incurred for the project must be paid in full prior to Kleinfelder issuing these final reports.


TOTAL BUDGETARY ESTIMATE


Soquel High School
401 Soquel San Jose Road


Attn: Trevor Miller, Director of Facility Services


Soquel, CA 95073


SOILS & MATERIALS SPECIAL INSPECTION AND TESTING SERVICES


Soquel High School Pool Replacement
401 Soquel San Jose Road


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 1 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
499/746







SITE EARTHWORK


Scope of Service


1. Obtain samples of imported and/or native fill for laboratory testing (PW)


2. Transport soil samples to Laboratory (Non-PW)


3. Perform Laboratory compaction tests


4. Perform in-place density tests (PW)


5. Project oversight by Geotechnical Engineer


6. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections


7. Round trip mileage for sample pickup/delivery


8. Travel Time to site for inspections (Non-PW)


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 2 trips @ 1 hours each 2 $155.00 $310.00


2. 2 trips @ 3 hours each 6 $95.00 $570.00


3.


samples 0 $25.00 $0.00


samples 0 $153.00 $0.00


samples 0 $110.00 $0.00


samples 0 $300.00 $0.00


2 samples 2 $240.00 $480.00


samples 0 $121.00 $0.00


4. 24 trips @ 4 hours each 96 $155.00 $14,880.00


    Nuclear density gauge days 0 $75.00 $0.00


5. 2 hours 2 $200.00 $400.00


6. Mileage to site 24 trips @ 70 miles each 1680 $0.80 $1,344.00


7. Mileage for sampling 2 trips @ 120 miles each 240 $0.80 $192.00
8 Travel to site (Non-PW) 24 trips @ 1.5 hours each 36 $95.00 $3,420.00


PROJECTED COST $21,596.00


     Compaction curves, 4" mold


Geotechnical Engineer


     Organic content tests


June 18, 2018Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Sampling soils (PW)


     Moisture content tests


Laboratory tests


Transporting samples (Non-PW)


Field density tests (PW)


Service Estimated Quantity


     Gradations, coarse and fine


     Atterberg Limits, one point


     R-values, untreated


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 2 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
500/746







TRENCH BACKFILL


Scope of Service


1. Obtain samples of imported and/or native fill for laboratory testing (PW)


2. Transport soil samples to Laboratory (Non-PW)


3. Perform Laboratory compaction tests


4. Perform in-place density tests


5. Project oversight by Geotechnical Engineer


6. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections


7. Round trip mileage for sample pickup/delivery


8. Travel Time to site for inspections (Non-PW)


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 1 trips @ 1 hours each 1 $155.00 $155.00


2. 1 trips @ 3 hours each 3 $95.00 $285.00


3.


samples 0 $25.00 $0.00


samples 0 $153.00 $0.00


samples 0 $110.00 $0.00


samples 0 $300.00 $0.00


1 samples 1 $240.00 $240.00


samples 0 $121.00 $0.00


4. 18 trips @ 4 hours each 72 $155.00 $11,160.00


     Nuclear density gauge days 0 $75.00 $0.00


5. hours 0 $200.00 $0.00


6. Mileage to site 18 trips @ 70 miles each 1260 $0.80 $1,008.00


7 1 trips @ 120 miles each 120 $0.80 $96.00


8 18 trips @ 2 hours each 27 $95.00 $2,565.00


PROJECTED COST $15,509.00


Estimated Quantity


Sampling soils (PW)


Mileage for sampling


Travel to site (Non-PW)


June 18, 2018


     Compaction curves, 4" mold


     Organic content tests


Field density tests (PW)


Geotechnical Engineer


Transporting samples (Non-PW)


Laboratory tests


     Moisture content tests


     Gradations, coarse and fine


     Atterberg Limits, one point


     R-values, untreated


Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Service


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 3 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
501/746







FOUNDATION EXCAVATION


Scope of Service


1. Observation of foundation excavation by Project Geotechnical Professional (PW)


2. Project oversight by Geotechnical Engineer


3. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections
4. Travel Time to site for inspections (Non-PW)


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 6 trips @ 4 hours each 24 $125.00 $3,000.00


2. 2 hours 2 $200.00 $400.00


3. Mileage 6 trips @ 70 miles each 420 $0.80 $336.00


4 6 trips @ 2 hours each 9 $95.00 $855.00


PROJECTED COST $4,591.00


Travel to site (Non-PW)


Geotechnical Engineer


Soquel High School Pool Replacement June 18, 2018


Service Estimated Quantity


Foundation observation (PW)


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 4 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
502/746







ASPHALT CONCRETE


Scope of Service


1. Review asphalt mix design(s)


2. Provide continuous inspection during asphalt placement (PW)


3. Sampling of asphalt (including air, base and mix temperature, and/or density tests, as required)


4. Sampling of mix aggregates at the plant (including plant operation observation)


5. Transport samples to Laboratory (Non-PW)


6. Perform field density testing of asphalt concrete and witness coring operations


7. Obtain asphalt cores for laboratory testing (outside service)


8. Process and test samples per project specifications


9. Round trip mileage for site visits and sample delivery


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. reviews @ 2 hours each 0 $200.00 $0.00


2.
2 trips @ 8 hours each 16 $155.00 $2,480.00


3. Sampling asphalt mix Included in Item 2 above


4. Sampling aggregates Included in Item 2 above


5. Transporting samples (Non-PW) 2 trips @ 3 hours each 6 $95.00 $570.00


6. Field density testing/witness coring trips @ 6 hours each 0 $90.00 $0.00


7. Coring asphalt trips @ hours each 0 $0.00


8.


samples (1 per 1,000 sq/yd) 0 $50.00 $0.00


0 days @ 1 samples each 0 $250.00 $0.00


2 days @ 1 samples each 2 $150.00 $300.00


9. Mileage to site and sample delivery 2 trips @ 120 miles each 240 $0.80 $192.00


PROJECTED COST $3,542.00


Asphalt placement inspection (jobsite) 


(PW)


Laboratory tests
a)  Core density and in-place 


thickness


b)  Reference lab density tests


c)  Maximum theoretical density tests


Asphalt mix reviews


Soquel High School Pool Replacement June 18, 2018


Service Estimated Quantity


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 5 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
503/746







CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE & REBAR


Scope of Service


1. Review concrete mix design(s)


2. Identify reinforcing steel to Mill Certificates and obtain samples for tensile and bend testing, as required (PW)


3. Provide continuous/periodic inspection during concrete batching operations


4. Sampling of concrete (including slump, termperature, and/or air tests, as required)


5. Prepare compression cylinders (5 per 150 cubic yards)


6. Transport cylinders to Laboratory


7. Perform tensile and bend tests on reinforcing steel specimens (does not include machining, if required)


8. Process, cure and test compression cylinders


9. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections


10. Round trip mileage for sample pickup/delivery


11. Travel Time to site for inspections (Non-PW)


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. reviews 0 $250.00 $0.00


2. 22 trips @ 4 hours each 88 $145.00 $12,760.00


3. 22 trips @ 4 hours each 88 $145.00 $12,760.00


4. 22 trips @ 4 hours each 88 $145.00 $12,760.00


5. Included in Item 4 above


6. 22 trips @ 3 hours each 66 $95.00 $6,270.00


7. tensile tests (#11 and smaller) 0 $85.00 $0.00


bend tests 0 $52.00 $0.00


8. 22 sets of 5 cylinders each 110 $31.00 $3,410.00


9. 22 trips @ 70 miles each 1,540 $0.80 $1,232.00


10 22 trips @ 120 miles each 2,640 $0.80 $2,112.00


11 44 trips @ 2 hours each 66 $95.00 $6,270.00


PROJECTED COST $57,574.00


June 18, 2018


Service Estimated Quantity


Concrete batch plant inspection


Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Concrete mix design reviews


Tagging and sampling rebar (PW)


Mileage to site


Mileage for sampling


Travel to site (Non-PW)


Compression tests


Sampling concrete (PW)


Prepare compression cylinders


Transporting samples (Non-PW)


Tensile and bend tests


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 6 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
504/746







SHOTCRETE


Scope of Service


1. Review shotcrete mix design(s)


2. Inspect reinforcing steel placement prior to placing shotcrete


3. Provide continuous inspection during application of shotcrete


4. Witness fabrication of shotcrete test panels


5. Transport test panels to Laboratory


6. Process, cure and test shotcrete core specimens


7. Round trip mileage


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 1 reviews 1 $250.00 $250.00


2. 5 trips @ 2 hours each 10 $155.00 $1,550.00


3. 5 trips @ 8 hours each 40 $155.00 $6,200.00


4. Included in Item 3 above


5. 5 trips @ hours each 0 $95.00 $0.00


6. 5 sets of cores each 0 $68.00 $0.00


7. Mileage 10 trips @ 70 miles each 700 $0.80 $560.00


PROJECTED COST $8,560.00


NOTE:  Does not include nozzleman qualification testing.


Compression tests


Witnessing fabrication of test panels


Transporting samples


Shotcrete placement inspection


June 18, 2018Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Shotcrete mix design reviews


Rebar placement inspection


Service Estimated Quantity


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 7 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
505/746







MASONRY


Scope of Service


1. Review grout mix design(s)


2. Verify certificate(s) of compliance for masonry block


3. Sample concrete masonry units at place of manufacture and identify for shipment


4. Identify reinforcing steel to Mill Certificates and obtain samples for tensile and bend testing, as required


5. Witness fabrication of masonry assemblages (composite prisms)


6. Provide continuous inspection during grout batching operations


7. Provide continuous inspection during block placement and continuous inspection during grouting (PW)


8. Prepare compression samples during mortar placement and grouting operations


9. Transport cylinders to Laboratory (Non-PW)


10. Obtain core samples for testing (includes Staff Engineer and Outside Service Coring Contractor)


11. Perform physical tests of concrete masonry units (shrinkage, absorption and compression)


12. Perform tensile and bend tests on reinforcing steel specimens (does not include machining, if required)


13. Process, cure and test masonry assemblages


14. Process, cure and test mortar cylinders


15. Process, cure and test grout specimens


16. Process, cure and test core samples (shear bond and compression tests)


17. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections and sample delivery


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. reviews 0 $250.00 $0.00


2. reviews 0 $0.00 $0.00


3. trips @ hours each 0 $0.00 $0.00


4. trips @ hours each 0 $0.00 $0.00


5.


Included in Item 7 below


6. trips @ hours each 0 $0.00 $0.00


7. 15 trips @ 8 hours each 120 $175.00 $21,000.00


8. trips @ hours each 0 $0.00 $0.00


9. 15 trips @ 3 hours each 45 $95.00 $4,275.00


10. trips @ hours each 0 $200.00 $0.00


Rebar location device day 0 $75.00 $0.00


Masonry placement inspection (PW)


Tagging and sampling rebar


Sampling masonry block


Grout batch plant inspection


Coring masonry - Staff Engineer


Grout mix design reviews


June 18, 2018


Witness fabrication of masonry 


assemblages


Service Estimated Quantity


Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Verify certificate(s) of compliance


Sampling mortar/grout


Transporting samples (Non-PW)


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 8 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
506/746







trips @ hours each 0 $180.00 $0.00


11. compression tests (net area) 0 $100.00 $0.00


absorption/moisture tests 0 $102.00 $0.00


dimensional measurements 0 $25.00 $0.00


shrinkage tests 0 $283.00 $0.00


12. tensile tests (#11 and smaller) 0 $85.00 $0.00


bend tests 0 $52.00 $0.00


13. sets of 1 prisms each 0 $110.00 $0.00


14. sets of cylinders each 0 $30.00 $0.00


15. 15 sets of 3 specimens each 45 $31.00 $1,395.00


16. cores (shear - face shell to grout) 0 $68.00 $0.00


cores 0 $60.00 $0.00


17. Mileage to site 15 trips @ 120 miles each 1800 $0.80 $1,440.00


PROJECTED COST $28,110.00


Physical tests of masonry units


Compression test of CMU cores


Coring masonry (Outside Service)


Compression tests - grout prisms


Composite prism compression tests


Compression tests - mortar cylinders


Shear bond test of CMU cores


Tensile and bend tests


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at the
time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 9 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
507/746







POST-INSTALLED ANCHORS


Scope of Service


1.


2. Perform proofload (tension) testing of drilled-in anchor bolts/epoxied dowels


3. Perform proofload (torque) testing of drilled-in anchor bolts/epoxied dowels


4. Round trip mileage for scheduled inspections


5. Travel Time to site for inspections (Non-PW)


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 5 trips @ 4 hours each 20 $145.00 $2,900.00


2. trips @ hours each 0 $90.00 $0.00


Anchor bolt testing device days 0 $150.00 $0.00


3. trips @ 6 hours each 0 $0.00 $0.00


Torque wrench days 0 $50.00 $0.00


4. Mileage 5 trips @ 70 miles each 350 $0.80 $280.00


5. 5 trips @ 2 hours each 8 $95.00 $712.50


PROJECTED COST $3,892.50


Travel to site (Non-PW)


June 18, 2018Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Proofload testing - tension


Proofload testing - torque


Service Estimated Quantity


Perform intermittent inspection of anchor bolts/epoxied dowel holes for depth, diameter and cleanliness prior 


to installation (PW)


Epoxy/dowel installation (PW)


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 10 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
508/746







PROJECT MANAGEMENT


Scope of Service


1. Project management, engineering supervision, meetings


2. Project coordination


3. Preconstruction and safety meetings (technical personnel)


4. Project administration, word processing, miscellaneous


5.


*Quantities & Projected Cost


Units Rate Amount


1. 20 hours 20 $225.00 $4,500.00


2. 30 hours 30 $95.00 $2,850.00


3. Preconstruction/safety meetings hours 0 $0.00 $0.00


4. 30 hours 30 $125.00 $3,750.00


5. $1,525.50 $1,525.50


PROJECTED COST $12,625.50


Soquel High School Pool Replacement


Preparation of final reports


Service Estimated Quantity


Review by Registered Engineer of completed project file and preparation of Verified Reports (as required by 


DSA)


Project Administration


Project Manager


Project Coordination


June 18, 2018


* Subject to changes in construction or plant/shop schedules over which the testing agency has no control.


Any required overtime, reinspection, or items not included in this forecast will be charged at the rates current at
the time the work is performed.


LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P80001 Page 11 (C) 2018 Keinfelder
509/746







510/746







511/746







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HSPOOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS 237 175 17-Jan-18 A 13-Dec-18


Pool ReplacementPool Replacement 237 175 17-Jan-18 A 13-Dec-18


Preconstruction PhasePreconstruction Phase 154 92 17-Jan-18 A 20-Aug-18


Bidding & ContractingBidding & Contracting 81 19 17-Jan-18 A 09-May-18


ProcurementProcurement 86 86 23-Apr-18 20-Aug-18
Musco & Gexpro LightsMusco & Gexpro Lights 86 86 23-Apr-18 20-Aug-18


A746 Create Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights 10 10 23-Apr-18 04-May-18
A748 XL Review Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights 5 5 07-May-18 11-May-18
A750 Design Team Review & Approve Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights 6 6 14-May-18 21-May-18
A752 Order & Procure - Musco & Gexpro Lights 65 65 22-May-18 20-Aug-18


Soquel Construction PhaseSoquel Construction Phase 156 156 10-May-18 13-Dec-18


81 Issue Subcontractor Notices To Proceed - Soquel 1 1 10-May-18* 10-May-18


Support & ControlSupport & Control 14 14 11-May-18 30-May-18
A30 Install Temporary Construction Fencing, Barriers & Signage 2 2 11-May-18 14-May-18
A32 Survey/Stake For Control & Rough Grade 2 2 15-May-18 16-May-18
A35 Survey/Stake For Fencing & Gates 1 1 17-May-18 17-May-18
A33 Survey/Stake For Pool 2 2 29-May-18 30-May-18
A34 Survey/Stake For Utilities 1 1 29-May-18 29-May-18
A36 Survey/Stake For Fine Grade 1 1 30-May-18 30-May-18


Site Demo, Grading & SiteworkSite Demo, Grading & Sitework 39 39 11-May-18 04-Jul-18
A12 Install Construction Entrances & Erosion Control 2 2 11-May-18 14-May-18
A10 Mobilize To The Site - Site Demo & Grading 1 1 11-May-18 11-May-18
A14 Relocate Shed & Other Items To Be Salvaged 2 2 15-May-18 16-May-18
A18 Demolish Site & Pool Equipment Room 4 4 17-May-18 22-May-18
A19 Demolish Site Utilities 2 2 23-May-18 24-May-18
A192 Grind & Demo Existing Asphalt & Concrete Paving 2 2 23-May-18 24-May-18
A22 Rough Grade Site 2 2 25-May-18 28-May-18
A26 Build Pool Building & Deck Pads 4 4 14-Jun-18 19-Jun-18
A42 Install Asphalt Paving 1st Lift 1 1 20-Jun-18 20-Jun-18
A242 Form, Reinforce & Pour Retaining Walls Around Pool 5 5 20-Jun-18 26-Jun-18
A44 Install Asphalt Paving 2nd Lift 1 1 21-Jun-18 21-Jun-18
A184 Install Site Signage & Striping 4 4 22-Jun-18 27-Jun-18
A64 Site Demo & Grading Punchlist 5 5 28-Jun-18 04-Jul-18


Underground Site UtilitiesUnderground Site Utilities 29 29 11-May-18 20-Jun-18
A47 Mobilize To The Site - Underground Utilities 1 1 11-May-18 11-May-18
A48 Locate Existing Utilities & Tie In Points & Pothole 1 1 14-May-18 14-May-18
A50 Safe-Off Utilities 1 1 15-May-18 15-May-18
A52 Install Storm Drain System 5 5 30-May-18 05-Jun-18
A58 Install Sanitary Sewer System 3 3 06-Jun-18 08-Jun-18
A60 Install Domestic Water System 3 3 11-Jun-18 13-Jun-18
A66 Underground Site Utilities Punchlist 5 5 14-Jun-18 20-Jun-18


Site ElectricalSite Electrical 98 98 11-May-18 25-Sep-18
A84 Mobilize To The Site - Electrical 1 1 11-May-18 11-May-18
A86 Locate Existing Utilities & Tie In Points & Pothole 2 2 14-May-18 15-May-18
A88 Safe-Off Utilities 1 1 16-May-18 16-May-18
A90 Install Underslab Electrical 3 3 30-May-18 01-Jun-18


Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 1, 2018 Qtr 2, 2018 Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019


13-Dec-18, POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS


13-Dec-18, Pool Replacement


20-Aug-18, Preconstruction Phase


09-May-18, Bidding & Contracting
23-Apr-18 20-Aug-18, Procurement
23-Apr-18 20-Aug-18, Musco & Gexpro Lights


23-Apr-18 Create Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights
07-May-18 XL Review Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights


14-May-18 Design Team Review & Approve Submittal - Musco & Gexpro Lights
22-May-18 Order & Procure - Musco & Gexpro Lights


10-May-18 13-Dec-18, Soquel Construction Phase


10-May-18* Issue Subcontractor Notices To Proceed - Soquel
11-May-18 30-May-18, Support & Control


11-May-18 Install Temporary Construction Fencing, Barriers & Signage
15-May-18 Survey/Stake For Control & Rough Grade
17-May-18 Survey/Stake For Fencing & Gates


29-May-18 Survey/Stake For Pool
29-May-18 Survey/Stake For Utilities
30-May-18 Survey/Stake For Fine Grade


11-May-18 04-Jul-18, Site Demo, Grading & Sitework
11-May-18 Install Construction Entrances & Erosion Control
11-May-18 Mobilize To The Site - Site Demo & Grading


15-May-18 Relocate Shed & Other Items To Be Salvaged
17-May-18 Demolish Site & Pool Equipment Room


23-May-18 Demolish Site Utilities
23-May-18 Grind & Demo Existing Asphalt & Concrete Paving
25-May-18 Rough Grade Site


14-Jun-18 Build Pool Building & Deck Pads
20-Jun-18 Install Asphalt Paving 1st Lift
20-Jun-18 Form, Reinforce & Pour Retaining Walls Around Pool
21-Jun-18 Install Asphalt Paving 2nd Lift
22-Jun-18 Install Site Signage & Striping


28-Jun-18 Site Demo & Grading Punchlist
11-May-18 20-Jun-18, Underground Site Utilities


11-May-18 Mobilize To The Site - Underground Utilities
14-May-18 Locate Existing Utilities & Tie In Points & Pothole
15-May-18 Safe-Off Utilities


30-May-18 Install Storm Drain System
06-Jun-18 Install Sanitary Sewer System


11-Jun-18 Install Domestic Water System
14-Jun-18 Underground Site Utilities Punchlist


11-May-18 25-Sep-18, Site Electrical
11-May-18 Mobilize To The Site - Electrical


14-May-18 Locate Existing Utilities & Tie In Points & Pothole
16-May-18 Safe-Off Utilities


30-May-18 Install Underslab Electrical


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS XL Project ID: 4353-2


Data Date: 11-Apr-18


Run Date: 19-Apr-18 Page 1 of 5 Layout: Full Schedule


512/746







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


A92 Drill For Light Pole Bases & Install Rebar Cages 5 5 04-Jun-18 08-Jun-18
A94 Install Conduit & Boxes For Light Pole Bases 3 3 11-Jun-18 13-Jun-18
A96 Place Concrete For Light Pole Bases 1 1 14-Jun-18 14-Jun-18
A98 Install Electrical Rough-In 10 10 15-Jun-18 28-Jun-18
A100 Install Light Poles 6 6 21-Aug-18 28-Aug-18
A102 Install Musco Lights 5 5 29-Aug-18 04-Sep-18
A104 Pull Wire For Lights 5 5 05-Sep-18 11-Sep-18
A106 Pull Wire For Data 5 5 12-Sep-18 18-Sep-18
A110 Site Electrical Punchlist 5 5 19-Sep-18 25-Sep-18


Site Fences & GatesSite Fences & Gates 108 108 20-Jun-18 16-Nov-18
A124 Mobilize To The Site - Fences & Gates 1 1 20-Jun-18 20-Jun-18
A126 Locate Existing Utilities & Pothole 1 1 21-Jun-18 21-Jun-18
A128 Excavate For Fence & Gate Footings 3 3 22-Jun-18 26-Jun-18
A132 Install Sleeves & Pour Footings 3 3 27-Jun-18 29-Jun-18
A134 Install Posts, Fencing, Gates & Fabric 5 5 06-Nov-18 12-Nov-18
A136 Install Gate Hardware 2 2 13-Nov-18 14-Nov-18
A138 Site Fences & Gates Punchlist 2 2 15-Nov-18 16-Nov-18


PoolPool 109 109 20-Jun-18 19-Nov-18
A140 Mobilize To The Site - Pool 1 1 20-Jun-18 20-Jun-18
A194 Excavate For Pool 3 3 21-Jun-18 25-Jun-18
A196 Layout & Top Form 2 2 26-Jun-18 27-Jun-18
A198 Fine Trim, Over-Excavate & Recompact Pool Bottom 12 12 28-Jun-18 13-Jul-18
A202 Trench & Install Pool Main Drain & Underground Utilities 10 10 16-Jul-18 27-Jul-18
A204 Inspect Pool Underground Utilities 1 1 30-Jul-18 30-Jul-18
A206 Backfill & Compact Pool Underground Utilities 5 5 31-Jul-18 06-Aug-18
A208 Place Base Rock At Pool Bottom 3 3 07-Aug-18 09-Aug-18
A210 Install Pool Reinforcing Steel 10 10 10-Aug-18 23-Aug-18
A214 Pour Concrete At Pool Bottom 5 5 24-Aug-18 30-Aug-18
A216 Rough In Pool Electrical 1 1 30-Aug-18 30-Aug-18
A218 Inspect Pool Electrical Rough In 1 1 31-Aug-18 31-Aug-18
A226 Install Electrical Bonding 2 2 31-Aug-18 03-Sep-18
A222 Place Shotcrete At Pool Walls, Gutter & Stairs 5 5 03-Sep-18 07-Sep-18
A228 Inspect Electrical Bonding 1 1 04-Sep-18 04-Sep-18
A232 Install Exterior Pool Piping 10 10 10-Sep-18 21-Sep-18
A234 Excavate Surge Pit, Piping, Reinforcing & Shotcrete For Surge Pit & Gutter 11 11 10-Sep-18 24-Sep-18
A236 Rough In Electrical Below Pool Deck 1 1 25-Sep-18 25-Sep-18
A760 Install Gutter Waterproofing 2 2 25-Sep-18 26-Sep-18
A238 Install Base Rock At Deck Area 4 4 26-Sep-18 01-Oct-18
A230 Install Waterline & Target Tile 10 10 27-Sep-18 10-Oct-18
A246 Install Deck Reinforcing Steel, Sleeves & Cantilevered Deck Forms 12 12 28-Sep-18 15-Oct-18
A758 Install Coping Forms 5 5 11-Oct-18 17-Oct-18
A248 Install Slot Drain System 8 8 16-Oct-18 25-Oct-18
A762 Install Deck Anchors & Blockouts 5 5 17-Oct-18 23-Oct-18
A250 Inspect Below Pool Deck Reinforcing Steel 1 1 26-Oct-18 26-Oct-18
A252 Place Pool Deck Concrete & Sawcut 6 6 29-Oct-18 05-Nov-18
A254 Install Plaster & Waterproofing Inside Pool, Gutter & Pits 3 3 06-Nov-18 08-Nov-18
A256 Fill Pool With Water 1 1 09-Nov-18 09-Nov-18


Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 1, 2018 Qtr 2, 2018 Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019


04-Jun-18 Drill For Light Pole Bases & Install Rebar Cages
11-Jun-18 Install Conduit & Boxes For Light Pole Bases
14-Jun-18 Place Concrete For Light Pole Bases
15-Jun-18 Install Electrical Rough-In


21-Aug-18 Install Light Poles
29-Aug-18 Install Musco Lights


05-Sep-18 Pull Wire For Lights
12-Sep-18 Pull Wire For Data


19-Sep-18 Site Electrical Punchlist
20-Jun-18 16-Nov-18, Site Fences & Gates


20-Jun-18 Mobilize To The Site - Fences & Gates
21-Jun-18 Locate Existing Utilities & Pothole
22-Jun-18 Excavate For Fence & Gate Footings


27-Jun-18 Install Sleeves & Pour Footings
06-Nov-18 Install Posts, Fencing, Gates & Fabric


13-Nov-18 Install Gate Hardware
15-Nov-18 Site Fences & Gates Punchlist


20-Jun-18 19-Nov-18, Pool
20-Jun-18 Mobilize To The Site - Pool
21-Jun-18 Excavate For Pool


26-Jun-18 Layout & Top Form
28-Jun-18 Fine Trim, Over-Excavate & Recompact Pool Bottom


16-Jul-18 Trench & Install Pool Main Drain & Underground Utilities
30-Jul-18 Inspect Pool Underground Utilities
31-Jul-18 Backfill & Compact Pool Underground Utilities


07-Aug-18 Place Base Rock At Pool Bottom
10-Aug-18 Install Pool Reinforcing Steel


24-Aug-18 Pour Concrete At Pool Bottom
30-Aug-18 Rough In Pool Electrical
31-Aug-18 Inspect Pool Electrical Rough In
31-Aug-18 Install Electrical Bonding


03-Sep-18 Place Shotcrete At Pool Walls, Gutter & Stairs
04-Sep-18 Inspect Electrical Bonding


10-Sep-18 Install Exterior Pool Piping
10-Sep-18 Excavate Surge Pit, Piping, Reinforcing & Shotcrete For Surge Pit & Gutter


25-Sep-18 Rough In Electrical Below Pool Deck
25-Sep-18 Install Gutter Waterproofing
26-Sep-18 Install Base Rock At Deck Area
27-Sep-18 Install Waterline & Target Tile
28-Sep-18 Install Deck Reinforcing Steel, Sleeves & Cantilevered Deck Forms


11-Oct-18 Install Coping Forms
16-Oct-18 Install Slot Drain System
17-Oct-18 Install Deck Anchors & Blockouts


26-Oct-18 Inspect Below Pool Deck Reinforcing Steel
29-Oct-18 Place Pool Deck Concrete & Sawcut


06-Nov-18 Install Plaster & Waterproofing Inside Pool, Gutter & Pits
09-Nov-18 Fill Pool With Water


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS XL Project ID: 4353-2


Data Date: 11-Apr-18


Run Date: 19-Apr-18 Page 2 of 5 Layout: Full Schedule


513/746







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


A258 Install Pool, Deck, Safety & Maintenance Equipment & Accessories 2 2 12-Nov-18 13-Nov-18
A260 Start Up & Balance Pool Equipment 1 1 12-Nov-18 12-Nov-18
A154 Pool Punchlist 5 5 13-Nov-18 19-Nov-18
A262 Run Pool Equipment Test 3 3 13-Nov-18 15-Nov-18
A268 Install Pool Deck Joint Sealants 2 2 13-Nov-18 14-Nov-18


Pool BuildingPool Building 98 98 15-Jun-18 30-Oct-18
Pool Building ShellPool Building Shell 78 78 15-Jun-18 02-Oct-18


A68 Mobilize To The Site - Pool Building 1 1 15-Jun-18 15-Jun-18
A274 Trench For Underslab Electrical 2 2 18-Jun-18 19-Jun-18
A270 Excavate Footings And Pits 2 2 20-Jun-18 21-Jun-18
A276 Install Underslab Electrical Rough 2 2 20-Jun-18 21-Jun-18
A278 Inspect Underslab Electrical 1 1 22-Jun-18 22-Jun-18
A280 Backfill & Compact Underslab Electrical 1 1 25-Jun-18 25-Jun-18
A282 Trench For Underslab Plumbing 2 2 26-Jun-18 27-Jun-18
A284 Install Underslab Plumbing Rough 4 4 28-Jun-18 03-Jul-18
A286 Inspect Underslab Plumbing 1 1 04-Jul-18 04-Jul-18
A288 Backfill & Compact Underslab Plumbing 1 1 05-Jul-18 05-Jul-18
A290 Excavate Balance Of Footings 1 1 06-Jul-18 06-Jul-18
A292 Install Foundation Reinforcing Steel 3 3 09-Jul-18 11-Jul-18
A294 Inspect Foundation Reinforcing Steel 1 1 12-Jul-18 12-Jul-18
A296 Place Concrete For Foundations And Pit Slab 1 1 13-Jul-18 13-Jul-18
A298 Form Pit Walls 2 2 16-Jul-18 17-Jul-18
A300 Install Pit Walls Reinforcing Steel 2 2 18-Jul-18 19-Jul-18
A302 Inspect Pit Walls Reinforcing Steel 1 1 20-Jul-18 20-Jul-18
A304 Place Concrete At Pit Walls 1 1 23-Jul-18 23-Jul-18
A306 Strip Pit Wall Forms & Install Exterior Waterproofing 2 2 24-Jul-18 25-Jul-18
A308 Place Aggregate Base & Form Slab On Grade Edge 1 1 26-Jul-18 26-Jul-18
A310 Install Slab On Grade Reinforcing Steel 2 2 27-Jul-18 30-Jul-18


A312 Inspect Slab On Grade Reinforcing Steel 1 1 31-Jul-18 31-Jul-18
A314 Place Concrete At Slab On Grade 1 1 01-Aug-18 01-Aug-18
A412 Strip Slab On Grade Edge Forms 1 1 02-Aug-18 02-Aug-18
A316 Install CMU Walls 12 12 03-Aug-18 20-Aug-18
A318 Install Ledger Bolts/Embeds/Reinforcing 2 2 21-Aug-18 22-Aug-18
A352 Install Door Frames At CMU 1 1 21-Aug-18 21-Aug-18
A320 Inspect CMU Walls 1 1 23-Aug-18 23-Aug-18
A322 Grout & Complete CMU Walls 3 3 24-Aug-18 28-Aug-18


A324 Install Roofing Framing & Sheathing 10 10 29-Aug-18 11-Sep-18
A344 Prepare & Paint First Coat Exterior 2 2 29-Aug-18 30-Aug-18
A378 Form & Pour House Keeping Slabs 2 2 29-Aug-18 30-Aug-18
A346 Paint Final Coat Exterior 2 2 31-Aug-18 03-Sep-18
A326 Inspect Roofing Framing 1 1 12-Sep-18 12-Sep-18
A328 Install Roofing 5 5 13-Sep-18 19-Sep-18
A364 Install Scoreboard 4 4 20-Sep-18 25-Sep-18
A366 Install Exterior Building Signage 2 2 20-Sep-18 21-Sep-18
A380 Pool Building Shell Punchlist 5 5 26-Sep-18 02-Oct-18


Pool Building InteriorPool Building Interior 35 35 12-Sep-18 30-Oct-18
A330 Frame Interior Walls & Ceilings 4 4 12-Sep-18 17-Sep-18


Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 1, 2018 Qtr 2, 2018 Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019


12-Nov-18 Install Pool, Deck, Safety & Maintenance Equipment & Accessories
12-Nov-18 Start Up & Balance Pool Equipment
13-Nov-18 Pool Punchlist
13-Nov-18 Run Pool Equipment Test
13-Nov-18 Install Pool Deck Joint Sealants


15-Jun-18 30-Oct-18, Pool Building
15-Jun-18 02-Oct-18, Pool Building Shell


15-Jun-18 Mobilize To The Site - Pool Building
18-Jun-18 Trench For Underslab Electrical
20-Jun-18 Excavate Footings And Pits
20-Jun-18 Install Underslab Electrical Rough
22-Jun-18 Inspect Underslab Electrical
25-Jun-18 Backfill & Compact Underslab Electrical
26-Jun-18 Trench For Underslab Plumbing
28-Jun-18 Install Underslab Plumbing Rough


04-Jul-18 Inspect Underslab Plumbing
05-Jul-18 Backfill & Compact Underslab Plumbing
06-Jul-18 Excavate Balance Of Footings


09-Jul-18 Install Foundation Reinforcing Steel
12-Jul-18 Inspect Foundation Reinforcing Steel
13-Jul-18 Place Concrete For Foundations And Pit Slab


16-Jul-18 Form Pit Walls
18-Jul-18 Install Pit Walls Reinforcing Steel
20-Jul-18 Inspect Pit Walls Reinforcing Steel


23-Jul-18 Place Concrete At Pit Walls
24-Jul-18 Strip Pit Wall Forms & Install Exterior Waterproofing
26-Jul-18 Place Aggregate Base & Form Slab On Grade Edge
27-Jul-18 Install Slab On Grade Reinforcing Steel


31-Jul-18 Inspect Slab On Grade Reinforcing Steel
01-Aug-18 Place Concrete At Slab On Grade
02-Aug-18 Strip Slab On Grade Edge Forms
03-Aug-18 Install CMU Walls


21-Aug-18 Install Ledger Bolts/Embeds/Reinforcing
21-Aug-18 Install Door Frames At CMU
23-Aug-18 Inspect CMU Walls
24-Aug-18 Grout & Complete CMU Walls


29-Aug-18 Install Roofing Framing & Sheathing
29-Aug-18 Prepare & Paint First Coat Exterior
29-Aug-18 Form & Pour House Keeping Slabs
31-Aug-18 Paint Final Coat Exterior


12-Sep-18 Inspect Roofing Framing
13-Sep-18 Install Roofing


20-Sep-18 Install Scoreboard
20-Sep-18 Install Exterior Building Signage


26-Sep-18 Pool Building Shell Punchlist
12-Sep-18 30-Oct-18, Pool Building Interior


12-Sep-18 Frame Interior Walls & Ceilings


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS XL Project ID: 4353-2


Data Date: 11-Apr-18


Run Date: 19-Apr-18 Page 3 of 5 Layout: Full Schedule


514/746







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


A414 Install Interior Pit Waterproofing 2 2 12-Sep-18 13-Sep-18
A332 Rough In Plumbing 10 10 18-Sep-18 01-Oct-18


A334 Rough In Mechanical 10 10 18-Sep-18 01-Oct-18
A336 Rough In Electrical 10 10 18-Sep-18 01-Oct-18


A338 Install In Wall Backing 1 1 18-Sep-18 18-Sep-18
A370 Rough In Fire Sprinkler 10 10 18-Sep-18 01-Oct-18
A354 Install Doors 2 2 20-Sep-18 21-Sep-18
A340 Inspect Rough In For MEPF 1 1 02-Oct-18 02-Oct-18
A356 Install Plumbing Finish 5 5 02-Oct-18 08-Oct-18
A358 Install Mechanical Finish 5 5 02-Oct-18 08-Oct-18


A368 Install Ladders & Rails 4 4 02-Oct-18 05-Oct-18
A372 Install Fire Sprinkler Finish 5 5 02-Oct-18 08-Oct-18
A342 Install Sheetrock & Finish 5 5 03-Oct-18 09-Oct-18
A754 Plumbing Testing & Balancing 3 3 09-Oct-18 11-Oct-18
A348 Prepare & Paint First Coat Interior 5 5 10-Oct-18 16-Oct-18
A360 Install Electrical Finish & Light Fixtures 5 5 10-Oct-18 16-Oct-18
A350 Paint Final Coat Interior 3 3 17-Oct-18 19-Oct-18
A362 Install Door Finish Hardware 2 2 17-Oct-18 18-Oct-18
A756 Mechanical Startup, Testing & Balancing 3 3 17-Oct-18 19-Oct-18
A374 Install Interior Signage 1 1 22-Oct-18 22-Oct-18
A376 Final Inspection For Building 1 1 23-Oct-18 23-Oct-18
A382 Pool Building Interior Punchlist 5 5 24-Oct-18 30-Oct-18


Pool Building EquipmentPool Building Equipment 29 29 18-Sep-18 26-Oct-18
A82 Install Pool Building Pump & Piping 2 2 18-Sep-18 19-Sep-18
A384 Install Pool Building Filters & Piping 5 5 20-Sep-18 26-Sep-18
A386 Install Heater, Piping & Controls & All Other Equipment 2 2 27-Sep-18 28-Sep-18
A388 Install Pool Panel & Disconnects 4 4 01-Oct-18 04-Oct-18


A390 Install Chemical Tanks, Pumps & Piping 6 6 05-Oct-18 12-Oct-18
A392 Install Chemical Controls 5 5 15-Oct-18 19-Oct-18
A394 Pool Building Equipment Punchlist 5 5 22-Oct-18 26-Oct-18


Restroom UpgradesRestroom Upgrades 31 31 11-Jun-18 23-Jul-18
A272 Mobilize To Site - Restroom Upgrades 1 1 11-Jun-18* 11-Jun-18
A398 Safe-Off MEP 1 1 12-Jun-18 12-Jun-18
A400 Demolish Items To Be Removed 2 2 13-Jun-18 14-Jun-18
A402 Install Restroom Upgrades 15 15 15-Jun-18 05-Jul-18
A404 Patch Finishes 10 10 06-Jul-18 19-Jul-18
A410 Inspections 1 1 06-Jul-18 06-Jul-18
A406 Restroom Upgrades Punchlist 1 1 20-Jul-18 20-Jul-18
A408 Complete Final Clean 1 1 23-Jul-18 23-Jul-18


Owner Furnished & Owner Installed ScopesOwner Furnished & Owner Installed Scopes 5 5 31-Oct-18 06-Nov-18
A396 Owner Installation Of Owner Furnished & Installed Items 5 5 31-Oct-18 06-Nov-18


Final InspectionsFinal Inspections 5 5 20-Nov-18 26-Nov-18
A114 Final Inspections 5 5 20-Nov-18 26-Nov-18
A416 Final Project Punchlist 5 5 20-Nov-18 26-Nov-18


Rain ContingencyRain Contingency 12 12 27-Nov-18 12-Dec-18
A112 Rain Contingency 12 12 27-Nov-18 12-Dec-18


Owner OccupancyOwner Occupancy 13 13 27-Nov-18 13-Dec-18


Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 1, 2018 Qtr 2, 2018 Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019


12-Sep-18 Install Interior Pit Waterproofing
18-Sep-18 Rough In Plumbing


18-Sep-18 Rough In Mechanical
18-Sep-18 Rough In Electrical


18-Sep-18 Install In Wall Backing
18-Sep-18 Rough In Fire Sprinkler
20-Sep-18 Install Doors


02-Oct-18 Inspect Rough In For MEPF
02-Oct-18 Install Plumbing Finish
02-Oct-18 Install Mechanical Finish


02-Oct-18 Install Ladders & Rails
02-Oct-18 Install Fire Sprinkler Finish
03-Oct-18 Install Sheetrock & Finish


09-Oct-18 Plumbing Testing & Balancing
10-Oct-18 Prepare & Paint First Coat Interior
10-Oct-18 Install Electrical Finish & Light Fixtures


17-Oct-18 Paint Final Coat Interior
17-Oct-18 Install Door Finish Hardware
17-Oct-18 Mechanical Startup, Testing & Balancing


22-Oct-18 Install Interior Signage
23-Oct-18 Final Inspection For Building
24-Oct-18 Pool Building Interior Punchlist


18-Sep-18 26-Oct-18, Pool Building Equipment
18-Sep-18 Install Pool Building Pump & Piping
20-Sep-18 Install Pool Building Filters & Piping


27-Sep-18 Install Heater, Piping & Controls & All Other Equipment
01-Oct-18 Install Pool Panel & Disconnects


05-Oct-18 Install Chemical Tanks, Pumps & Piping
15-Oct-18 Install Chemical Controls


22-Oct-18 Pool Building Equipment Punchlist
11-Jun-18 23-Jul-18, Restroom Upgrades


11-Jun-18* Mobilize To Site - Restroom Upgrades
12-Jun-18 Safe-Off MEP
13-Jun-18 Demolish Items To Be Removed
15-Jun-18 Install Restroom Upgrades


06-Jul-18 Patch Finishes
06-Jul-18 Inspections


20-Jul-18 Restroom Upgrades Punchlist
23-Jul-18 Complete Final Clean


31-Oct-18 06-Nov-18, Owner Furnished & Owner Installed Scopes
31-Oct-18 Owner Installation Of Owner Furnished & Installed Items


20-Nov-18 26-Nov-18, Final Inspections
20-Nov-18 Final Inspections
20-Nov-18 Final Project Punchlist


27-Nov-18 12-Dec-18, Rain Contingency
27-Nov-18 Rain Contingency


27-Nov-18 13-Dec-18, Owner Occupancy


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS XL Project ID: 4353-2


Data Date: 11-Apr-18


Run Date: 19-Apr-18 Page 4 of 5 Layout: Full Schedule


515/746







Activity ID Activity Name Original
Duration


Remaining
Duration


Start Finish


A266 Owner Training 1 1 27-Nov-18 27-Nov-18
A164 Owner Use Of Pool 1 1 13-Dec-18 13-Dec-18*


Harbor Construction PhaseHarbor Construction Phase 0 0


Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
Qtr 1, 2018 Qtr 2, 2018 Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019


27-Nov-18 Owner Training
13-Dec-18 Owner Use Of Pool


POOL REPLACEMENT OF SOQUEL HS XL Project ID: 4353-2


Data Date: 11-Apr-18


Run Date: 19-Apr-18 Page 5 of 5 Layout: Full Schedule


516/746







Proposal: Kleinfelder: Natural Bridges gym


modernization


Separator Page


517/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.27 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Kleinfelder Proposal for Special Inspection and Materials 


Testing Services for the Natural Bridges Gymnasium Modernization 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Kleinfelder proposal for special inspection and materials testing services for the Natural Bridges 
gymnasium modernization.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. It is based on the DSA requirement to have an independent 
approved Laboratory of Record perform described special materials testing and inspection services. The 
purpose of this is to identify and evaluate the potential for such hazards to impact the planned 
development and explore the subsurface conditions to present recommendations for grading, 
foundations, retaining walls and drainage and construction considerations. The District contacted 
multiple companies for soils and geotechnical surveys and reporting. The best value company was 
selected, and performs testing on a time and materials basis per DSA requirements and as directed by a 
DSA field inspector. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$6,150.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.11% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


518/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P82518 Page 1 of 4 August 10, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


 
 
 
 
August 10, 2018 
Proposal No.: LOCALMKT.WEOH 
 
 
Trevor Miller 
Director of Facility Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
 
SUBJECT: Proposal for Special Inspection and Materials Testing Services 


Gymnasium - Minor Repairs 
Natural Bridges Elementary School 
255 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, California 


 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Pursuant to your recent request, Kleinfelder is pleased to submit the enclosed budgetary 
estimate to perform the special inspection and materials testing services as required by the 
specifications and local building codes for the subject project.  This proposal is based on 
conversations with you and the project drawing sheet A1.1 entitled “Enlarged Site Plan, 
Gymnasium – Minor Repairs, Natural Bridges Elementary School” dated May 9, 2018, and our 
experience on similar projects.  The DSA 103 Statement of Structural Tests and Special 
Inspections document was not yet available. 
 
Kleinfelder’s key qualifications include: 
 


• Strong Project Manager and Technical Staff - We have assembled a group of 
experienced professionals with a depth of relevant background, and led by Mrs. Andrea 
Traum, PE. 
 


• Familiarity with DSA Requirements - Because of our long history of working on various 
school projects, and more specifically on school projects requiring materials 
testing/special inspection services, we have developed a deep understanding of the 
minimum criteria specified by the California Education Code (CEC), the California 
Building Code (CBC) and Title 24 for approval by the California Division of the State 
Architect, and required formats for deliverables. 
 


• Experience with Similar Projects - Our team includes individuals with a vast amount of 
local special inspection and materials testing experience.  This experience will ensure 
that there will be no learning curve in working with the code enforcement agency on this 
project. 
 


519/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P82518 Page 2 of 4 August 10, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


• Cost-Effective Services - We offer cost-effective services with labor rates based on 
1-hour minimums.  


 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


It is understood our scope on this project will include base rock and asphalt compaction testing 
for the proposed ADA stall improvements. Estimates for associated project management, 
reporting and administrative services including reports as required by DSA have also been 
included.   
 


BUDGETARY ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF CHARGES 


The estimated man-hour breakdown and costs associated with the scope of work anticipated for 
this project are shown below.  These costs are based on the provided plans.  A detailed 
schedule was not available during the preparation of this proposal.  The testing agency must 
conform to the contractor’s schedules, and these could vary according to job conditions. 
 
Estimate of Charges 
Three Days of Inspection         $4,650 
Project Management, Dispatch, DSA Reporting     $1,500 
           $6,150 
 
Please note that our services do not include (1) review of project plans and specifications with 
respect to local codes, (2) supervision, direction, or acceptance of the contractor’s work, (3) 
interpretation or modification of the project plans and specifications, or (4) job site safety. 
 
Kleinfelder’s charges will be made on a time and expense basis for testing and inspection 
services actually performed at the rates noted in the attached budgetary estimate.  The estimate 
includes provisions for normal quality control and review of acceptance testing by the Project 
Manager.  Any required overtime, reinspection, conflict resolution, evaluation of alternative 
construction methods or materials, or items not included in this proposal will be charged at the 
rates current at the time the work is performed.  Travel time for our technicians, engineers, and 
project managers will be billed on a portal-to-portal basis from our Salinas office and 
supplemented from our Hayward office as necessary. 
 
In the event conditions arise which are beyond our control, unknown at the time this proposal 
was prepared, unanticipated based on the available information, or differ significantly from the 
assumptions outlined in this proposal, it may be necessary to revise our scope and estimated 
fee in order to complete the project.  Should this occur, we would contact you for authorization 
prior to proceeding with any additional work. 
 
If any of the assumptions outline above or any other portion of this proposal does not meet your 
needs, or if those needs have changed, Kleinfelder stands ready to consider appropriate 
modifications, subject to the standards of care to which we adhere as professionals.  
Modifications such as changes in scope, methodology, scheduling, and contract terms and 
conditions may result in changes to the risks assumed by you and may require adjustments to 
our fees. 
 


520/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P82518 Page 3 of 4 August 10, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT 


The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects.  This includes projects “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” 
and has been expanded to include various types of payments, credits and monetary equivalents 
provided by the State or public entity.  The Prevailing Wage Law extends to geotechnical 
engineering consultants, their soils/material testing and building inspection personnel.  Services 
subject to prevailing wage are typically non-professional field services and are applicable during 
design as well as construction.  This law significantly increases employee wages for qualified 
activities on publicly funded projects.  It is our understanding that this project falls under the 
definition of a prevailing wage project.  We need to be notified if certified payroll is required.  
Certified payroll will incur administrative processing fees in addition to those listed in this 
proposal. 
 


DISPATCH COORDINATION 


Kleinfelder’s dispatcher Amy James can be reached at 925.225.4575 between the hours of 
8:00 AM and 3:00 PM.  Please provide 24 hours notice for us to coordinate requested site visits. 
For weekend and/or night work, please provide as much notice as possible so that we may 
accommodate your project scheduling needs.   
 


REPORTING 


Daily field reports (DFRs) will be prepared during each site visit, and a copy emailed to the 
Project Inspector. Additionally, the DFRs will be uploaded to the Division of the State Architect 
Box folder. Laboratory test results will be distributed upon completion. We have assumed 
interim final DSA reports will not be required for this project.  Final DSA close-out reports will be 
prepared upon the completion of the field work (DSA 291 and 293). 
 


WORK SAFETY  


The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder.  Our employees actively 
participate in onsite safety, and attend safety, tailgate, and preconstruction meetings.  You will 
be notified if the site conditions on your project represent a potential safety concern to our 
employees.  Unsafe conditions for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of 
work and associated fees.  We will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate 
these unanticipated conditions, if applicable.   
 


LIMITATIONS 


Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the same locality, under 
similar conditions and at the date the services are provided.  Our conclusions, opinions and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data.  It is possible 
that conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated.  Kleinfelder makes no 
guarantee or warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or 
written), report, opinion, or instrument of service provided.  Even with diligent monitoring, 


521/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SAL18P82518 Page 4 of 4 August 10, 2018 
© 2018 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     40 Clark Street, Suite J, Salinas, CA 93901     p | 831.755.7900     f | 831.755.7909 


construction defects may occur.  In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction 
and quality of the work, adherence to plans and specifications, and repair of defects. 
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal, unless a longer 
period is specifically required by the RFP in which case that time frame will apply.  This proposal 
was prepared specifically for the client and its designated representatives and may not be 
provided to others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 


AUTHORIZATION 


Your current Master Services Agreement, dated September 29, 2016, is on file.  If this proposal 
meets with your approval, please sign and date the enclosed Work Order then return it to us as 
our authorization to proceed with the services outlined.  A fully executed copy will be returned 
for your files.  Acceptance of this proposal will indicate that an authorized representative of 
Santa Cruz City Schools has reviewed the scope of work and determined that they do not need 
or want more services than are being proposed at this time.  Any exceptions should be noted 
and may result in adjustment to our fees. 
 


CLOSURE 


We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and trust that we may be of service on 
this project.  If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us at 
831.755.7900. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 


KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Andrea M. Traum, PE, LEED AP    Stephanie Sanchez 
Senior Project Manager     Project Controls Specialist 
 
 
CC:  Christopher Garcia 
 
 
Attachments:  Work Order 


522/746







LOCALMKT.WEOH Page 1 of 1 


EXHIBIT 1: WORK ORDER NO: SAL18W82521 


 
Issued Pursuant to Master Services Agreement (Date of Execution: September 14, 2016) 
 
Effective Date: ______________ by and between Kleinfelder, Inc. (KLEINFELDER) and Santa Cruz City 
Schools (CLIENT). 
 
CLIENT Office: (Location) Soquel, CA    KLEINFELDER Project No:       
 
      Work Order Type:  Time and Material 
     Fixed Price 
     Other (describe):        
 
CLIENT Reference No:           
 
KLEINFELDER Office: 40 Clark Street, Salinas, CA 
 
KLEINFELDER Contact:  Andrea Traum 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK:  Perform materials testing and inspection services for the Natural Bridges 
Gymnasium Minor Repairs project in Santa Cruz, California. 
 
 
2. LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: Natural Bridges Elementary, 255 Swift Street, Santa 
Cruz, CA 95060 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: FROM: August 10, 2018 TO: August 10, 2019 
 
4. AUTHORIZED FEES: $6,150 
 
5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS:       
 
 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):       
 
 
CLIENT ______________________________________  KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
By ____________________________________  By  ___________________________________ 
 
Name ____________________________________  Name  Eric Hinzel 
 
Title ____________________________________  Title  VP, Area Manager 
 
Dated ____________________________________  Dated  August 10, 2018 
 


523/746







Proposal: Leach Group: Gault ES & Mission Hill MS re-


roofing projects


Separator Page


524/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.28.  
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Leach Group Proposal for DSA Inspector of Record Services 


at Gault Elementary and Mission Hill Middle Schools Re-roof Projects 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Leach Group proposal for DSA inspector of record services for the Gault Elementary and 
Mission Hill Middle schools re-roof projects.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is based on the requirement to have a DSA inspector on each and every DSA project the 
District engages in. The Leach group was the most cost effective qualified inspector that could serve our 
needs.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,955.00($1,477.50 per site), Measure A (MHMS) and B (Gault) Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 
0.01% of the overall site budget for Gault and 0.008% of the overall site budget for Mission Hill. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


525/746







1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   


 
 


This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 
into effective August 20th , 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 
Schools (“District”) and    Leach Group, Inc.____________                       (“Contractor”). 
 


1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: ___DSA 
inspection services at Gault Elementary and Mission Hill Middle Schools for the re-roof 
projects.________________________________________________________________ 
 


2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 
assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 
credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.  
[OPTIONAL: Contractor shall provide District with a copy of a current curriculum vitae 
for each principal or employee assigned to work on District projects.] 


 
3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on August 20th, 2018, and shall terminate upon 


completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 
Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  


 
4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 


giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 
further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 
of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 
performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 
records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 
proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 


 
5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed $_2,955.00___.  


District agrees to pay Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of a detailed invoice.  
 
6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 


agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 
against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 
and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 
completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 
property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 
members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 
misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 
or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 
exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    
 


7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 62113677-FA48-4EAE-B2F1-6DB274258FEF


526/746







 


2 


Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 
beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 
and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 
insurance: 


 
   □ Comprehensive General Liability, in an amount not less than: 
     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 
   □ Automobile Insurance, in an amount not less than: 
     □ $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 
 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 


endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 
the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 
Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  
 


8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 
employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  
 


9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 
compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 
own cost and expense. 


 
10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 


background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 
Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 
Contractor and District agree to the following: 


 
  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 


services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 
students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 


 
11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 


District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 
authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 
to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 
federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 
State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 
related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 
applicable taxes. 
 


12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 
any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 62113677-FA48-4EAE-B2F1-6DB274258FEF


527/746







 


3 


prior written consent of the District. 
 


13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 
 


14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision of this Agreement.  
 


15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 
supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 
by both parties. 
 


16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 
with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 
California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 
 


17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 
person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 
business address known to the person who sends the notice. 


 
District: Contractor: 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Soquel-San Jose Road 
Soquel, CA 95073 
Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  
Business Services 
 


Leach Group Inc. 
5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, CA 93923 


 


18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 
inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 
shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 
including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 
Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 
legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 
do so shall constitute material breach. 
 


19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 
their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 
exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 
agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 
evidence of consistent additional terms. 
 


20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 62113677-FA48-4EAE-B2F1-6DB274258FEF


528/746







 


4 


execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 
that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 
this Agreement. 
 


21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 
all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 


 
22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 


approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 


 
 
 


By: ________________________________ 
 
Name:   ____________________________ 
 
Title:  ______________________________ 


 
Date: _______________________________ 


 


 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Name: _____________________________  
 
Title:   _____________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 62113677-FA48-4EAE-B2F1-6DB274258FEF


8/16/2018 11:41:49 AM PDT


Brandon Leach


President Leach Group INC


529/746







Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


5016 Monterey St. 
Carmel by the Sea, Ca 93923 
T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 08/14/18 
PROJECT TITLE: Reroof projects. 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection  Varies 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                                  $ 2,955.00



________________________________________

Brandon Leach , DSA#4924


Description Cost
Mission Hill Reroof fifteen hours @ 98.50 $	 1,477.50
Gualt Reroof fifteen hours @ 98.50 $	 1,477.50


Total $ 2,955.00


530/746







Proposal: M3 Environmental: Natural Bridges painting


Separator Page


531/746







 


  
  
                        
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.29 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting LLC Proposal and Standard 


Contract Terms for Abatement Oversight for the Natural Bridges 
Elementary Painting Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 Environmental Consulting LLC proposal and standard contract terms for abatement 
oversight for the painting project at Natural Bridges Elementary. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposal is for professional services. Due to the age of the facility, Cal-OSHA requires us to provide 
an abatement specification and abatement oversight services during activities that may disturb 
hazardous materials that may be present. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$15,185.00, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.28% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


532/746







533/746







534/746







535/746







536/746







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


August 1, 2018 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller      Via email: 
Director of Facilities      trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools  
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
Subject: Proposal for a Lead Paint Survey, Specification Development and Abatement Oversight 


for the Painting Project at Natural Bridges Elementary School Located at 255 Swift Street 
in Santa Cruz, California. 


 M3 Proposal No. 182451 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a survey, abatement 
specification, and abatement oversight services for the repainting project at Natural Bridges Elementary 
School located at 255 Swift Street in Santa Cruz, California.  This proposal is based on information gathered 
during the initial inspection conducted on July 18, 2018 and subsequent telephone conversations and e-
mails with the District and M3.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that the interior and exterior the school is to be re-painted.  Paint prep activities will disturb 
lead paint and require a survey, hazardous material removal specification, and subsequent abatement 
oversight services. 
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting a quote for a survey, written specification for 
the removal of hazardous materials prior to repainting the school, as well as abatement oversight services.  
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  M3 will provide the following services to successfully complete this project: 
 
Task 1 – Lead Paint Inspection 


• Conducted a walk-through inspection of the buildings to delineate the scope of work, and to sample 
suspect lead containing paint (LCP) from the exterior of all permanent buildings.   
 


• Submitted samples to a laboratory accredited under the National Institute of Standards and 
Technology's (NIST) National Voluntary Lab Accreditation Program (NVLAP) and certified by the 
State of California CDPH Environmental Lab Accreditation Program (ELAP).   
 


• Prepared and submit a written report at the completion of the project that included field floor plans 
showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.   


 
Task 2 – Lead Related Specification 
 
M3 will design technical specifications for the lead related work.  The specification will identify the: LCP to 
be impacted during this project and will require compliance with regulations issued by the Federal 
Occupational Safety and Health administration (OSHA), California OSHA (Cal/POSHA), and the united 


537/746







  


 
SCCS 


Survey, Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Natural Bridges Elementary – Interior/Exterior Paint 


M3 Proposal No. 182451 
 


states Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The specification will describe the scope of work and 
procedures to be followed. 
 
Task 3 – Lead Related Monitoring 
 
M3 proposes to assist with the painting project by providing project air monitoring and observation services 
during lead related activities as follows: 


• Attend pre-bid and pre-construction meeting, as requested.   
• Review the abatement contractor’s submittals for conformance with the project specification.   
• Conduct area air monitoring during lead paint related activities at locations adjacent to the work 


areas to evaluate contractor work practices and to evaluate how well dust is being contained in the 
regulated work areas.  Lead samples will be analyzed by Flame Atomic Absorption (FAA) by and 
independent laboratory.   


• Observe the work practices and procedures of the lead contractor during lead related activities and 
monitor conformance with applicable local, state, and federal regulations.  We will complete daily 
checklists summarizing field observations and will include these in a written report at the completion 
of the project.   


• Conduct a visual clearance following lead related actives 
• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project documenting project activities 


and air monitoring results.   
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided based on the following schedules: 


 
Task 1 – Lead Paint Inspection 
 
 Fixed fee   $4,985.00 
 Inspection Total Fee  $4,985.00 
 
Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Abatement Specification Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 
Task 3 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Oversight 


 
Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal 2 hours $205/hour $410.00 
Staff Environmental Consultants 
(Includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 60 hours $95/hour 5,700.00 
Clerical 4 hours $65/hour 260.00 
Lead FAA air samples (3-day turnaround) 20 samples $14 each 280.00 
Lead waste stream testing (5-day turnaround) 2 samples $350 each 700.00 
Mileage, FedEx, copies, supplies, etc.   350.00 


 Estimated Oversight Fee $7,700.00 
 
 
 Estimated Project Total  $15,185.00 
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 


 
Abatement Oversight 
 


• M3 rates are based on 8-hour work shifts.  Extra hours for additional or longer shifts, meetings 
outside of the work shift hours, or other necessary activities will be charged according to the 


538/746







  


 
SCCS 


Survey, Hazardous Material Specification & Oversight 
Natural Bridges Elementary – Interior/Exterior Paint 


M3 Proposal No. 182451 
 


hourly rates as shown, plus overtime, upon receipt of you prior approval.  The overtime rate for 
a staff consultant is $115/hour.  Costs for M3 to conduct this project are dependent on the 
performance and timeliness of the asbestos abatement contractor. 
 


• As there is no project scope, for the purposes of this proposal it is assumed the contractor will 
complete the abatement within five 8-hour shifts, including time for clearances in one 
containment.  Following the receipt of the abatement contractor’s schedule  the estimated fee 
is subject to change to fit the appropriate timeline. 


 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 
 


539/746







Proposal: MBS Engineering: Natural Bridges


modernization project


Separator Page


540/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.30 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the MBS Engineering Proposal and Standard Contract Terms 


for Gas Leak Repairs at Natural Bridges Elementary and Natural 
Bridges High School  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the MBS Engineering proposal and standard contract terms for gas leak repairs at Natural Bridges 
School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Previous gas investigations at all sites were conducted and leaks were  detected at Natural Bridges 
Elementary and Natural Bridges High School. This proposal is for the immediate repair of the leaks for 
safety reasons. The repairs are currently in process. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 


$4,209.95, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.08% of the overall site budget for Natural 
Bridges Elementary 
 
$510.33, Building Funds, (Restricted), for Natural Bridges High School 
 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


541/746







542/746







543/746







544/746







545/746







546/746







547/746







548/746







549/746







550/746







551/746







552/746







553/746







554/746







555/746







Proposal: MBS Engineering: Branciforte SS


modernization project phase I


Separator Page


556/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.31 
1DODD_ATJEUB-4179B22D4D624548ADC1FA9938AE0D74 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the MBS Engineering Proposal and Standard Contract Terms 


for Gas Leak Repairs at Branciforte Small Schools  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the MBS Engineering proposal and standard contract terms for gas leak repairs at Branciforte 
Small Schools. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Previous gas investigations at all sites were conducted and leaks were detected at Branciforte Small 
Schools. This proposal is for the immediate repair of the leaks for safety reasons. The repairs are currently 
in process. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 


$1,768.40, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget for 
Branciforte Small Schools 
 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


557/746







558/746







559/746







560/746







561/746







562/746







563/746







564/746







565/746







566/746







567/746







568/746







569/746







Proposal: MBS Engineering: Gault ES modernization


Separator Page


570/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.32 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the MBS Engineering Proposal and Standard Contract Terms 


for Gas Leak Repairs at Gault Elementary School  
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the MBS Engineering proposal and standard contract terms for gas leak repairs at Gault 
Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Previous gas investigations at all sites were conducted and leaks were detected at Gault Elementary. This 
proposal is for the immediate repair of the leaks for safety reasons. The repairs are currently in process. 


 
         FISCAL IMPACT: 


$5,697.81, Measure B Bond Funds, (Restricted), representing 0.05% of the overall site budget 
 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


571/746







572/746







573/746







574/746







575/746







576/746







577/746







578/746







579/746







580/746







581/746







582/746







583/746







584/746







585/746







586/746







587/746







588/746







589/746







Change Order #1: Swinerton: Soquel HS modernization


project


Separator Page


590/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.33 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Change Order # 1 for Swinerton Builders for Site Utility 


Investigation and Storm Drain Cleaning and Video Documentation for 
the Soquel High School Modernization Project 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Change Order #1 for Swinerton Builders for additional site utility investigation, storm 
drain cleaning and video documentation for the Soquel High School modernization project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order includes charges for additional investigation of the existing sewer, electrical, 
data, fire alarms and storm drain conditions. While trying to determine the condition of the storm 
drain it was discovered they were full of debris and needed to be cleaned out prior to a condition 
assessment.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Contract Amount  $170,000.00  
Change Order #1   $71,518.63 (42.06% increase of original contract amount) 
Total    $241,518.63  
Measure A Bond Funds 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


591/746







Page 1 of 2 


Swinerton Builders CHANGE ORDER REQUEST# 
0001 


2880 Lakeside Drive, Suite 300 DATED: 08/10/2018 
Santa Clara, CA 95054 
 


 


        


  


Project Name:  Santa Cruz City Schools Soquel High School Modernization
  


Project #: 17085076 


 
 
To:   Trevor Miller 
 405 Old San Jose Road 


Santa Cruz, CA   
 
Title:   Subcontractor Costs of Investigative Work 
Notes: The attached PCI reflect the current cost of the subcontractors during the investigative and 
cleaning work. 
 


PCI Description                 Total Amount  
0003 Site Utility Investigation 21,916.13 
0005 Storm Drain Cleaning and Video Documentation 32,831.75 
0007 Continuation of Storm Drain Investigation 16,770.75 


 


Total 71,518.63 
 


The Original Contract Sum was................................................................................... 170,000.00 
Previously Approved Changes..................................................................................... .00 
The Contract Sum Prior to This Change Order was..................................................... 170,000.00 
The Contract Sum will increase by............................................................................... 71,518.63 
The New Contract Sum Including This Change Order.................................................. 241,518.63 
The Original Contract End Date was............................................................................ 06/17/2020 
Time Changes Prior to this Change Order was............................................................ 0 Days 
The Revised Contract End Date Prior to this Change................................................... 06/17/2020 
The Contract Time Will Change By.............................................................................. 0 Days 
The Revised Contract End Date including this Change is............................................. 06/17/2020 


 


This change order includes settlement of all direct costs associated with the changes described herein. 


 


ACCEPTED:  


Swinerton Builders  


 


By:   By:    
Steve Phares


Digitally signed by Steve Phares
DN: C=US, E=sphares@swinerton.com, 
O=Swinerton Builders, CN=Steve Phares
Reason: I am the author of this document
Date: 2018.08.10 09:32:38-07'00'


592/746







Page 2 of 2 


Date: 08-10-2018   Date:    


593/746







 
 


 


 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Santa Cruz, CA,  
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  
 
Subject: Swinerton Builders Job 17085076 - Santa Cruz City Schools Soquel High School Modernization 
 PCI No. 0003  
  
Dear  Mr. Miller, 
       
We request a Change Order to our contract for the following: 
 


Trade contractor investigation of existing sanitary sewer, electrical, data, fire alarm, and storm drains. 
 


Phase Category Description Subcontractor Quote 


022200 71145 Existing Conditions Assessment - Existing 
Sanitary Sewer/Site Irrigation Geo. H. Wilson, Inc. 17,219.00 


022200 71145 Existing Conditions Assessment - Existing 
Electrical/Data/Fire Alarm Infrastructure 


COLLINS ELECTRICAL CO., INC. A 
CALIFORNIA CORP. 3,263.13 


 


   Subtotal  20,482.13 
 


999999 79999 Fee (3.25%) 3.25% 666.00 


007420 71160 Liability Insurance (1%) 1% 205.00 


007510 71160 Bond (1%) 1% 205.00 


013000 71151 General Conditions (1.75%) 1.75% 358.00 
 


   Markup Subtotal 1,434.00 


   PCI Total 21,916.13 


 
 
    TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  21,916.13. 
 
Please NOTE: 


» The incorporation of this revision in to the contractual scope of work may have an impact on our 
schedule, which is yet to be finalized. Once determined, the job schedule will be adjusted accordingly to 
show the effect of this revision on the final project completion date.  


» The terms (cost and schedule impact) of this change order request are subject to review and a requote if 
not accepted within  days of its issuance. 


» This request does not include additional cost or delay due to late approval. 
 
    X       We HAVE proceeded with this revised work per your instructions. Please issue a change order. 
 
 
 
Upon acceptance of this change order request, a formal change order will be issued. Acceptance also 
acknowledges that Swinerton Builders is directed to proceed with the above change in scope. 


594/746







 
 


 


 
 


If you have any questions or comments pertaining to this matter, please contact the undersigned. 
 


Sincerely, Quotation accepted by: 
Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 
  
  
  
Steve Phares 
 


By:     ____________________________ 
Assistant Project Manager  
Date: _____08-10-2018______________ Date: ____________________________ 


 
 
 


595/746







Page 1 of 1


SWINERTON BUILDERS


001


0.00


02/27/18


3,263.00


0


02/27/18
PROPOSED


3,263.00Total Revenue For CR 001


Change Request Proposal
Change request number:
Description:


Project:
(name and
address)


S2180111 / SOQUEL HS MODERNIZATION
401 OLD SAN JOSE ROAD
SANTA CRUZ, CA 


T&M Survey of Existing Facility


Rough order of magnitude:
Received date: 	
Submitted date:


Requested days delay:	
	


Quotation


Notice to Proceed  
Origination date:
Status:


Approvals


Customer:  SWINERTON BUILDERS


By:


Contractor: COLLINS ELECTRICAL COMPANY INC          


Date:


By:


Print Date: 02/27/18


Customer:


Submitted amount: 	
		


Authorized Representative:


Date:


Billing Item Description Revenue


Revenue Detail


3,263.00


Due date:			
		


Submitted date: 		
	


596/746







597/746







598/746







599/746







600/746







601/746







602/746







 
 


 


 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Santa Cruz, CA,  
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  
 
Subject: Swinerton Builders Job 17085076 - Santa Cruz City Schools Soquel High School Modernization 
 PCI No. 0005  
  
Dear Mr. Miller, 
       
We request a Change Order to our contract for the following: 
 


Review/investigation of existing site storm drains. 
Cleaning of storm drains - truck cost, meter/water charges. 
Video documentation of existing site storm drains. 
 


Phase Category Description Subcontractor Quote 


022200 71140 Existing Conditions Assessment CONSOLIDATED PLUMBING, INC. 30,683.75 
 


   Subtotal  30,683.75 
 


999999 79999 Fee (3.25%) 3.25% 997.00 


007420 71160 Liability Insurance (1%) 1% 307.00 


007510 71160 Bond (1%) 1% 307.00 


013000 71151 General Conditions (1.75%) 1.75% 537.00 
 


   Markup Subtotal 2,148.00 


   PCI Total 32,831.75 


 
 
    TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  32,831.75. 
 
Please NOTE: 


» The incorporation of this revision in to the contractual scope of work may have an impact on our 
schedule, which is yet to be finalized. Once determined, the job schedule will be adjusted accordingly to 
show the effect of this revision on the final project completion date.  


» The terms (cost and schedule impact) of this change order request are subject to review and a requote if 
not accepted within  days of its issuance. 


» This request does not include additional cost or delay due to late approval. 
 
    X       We HAVE proceeded with this revised work per your instructions. Please issue a change order. 
 
 
 
Upon acceptance of this change order request, a formal change order will be issued. Acceptance also 
acknowledges that Swinerton Builders is directed to proceed with the above change in scope. 


603/746







 
 


 


 
 


If you have any questions or comments pertaining to this matter, please contact the undersigned. 
 


Sincerely, Quotation accepted by: 
Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 
  
  
  
Steve Phares 
 


By:     ____________________________ 
Assistant Project Manager  
Date: ___08-10-2018_________________________ Date: ____________________________ 


 
 
 


604/746







Invoice
Date


5/16/2018


Invoice #


46375


Bill To


Swinerton Builders
15 Business Park Way, Ste. 101
Sacramento, CA 95828


Job Site


Soquel High School
401 Soquel San Jose Road
Soquel, CA 95073


CONSOLIDATED PLUMBING, INC.
3732-D CHARTER PARK DRIVE
SAN JOSE, CA 95136


WKO # P.O. No. Terms


DUE ON RECEIPT


Thank you for your Business!  Inv.'s 30 days past due are subject to 1.5% finance charge per month. Total


Balance Due


408-978-3093


DateDescriptionQty Net Extension


5/8/2018VAC-CON73.25 395.00 28,933.75
Meter & Water Charges 1,750.00 1,750.00
Description of Work: Per contract to provide Hydro jetting, 
vacuum, and video services to the storm drain system as
needed to remove debris.
Work Completed: 05/08/2018


Video to be provided by Rick Bales via email.
Sales Tax 9.25% 0.00


$30,683.75


$30,683.75


605/746







606/746







607/746







608/746







609/746







 
 


 


 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Santa Cruz, CA,  
 
Attn:  Trevor Miller 
 
Subject: Swinerton Builders Job 17085076 - Santa Cruz City Schools Soquel High School Modernization 
 PCI No. 0007  
  
Dear  Mr. Miller, 
       
We request a Change Order to our contract for the following: 
 


Continuation of review/investigation of existing site storm drains.  Cleaning of storm drains - truck cost, 
meter/water charges. Video documentation of existing site storm drains. 
 


Phase Category Description Subcontractor Quote 


022200 71140 Existing Conditions Assessment CONSOLIDATED PLUMBING, INC. 15,673.75 
 


   Subtotal  15,673.75 
 


999999 79999 Fee (3.25%) 3.25% 509.00 


007420 71160 Liability Insurance (1%) 1% 157.00 


007510 71160 Bond (1%) 1% 157.00 


013000 71151 General Conditions (1.75%) 1.75% 274.00 
 


   Markup Subtotal 1,097.00 


   PCI Total 16,770.75 


 
 
    TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  16,770.75. 
 
Please NOTE: 


» The incorporation of this revision in to the contractual scope of work may have an impact on our 
schedule, which is yet to be finalized. Once determined, the job schedule will be adjusted accordingly to 
show the effect of this revision on the final project completion date.  


» The terms (cost and schedule impact) of this change order request are subject to review and a requote if 
not accepted within  days of its issuance. 


» This request does not include additional cost or delay due to late approval. 
 
    X       We HAVE proceeded with this revised work per your instructions. Please issue a change order. 
 
 
 
Upon acceptance of this change order request, a formal change order will be issued. Acceptance also 
acknowledges that Swinerton Builders is directed to proceed with the above change in scope. 
 


610/746







 
 


 


 
If you have any questions or comments pertaining to this matter, please contact the undersigned. 
 


Sincerely, Quotation accepted by: 
Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 
  
  
  
Steve Phares 
 


By:     ____________________________ 
Assistant Project Manager  
Date: ___08-10-2018_________________________ Date: ____________________________ 


 
 
 


611/746







Invoice
Date


7/30/2018


Invoice #


47403


Bill To


Swinerton Builders
15 Business Park Way, Ste. 101
Sacramento, CA 95828


Job Site


Soquel High School
401 Soquel San Jose Rd.
Soquel, CA 95024`


CONSOLIDATED PLUMBING, INC.
3732-D CHARTER PARK DRIVE
SAN JOSE, CA 95136


WKO # P.O. No. Terms


DUE ON RECEIPT


Thank you for your Business!  Inv.'s 30 days past due are subject to 1.5% finance charge per month. Total


Balance Due


408-978-3093


DateDescriptionQty Net Extension


6/28/2018VAC-CON- Mobilize0.25 395.00 98.75
7/2/2018VAC-CON5.5 395.00 2,172.50
7/3/2018VAC-CON7 395.00 2,765.00
7/5/2018VAC-CON6.5 395.00 2,567.50
7/9/2018VAC-CON- Dump Spoils0.75 395.00 296.25


7/10/2018VAC-CON6.5 395.00 2,567.50
7/11/2018VAC-CON4.25 395.00 1,678.75
7/12/2018VAC-CON4.5 395.00 1,777.50


Meter & Water 1,750.00 1,750.00
Sales Tax 9.25% 0.00


$15,673.75


$15,673.75


612/746







Deductive Change Order #1: Flint Builders:


modernization for Bay View and DeLaveaga - reduction


of scope at DeLaveaga


Separator Page


613/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.34. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Flint Builders Deductive Change Order # 1 for the 


DeLaveaga and Bay View Elementary Schools Modernization Projects 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Flint Builders Deductive change order # 1 for the DeLaveaga and Bay View 
Elementary Schools modernization projects 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The change order reflects a reduction in project scope to include only the Delaveaga Shade 
Structure and Parking Lot Project which was board approved on 5/9/18, therefore reducing the 
original Lease-Lease Back scope.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Original Scope Amount   $20,000,000.00  
Change Order #1   -$18,688,518.00 (93.44% decrease of the original contract) 
Total    $1,311,482.00 
Measure B Bond Funds 


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


 


614/746







615/746







616/746







617/746







618/746







619/746







620/746







621/746







622/746







623/746







624/746







625/746







626/746







627/746







628/746







629/746







630/746







631/746







632/746







633/746







634/746







635/746







636/746







637/746







638/746







639/746







640/746







641/746







642/746







643/746







644/746







645/746







646/746







647/746







648/746







649/746







Bid & Contract: Zayco Performance Coatings: Natural


Bridges Repainting


Separator Page


650/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.35 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Zayco Performance Coatings Bid and Contract for 


Repainting of Natural Bridges Elementary School 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Zayco Performance Coatings  bid and contract for interior and exterior repainting at 
Natural Bridges Elementary School. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of repainting the interior of buildings A, B and C, and the exterior painting of 
buildings A, B, C, D and all portable buildings at Natural Bridges Elementary. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised 
in the local newspapers.  Twelve bids were received. Zayco Performance Coatings was the successful 
low bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
D & T Painting Manteca $169,000.00 
Color New Co Woodland Hills $250,000.00 
Jeff’s Painting Los Angeles $192,000.00 
Athens Painting & Commercial Coating Pittsburg $169,000.00 
VLA Construction Inc. Woodland Hills $291,000.00 
JPB Designs Sacramento $177,000.00 
Fresh Start Painting Co. Millbrae $167,000.00 
HB Restoration Inc Rio Linda $194,050.00 
Zayco Performance Coatings Sacramento $93,000.00 
Satellite Painting San Jose $185,000.00 
Cen-Con Construction Santa Cruz $374,000.00 
A Plus Painting Roseville $167,410.00 
LOW BID  $93,000.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Zayco Performance Coatings the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$93,000.00, Measure B Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 1.63% of the Natural Bridges site 
budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  


651/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.35 
 


 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


652/746







 


{SR237488} 


 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR  


__________________________________________________________________ 
 
This Agreement between Owner and Contractor (the “Agreement”) effective August 23, 2018, between 
Santa Cruz City Schools (the “Owner”) and Zayco Performance Coatings (the “Contractor”), each a “Party” 
and together, the “Parties” to this Agreement. 
 
The Contractor and the Owner agree as follows: 
 
1.   SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials, including 
tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the Work in a good and workmanlike 
manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers, subcontractors, 
artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for:  
 


Campus Repainting at Natural Bridges Elementary School, 255 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, CA  
 
all in strict compliance with the plans, drawings and specifications therefore prepared by: 
 


MADI Group, Inc. 303 Potrero Street, Suite 5, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 
and other Contract Documents relating thereto. 
 
2.   CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The Contractor and the Owner agree that all of the documents listed in 
Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions form the Contract Documents which form the Contract. 
 
3.   TIME TO COMPLETE AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   
 
 
Time is of the essence in this Contract, and the time of Completion for the Work (the “Contract Time”) 
shall be Ninety (90) calendar days from (a) the date of commencement of the Work as established in the 
Owner’s Notice to Proceed, or (b) if no date of commencement is established in a Notice to Proceed from 
Owner, the date of Contractor’s actual commencement of the Work (including mobilization). 
 
The Work for the Campus Repainting at Natural Bridges Gymnasium shall be completed within six weeks 
(42) calendar days. Commencing on August 31, 2018 (including mobilization) and completed on October 
12, 2018 - Milestone Deadline.  
 
Failure to Complete the Work within the Contract Time and in the manner provided for by the Contract 
Documents, or failure to complete any specified portion of the Work by a milestone deadline, shall subject 
the Contractor to liquidated damages.  The actual occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the 
damages which the Owner would suffer if the Work were not completed within the Contract Time, or if 
any specified portion of the Work were not completed by a milestone deadline, are dependent upon many 
circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the 
case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages which the Owner 
would suffer in the event of such delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Work, 
disruption of activities, costs of administration and supervision, third party claims, and the incalculable 


653/746







 


{SR237488}2 


inconvenience and loss suffered by the public. 
 
Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount herein set forth shall be the amount of damages which the 
Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to Complete the Work within the Contract Time 
or complete any specified portion of the Work by a milestone deadline: $500 for each calendar day. 
 
In addition, Contractor shall be subject to liquidated damages, or actual damages if liquidated damages 
are not recoverable under law, for causing another contractor on the Project to fail to timely complete its 
work under its contract or for causing delayed completion of the Project.  The actual occurrence of 
damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if another contractor on 
the Project were to fail to timely complete its work under its contract or delay completion of the Project 
are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, 
from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages 
which the Owner would suffer in the event of such delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of 
the Work, loss of use of the other contractor’s work, loss of use of the Project, disruption of activities, 
costs of administration and supervision, third party claims, the incalculable inconvenience and loss 
suffered by the public, and an Owner’s inability to recover its delay damages from the contractors whose 
work was delayed by Contractor. 
 
Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount herein set forth shall be the amount of damages which 
the Owner shall directly incur upon Contractor causing another contractor on the Project to fail to timely 
complete its work under its contract or causing delayed completion of the Project: $500 for each 
calendar day.  
 
For Contractor’s obligations regarding claims against Owner from other contractors on the Project alleging 
that Contractor caused delays to their work, see General Conditions sections 3.7.4, 3.16 and 6.2.3.   


 
If liquidated damages accrue as described above, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies provided 
by law, shall have the right to assess the liquidated damages at any time, and to withhold liquidated 
damages (and any interest thereon) at any time from any and all retention or progress payments, which 
would otherwise be or become due the Contractor.  In addition, if it is reasonably apparent to the Owner 
before liquidated damages begin to accrue that they will accrue, Owner may assess and withhold, from 
retention or progress payments, the estimated amount of liquidated damages that will accrue in the 
future.  If the retained percentage or withheld progress payments are not sufficient to discharge all 
liabilities of the Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to 
remain liable to the Owner until all such liabilities are satisfied in full.    
 
If Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under the Contract Documents after a default by reason 
of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification of any provision 
in the Contract Documents regarding time of Completion, milestone deadlines, or liquidated damages. 
 
4.   PAYMENT.  The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds ninety-three thousand 
dollars ($ 93,000) for work satisfactorily performed after receipt of properly documented and submitted 
Applications for Payment and to make payments on account thereof, as provided in the General 
Conditions.  Retention shall be withheld from progress payments as described in the Instructions to 
Bidders. 
 
 The above contract price does not include any allowances or contingency fund.  


654/746







 


{SR237488}3 


 


5.  CHANGES.  Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement shall be 
made as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
6.   TERMINATION.  The Owner and Contractor may terminate the Contract as provided in the General 
Conditions. 
 
7.   PREVAILING WAGES.  The Project is a public work, the Work shall be performed as a public work 
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, which 
are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, the Director of Industrial Relations has 
determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and 
overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of 
worker needed to execute this Contract.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments 
for health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar purposes.  
Copies of the rates are on file at the Owner’s principal office.  The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, 
classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this Project is the rate established by the 
applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is hereby adopted by reference and 
shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations determines that another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and on 
any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers employed in the execution of 
this Agreement. 
 
The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not 
more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid 
less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed.  The 
difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each 
calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage 
rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for Work on 
this Contract and Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, 
straight time and overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics 
employed by them in connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, 
and showing also the actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at 
all reasonable hours to inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the 
Division of Labor Law Enforcement of the State Department of Industrial Relations.  Contractor and 
Subcontractor shall comply with Labor Code section 1776.  The Contractor and each subcontractor shall 
furnish a certified copy of all payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner. 
 


Public works projects shall be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of 
Industrial Relations.  A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to submit a bid or to be listed in 
a bid proposal subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4104 unless currently 
registered and qualified under Labor Code section 1725.5 to perform public work as defined by Division 
2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code. A contractor or subcontractor shall not be 
qualified to enter into, or engage in the performance of, any contract of public work (as defined by 
Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (§§1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code) unless currently registered and qualified 
under Labor Code section 1725.5 to perform public work.   


655/746







 


{SR237488}4 


 
8.   WORKING HOURS.  In accordance with the provisions of  Sections 1810 to 1815, inclusive,  of the 
Labor Code of the State of California, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of 
service of any worker employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part 
of the Work contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one 
calendar day and forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by 
such employee in excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation 
for all hours worked in excess of eight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less 
than one and one-half (1½) times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall 
keep an accurate record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each 
calendar week by each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The records shall be 
kept open at all reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of 
Labor Law Enforcement.  The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-Five Dollars 
($25.00) for each worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more 
than eight hours in any one calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein 
provided. 
 
9.   APPRENTICES.  The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 
and 1777.6 of the California Labor Code, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof.  These 
sections require that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in apprentice able occupations 
in a ratio of not less than one hour of apprentice’s work for each five hours of work performed by a 
journeyman (unless an exemption is granted in accordance with Section 1777.5) and that contractors 
and subcontractors shall not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as indentured 
apprentices on any public works solely on the ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, 
ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as defined in Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under 
apprenticeship standards and who have signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on 
public works in apprentice able occupations.  The responsibility for compliance with these provisions is 
fixed with the Contractor for all apprentice able occupations. 
 
10. DSA OVERSIGHT PROCESS.  The Contractor must comply with the applicable requirements of the 
Division of State Architect (“DSA”) Construction Oversight Process (“DSA Oversight Process”), including 
but not limited to (a) notifying the Owner’s Inspector of Record/Project Inspector (“IOR”) upon 
commencement and completion of each aspect of the Work as required under DSA Form 156; (b) 
coordinating the Work with the IOR’s inspection duties and requirements; (c) submitting verified reports 
under DSA Form 6-C; and (d) coordinating with the Owner, Owner’s Architect, any Construction 
Manager, any laboratories, and the IOR to meet the DSA Oversight Process requirements without delay 
or added costs to  the Work or Project.  
 
Contractor shall be responsible for any additional DSA fees related to review of proposed changes to the 
DSA-approved construction documents, to the extent the proposed changes were caused by Contractor’s 
wrongful act or omissions.  If inspected Work is found to be in non-compliance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents or the DSA-approved testing and inspection program, then it must be removed 
and corrected.  Any construction that covers unapproved or uninspected Work is subject to removal and 
correction, at Contractor’s expense, in order to permit inspection and approval of the covered work in 
accordance with the DSA Oversight Process.   


656/746







 


{SR237488}5 


 
11.   INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, trustees, employees and others as provided in the 
General Conditions. 
 
By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers’ Compensation 
in compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and during the 
performance of the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of said 
Code.  The Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days’ notice of 
cancellation. 
 
Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.  The amount of general 
liability insurance shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage and the amount of automobile liability insurance shall be $1,000,000 per accident for bodily 
injury and property damage combined single limit. 
 
12.   ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating 
to the Work, and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or 
written, including the Owner’s award of the Contract to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly 
incorporated herein.  The Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not 
specified in the Contract.  The Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the 
parties’ agreement pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure section 1856. 
 
13.   EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS.  The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 
execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions that may be 
necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of the Contract. 
 
14.   EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended 
together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 
15.  BINDING EFFECT.  Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has 
read this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by 
their terms and conditions.  The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and the Owner and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
16.   SEVERABILITY; GOVERNING LAW; CHOICE OF FORUM.  If any provision of the Contract shall be held 
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof.  The Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California.  Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be 
brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Cruz, subject to 
transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a 
waiver of immunity to suit by Owner. 
 
17.   AMENDMENTS.  The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 
amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement, which includes a change order signed 


657/746







 


{SR237488}6 


by the parties and approved or ratified by the Governing Board. 
 
18.   ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or 
otherwise any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the 
surety on the payment bond, the surety on the performance bond and the Owner. 
 


19.  WRITTEN NOTICE.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person 
to the individual or member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it was intended, or 
if delivered at or sent by registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business address known to 
the person who gives the notice. 
 
 


____________________ (contractor)  Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
___________________________   ___________________________ 
_______________________ (Name)   _________________________ (Name) 
_____________________ (Title)                  _____________________ (Title) 
 
 
___________________________  
_______________________ (Name) 
_____________________ (Title) 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE NO. 
 
___________________________ 
LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE 
 
NOTE: Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with Contractor’s 


usual signature.  Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and the Agreement 
must be signed in the partnership name by a general partner with authority to bind the 
partnership in such matters, followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.  
The name of the person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  
Corporations must sign with the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the 
state of incorporation and by the signature and designation of the chairman of the board, 
president or any vice president, and then followed by a second signature by the secretary, 
assistant secretary, the chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. All persons signing must be 
authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.  The name of each person signing shall also 
be typed or printed below the signature.  Satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer 
signing on behalf of a corporation shall be furnished. 


658/746







Staff Report: Suspension/Expulsion Process Update


Separator Page


659/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Suspension and Expulsion Update  
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This report provides a three-year overview of suspension and expulsion data for Santa Cruz City 
Schools. SCCS follows the California Education Code in determining how best to respond to 
incidents where students create an unsafe environment for themselves or others. The Ed Code 
clarifies the offenses for which the district may suspend or expel and provides guidelines for 
suspending the expulsion order. 
 
As part of our Multi-Tired Systems of Support framework, one of our four strategic focus areas 
as a District is School Connectedness.  In our effort to reduce suspensions and expulsions 
overall, our goal is to establish effective support programs and increase interventions through a 
coordinated effort at each site that identifies students who are struggling. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Varies from year to year, as ADA is lost due to suspensions and expulsions 
 
 
This work supports the following goals and their accompanying metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2: All Santa Cruz City School students will be motivated learners who leave our system as 
well-rounded citizens with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities. 
 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within our SCCS school community. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 


660/746







Suspensions/Expulsions 
Update


Board Meeting
August 29, 2018


661/746







Suspensions and Expulsions
Established by Ed Code with levels of discretion based on district practice 


and policy


● Suspensions contain some flexibility regarding length/time


● Expulsions result from certain actions and/or circumstances and 


may require mandated action 


662/746







Data Origins
The suspension/expulsion data contained in the following report was 


compiled using certified CalPads data for Santa Cruz City Schools for the 


previous three school years. 


● 2015-2016


● 2016-2017


● 2017-2018 


663/746







Santa Cruz City Schools Student Demographics Table


Elementary Secondary


Year Hispanic White Other Hispanic White Other


15-16 39.3% 49.3% 11.4% 37.5% 52.9% 9.9%


16-17 38.3% 50.3% 11.4% 37.2% 52.7% 10.1%


17-18 37.3% 50.9% 11.9% 38.4% 50.8% 10.8%


664/746







ELEMENTARY


665/746







3-Year Elementary Suspension Data (Overall)


2015-2016: 20
2016-2017: 10
2017-2018: 34


3 Year Total: 64


666/746







Elementary Suspensions (Ethnicity 3 Yr)


667/746







Elementary Suspensions (Students w/ Disabilities 3 Yr.)


668/746







Elementary Suspensions (Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged 3 Yr.)


2015-2016
SED 11
Total: 20 


2016-2017
SED: 8
Total: 10


2017-2018
SED: 25
Total: 34


669/746







Expulsions: Elementary


Over the course of the last three school years,


1 expulsion (2015-2016)


670/746







SECONDARY 


671/746







3-Year Secondary Suspension Data by Offenses 


Top 5 Offenses = 410


2015-2016: 122
2016-2017: 145
2017-2018: 143


Other Offenses = 171
Total = 581


672/746







Secondary Suspensions  (Ethnicity 3 Yr.)


673/746







Secondary Suspensions (Special Education 3 Yr.)


674/746







Secondary Suspensions (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 3 Yr.)


675/746







Expulsions: Secondary (Ethnicity 3 Yr.)


2015-2016: 19
2016-2017: 14
2017-2018: 14


Total = 47


676/746







Expulsions: Secondary (SWD 3 Yr.)


2015-2016: 19
2016-2017: 14
2017-2018:14


Total = 47


677/746







Expulsions: Secondary (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 3 Yr)


2015-2016: 19
2016-2017: 14
2017-2018:14


Total = 47


678/746







SCCS Efforts 
"Do the best you can until you know better. Then when you know 
better, do better." - Maya Angelou


● Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS)


● Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS)


● Restorative Justice trainings and practices 


● Trauma Informed Practices


● “School Connectedness” District Goal 


679/746







SCCS Continued and Future Efforts 


● Continue current practices and pursue further training.


● Use data results as a basis for PLC conversations to determine site 


and district goals.


● Raise awareness, and focused response to disproportionate student 


subgroup behavioral data results - Opening Doors.


● Empathy Interviews to Identify Student Perspectives and Needs.


● Visit to ABC Unified with GSCFT leadership, building reps, principals 


and central office leaders.


● Continue focus on student connectedness.


680/746







Questions?  


681/746







Educational Services: SPED: Non Public Agency


ABRITE Organization


Separator Page


682/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Nonpublic Agency 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Nonpublic Agency contract for new and continuing services through the 
2018-2019 summer and regular school year. Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect 
the identity of disabled pupils, the student names have been omitted.  
 


 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for: One-To-One Aide, Behavior Intervention/Supervision, Consultation, 
Training and Assessment Services for 29 students in Special Education that require these 
specialized services. They are provided through The ABRITE Organization and are mandated in 
each student’s IEP. Service Period: July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Not to exceed $1,465,927.39. Funded by Special Education – Restricted 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 


 
 
 


 


 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 


683/746







684/746







685/746







686/746







687/746







Staff Report: Bond Projects Update


Separator Page


688/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 
1DODD_ATJEUB-7C7A0CB16B864364BF3F1BB7FD784DFC 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Projects Update 
 
MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018  
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Belli Architects will present an update on the District’s Bond Projects that they are overseeing. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
 
 
 


689/746







MEASURE  A BOND PROJECT UPDATES FOR:
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE SCHOOL 


SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL POOL


AUGUST 29, 2018


690/746







CURRENT PROJECTS: 2017-2019


Project Phase Completion 


(est)


1 Athletic Fields Improvements Construction September 2018


2 Roof Replacement Construction Summer 2018


3 Tennis Court Renovation Construction Summer 2018


4 Student Locker Remodel Construction Fall 2018


5 Electrical Service 


Replacement


Bidding Summer 2019


6 New Swimming Pool and 


Weight Room


Design Summer 2019


HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


691/746







NEXT PROJECTS (2018-2020)


Project Phase Completion (est)


1 Upper Parking Lot 


Improvements


Design Summer 2019


2 Music/Theater/Fine Arts


Building Modernization


Preliminary Fall 2019


3 Security/Access Improvements Design TBD


4 Classroom Modernization Preliminary TBD


5 Data Infrastructure Design TBD


HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


692/746







CURRENT BUDGET STATUS
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


Project Estimated Cost


Current Projects
• Athletic Field Improvements $9.5M


• Electrical Service Replacement $350K


• New Swimming Pool & Weight Room $9.6M


• Roof Replacement $1.5M


• Student Locker Remodel $250K


• Tennis Court Renovation $225K


Current Projects Subtotal $22.4 Million


Next Projects
• Music/Theater/Fine Arts Building Modernization $3.4M


• Security/Access Improvements $300K


• Data Infrastructure Improvements $600K


• Upper Parking Lot Improvements $200K


• Classroom Modernization $2.4M


Next Projects Subtotal $5.9 Million


Multi-Project Overhead $1.5 Million


Total Estimated Allocation $29.8 Million


Total Current Resource $29.8 Million


693/746







ATHLETIC FIELDSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


694/746







ATHLETIC FIELDSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


695/746







ATHLETIC FIELDSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


696/746







ATHLETIC FIELDSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


697/746







STUDENT LOCKERSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


698/746







STUDENT LOCKERSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


699/746







STUDENT LOCKERSHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


700/746







HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL
TENNIS COURTS


701/746







HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL
RE-ROOF


702/746







COMPETITION SWIMMING POOL AND WEIGHT TRAINING ROOM  HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


703/746







HARBOR HIGH 


SCHOOL


PROPOSED SITE PLAN


704/746







COMPETITION SWIMMING POOL AND WEIGHT TRAINING ROOM  HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


705/746







HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL COMPETITION SWIMMING POOL AND WEIGHT TRAINING ROOM  


706/746







BUDGET EVOLUTION
HARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


Estimate Date Estimated Hard Cost Total Estimated Cost (22%)


3/20/2018 $5.8M 40-meter Pool $7.1M


6/20/2018 $5.6M  33-meter Pool


$857K Pool Relocation


$573K Modular Weight Room 


$7.0M + (22%) $8.5M


8/22/2018 $5.6M 33-meter Pool


$857K Pool Relocation


$727K CMU Weight Room


$205K Quad Grading and Repair


$22K Landscape and Irrigation


$155K Basketball Courts


$15K Parking Lot Reconfiguration


$50K Winterization 


$75K GC Schedule Extension and Overhead


$155K Contingency Increase from 3% to 5%


$7.9M  + (22%) $9.6M


707/746







COMPARISON: SOQUEL POOL VS HARBOR POOLHARBOR HIGH SCHOOL


Soquel HS Pool Estimated Cost: $5.8M


Soquel HS Actual Cost:


• Retaining Walls


• Fire Sprinkler


• Chemical Delivery Grading


• Actual Bid Cost


$6.3M


Harbor HS Pool Estimated Cost $5.8M


Harbor HS Pool Base 33-meter Pool Estimate $5.6M (± 200K difference in estimated cost)


708/746







CURRENT PROJECTS: 2017-2019


Project Phase Completion (est)


1 Roof Replacement Construction Summer 2018


2 Music Building Design Summer 2019


3 Parking Lot Security


Access Improvements


Bidding Summer 2019


4 MPR Partial Modernization Design Summer 2019


5 Classroom Modernization (Phase1) 


• Science


• Sail/Innovation


• Rooms 22 + 23


Design Winter 2019


BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE 


SCHOOL


709/746







NEXT PROJECTS: 2018-2020


Project Phase Completion 


(est)


1 Classroom  Modernization (Phase2) Preliminary Summer 2020


2 Administrating/Library


Modernization


Design Summer 2020


3 Street Presence Improvements Preliminary Fall 2020


4 Card Access Security System Design Summer 2019


5 Data Infrastructure Improvements Preliminary TBD


BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE 


SCHOOL


710/746







CURRENT BUDGET STATUS
BRANCIFORTE MIDDLE SCHOOL


Project Estimated Cost


Current Projects


• Parking Lot Security/Access Improvements $300K


• Roof Replacement $1.3M


• Classroom Modernization (Phase 1) $3M


• MPR Partial Modernization $2M


• Music Building $1M


Current Projects Subtotal $7.6 Million


Next Projects
• Classroom Modernization (Phase 2) $6.5M


• Administration/Library Modernization $1.2M


• Street Presence Improvements $750K


• Card Access Security Systems $150K


• Data Infrastructure Improvements $300K


Next Projects Subtotal $8.9 Million


Multi-Project Overhead $850K


Total Estimated Allocation $17.35 Million


Total Current Resource $18 Million


Remaining $650K


711/746







RE-ROOFBRANCIFORTE MIDDLE SCHOOL


712/746







CURRENT PROJECTS: 2017-2019


Project Phase Completion 


(est)


1 New Swimming Pool Construction Winter 2019


SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL


713/746







COMPETITION SWIMMING POOLSOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL


714/746







COMPETITION SWIMMING POOLSOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL


715/746







New Business: Amendment: Belli Architects: Harbor HS


pool project


Separator Page


716/746







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Belli Architectural Group Agreement Amendment for 


Additional Services for Pool Relocation and New Weight Room for the 
Harbor High School Pool Facility 
 


MEETING DATE: August 29, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Belli Architectural Group agreement amendment for additional services for pool 
relocation and new weight room for the Harbor High school pool facility.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a Master Agreement for Architectural Services with Belli Architectural 
Group on 1/17/18. An initial Agreement Amendment using cost estimates from consultants was approved 
by the Board on 6/28/17. The revised Agreement Amendment for the Harbor High school pool facility 
reflects the current estimated construction costs of the project and incorporates the relocation design 
costs associated with the need to relocate the new pool facility and weight room.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$808,701, Measure A Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 2.71% of the total site budget 


 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development 
of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 


717/746







718/746







719/746







720/746







721/746







722/746







723/746







PUBLIC HEARING: SCCS/SCCCE Tentative Agreement


2017-18


Separator Page


724/746







************ PLEASE POST ********* 
 


Location: ____________________________ 
 


Date Posted: __________________________ 
 


Time Posted: __________________________ 
 


Person Posting:________________________ 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM 8.5.2.3 


 


PUBLIC NOTICE 
 


AB 1200 FOR CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES (SCCCE) 
 
 
 
Public notice is hereby provided that the Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
District reached a tentative collective bargaining agreement with the Classified Employee 
bargaining unit represented by the Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees (SCCCE), for 
2017-18.  The Board of Trustees will conduct a public hearing and approve the agreement with 
the SCCCE at a Board meeting to be held as follows: 
 


August 29, 2018 
6:30 p.m. 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
400 Encinal Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
Board Room 
 


 
Copies of the agreement and costs of the agreement are available at the Santa Cruz City 
Schools District Office, 133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 beginning August24, 
2018. 
 
Comments on the cost of the agreement may be submitted to the Board of Trustees, c/o Santa 
Cruz City Schools District, in writing at the above address or may be made at the Board meeting 
at the above time and location.  


 


725/746







New Business: AB 1200 Fiscal Impact: SCCS/SCCCE


Tentative Agreement 2017-18


Separator Page


726/746







 AGENDA ITEM 8.5.2.4 
 
1DODD_ATJEUB-E31863BA1AD449B0BA3226ABB15DCF12.doc 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  AB 1200 Public Disclosure of the 2017-2018 Collective Bargaining 


Tentative Agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools and the 
Santa Cruz City Schools Council of Classified Employees (SCCCE) 


 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
  
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the AB 1200 Public Disclosure of the 2017-2018 Collective Bargaining Tentative 
Agreement between Santa Cruz City Schools and the Santa Cruz City Schools Council of 
Classified Employees (SCCCE). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Following a positive and collaborative year of discussions, an agreement has been reached to 
conclude our 2017-2018 negotiations with our classified employees.  Once a contractual 
agreement is reached, the Board is required by AB 1200 to make this tentative agreement 
available to the public, to publicly disclose its costs, and to receive public comments on the 
agreement prior to approval.  A public notice concerning the AB 1200 was posted at all District 
sites prior to the Board meeting.   
 
The proposed settlement is a 2% increase on the salary schedule retroactive to July 1, 2017. 
Attached is the AB 1200 form which details the costs of the agreement.  The AB 1200 also 
includes the fiscal impact of four job reclassifications and one professional development day 
for 9-month classified staff.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


 A recurring annual cost increase of $238,790 beginning July 1, 2017 for the 2% rate 
increase. 


 A recurring annual cost increase of $132,084 beginning July, 1 2018 for four job 
reclassifications. 


 A one-time cost annual cost of $27,000 in 2018-2019 for one professional development 
day. 


Funding Source: LCFF Base (Unrestricted), LCFF Supplemental (Restricted), Federal Categorical 
Programs (Restricted) 
 
This work is done in support of the following District Goal and its corresponding metric: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Greg Torr, Finance Director 


727/746







728/746







729/746







730/746







731/746







732/746







733/746







734/746







735/746







736/746







737/746







738/746







New Business: Approve the SCCS/SCCCE Tentative


Agreement 2017-18


Separator Page


739/746







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Tentative Agreement between the Santa Cruz City Council of Classified 


Employees and Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Tentative Agreement between the Santa Cruz City Council of Classified Employees and Santa 
Cruz City Schools for 2017-18. 
 
Background: 
A Tentative Agreement was reached on June 26, 2018.  SCCS offers SCCCE a 2% increase on the salary 
schedule and to the EWAs (Extra Work Agreements) retroactive to July 2017.   


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 A recurring annual cost increase of $238,790 beginning July 1, 2017 for the 2% rate increase. 
 A recurring annual cost increase of $132,084 beginning July, 1 2018 for four job reclassifications. 
 A one-time cost annual cost of $27,000 in 2018-2019 for one professional development day. 


Funding Source: LCFF Base (Unrestricted), LCFF Supplemental (Restricted), Federal Categorical Programs 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


740/746







741/746







New Business: Renaming the Harbor High School


Theater


Separator Page


742/746







  
  
                        
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Renaming the Harbor High School Theater 
      
MEETING DATE:  August 29, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve renaming the Harbor High School Little Theater to the Harbor High School Cathy 
Warner Theater. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Drama teacher Cathy Warner retired in June 2018 after 37 years of service to Harbor High 
School.  Students approached Principal Tracey Runeare with the proposal to name the Theater 
the Cathy Warner Theater in early May, 2018.  
 
Because the naming of school facilities should be conservative and judiciously determined, 
Principal Tracey Runeare scheduled a meeting of the Facility Naming Committee for after 
graduation. The purpose of the late meeting was to try to ensure that decisions regarding 
naming the theater were not based on the emotional momentum caused by Ms. Warner’s 
retirement and that the outcome regarding the facility naming was thoughtfully determined.  
 
At the request of the Principal, the Booster President extended an invitation to the Booster 
email list serve for interested parents and community members to attend the Facility Naming 
Committee.  The students heading the movement to rename the theater sent an email to staff 
and several staff members responded to me with their support of the proposal to name the 
theater the Cathy Warner Theater. 
 
Research into the SCCS District and Harbor site records regarding the current name of the 
theater at Harbor (the Little Theater) was conducted and there was no discovery that the 
theater was named for a person or family named “Little.” Instead, the Little Theater was named 
in accordance with the “Little Theater Movement” that included non-professional and semi-
professional theater companies interested in staging new and/or untried plays.   
 
The committee to investigate the possible name change included Tracey Runeare, Principal; 
Cindy Arvenites, parent; Kathy Ferraro, community member; Bianca Chestnut, alumni 2018; 


743/746







  
  
                        
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


Mataya Bryson-O’Connor, alumni 2018.   The only suggestion for renaming the theater was the 
Cathy Warner Theater – no other possibilities were brought forward.   The rationale for 
renaming the theater was that Cathy Warner spent her entire teaching career at Harbor High 
School. She was a student teacher and teacher at Harbor High for a combined 37 years. During 
her tenure at Harbor, Ms. Warner created a student-run program and her strong reputation 
and outstanding theater program influenced students to enroll at Harbor High from other 
schools in and out of the district. The courses offered, Drama and Advanced Drama, provided 
students an opportunity to participate in technical theater as well as acting. The courses 
developed into studio classes where students worked in a hands-on environment. Ms. Warner 
built a sustainable program where students write, practice, do technical work, and lead.  
 
As a teacher, Ms. Warner created an environment in her classes and in the productions where 
students were not afraid to develop their performing skills in front of each other and the 
teacher. That happens because of the safe, purposeful, and caring environment that Ms. 
Warner created in the theater and embedded into her teaching. In addition to the Theater 
program, Ms. Warner began the only dance program in the area in the 1990s--Escapades Dance 
Company. The Escapades program continues to be a showcase for students who are interested 
in performing outside of the theater productions and it has evolved into an extracurricular club 
where students learn and choreograph a diversity of dance styles. The annual performances at 
the Harbor Theater--fall plays, musicals, Escapades and Cabaret are staples that exist because 
of Ms. Warner’s work.   
 
Ms. Warner has taught and motivated thousands of students during her years at Harbor High. 
The experiences that students have shared about their work with her and their place in the 
theater are positive and inspirational. Students have had to maintain their academic eligibility 
to be in the Harbor productions, which, for some, was the carrot necessary to keep up their 
grades.  
 
Ms. Warner influenced students and adults to understand more about the performing arts and 
the deep value of this important opportunity we need to provide high school students. Ms. 
Warner taught that performing is what we should all be doing to develop our empathy for 
others, learn how to challenge ourselves beyond perceived limits, and grow our humanity. 
 
Long after her retirement, this naming will provide an opportunity to honor her 37 years of 
service and legacy at Harbor High. 
 
Cathy Warner Recent Awards 
Gail Rich Award, 2018 
Eddy Award, 2015 
Harbor High Hall of Achievement inductee, 2011 
 
 


744/746







  
  
                        
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


Cathy Warner, Recent Press 
Cathy Warner, Santa Cruz County Stories: A timeless passion 
CATHY WARNER: 2018 GAIL RICH AWARD HONOREE 
Gail Rich Awards, Santa Cruz Arts Council 
Cathy Warner Receives Gail Rich Award 
 
Cathy Warner, Notable Alumni 
Adam Scott, TV and movie actor 
Leah Webber, Broadway Dancer 
Heather Deardorf, Professional singer/songwriter 
Becca Barnett, Professional singer/songwriter 
Jazlyn Borkowski, Wig technician 
Wali Razagi, Producer 
Malte Joe Frid-Nielson, Actor  
 
The vote was unanimous in favor of naming the theater the Cathy Warner Theater. There were 
four emails received by Principal Runeare from Harbor teachers (Larkin Wilson, Orla Holladay, 
Marina Martin and Anne Cappiello), who could not attend, in favor of the name change. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fee (less than $200 estimate from Principal Runeare) for changing the sign in front of the 
theater will be paid by Harbor HS donations. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of students. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 
 
Included below: Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facility 
 
 


 


 


 


 


745/746







  
  
                        
                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 
Naming Of Facility 
 
BP 7310  
Facilities 
 
 
The Governing Board shall name new schools or individual buildings in recognition of: 
 
1. Individuals, living or deceased, who have made outstanding contributions to the county 
or community 
 
2. Individuals, living or deceased, who have made contributions of state, national or 
worldwide significance 
 
3. The geographic area in which the school or building is located 
 
4. Other names of historic or community interest 
 
The Board encourages community participation in the process of selecting names. A citizen 
advisory committee shall be appointed to review name suggestions and submit recommendations 
for the Board's consideration. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
The renaming of existing schools or facilities shall occur only under extraordinary circumstances 
and after thorough study. 
 
Memorials 
 
Upon approval of the site principal and superintendent, modest and inconspicuous memorials 
such as trees or benches may be placed at school facilities. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35160  Authority of governing boards 
 
 
 
Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
adopted:  June 20, 2012 in Soquel, California 


746/746





		Agenda 8-29-18 FINAL.PUBLIC

		Minutes 6-13-18 Reviewed 


		Minutes 6-20-18 Reviewed 


		Minutes 8-15-18 Reviewed 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		POs over $2500 list

		Quote_ Belson_ benches for locker improvements project @ Harbor HS

		Belson Outdoors Quote Harbor High Student Locker Improvements

		Quote_ Larson Electronics_ Stadium Lights @ Harbor HS

		Larson Electronics Quote lights HH Field

		Warrant Register 


		Vendor warrants report

		Budget Transfers 


		Budget Transfer Report July 2018

		Disposition of Surplus Property 


		Surplus MHMS furniture &amp; equipmt

		Williams Quarterly Report 


		8.1.7. Williams 4th Quarter Report 06.30.18

		Revised Classified Job Description_ Lead Bus Driver

		8.1.8.-Attachment- Trainer Lead School Bus Driver

		Resolution 01-18-19 Authorization for Submittal of Application for School Bus Grant

		Resolution Application for School Bus Replacement Grant

		Human Resources_ CSA Scott Hamilton 


		8.2.1 Attachment-Scott Hamill CSA

		8.2.1 Attachment-Proposal for Soquel High School Certified Athletic Trainer Service Provider 2018-19

		Human Resources_ CSA Mary Gaukel Forster 


		8.2.2 Attachment- Mary Gaukel Forster

		Human Resources_ CSA Bert Post 


		8.2.3 Attachment-  Bert Post CSA

		Educational Services_ SCCS_COE Science Camp Agreement for 2018-19

		8.2.4. ONF - COE Outdoor Science School Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ Monarch ES-CSA Sarah Rapp

		8.2.5. CSA Rapp 08.29.18

		Educational Services_ Student Services_ Service Agreement SCCS_UC Santa Barbara

		8.2.6. SA SCCS-UCSB Agrmt Docs 08.29.18

		Educational Services_ CIA_ AVID Contract 2018-19

		8.2.7. AVID Contract Quote 08.29.18

		Educational Services_ CIA_ CSA for GLAD 


		8.2.8. CSA GLAD - Request p1 08.29.18

		8.2.8. CSA GLAD - p2 08.29.18

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Out of State Non Public School – Alpine Academy

		8.2.9. NPS OOS - Alpine Academy Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Agreement for Professional Services-Margaret Barker

		8.2.10. APS - M. Barker Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Agreement for Professional Services-Deborah Bell

		8.2.11. APS - D. Bell Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Non Public School – The Bay School

		8.2.12. NPS - Bay School Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Out of State Non Public School - Diamond Ranch Academy

		8.2.13. NPS OOS - Diamond Ranch Academy Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Out of State Non Public School – La Europa Academy

		8.2.14. NPS OOS - La Europa Academy Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Non Public School – RCS_Phoenix School

		8.2.15. NPS - RCS Phoenix Contract Docs

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Agreement with Non Public Agency – Trumpet Behavioral Health

		8.2.16. NPA - Trumpet Contract Docs

		Business Services_ Wenger &amp; Associates_ Contract Addendum-service to June 2019

		Wenger &amp; Assoc Agrmt addendum re ASB training

		Wenger Proposal ASB Fundraisers 081817

		Business Services_ SCCS_COE_ Lease Agreement – renewal for 133 Swift St., SC

		2018-21 313 Swift St-COE Lease updated 082918

		Green Schools lease rates 080118 ex A

		Map COE leased spaces Exhibit B

		Business Services_ Encompass_ MOU Addendum – renew lease for HeadStart for portable at Branciforte Small Schools

		Encompass 1st Addendum to MOU for Headstart portable at B40SS

		Business Services_ Encompass_ FUA Addendum – renew lease for HeadStart portable and Kinderpod at Natural Bridges

		Encompass 1st Addendum to FUA for Headstart facilities at NB

		Business Services_ Landscape Structures_ Bay View ES PIP Playground C.O. #1

		Landscape Structures Change Order1 BV PIP Rubber Surfacing

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Mission Hill MS Front Landscape

		Albion Environmental Proposal MHMS Front Landscape

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ On Call Services

		Albion Environmental Proposal On Call Svces

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ DeLaveaga ES Archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal Delaveaga

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Branciforte SS Archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal B40SS

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Soquel HS Archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal Soquel High

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Branciforte MS archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal B40MS

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Santa Cruz HS Archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal Santa Cruz High

		Proposal_ Albion Environmental_ Westlake ES Archaeological soil investigation

		Albion Environmental Proposal WestLake

		Agreement Amendment_ Belli_ Harbor HS athletic field project and PG&amp;E gas line relocation

		Belli Contract Amendment  HH Athletic Field

		Change Order_ Bowman &amp; Williams_ Harbor HS pool project

		Bowman _ Williams Change Order HH Pool

		Proposal_ Butano_ Harbor HS field project 


		Butano Proposal Harbor Field Construction 2 Modular &amp; RR

		Proposal_ Butano_ Harbor HS field project 


		Butano Proposal Harbor Field Construction 3 stadium lighting

		Change Order #1_ CRW Industries, Inc._ Mission Hill MS front landscape

		CRW MHMS Front Landscape Change Order #1

		Contract_ CWS Construction Group_ Harbor HS locker improvements project

		CWS Construction Group Contract HH Student Locker Improvements

		Contract_ D &amp; T Painting_ Santa Cruz HS gym vestibule &amp; RR paint

		D_T Painting Contract SCH Gym Vestibule &amp; RR Interior Paint

		D_T Painting Bartos BackUp Justification SCH Gym Vestibule &amp; RR Interior Paint

		Proposal_ Earth Systems_ Gault ES Re-roofing project

		Earth Systems Contract Gault Re-Roof

		Earth Systems Proposal Gault re-Roof

		Proposal_ Enviroplex_ Bay View ES, Branciforte SS, DeLaveaga ES modular buildings

		Enviroplex Proposal BV B40SS DLV Modular Buildings

		Bid_Contract_ First Serve Productions_ Soquel HS &amp; Harbor HS tennis courts

		First Serve Contract SQH _ HH Tennis Courts

		Change Order #1_ First Serve Productions_ Soquel HS &amp; Harbor HS tennis courts

		First Serve Change Order #1 SQH _ HH Tennis Courts

		Change Order #1_ Garland_ Mission Hill MS re-roofing project

		Garland Change Order1 MHMS Reroof

		Change Order #1_ Garland_ Harbor HS re-roofing project

		Garland Change Order1 HH Reroof

		Change Order #1_ Ifland Survey_ DeLaveaga ES modernization

		Ifland Change Order #1 DLV Modernization

		Proposal_ Joseph Renda_ Soquel HS concession area

		Joseph Renda DSA In Plant Inspection Contract Soquel High Concession Building

		Joseph Renda DSA In Plant Inspection Proposal Soquel High Concession Building

		Proposal_ Kleinfelder_ Branciforte SS campus classroom building

		Kleinfelder Proposal B40SS Campus Classroom Building

		Proposal_ Kleinfelder_ Branciforte SS lunch shelter and playground project

		Kleinfelder Proposal B40SS Lunch Shelter and Playground

		Proposal_ Kleinfelder_ Soquel HS pool &amp; concession area project

		Kleinfelder Proposal Soquel Pool and Concession

		Proposal_ Kleinfelder_ Natural Bridges gym modernization

		Kleinfelder Proposal NB Gym Modernization

		Proposal_ Leach Group_ Gault ES &amp; Mission Hill MS re-roofing projects

		Leach Contract_Reroof_Mission-Gault (PE)

		Leach Proposal_Reroof_Mission-Gault

		Proposal_ M3 Environmental_ Natural Bridges painting

		M3 Contract NB Painting

		M3 Proposal NB Painting

		Proposal_ MBS Engineering_ Natural Bridges modernization project

		MBS Contract Natural Bridges (PE)

		MBS Proposal Natural Bridges

		Proposal_ MBS Engineering_ Branciforte SS modernization project phase I

		MBS Contract B40SS (PE)

		MBS Proposal  B40SS

		Proposal_ MBS Engineering_ Gault ES modernization

		MBS Contract Gault (PE0

		MBS Proposal Gault

		Change Order #1_ Swinerton_ Soquel HS modernization project

		Swinerton SQH Modernization Change Order #1

		Deductive Change Order #1_ Flint Builders_ modernization for Bay View and DeLaveaga - reduction of scope at DeLaveaga

		Flint Builders DLV &amp; BV Modernization Projects  Change Order #1

		Flint Builders LLB agrmt - BV DLV Modernization

		Bid &amp; Contract_ Zayco Performance Coatings_ Natural Bridges Repainting

		Zayco Performance Coatings Contract NB  RePainting

		Staff Report_ Suspension_Expulsion Process Update

		8.5.1.1. Suspensions Expulsions Update Board Presentation 082918

		Educational Services_ SPED_ Non Public Agency ABRITE Organization

		8.5.1.2. NPA - ABRITE Contract Docs

		Staff Report_ Bond Projects Update 


		Bond Projects Update Presentation

		New Business_ Amendment_ Belli Architects_ Harbor HS pool project

		Belli Contract Amendment #2 (revised) HH Pool

		PUBLIC HEARING_ SCCS_SCCCE Tentative Agreement 2017-18

		New Business_ AB 1200 Fiscal Impact_ SCCS_SCCCE Tentative Agreement 2017-18

		AB 1200 SCCCE tentative agrmt fiscal impact

		New Business_ Approve the SCCS_SCCCE Tentative Agreement 2017-18

		8.5.3.1 Attachment- SCCCE and SCCS Tentative Agreement 062618

		New Business_ Renaming the Harbor High School Theater




